
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, JULY 18, 2022 

7:00 PM AT COMMUNITY CENTER, 528 MAIN STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of July 5, 2022. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing August 2022 as Gastroparesis Awareness Month. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Special Order of Business 

3. Receive and file bids received for the sale of $3,860,000 General Obligation Loan Notes, Series 
2022. 

4. Resolution directing the sale of $3,860,000 General Obligation Loan Notes, Series 2022. 

5. Continuation of the public hearing on the FY2023 (FFY2022) Annual Action Plan for Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Consortium. 
 
a) Staff comments. 
 
b) Public comments. 
 
c) Resolution approving the FY2023 (FFY2022) Annual Action Plan for Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Consortium. 

6. Public hearing on the Status of Funded Activities for the State Award of Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act.  
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 11, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving the Status of Funded Activities for the State Award of Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

7. Public hearing on the proposed rezoning from R-1, Residence District to A-1, Agricultural District of 
property located at 2209 North Union Road. 

1



Page 2 of 3 

 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 8, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Pass an ordinance amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing certain 
property located at 2209 North Union Road from the R-1, Residence District and placing the same in 
the A-1, Agricultural District, upon its first consideration. 

8. Public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to Planning & Zoning Commission review of site plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT). 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 6, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Planning 
& Zoning Commission review of site plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), upon its first 
consideration. 

Old Business 

9. Pass Ordinance #3013, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to prohibiting parking on portions of South Lawn Road, upon its third and final 
consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

10. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Tori Hale, Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending 06/30/2024. 
b) Lorene Hosler, Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending 06/30/2025. 

11. Receive and file the following resignation of members from Boards and Commissions: 
a) Sarah Corkery, Parks & Recreation Commission. 

12. Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to the following certified 
lists: 
a) Cultural Programs Supervisor. 
b) Information Systems Technician I. 
c) Public Works & Parks Supervisor. 

13. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Dollar General, 1922 Valley Park Drive, Class C Beer & Class B Wine - renewal. 
b) Smokin Oak Wood Fired Pizza, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class B beer – renewal. 
c) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
d) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 
e) Octopus, 2205 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
f) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
g) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street – Plaza, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service – 
temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (September 3-4, 2022) 

2



Page 3 of 3 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with the University of Northern 
Iowa relative to a City Employee Climate Survey. 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Cooperative Agreement with the Iowa Civil 
Rights Commission for FY23. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Master Service Agreement with Heartland 
Business Systems, LLC relative to migration of the City's computer network to Microsoft 365. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with Inteconnex 
relative to replacement of the City’s door access control systems. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with Amperage 
Marketing relative to FY23 Digital Advertising. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Red House Studio Lease relative to the use of 
224 West Seerley Boulevard as artist studio space, in conjunction with the Hearst Center’s Visiting 
Artist Program. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Subrecipient Agreement for Federally Funded 
Project with Operation Threshold for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding 
relative to the CARES Act. 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of two polymer 
mixing pumps for biosolids handling operations of the Water Reclamation Division. 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for administration and design 
services relative to the Oak Park Boulevard Sewer Replacement Project. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of twenty-three Owner Purchase Agreements, and 
approving and accepting twenty-three Temporary Construction Easements, in conjunction with the 
Main Street Reconstruction (6th Street to University) Project. 

24. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting August 1, 2022 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2022 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project - Zone 5. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

25. Allow Bills & Claims for July 18, 2022. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Executive Session 

26. Executive Session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the 
purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably 
expected to increase the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce 
the price the governmental body would receive for that property. 

Adjournment 

3



COMMUNITY CENTER 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JULY 5, 2022 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

SIMON HARDING, MAYOR PRO TEM, PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse (via video conference), Harding, Ganfield, Sires. Absent: Dunn.  
 

53876 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Ganfield that the minutes of the 
Regular Meeting of June 20, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of 
record. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
53877 - Mayor Pro Tem Harding read a proclamation recognizing July 11, 2022 as 1-

133d Infantry Regiment - Ironman Battalion Day 
   
53878 -     Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, expressed appreciation of citizens attending 

Sturgis Falls Celebration and acknowledged Jackie Sturgis, the great-great niece 
of William Sturgis. She noted that more volunteers are needed for the event. 

 David Spreitzer, 915 State Street, expressed appreciation for the new sidewalks 
downtown, but disappointment with downtown bar patrons’ cigarette butt litter. He 
also noted difficulty seeing the stoplight at the Rainbow Drive and 18th Street 
intersection when stopped at the white line. 

53879 - Mayor Pro Tem Harding announced that in accordance with the public notices of 
June 3 and June 24, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on 
the FY2023 (FFY2022) Annual Action Plan for Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) and HOME Consortium. It was then moved by Ganfield and 
seconded by deBuhr that the proof of publication of notices of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53880 - The Mayor Pro Tem then asked if there were any written communications filed to 

the proposed plan. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor Pro Tem then called for oral comments. 
Planner III Pezley provided a brief summary of the proposed plan. There being 
no one else present wishing to speak about the proposed plan, the Mayor Pro 
Tem declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53881 - It was moved by Schultz and seconded by deBuhr that a resolution approving the 

FY2023 (FFY2022) Annual Action Plan for Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) and HOME Consortium, be adopted. Following questions and comments 
by Councilmembers deBuhr, Harding, Sires, Ganfield, Kruse and Schultz, and 
responses by Community Development Director Sheetz, Planner III Pezley, City 
Administrator Gaines and City Attorney Rogers, it was moved by deBuhr and 
seconded by Schultz to continue the hearing to the July 18, 2022 City Council 
Meeting. Following a question by Councilmember Ganfield and response by 
Pezley, the motion carried unanimously. 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

 
53882 - Mayor Pro Tem Harding announced that in accordance with the public notice of 

June 24, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed 
plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Olive Street Box 
Culvert Replacement Project. It was then moved by Ganfield and seconded by 
deBuhr that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53883 - The Mayor Pro Tem then asked if there were any written communications filed to 

the proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor Pro Tem then called for oral comments. City 
Engineer Wicke provided a brief summary of the proposed project. There being 
no one else present wishing to speak about the proposed project, the Mayor Pro 
Tem declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53884 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Schultz that Resolution #22,844, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project, be adopted. Following 
questions and comments by Councilmembers Ganfield, Sires, deBuhr and 
Schultz, and responses by City Engineer Wicke, the Mayor Pro Tem put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse. 
Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor Pro Tem then declared Resolution 
#22,844 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53885 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #3013, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking on portions of South Lawn Road, be passed upon 
its second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor 
Pro Tem put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
53886 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Schultz that the following items on 

the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
   

 Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of June 20, 2022 
relative to the following item: 
a) Council Meeting Rules of Order (Administrative Policy No. 7). 

 Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of May 2022. 

 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - 
renewal. 
b) Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
d) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 
e) Panther Travel Center, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class E liquor - 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

renewal. 
f) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class E liquor - renewal. 
g) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service 
– change in ownership. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

53887 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by deBuhr that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #22,845, directing the advertisement for sale of $3,860,000 General 

Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022, and approving electronic bidding 
procedures and Official Statement. 

 Resolution #22,846, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
cleanup/remove debris from the property located at 1106 West 9th Street. 

 Resolution #22,847, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
cleanup/remove debris from the property located at 315 West 11th Street. 

 Resolution #22,848, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of an electric mower for the Public Works Department. 

 Resolution #22,849, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Blacktop Service Company, in the amount of $198,242.57, for the 
2022 Seal Coat Project. 

 Resolution #22,850, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the bid of Benton Sand & Gravel, Inc., in the amount of $129,978.35, being the 
only bid received for the 2022 University Avenue Bio Cells Project. 

 Resolution #22,851, approving and authorizing execution of a Financial 
Assistance Award with the United States Department of Commerce, Economic 
Development Administration (EDA) for American Rescue Plan Act funding 
relative to the Cedar River Recreational Improvements Project. 

 Resolution #22,852, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product 
Agreement with Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for 
administration of a United States Department of Commerce, Economic 
Development Administration (EDA) grant relative to the Cedar River Recreational 
Improvements Project. 

 Resolution #22,853, approving and authorizing execution of four Purchase Offers 
relative to the Voluntary Property Acquisition Program, in conjunction with the 
Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program. 

 Resolution #22,854, setting July 18, 2022 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning from R-1, Residence District to A-1, Agricultural District of 
property located at 2209 North Union Road. 

 Resolution #22,855, setting July 18, 2022 as the date of public hearing on the 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

Status of Funded Activities for the State Award of Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

 
  

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor Pro Tem put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor Pro Tem then declared Resolutions #22,845 through #22,855 
duly passed and adopted. 

53888 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Ganfield that Resolution #22,856, 
approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with Port53 
Technologies for security testing relative to the City's computer network, be 
adopted. Following a comment and questions by Councilmember Ganfield, and 
responses by Information Systems Manager Sorensen, the Mayor Pro Tem put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse. 
Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor Pro Tem then declared Resolution 
#22,856 duly passed and adopted. 

53889 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Schultz that Resolution #22,857, 
receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the bid of Kirk Gross 
Company, in the amount of $378,647.51, being the only bid received for furniture 
relative to the City Hall Remodel Project, be adopted. Following comments and 
questions by Councilmembers Sires, Schultz and Kruse, and responses by 
Community Development Director Sheetz and Finance & Business Operations 
Director Rodenbeck, the Mayor Pro Tem put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Harding, 
Ganfield, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse. Nay: Sires. Motion Carried. The Mayor Pro 
Tem then declared Resolution #22,857 duly passed and adopted. 

53890 -  It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by deBuhr that the bills and claims of 
July 5, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. 

 
53891 - Acting Police Chief Howard provided an update on fireworks enforcement and 

citations issued, and responded to questions by Councilmembers Harding and 
Schultz. 

   
53892 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by deBuhr that the meeting be 

adjourned at 7:59 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

7

Item 1.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 
 

 

 

 
GASTROPARESIS AWARENESS MONTH 

August 2022  
 

WHEREAS, Gastroparesis is a paralysis of the stomach which causes extreme 

pain, nausea, vomiting, early satiety, and can lead to serious complications 

such as malnourishment, dehydration, extreme weight loss, overwhelming 

fatigue, a severe decrease in quality of life, and in some cases, even death; and  

WHEREAS, Gastroparesis is a chronic illness affecting more than 5 million 

people in the United States, yet public awareness and medical understanding 

of this condition is severely lacking; and 

WHEREAS, no known cure exists for Gastroparesis, and the few treatment 

options available can lead to even more serious complications such as sepsis; and  

WHEREAS, those affected by Gastroparesis seek more research, additional 

treatment options and effective medications, better patient support, and hope 

for a future free of the constant suffering and pain; and 

WHEREAS, the people of Cedar Falls can benefit from increased awareness of 

the devastating effects of Gastroparesis for the good of public health and to 

better support those inflicted with this disorder; 

THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby 

designate August 2022 as Gastroparesis Awareness Month in Cedar Falls, 

and I do hereby encourage residents to learn about Gastroparesis and to seek 

out ways to support our neighbors who suffer from this debilitating illness.  

Signed this 11th day of July, 2022. 

 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 8

Item 2.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: July 11, 2022 

 SUBJECT:  2022 Bond Sales 

 
July 18th is the date set to receive bids on the 2022 General Obligation Capital Loan 
Notes.  On the council agenda is a resolution accepting those bids.  The bids are due in 
on July 18th at 11:00 am and the bids will be presented at the Council meeting by the 
City’s financial advisor, Public Financial Management (PFM).    
 
As part of that bond sale, the City is rated by Moody’s Investors Service.  Attached is 
the news release that maintains the City’s rating to Aaa.  Staff presented several slides 
and various financial information to Moody’s about the City’s financial, economic, and 
management strengths. This information aided the City in maintaining the Aaa rating.   

 
If you have any questions regarding the bond sale, please feel free to contact me.  

9

Item 3.



Rating Action: Moody's assigns Aaa to Cedar Falls, IA Series 2022 GOs

06 Jul 2022

New York, July 06, 2022 -- Moody's Investors Service has assigned a Aaa rating to the City of Cedar Falls, IA's
$3.9 million General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022. Moody's maintains the Aaa rating on the
city's outstanding general obligation unlimited tax (GOULT) debt. Following the sale, the city will have about
$16 million in GOULT debt. The outlook is stable.

RATINGS RATIONALE

The Aaa rating reflects the city's strong financial performance with ample operating reserves. The city routinely
outperforms its budget and transfers excess reserves to other governmental funds, which have also
accumulated strong balances. The rating also reflects a modest debt and a moderate pension burden with low
fixed costs. Although the city's tax base is somewhat modest for the rating category, it is stable and will
continue to benefit from the presence of the University of Northern Iowa (A1 stable).

RATING OUTLOOK

The stable outlook reflects our expectation that the city's financial position will remain strong given its
conservative management and significant financial flexibility.

FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO AN UPGRADE OF THE RATING

- Not applicable

FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO A DOWNGRADE OF THE RATING

- Significant and sustained reductions in operating fund balance or liquidity

- Substantial increase in leverage from debt or pensions

LEGAL SECURITY

The city's outstanding GOULT debt, including the Series 2022 notes, is backed by the city's pledge to levy a
dedicated property tax that is unlimited as to rate or amount to pay debt service.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Series 2022 notes will fund various items from the city's capital improvement plan, including street
improvements, fire equipment, improvements to city facilities, and parks projects.

PROFILE

Cedar Falls is located in northeast Iowa (Aaa stable) in Black Hawk County, approximately 105 miles northeast
of Des Moines (Aa2 stable). The city provides public safety (police and fire), public works, recreation,
economic development, general government, sewer (collection and treatment), refuses and storm water
services to about 41,000 residents. Cedar Falls Utilities, a component unit of the city, operates an electric,
water, gas and communications utilities to serve city residents.

METHODOLOGY

The principal methodology used in this rating was US Local Government General Obligation Debt published in
January 2021 and available at https://ratings.moodys.com/api/rmc-documents/70015 . Alternatively, please see
the Rating Methodologies page on https://ratings.moodys.com for a copy of this methodology.

REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

For further specification of Moody's key rating assumptions and sensitivity analysis, see the sections
Methodology Assumptions and Sensitivity to Assumptions in the disclosure form. Moody's Rating Symbols and

10

Item 3.

https://ratings.moodys.com/
https://ratings.moodys.com/api/rmc-documents/70015


Definitions can be found on https://ratings.moodys.com/rating-definitions.

For ratings issued on a program, series, category/class of debt or security this announcement provides certain
regulatory disclosures in relation to each rating of a subsequently issued bond or note of the same series,
category/class of debt, security or pursuant to a program for which the ratings are derived exclusively from
existing ratings in accordance with Moody's rating practices. For ratings issued on a support provider, this
announcement provides certain regulatory disclosures in relation to the credit rating action on the support
provider and in relation to each particular credit rating action for securities that derive their credit ratings from
the support provider's credit rating. For provisional ratings, this announcement provides certain regulatory
disclosures in relation to the provisional rating assigned, and in relation to a definitive rating that may be
assigned subsequent to the final issuance of the debt, in each case where the transaction structure and terms
have not changed prior to the assignment of the definitive rating in a manner that would have affected the
rating.  For further information please see the issuer/deal page for the respective issuer on
https://ratings.moodys.com.

Regulatory disclosures contained in this press release apply to the credit rating and, if applicable, the related
rating outlook or rating review.

Moody's general principles for assessing environmental, social and governance (ESG) risks in our credit
analysis can be found at https://ratings.moodys.com/documents/PBC_1288235 .

Please see https://ratings.moodys.com for any updates on changes to the lead rating analyst and to the
Moody's legal entity that has issued the rating.

Please see the issuer/deal page on https://ratings.moodys.com for additional regulatory disclosures for each
credit rating.

Ryan Patton
Lead Analyst
REGIONAL_MIDWEST
Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
100 N Riverside Plaza
Suite 2220
Chicago 60606
JOURNALISTS: 1 212 553 0376
Client Service: 1 212 553 1653

Coley Anderson
Additional Contact
REGIONAL_MIDWEST
JOURNALISTS: 1 212 553 0376
Client Service: 1 212 553 1653

Releasing Office:
Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
250 Greenwich Street
New York, NY 10007
U.S.A
JOURNALISTS: 1 212 553 0376
Client Service: 1 212 553 1653

© 2022 Moody’s Corporation, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., Moody’s Analytics, Inc. and/or their licensors and
affiliates (collectively, “MOODY’S”). All rights reserved. 

CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS AFFILIATES ARE THEIR CURRENT
OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR
DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND MATERIALS, PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND
INFORMATION PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S (COLLECTIVELY, “PUBLICATIONS”) MAY INCLUDE

11

Item 3.

https://ratings.moodys.com/documents/PBC_1288235
https://ratings.moodys.com/
https://ratings.moodys.com/rating-definitions


SUCH CURRENT OPINIONS. MOODY’S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY
MAY NOT MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY
ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT OR IMPAIRMENT. SEE APPLICABLE
MOODY’S RATING SYMBOLS AND DEFINITIONS PUBLICATION FOR INFORMATION ON THE
TYPES OF CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS ADDRESSED BY MOODY’S CREDIT
RATINGS. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS,
NON-CREDIT ASSESSMENTS (“ASSESSMENTS”), AND OTHER OPINIONS INCLUDED IN
MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT.
MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS MAY ALSO INCLUDE QUANTITATIVE MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF
CREDIT RISK AND RELATED OPINIONS OR COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S
ANALYTICS, INC. AND/OR ITS AFFILIATES. MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS,
OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR
FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND
PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL,
OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER
OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS DO NOT COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT
FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR. MOODY’S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS
AND OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLISHES ITS PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION AND
UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH DUE CARE, MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND
EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE,
HOLDING, OR SALE. 

MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS, AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT
INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE RECKLESS AND INAPPROPRIATE FOR
RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS OR
PUBLICATIONS WHEN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION. IF IN DOUBT YOU SHOULD CONTACT
YOUR FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER. 

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO,
COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE
REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED,
REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON
WITHOUT MOODY’S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT. 

MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT
INTENDED FOR USE BY ANY PERSON AS A BENCHMARK AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED FOR
REGULATORY PURPOSES AND MUST NOT BE USED IN ANY WAY THAT COULD RESULT IN THEM
BEING CONSIDERED A BENCHMARK. 

All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY’S from sources believed by it to be accurate and
reliable. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error as well as other factors, however, all
information contained herein is provided “AS IS” without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary
measures so that the information it uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources
MOODY'S considers to be reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However,
MOODY’S is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received
in the rating process or in preparing its Publications. 

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives,
licensors and suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any indirect, special, consequential, or
incidental losses or damages whatsoever arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or
the use of or inability to use any such information, even if MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees,
agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility of such losses or
damages, including but not limited to: (a) any loss of present or prospective profits or (b) any loss or damage
arising where the relevant financial instrument is not the subject of a particular credit rating assigned by
MOODY’S. 

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives,

12

Item 3.



licensors and suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compensatory losses or damages caused to any
person or entity, including but not limited to by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any
other type of liability that, for the avoidance of doubt, by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any
contingency within or beyond the control of, MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents,
representatives, licensors or suppliers, arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the
use of or inability to use any such information. 

NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY CREDIT RATING,
ASSESSMENT, OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY’S IN ANY FORM OR
MANNER WHATSOEVER. 

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody’s Corporation
(“MCO”), hereby discloses that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds,
debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. have,
prior to assignment of any credit rating, agreed to pay to Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. for credit ratings
opinions and services rendered by it fees ranging from $1,000 to approximately $5,000,000. MCO and Moody’s
Investors Service also maintain policies and procedures to address the independence of Moody’s Investors
Service credit ratings and credit rating processes. Information regarding certain affiliations that may exist
between directors of MCO and rated entities, and between entities who hold credit ratings from Moody’s
Investors Service and have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is
posted annually at www.moodys.com under the heading “Investor Relations — Corporate Governance —
Director and Shareholder Affiliation Policy.” 

Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian
Financial Services License of MOODY’S affiliate, Moody’s Investors Service Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399
657AFSL 336969 and/or Moody’s Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABN 94 105 136 972 AFSL 383569 (as
applicable). This document is intended to be provided only to “wholesale clients” within the meaning of section
761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By continuing to access this document from within Australia, you represent
to MOODY’S that you are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a “wholesale client” and that
neither you nor the entity you represent will directly or indirectly disseminate this document or its contents to
“retail clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY’S credit rating is an
opinion as to the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the issuer, not on the equity securities of the issuer or
any form of security that is available to retail investors. 

Additional terms for Japan only: Moody's Japan K.K. (“MJKK”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary
of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholly-owned by Moody’s Overseas Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of MCO. Moody’s SF Japan K.K. (“MSFJ”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of
MJKK. MSFJ is not a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (“NRSRO”). Therefore, credit
ratings assigned by MSFJ are Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings. Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings are assigned by an
entity that is not a NRSRO and, consequently, the rated obligation will not qualify for certain types of treatment
under U.S. laws. MJKK and MSFJ are credit rating agencies registered with the Japan Financial Services
Agency and their registration numbers are FSA Commissioner (Ratings) No. 2 and 3 respectively. 

MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) hereby disclose that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and
municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by MJKK or MSFJ (as
applicable) have, prior to assignment of any credit rating, agreed to pay to MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) for
credit ratings opinions and services rendered by it fees ranging from JPY100,000 to approximately
JPY550,000,000. 

MJKK and MSFJ also maintain policies and procedures to address Japanese regulatory requirements. 

13

Item 3.

http://www.moodys.com/


ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

$3,860,000 (Subject to Adjustment per Terms of Offering) General Obligation Capital Loan 

Notes, Series 2022 

 

  Receipt of bids. 

 ∙ Resolu Resolution directing sale. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 

CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY. 

 

 

 

 

14

Item 3.



 

- 1 - 

July 18, 2022 

 

The Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met at City Hall, 

220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 11:00 A.M., on the above date, to open sealed bids 

received, access electronic bids and to refer the sale of the Notes to the best and most favorable 

bidder for cash, subject to approval by the City Council at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 

The following persons were present: 

 

________________________________________________ 

 

 

________________________________________________ 

 

 

________________________________________________ 

 

* * * * * * * * 

15

Item 3.



 

- 2 - 

This being the time and place for the opening of bids for the sale of $3,860,000 (Subject 

to Adjustment per Terms of Offering) General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022, the 

meeting was opened for the receipt of bids for the Notes.  The following actions were taken: 

1. Sealed bids were filed and listed in the minutes while unopened, as follows: 

Name & Address of Bidders: 

 

(Attach List of Bidders) 

 

2. The Controller/City Treasurer then declared the time for filing of sealed bids to be closed 

and that the sealed bids be opened.  The sealed bids were opened and announced. 

3. Electronic bids received were accessed and announced as follows: 

Name & Address of Bidders: 

 

(Attach List of Bidders) 

 

4. The best bid was determined to be as follows: 

Name & Address of Bidder: _____________________________________________ 

True Interest Rate (as-bid): ____________________% 

Net Interest Cost (as-bid): $____________________ 

In consultation with PFM Financial Advisors LLC, the City considered the adjustment of 

the aggregate principal amount of the Notes and each scheduled maturity thereof in accordance 

with the Terms of Offering and the following actions were taken: 

Final Par Amount as adjusted: $________________ 

Purchase Price as adjusted: $_______________ 

All bids were then referred to the Council for action. 

16

Item 3.



 

- 3 - 

July 18, 2022 

 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met in _Regular_________ 

session, in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 528 Main Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M., 

on the above date.  There were present Mayor _Robert M. Green__________, in the chair, and 

the following named Council Members: 

 

__________________________________________________ 

 

 

Absent: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

* * * * * * *  

17

Item 3.



 

- 4 - 

Council Member ____________________ introduced the following Resolution entitled 

"RESOLUTION DIRECTING SALE OF $3,860,000 (SUBJECT TO ADJUSTMENT PER 

TERMS OF OFFERING) GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 

2022," and moved its adoption.  Council Member ____________________ seconded the motion 

to adopt.  The roll was called and the vote was, 

 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 

 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the following Resolution duly adopted: 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING SALE OF $3,860,000 (SUBJECT 

TO ADJUSTMENT PER TERMS OF OFFERING) GENERAL 

OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2022 

WHEREAS, bids have been received for the Notes described as follows and the best bid 

received (with permitted adjustments, if any) is determined to be the following: 

$3,860,000 (SUBJECT TO ADJUSTMENT PER TERMS OF 

OFFERING) GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN 

NOTES, SERIES 2022 

Bidder: _________________________ of _________________________ 

The terms of award: 

Final Par Amount as adjusted: $____________________ 

Purchase Price as adjusted: $ ____________________ 

True Interest Rate: ____________________% 

Net Interest Cost: $____________________ 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 

Section 1. That the bid for the Notes as above set out is hereby determined to be the best 

and most favorable bid received and, the Notes are hereby awarded as described above. 

18

Item 3.



 

- 5 - 

Section 2. That the statement of information for Note bidders and the form of contract for 

the sale of the Notes are hereby approved and the Mayor and Clerk are authorized to execute the 

same on behalf of the City. 

Section 3. That all acts of the Clerk done in furtherance of the sale of the Notes are 

hereby ratified and approved. 

Section 4. That the notice of the sale of the notes heretofore given and all acts of the 

Clerk done in furtherance of the sale of the notes are hereby ratified and approved. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 18th day of July, 2022. 

  

 

 

  

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

 

 

 

19

Item 3.



 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 

proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 

Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 

which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 

any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 

notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 

the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the 

public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to 

the local rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable 

advance notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of 

the meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 

certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 

their respective City offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may 

be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 

threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the 

right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this __________ day of 

_______________, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 

City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

 
02072494-1\10283-185 

20

Item 3.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

 DATE: July 8, 2022 

SUBJECT: Continued Public Hearing and Adoption:  Community Development 
Block Grant and HOME Consortium Annual Action Plan FY23 (FFY22) 

   
 
Following Council’s direction from July 5, 2022 hearing, staff is working on gathering 
information and creating a presentation for the July 18, 2022, public hearing.   
 
Staff found a mistake in the math from the memo dated June 24, 2022.  The corrected 
memo is attached (changes are in red).  
 
Also attached for your review is the FFY19-23 Consolidated Plan with latest 
amendment, Low to Moderate Income Areas Map, and Future Land Use Map. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      
 

21

Item 5.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

 DATE: June 24, 2022; Updated July 11, 2022 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing and Adoption:  Community Development Block Grant and 
HOME Consortium Annual Action Plan FY23 (FFY22) 

   
 
The Community Development Department has developed FFY22 Annual Action Plan 
outlining the use of HUD’s announcement that our CDBG entitlement grant is $259,801 
in federal fiscal year 2022. The plan allocates the funds in accordance with the adopted 
and HUD-approved 5-Year Consolidated Plan. The next step is the public hearing for 
the City Council to consider and adopt the Annual Action Plan. 
 
Attached is the draft Annual Action Plan FY23 (Federal Fiscal Year 2022). A correction 
was made on page 20, which reflects that the City adopted the new downtown zoning 
code that allows accessory dwelling units for housing flexibility and affordability. 
 
The adopted 5-Year Consolidated Plan guides the proposed uses, but there is flexibility 
based on changing conditions which is the purpose for an Annual Action Plan. The table 
below lists the 5-Year Consolidated Plan’s estimate for activities and amounts. It shows 
the proposal for the Annual Action Plan next to it. We estimate $64,000 in either 
carryover revenues from past plan years or reallocation of the plan year expenditures. 
This is for various reasons such as lower bid prices on a past project or service 
agencies not spending their allotted funds. This allows the FFY22 Annual Action Plan 
proposal to include a higher level of funding for the Neighborhood Accessibility 
Improvements. The City also received positive response from the landlords regarding 
the Rental Occupied Rehabilitation program. 
 

Activity 

5-Yr. 
Consolidated 
Plan Estimate 

FFY22 AAP 
Proposal Percentage 

Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: 
Owner Occupied Rehabilitation 

$11,000 $25,000 8% 

Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: 
Renter Occupied Rehabilitation 

$0 $75,000 23% 

22

Item 5.



Preserve Existing Affordable Housing: 
Code Enforcement 

$10,000 
 

$0 0% 

Prevent Homelessness Through 
Agency and Organizational Support 
(Service Agencies – capped at 15% of 
annual allocation) 

$37,960 
 

$38,970 12% 

Neighborhood Infrastructure 
Improvements (i.e. Street, Sewer, Water) 

$51,000 $0 0% 

Provide Access to Transportation 
Services 

$30,000 $0 0% 

Neighborhood Accessibility 
Improvements (i.e Sidewalks, Trail, Curb 

Cuts) 

$0 $112,871 35% 

Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 
(i.e Parks, Playgrounds, Trees) 

$57,510 
 

$20,000 6% 

Conduct Demolition and Clearance 
Activities 

$5,000 $0 0% 

CDBG Planning and Administration 
(capped at 20% of annual allocation) 

$50,615 $51,960 16% 

FFY21 Total (including 
carryover/reallocation) 

 $465,167 
$323,801 

100% 

 
This proposal meets Organizational Goal #3: Deliver public services in a cost effective, 
efficient, professional, and timely manner and Organizational Goal #4: Equitably 
allocate the community’s resources in a manner which cost effectively accomplishes the 
City’s mission. 
 
The FFY22 Annual Action Plan was considered at the Housing Commission’s June 14th 
meeting. The Housing Commission recommends approval. The Annual Action Plan has 
been available for public review from June 3, 2022 to July 5, 2022. This meets HUD’s 
30-day public comment period requirement. The Community Development Department 
recommends holding a public hearing and adopting the Annual Action Plan (FFY22) on 
July 5th. 
 
Please contact me with any questions. Thank you. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      
 

23

Item 5.



1 

 

 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
CDBG ENTITLEMENT PROGRAM 
FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR  2019‐2023 CONSOLIDATED PLAN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMENT PERIOD PUBLICATION (30‐day public comment period, per Citizen Participation Plan): 
Waterloo‐Cedar Falls Courier; February 6th, 2019 
 
 
HOUSING COMMISSION (PUBLIC) MEETINGS ON: 
February 12th, 2019 (Opened the 30‐day public comment period) 
March 12th, 2019 (Closed the 30‐day public comment period; Recommendation made to City Council) 
Publication: Waterloo‐Cedar Falls Courier; February 6th, 2019 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL (PUBLIC) MEETINGS ON: 
April 25th, 2019 (Council sets public hearing for May 6th, 2019) 
May 6th, 2019 (Adoption) (After a properly‐noticed public hearing was conducted) 
Publication: Waterloo‐Cedar Falls Courier; April 29th, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

24

Item 5.



2 

 

Administration 
 
AD‐25: Consortia Specific: 91.400 
 

 
If a Consortia, list participating communities & note 
status 

Lead  HOME 
funds only 

CDBG 
Entitlement 

ESG 
Entitlement 

City of Waterloo, Iowa  Yes  No  Yes  No 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa  No  No  Yes  No 

         

         

         

         

Table 1 – Consortium Communities 
 
AD‐25: Administration 91.220(a) 
 
Standard Form (SF) SF‐424 Application for Federal Assistance 
 
Standard Form (SF) SF‐424D Assurances for Construction Programs 
 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG): Entitlement Program Only 
 
Alternate Data Sources: 
 

1. American Community Survey (2012‐2016) 
2. Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (2011‐2015) 

 
Required Certifications: 
 

1. General Certifications (Attached) 
a. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 
b. Anti‐Displacement and Relocation Plan 
c. Anti‐Lobbying 
d. Acquisition and Relocation 
e. Section 3 

 
2. Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) Certifications (Attached) 

a. Citizen Participation 
b. Community Development Plan 
c. Following a Current Consolidated Plan (FFY 2014‐2018) 
d. Use of Funds 
e. Excessive Force 
f. Compliance with Anti‐Discrimination Laws 
g. Compliance with Lead‐Based Paint Procedures 
h. Compliance with Laws 

25

Item 5.



CERTIFICATIONS 

 

 

In accordance with the applicable statutes and the regulations governing the consolidated plan regulations, 

the jurisdiction certifies that:  

 

Affirmatively Further Fair Housing --The jurisdiction will affirmatively further fair housing. 

 

Uniform Relocation Act and Anti-displacement and Relocation Plan -- It will comply with the 

acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 

Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 4601-4655) and implementing regulations at 49 

CFR Part 24.  It has in effect and is following a residential anti-displacement and relocation assistance 

plan required under 24 CFR Part 42 in connection with any activity assisted with funding under the 

Community Development Block Grant or HOME programs.  

 

Anti-Lobbying --To the best of the jurisdiction's knowledge and belief:  

 

1.  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of it, to any person for 

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an 

officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the 

awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the 

entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 

modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement;  

 

2.  If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an 

officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, it will complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, 

"Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions; and  

 

3.  It will require that the language of paragraph 1 and 2 of this anti-lobbying certification be included in 

the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 

grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose 

accordingly.  

 

Authority of Jurisdiction --The consolidated plan is authorized under State and local law (as applicable) 

and the jurisdiction possesses the legal authority to carry out the programs for which it is seeking funding, 

in accordance with applicable HUD regulations.  

 

Consistency with plan --The housing activities to be undertaken with Community Development Block 

Grant, HOME, Emergency Solutions Grant, and Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS funds are 

consistent with the strategic plan in the jurisdiction’s consolidated plan.  

 

Section 3 -- It will comply with section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 

1701u) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 135.  

 

   

____________________________  _________ 

Signature of Authorized Official   Date  

 

 

____________________________ 

Title 

  

Mayor of Cedar Falls, Iowa

26

Item 5.



Specific Community Development Block Grant Certifications  

 

 

The Entitlement Community certifies that:  

 

Citizen Participation -- It is in full compliance and following a detailed citizen participation plan that 

satisfies the requirements of 24 CFR 91.105.  

Community Development Plan -- Its consolidated plan identifies community development and housing 

needs and specifies both short-term and long-term community development objectives that that have been 

developed in accordance with the primary objective of the CDBG program (i.e., the development of 

viable urban communities, by providing decent housing and expanding economic opportunities, primarily 

for persons of low and moderate income) and requirements of 24 CFR Parts 91 and 570.  

Following a Plan -- It is following a current consolidated plan that has been approved by HUD.  

 

Use of Funds -- It has complied with the following criteria:  

 

1. Maximum Feasible Priority.  With respect to activities expected to be assisted with CDBG 

funds, it has developed its Action Plan so as to give maximum feasible priority to activities which 

benefit low- and moderate-income families or aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or 

blight.  The Action Plan may also include CDBG-assisted activities which the grantee certifies 

are designed to meet other community development needs having particular urgency because 

existing conditions pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community, 

and other financial resources are not available (see Optional CDBG Certification). 

 

2. Overall Benefit.  The aggregate use of CDBG funds, including Section 108 guaranteed loans, 

during program year(s) _________________________ [a period specified by the grantee of one, 

two, or three specific consecutive program years], shall principally benefit persons of low and 

moderate income in a manner that ensures that at least 70 percent of the amount is expended for 

activities that benefit such persons during the designated period.  

 

3. Special Assessments.  It will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements 

assisted with CDBG funds, including Section 108 loan guaranteed funds, by assessing any 

amount against properties owned and occupied by persons of low and moderate income, 

including any fee charged or assessment made as a condition of obtaining access to such public 

improvements.  

 

However, if CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of a fee or assessment that relates to the 

capital costs of public improvements (assisted in part with CDBG funds) financed from other 

revenue sources, an assessment or charge may be made against the property with respect to the 

public improvements financed by a source other than CDBG funds.  

 

In addition, in the case of properties owned and occupied by moderate-income (not low-income) 

families, an assessment or charge may be made against the property for public improvements 

financed by a source other than CDBG funds if the jurisdiction certifies that it lacks CDBG funds 

to cover the assessment.  

 

Excessive Force -- It has adopted and is enforcing:  

1.  A policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its 

jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in non-violent civil rights demonstrations; and  

 

2.  A policy of enforcing applicable State and local laws against physically barring entrance to or 

exit from a facility or location which is the subject of such non-violent civil rights demonstrations 

within its jurisdiction. 

27

Item 5.



 

Compliance with Anti-discrimination laws -- The grant will be conducted and administered in 

conformity with title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d) and the Fair Housing Act (42 

U.S.C. 3601-3619) and implementing regulations.  

 

Lead-Based Paint -- Its activities concerning lead-based paint will comply with the requirements of 24 

CFR Part 35, Subparts A, B, J, K and R. 

 

Compliance with Laws -- It will comply with applicable laws.  

 

 

_____________________________  _____________ 

Signature of Authorized Official   Date  

 

 

___________________________ 

Title  

 

 

 

  

Mayor of Cedar Falls, Iowa

28

Item 5.



APPENDIX TO CERTIFICATIONS  

 

INSTRUCTIONS CONCERNING LOBBYING CERTIFICATION:  

 

Lobbying Certification  

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 

was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 

transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 

certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 

each such failure.  

 

 

29

Item 5.



1 
 

Executive Summary 
 
ES‐05 Executive Summary ‐ 91.200(c), 91.220(b) 
 
1.  Introduction 
 
The purpose of the Consolidated Plan is to guide federal funding decisions, relative to the City of Cedar Falls 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement program and the Waterloo‐Cedar Falls HOME 
Consortium program (managed by the City of Waterloo) for the next five years. The Plan is guided by four 
overarching objectives and specific actions defined below:  
 
Housing 
 

(1) To provide decent housing by preserving the affordable housing stock, increasing the availability of 
affordable housing, reducing discriminatory barriers; increasing the supply of supportive housing for those 
with special needs; and transitioning homeless persons and families into housing. 
 
Action 1.1. Provide homeownership assistance through development of down‐payment assistance, first‐
time homebuyer programs, and possible conversion of Housing Choice Vouchers programs. 
 
Action 1.2. Maintain existing affordable housing through continuation of housing rehabilitation, repair, 
deposit assistance, and code enforcement programs, all of which will endeavor to preserve housing 
quality standards. 
 
Action 1.3. Increase the number of affordable housing units in the community. 
 
Action 1.4. Address the housing needs of homeless, near‐homeless and special needs populations by 
continuing to fund agencies that provide eligible services to these populations. 
 
Action 1.5. Work to ensure fair housing is provided to all residents of the community by removing barriers 
and impediments. 
 
Action 1.6. Continue to provide community planning and program administration services for the benefit 
of all residents of the community. 
 

Neighborhood and Community 
  

(2) To provide a suitable living environment through safer, more livable neighborhoods, greater integration 
of low‐and‐moderate income households throughout the city, increased housing opportunities, and 
reinvestment in deteriorating neighborhoods. 
 
Action 2.1. Encourage neighborhood development and redevelopment in the city by improving and 
extending infrastructure and pedestrian access to and among low‐and‐moderate income areas of the 
community 
 
Action 2.2. Provide recreational and healthy lifestyle improvements to parks, recreational areas, and 
playgrounds in low‐and‐moderate income areas that may be owned by the city or other public agencies. 
 
Action 2.3. Continue the city’s demolition and clearance program, which will be used to remove 
deteriorated and/dilapidated structures that can make way for neighborhood improvements or additional 
affordable housing to be constructed. 
 

30

Item 5.



2 
 

Action 2.4. As is allowed, provide transportation and access to it for low‐and‐moderate income areas and 
households. 
 
Action 1.6. Continue to provide community planning and program administration services for the benefit 
of all residents of the community. 
 

Public Services 

 

(3) To provide services, such as rent assistance and through contracted agencies: healthcare, mental health, 
substance abuse, financial counseling, nutrition, and other services that allow residents to reach their 
greatest level of self‐sufficiency. 
 
Action 3.1. Provide funding support to agencies, other than those cited above, that may offer services that 
will prevent homelessness or protect households that are near‐homeless. 
 
Action 3.2. Maintain the current Section 8/Housing Choice Voucher Program that is being administered by 
the City. 
 
Action 1.6. Continue to provide community planning and program administration services for the benefit 
of all residents of the community.  
 

Economic Development 

 

(4) To expand economic opportunities through increased opportunities for living wage employment, 
development activities that promote long‐term community viability, and the empowerment of low‐ and 
moderate‐ income persons to achieve self‐sufficiency. 
 
Action 4.1. Research the development of public‐private partnerships between the city and businesses and 
industries in the community that could assist existing and prospective employees obtain suitable housing. 
 
Action 4.2. Support job training opportunities for low‐and‐moderate income households in the 
community in partnership with the University of Northern Iowa, Hawkeye Community College, and the 
Cedar Falls schools. 
 
Action 2.4. As is allowed, provide transportation services and access to it for low‐and‐moderate income 
areas and households.  Providing these services will afford the opportunity for low‐and‐moderate income 
household to obtain and maintain employment. 
 
Action 1.6. Continue to provide community planning and program administration services for the benefit 
of all residents of the community. 
 
Action 2.1. Encourage neighborhood development and redevelopment in the city by improving and 
extending infrastructure and pedestrian access to low‐and‐moderate income areas of the community.   
 

Cedar Falls is committed to allocating funds that serve the needs of the lowest income and most disadvantaged 
households. Households with incomes less than 50 percent of the area median income, particularly those with 
extremely low incomes are particular priorities. The city has also identified special needs individuals as among 
those who face the greatest challenges and who should receive high priority in the allocation of federal funds, 
including at‐risk children and youth, low‐income families, the homeless and persons threatened with 
homelessness, the elderly, and persons with disabilities.  
 

31

Item 5.



3 
 

The City, by focusing on these needs, seeks to address the following community concerns: the need for additional 
affordable housing units, as well as maintaining the existing affordable units, in order to address the growing gap 
between housing costs and local incomes.  Funding programs that offer community services, particularly in low 
income areas, while providing a network of shelter, housing, and support services that prevent homelessness.  This 
may include moving homeless persons to permanent housing and independence and eliminating chronic 
homelessness. Also, programs that promote economic development, create jobs, and increase the job skills of 
employees are supported by the community.  Finally, the City hopes to increase the ability of seniors, persons with 
disabilities, and others with special needs to live independently. 
 
2.  Summarize the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan   
 
This could be a restatement of items or a table listed elsewhere in the plan or a reference to another location. It 
may also contain any essential items from the housing and homeless needs assessment, the housing market 
analysis or the strategic plan. 
 
The City of Cedar Falls will provide assistance and services to low‐and‐moderate income households in accordance 
to the Consolidated and Annual Action Plans through the following designated projects and services: 
 

 managing housing rehabilitation and repair programs,  

 establishing homeownership programs,  

 supporting accessibility improvements and public services,  

 continuing demolition and clearance programs,  

 fostering healthy lifestyle planning and recreational amenity construction,  

 affecting the affordability of housing,  

 enhancing transportation services,  

 encouraging development of daycare services,  

 working with both businesses, industries, and educational institutions to address providing 
homeownership and job skill training for low‐and‐moderate income households,  

 implementing infrastructure projects, and  

 increasing housing planning efforts.  
 
These programs are designated to improve and preserve the housing stock, increase affordable housing, prevent 
homelessness and improve neighborhood areas in the community. By focusing on these overall priorities outlined 
in the Cedar Falls Consolidated Plan, we are striving to provide decent housing by preserving the affordable 
housing stock, preventing or minimizing homelessness or near‐homelessness, providing a suitable living 
environment and expanding economic opportunities for residents. 
 
3.  Evaluation of past performance  
 
This is an evaluation of past performance that helped lead the grantee to choose its goals or projects. As stated in 
the City of Cedar Falls’ Future Forward Plan, the community has identified unique and highly attractive housing 
options as a priority for the community.  In addition, with this Plan, affordable housing, community development, 
economic development, homelessness and social services are viewed as priority needs for the City. High priorities 
for FFY 2019‐2023 also include infrastructure improvements, public facility improvements, demolition and 
clearance of dilapidated structures, public services and the development and maintenance of affordable housing. 
The City has addressed some of those goals during prior years through its rehabilitation projects and public service 
agency awards. 
 
4.  Summary of Citizen Participation Process and consultation process  
 
Summary from the citizen participation section of plan, which includes four focus group meetings with over 30 
participants, affected entities and agencies and a communitywide survey. Focus group meetings were held to 

32

Item 5.



4 
 

identify current issues and trends impacting the agencies and organizations. Topics discussed included a general 
overview of the services being provided, current and future needs; homelessness; services to extremely low‐ and‐ 
moderate‐income families and individuals; and the most prevalent need, providing affordable housing. The 
information gathered was used in developing the Consolidated Plan, specifically the goals, objective, and actions 
identified in the plan. 
 
The survey, which was primarily web‐based, was available to the public from December 3rd, 2018 through 
December 23rd, 2018.  Paper copies of the survey were also available at City Hall, the Cedar Falls Library, Northeast 
Iowa Food Bank, and Operation Threshold for persons that did not have access to the internet.  The format of said 
survey was developed using examples from other CDBG Entitlement communities, with input and personalization 
from both the cities of Cedar Falls and Waterloo.  Nearly 160 responses were received from Cedar Falls residents 
and the results underscored the comments and direction provided by participant in the focus groups; the primary 
housing need of the community is to provide affordable, quality housing for its residents.  The results of both the 
focus groups and surveys were discussed at the Housing Commission’s November 27th, 2018 and January 8th, 2019 
meetings, both of which were legally posted, as the Consolidated and FFY 2019 Annual Action Plans were under 
development. 
 
Finally, a comment period legal notice was advertised on February 6th, 2019 in the Waterloo Courier.  The 30‐day 
comment period was defined in the notice, stating that the public could review and comment on the draft plan 
between February 12th and March 12th, 2019.  The Commission held specific public comment opportunities on its 
agenda relative to the draft plans on February 12th, 2019, and March 12th, 2019.  Both meetings were legally 
posted.  Also, public input was formally considered through conduct of a City Council public hearing on May 6th, 
2019, which was legally advertised in the Waterloo Courier on April 29th, 2019.  No comments were received from 
the public or either meeting. 
 
5.  Summary of public comments 
 
This could be a brief narrative summary or reference an attached document from the Citizen Participation 
section of the Con Plan. 
 
As noted above, four focus group meetings were held at the Hearst Center for the Arts in Cedar Falls over the 
course of three days.  Further, a communitywide survey, garnering 158 responses was received by the community, 
with the intent that it would provide community‐directed guidance for the plan.  City Administration reviewed the 
draft documents prior to presentation of the initial drafts to the Housing Commission.  In addition, a 30‐day 
comment period was publicly recognized and properly advertised between February 12th, 2019 and March 12th, 
2019.  The Housing Commission reviewed the draft, which was also on‐file with the City Clerk, at their public 
meeting on March 12th, 2019 and recommended its adoption to the City Council.  In addition, the Spring 2019 
edition of the City’s newsletter (Currents), which is directly mailed to each resident, included an article about the 
plans.  Finally, the City Council conducted a Public Hearing, prior to adoption of the Consolidated and FFY 2019 
Action Plans, on May 6th, 2019.  No public comments were received. 
 
6.  Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them 
 
No comments were rejected. 
 
7.  Summary 
 
As is evident, the City of Cedar Falls conducted a lengthy and deliberate public planning process that would guide 
the expenditure of federal funds provided by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development over the 
next five years.  Numerous opportunities for public input were offered to residents, agencies, organizations, 
elected and appointed public representatives, as well as to neighboring jurisdictions.   
 

33

Item 5.



5 
 

The City’s primary goal is to provide decent, safe affordable housing to its residents while attempting to increase 
the availability of affordable housing throughout the community.  The City has developed four overriding 
objectives that it wants to implement during the life of this plan, all of which are centered on positively affecting 
the affordability of housing in the community.  

34

Item 5.



    1 

 

Public Input and Consultation 
 
PR‐05 Lead & Responsible Agencies ‐ 91.200(b) 
 
1.  Agency/entity responsible for preparing/administering the Consolidated Plan 
 
The following are the agencies/entities responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those responsible for 
administration of each grant program and funding source. 
 

Agency Role  Name  Department/Agency 

CDBG Administrator  Cedar Falls  Department of Community Development 

Table 9 – Responsible Agencies 
 
Narrative 
 
The City of Cedar Falls administers its own CDBG activities, through the assistance of the Iowa Northland Regional 
Council of Governments (INRCOG). The City will carry out the activities described in the Consolidated Plan using 
their CDBG Entitlement resources. 
 
Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information 
 
City of Cedar Falls 
Department of Community Development 
Planning and Community Services Division 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Contact: Planning and Community Services Manager 
Telephone: (319) 273‐8600 
Website: http://www.cedarfalls.com 
   

35

Item 5.



    2 

 

PR‐10 Consultation/Coordination ‐ 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(l) 
 
1.  Introduction 
 
The consultation process for the City of Cedar Falls included conducting four focus group meetings with local public 
agencies, local governments, and non‐profit organizations, as well as completing a communitywide web‐based 
citizen survey, in a coordinated effort with the City of Waterloo.  To that end, these efforts were used in order to 
develop a Consolidated Plan that is community‐driven. The meetings, which were held in an accessible location in 
the community, Hearst Center for the Arts, were beneficial in identifying current issues and trends impacting the 
agencies and organizations, as well as evaluating the performance of the current CDBG services the City was 
providing and what services might also be needed.  Said meetings allowed the entities a chance to interact with 
the City’s Housing Commission and staff.  In addition, those entities that participated in the focus groups found 
merit in meeting together, both for this plan and in the future, to discuss needs and current and future 
programming of resources. 
 
Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance coordination between public and assisted 
housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health and service agencies (91.215(l)). 
 
As part of its annual CDBG awards made to service agencies, City staff conducts monitoring visits and holds a 
forum with their Housing Commission. These meetings provide direct insight into the changing needs of the 
community and its residents. This information may then be fed directly into the City’s housing planning processes.  
INRCOG staff, which is working with the City, also administers two housing trust funds, which conduct regular input 
sessions with local governments, agencies, organizations, financial institutions and real estate businesses, and the 
state government regarding housing. These sessions help to identify needs, barriers, and outline strategies 
regarding how to improve housing in the area. 
 
Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of homeless persons 
(particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans, and unaccompanied 
youth) and persons at risk of homelessness. 
 
Within the focus group sessions, conducted as part of this plan, several Continuum of Care providers offered input 
into the City’s process. The Salvation Army, Western Home, and Cedar Valley Friends of the Family provide senior 
housing, homeless services, and sheltering services to Cedar Falls’ residents. Further, Habitat for Humanity offers 
affordable housing to families assisting them with homeownership. Strategies were discussed on how to better 
assist and affirmatively further fair housing to those with the greatest needs. In addition, the other participating 
organizations provided in‐depth information on housing needs for special needs populations, homeless persons, in 
addition to persons at risk of homelessness. 
 
Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction’s area in determining how to 
allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards for and evaluate outcomes of projects and activities assisted 
by ESG funds, and develop funding, policies and procedures for the operation and administration of HMIS 
 
The City of Cedar Falls does not directly receive, or distribute, ESG funds. 
 
2.  Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process and consultations 
 
In addition to the agencies identified in Table 2, the City engaged the City of Waterloo, the Black Hawk County 
Health Department, and the US Department of Housing Urban Development on lead‐safety issues.  Also, the City’s 
Housing Assistance office participated in the plan development process, specifically with regard to Housing Choice 
Vouchers, rental unit availability, property management, and Affirmative Fair Housing strategies.  Finally, the City 
consulted with the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG), a regional planning agency that 
administers transportation, economic development, land use, and housing initiatives, while developing this Plan. 
 

36

Item 5.



    3 

 

Table 10 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated 

1  Agency/Group/Organization  Americans for Independent Living 

Agency/Group/Organization Type 
 
 

Services – Housing Rehab and Repair for Veterans 
Services – Sheltering for Homeless Veterans 
Services – Transitional Housing for Veterans 
Services – Home Furnishings for Veterans 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Unable to attend Focus Group sessions, but offered 
feedback through a separate questionnaire. It is 
anticipated that the outreach will evolve into regular 
coordinating forums between agencies, organizations 
and city officials. 

2  Agency/Group/Organization  Black Hawk County Emergency Management 

Agency/Group/Organization Type 
 

Services – Emergency Preparedness 
Planning‐ Hazard Mitigation Plan (Countywide) 
Planning – Evacuation Plan (Countywide) 
Services – Natural and Manmade Disaster Response 
Planning – Emergency Support Function 
Services – Incident Management 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

The Black Hawk County Multi‐Jurisdictional Hazard 
Mitigation Plan was consulted regarding proposed 
improvement locations.  The EMA Director was 
consulted regarding needs for the community. 

3  Agency/Group/Organization  Black Hawk County Health Department 

Agency/Group/Organization Type 
 

Housing – Lead Based Paint Safety 
Housing – Radon Awareness 
Services‐Public Health STI/HIV/AIDS 
Services – Children’s Health/Childhood Lead Poisoning 
Services –Inspections (Food Safety; Water Source; 
Septic Systems) 
Services ‐ Public Health Policy 
Services – Health Code Enforcement 
Services – Emergency Preparedness 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

4  Agency/Group/Organization  Landlords of Black Hawk County 

Agency/Group/Organization Type 
 

Services‐Housing Education 
Housing – Private Sector 
Housing – Market analysis/information 

37

Item 5.



    4 

 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

5  Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Falls Community School District 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Homeless Services (students) 
Services ‐Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

6  Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Falls Housing Commission 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – Needs Assessment and Market Analysis 
Information/Representation 
Services – Advocacy 
Planning and Administration  

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

7  Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Discrimination investigation 
Services – Victim Rights and Assistance 
Services – Education Related to Discrimination 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

8  Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Falls Ministerial Association 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Service – Community Outreach 
Service – Spiritual and Guidance 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

38

Item 5.



    5 

 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

9  Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Falls Utilities 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – Repair and Weatherization 
Services – Electric Power and Natural Gas, 
Telecommunications, Internet Service Provider 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

10   Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Falls (City Government; Community 
Development; Public Works; Public Safety 
Departments) 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – CDBG, HOME, Housing Choice Vouchers 
Administration 
Services – Planning, Zoning, Floodplain Administration, 
Code Enforcement, Water, Sewer, Storm Sewer, Public 
Safety Provider 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

11  Agency/Group/Organization  Cedar Valley Friends of the Family 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Regional Agency Offering Protection from 
Domestic Abuse, Sexual Assault, Homelessness, and 
Human Trafficking 
Services – Sheltering and Rapid Rehousing 
Services – Continuum of Care Provider 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

12  Agency/Group/Organization  Community Housing Initiatives 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Service – Homelessness; Case Management; Advocacy 
Services – Persons with Disabilities 

39

Item 5.



    6 

 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

13  Agency/Group/Organization  Consumer Credit Counseling 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Money Management; Credit Counseling; 
Financial Education 
Services – Credit Improvement and Bankruptcy services 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

14  Agency/Group/Organization  Hope for Healing Resource Assistance Network 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Service Coordination 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

15  Agency/Group/Organization  House of Hope 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Homelessness 
Housing – Transitional Housing 
Services – Transportation, Childcare, Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

16  Agency/Group/Organization  Iowa Department of Human Rights Commission of 
Persons with Disabilities 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – State Agency 
Awareness – Equal Rights; Victim Rights 
Services‐Education 
Services – Persons with Disabilities 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

40

Item 5.



    7 

 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

17  Agency/Group/Organization  Iowa Heartland Habitat for Humanity 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing ‐ Regional Agency 
Housing – Affordable Housing 
Housing – Rehab and Repair Programs 
Services ‐ Advocacy 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

18  Agency/Group/Organization  Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing ‐ Regional Planning Agency; Regional Housing 
Council and Trust Fund Administrator 
Housing – Waterloo Housing Trust Fund 
Housing – Rehab and Repair Programs 
Services – Metropolitan Transportation Planning 
Organization; Regional Transportation Authority 
Services – Regional Transit Commission 
Services – Economic Development Commission 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

19  Agency/Group/Organization  Iowa Workforce Development 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – State Agency 
Services – Underemployment; Unemployed Financial 
Assistance 
Services – Employment Counseling Assistance 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

20  Agency/Group/Organization  Love, Inc. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Service ‐ Coordination 

41

Item 5.



    8 

 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

21  Agency/Group/Organization  Metropolitan Transit Authority of Black Hawk County 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Transit and Paratransit Service 
Services – Advocacy; Persons with Disabilities 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in separate input session with staff. It is 
anticipated that this agency will continue to coordinate 
transit services with agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

22  Agency/Group/Organization  New Aldaya (Cedar Falls Lutheran Home) 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – Senior 
Housing – Private Provider 
Services – Senior Healthcare 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

23  Agency/Group/Organization  Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Regional Senior 
Services‐ Food and Nutrition 
Housing – Accessibility Improvements 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

24  Agency/Group/Organization  Northeast Iowa Food Bank/Food Pantry 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Regional Food and Food‐Related; Mobile 
Food Pantry; Backpack Nutrition Program 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

42

Item 5.



    9 

 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

25  Agency/Group/Organization  Northeast Iowa Regional Board of Realtors 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – Regional Private Board; Property Owner 
Advocacy 
Housing – Needs Assessment and Market Analysis 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

26  Agency/Group/Organization  Operation Threshold 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Service – Regional Community Action Agency 
Service – WIC Assistance 
Housing – TBRA, Repair and Rehab 
Housing ‐ Weatherization 
Service – Utility and Energy Assistance 
Services – Parent Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

27  Agency/Group/Organization  Pathways Behavioral Services 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Service‐Regional Mental Health Provider 
Service – Substance Abuse Counseling and Treatment 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

28  Agency/Group/Organization  The Salvation Army 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Daily Meal Program 
Services – Youth Center 
Services – Emergency Assistance 
Services – Emergency Disaster Assistance 
Homelessness ‐ Men’s Shelter 
Homelessness – Women’s and Children’s Shelter 

43

Item 5.



    10 

 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

29  Agency/Group/Organization  Tri‐County Child and Family Development 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Regional Agency 
Services – Family Services 
Services – Health, Social Services, Meals 
Services – Early Childhood Education (Head Start) 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

30  Agency/Group/Organization  University of Northern Iowa Department of Residence 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – Student Housing and Services 
Housing – Needs Assessment 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

31  Agency/Group/Organization  Visiting Nurses Association 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – In‐Home Healthcare, Home Care Aides, 
Telehealth 
Services – Physical Therapy, Speech Therapy, 
Occupational Therapy 
Services – Immunizations 
Services – Case Management 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

32  Agency/Group/Organization  Waterloo (City; Community Development) 

44

Item 5.



    11 

 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – CDBG; HOME; Housing Choice Vouchers 
Housing – Affordable Housing; Tenant Based Rent 
Assistance; Down‐payment Assistance 
Housing – Rehab and Repair Programs 
Services ‐ Advocacy 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

33  Agency/Group/Organization  Waterloo Housing Trust Fund Board 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Housing – Funding Conduit for Housing Projects 
Services – Housing Advocacy 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Participated in Focus Group sessions. It is anticipated 
that the sessions will evolve into regular coordinating 
forums between agencies, organizations and city 
officials. 

34  Agency/Group/Organization  Western Home Communities 

Agency/Group/Organization Type  Services – Continuum of Care Provider 
Housing – Senior  

What section of the Plan was addressed by 
Consultation? 

Executive Summary; Public Input; Needs Assessment; 
Market Assessment; Strategic Plan; Goals, Objectives 
and Actions 

Briefly describe how the 
Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. 
What are the anticipated outcomes of the 
consultation or areas for improved 
coordination? 

Unable to attend the Focus Group sessions, but offered 
feedback through a separate questionnaire. It is 
anticipated that the outreach will evolve into regular 
coordinating forums between agencies, organizations 
and city officials. 

 
 
Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting 
 
The City is not aware of a particular type of agency, either providing services to residents or not, that was missed in 
their outreach efforts.  With that said, it does not mean that the City could not add to the list provided above. 

45

Item 5.



    12 

 

Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan 
 

Name of Plan  Lead Organization  How do the goals of your Strategic Plan overlap with the 
goals of each plan? 

Continuum of Care 

Black Hawk County 
Local Homeless 
Coordinating Board 
(LHCB) 

The LHCB was reviewed to better understand the 
homeless housing and social service needs in developing 
the Plan. 

City of Cedar Falls 
Comprehensive Plan 

City of Cedar Falls 
Strategic Plan goals are more specific, but consistent with 
the Comp Plan. 

2014‐2019 Consolidated 
Plan 

Cities of Cedar Falls and 
Waterloo 

Strategic Plan goals are updates and improvements to 
existing goals 

City of Cedar Falls 
Capital Improvements 
Program 

City of Cedar Falls 
Strategic Plan goals are consistent with those in the CIP, 
which defines specific projects that may be considered by 
the City under this Consolidated Plan 

Comprehensive 
Economic Development 
Strategy 

Iowa Northland 
Regional Economic 
Development 
Commission 

Strategic Plan goal are consistent and specific to Cedar 
Falls.  CEDS goals are general and defined for a 6‐county 
region 

Metropolitan Planning 
Organization Long 
Range Transportation 
Plan 

Metropolitan Planning 
Organization of Black 
Hawk County 

Strategic Plan goals are specific to Cedar Falls, while LRTP 
goals are intended to address transportation in several 
jurisdictions. The City will need to take LRTP goals into 
consideration when developing areas within the 
community, as well as developing transit service programs 

Metropolitan Planning 
Organization Pedestrian 
Master Plan 

Metropolitan Planning 
Organization of Black 
Hawk County 

The City is intending to address several of the Pedestrian 
Plan goals, most notably those associated with healthy 
lifestyles, recreation, and non‐motorized transportation 
modes 

Black Hawk County 
Multi‐Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Black Hawk County 
Emergency 
Management 
Commission; City of 
Cedar Falls 

The Strategic Plan will seek to direct housing‐related 
development and redevelopment away from natural 
hazards (i.e. floodplains, steep slopes, poor soils), as is 
possible.  This is consistent with the MJ HMP 

City of Cedar Falls Low 
Rent Housing Agency 
Citizen Participation 
Plan 

City of Cedar Falls 
The Strategic Plan will be developed consistent with the 
current Citizen Participation Plan. 

Table 11 ‐ Other local / regional / federal planning efforts 
   

46

Item 5.



    13 

 

Narrative 
 
PR‐15 Participation ‐ 91.105, 91.200(c) 
 
1.  Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation 
 
Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal‐setting 
 
Citizen participation consisted of structured efforts made by the City.  First, the City hosted four focus groups to 
garner input.  Second a survey was completed by residents in the community. And lastly, both the Housing 
Commission and City Council provided opportunities within their public meetings for input into the development 
of this Consolidated Plan. 
 
As noted, the City of Cedar Falls conducted focus groups in tandem with a communitywide web‐based citizen 
survey in order to identify community housing and housing‐related needs.  The results from both input methods 
impacted all elements of this Plan, including program‐related goals, objectives, and action steps.   Most goals and 
objectives from the prior Consolidated Plan were rewritten and all will be measured accordingly.   
 
Focus group sessions and the survey were managed and facilitated by the University of Northern Iowa’s Institute of 
Decision Making.  Focus group sessions were also attended by City and INRCOG staff.  Overall, 38 persons attended 
focus group meetings, representing 28 agencies and organizations.  It should be noted that several other agencies 
were contacted outside of the focus groups in order obtain their input.  Specifically, the Metropolitan Transit 
Authority of Black Hawk County and Black Hawk County Emergency Management were consulted as well, bringing 
the total agencies included in this planning process to 34. Discussions with the focus groups allowed the City to 
gather the following information from participating entities: 
 

a. Background and operating information pertaining to each organization, its programs, services, clientele, 
customers, and service area; 

b. Identification of the greatest needs of its clients or customers; 
c. Barriers faced by their clients that prevent them from meeting their needs; 
d. Suggested programs or activities that could help clients or customers overcome barriers; and 
e. The activities or initiatives the City of Cedar Falls could be implementing, improving upon, in regard to 

providing decent housing, providing a suitable living environment, or expanding economic opportunities 
for its residents. 

 
Regarding the web‐based citizen survey, the City received 158 completed responses.  This response rate equates to 
roughly an 80 percent confidence interval that the results represent the community as a whole.  In addition to 
being offered online, paper copies of the survey were made available at City Hall, the Cedar Falls Library, certain 
larger housing developments, the Northeast Iowa Food Bank, and Operation Threshold, which serves as the 
region’s community assistance program administrator.  The survey was open from December 3rd, 2018 through 
December 23rd, 2018.  Summary findings from the survey include the following key takeaways in the areas of 
housing, community services and facilities, business and job‐related activities, and special needs services: 
 

a. Lack of affordable housing and the need for continued rehabilitation and repair programs were citied 
frequently as needs; 

b. In terms of community service and facility needs, mental health and childcare services were identified as 
the greatest needs; 

c. Employment training and job creation/retention were most often identified as needs under business and 
job‐related activities; and 

d. With regard to special needs services, residents stated that homeless shelters and related services, along 
with substance abuse services, were needed most in the community. 

47

Item 5.



    14 

 

The City’s Housing Commission also hosted several public meetings, between November 2018 and March 2019 on the Consolidated Plan, and the City Council 
held a public hearing to garner citizen input. No comments were received during the public meeting or hearing elements of the planning process.   
 
Also, legal notices, per the Citizen Participation Plan, were published for the 30‐day comment period (February 12th, 2019‐March 12th, 2019) and City Council 
Public Hearing was conducted on May 6th, 2019 prior to adoption.  In addition, the draft Plan was posted on the City’s website and made available at City Hall. 
 
Citizen Participation 
 

Sort   Order  Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/ 
attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If applicable) 

1 
Agency and 
Organization Focus 
Groups 

Low‐and‐
Moderate 
Income 
Households 
 
Minorities 
 
Non‐English 
Speaking ‐ 
Specify other 
language: 
Spanish 
  
Persons with 
disabilities 
 
Homeless 
persons 
  
Non‐
targeted/broad 
community 
entities 

Hosted by the City’s 
Housing Commission, 
four focus groups 
were held at 10:00 
AM and 1:00 PM on 
Tuesday, December 
4th; at 1:00 PM on 
Wednesday 
December 5th; and at 
10:00 AM on 
Thursday December 
6th, 2018 at the 
Hearst Center for the 
Arts in Cedar Falls. 38 
attendees, 
representing 28 
entities provided 
insight regarding this 
planning process 

Agency response were 
provided to a series of 
pre‐established 
questions 

All comments 
considered and 
accepted 

 

48

Item 5.



    15 

 

Sort   Order  Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/ 
attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If applicable) 

2 
Communitywide 
Survey 

Residents of 
the City of 
Cedar Falls 

The survey was 
available from 
December 3rd‐23rd, 
2018  

A press release was 
published in the 
Waterloo‐Cedar Falls 
Courier, and a link was 
placed on the City’s 
website.  Social media 
posts were made by City, 
Main Street, and School 
District. Announcement 
of the availability of the 
survey was place on the 
City’s public access 
channel, as was a link 
provided to UNI faculty 
and staff.  Hard copies 
were placed at City Hall, 
Library, housing 
developments, NE Iowa 
Food Bank and Operation 
Threshold 

All comments accepted  www.cedarfalls.com 

49

Item 5.



    16 

 

Sort   Order  Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/ 
attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If applicable) 

3 
Public Meetings. 
Legally Posted and 
Legally Noticed 

Minorities 
  
Non‐English 
Speaking ‐ 
Specify other 
language: 
Spanish 
  
Persons with 
disabilities 
  
Non‐
targeted/broad 
community 

Housing Commission 
public meetings 
addressed the Con 
Plan and Annual 
Action Plan, after City 
Administration 
review.  Agenda 
discussion was held 
on November 27th, 
2018 and January 8th, 
2019.  In addition, 
input on the Plan was 
specifically sought on 
Tuesday, February 
12th, 2019 and March 
12th, 2019.  All 
meetings were held 
at 5:00 pm in the 
Duke Young 
Conference Room in 
the Cedar Falls City 
Hall. The final noted 
meetings bookended 
the 30‐day comment 
period.  There were 
no attendees, other 
than agency 
representatives. No 
comments were 
received. No written 
comments were 
submitted. 

No comments were 
received. 
 

   www.cedarfalls.com 

50

Item 5.



    17 

 

Sort   Order  Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of  
Outreach 

Summary of  
response/ 
attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If applicable) 

4 

Communitywide 
Newsletter 
(Currents) Article 
Regarding the 
Draft Plans and 
Inviting Input 

General Public.  
All households 
are mailed the 
newsletter 

Publication date: 
Spring 2019 Edition 
(page 13) 
 

No comments were 
received. 
 

   www.cedarfalls.com 

5 

Public Hearing. 
Legally advertised 
hearing conducted 
within a legally 
posted public 
meeting. Draft 
plans were on‐file 
with the City Clerk 
and at the 
Community 
Development 
Department. 

Minorities 
  
Non‐English 
Speaking ‐ 
Specify other 
language: 
Spanish 
  
Persons with 
disabilities 
  
Non‐
targeted/broad 
community 

A City Council public 
hearing on the Con 
Plan and Annual 
Action Plan was held 
on May 6th, 2019 at 
7:00 PM. 
 

No comments were 
received. 
 

   www.cedarfalls.com 

Table 12 – Citizen Participation Outreach 

51

Item 5.



1 

 

Needs Assessment 

NA‐05 Overview 

Needs Assessment Overview 

Cedar Falls has a median household income of $58,544 in 2016 (5‐year American Community Survey) – higher than 

the  statewide median  income  of  $54,570. Nonetheless,  Cedar  Falls  is  not  immune  to  unmet  needs  for  decent, 

affordable housing. According to HUD’s 2011‐2015 Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) data, of 

the 14,565 households in Cedar Falls, 1,035 renter households (excluding non‐family, non‐elderly households) and 

2,020 owner households are low‐ and moderate‐income, meaning that their incomes are no higher than 80 percent 

of Area Median Income (AMI) by household size. Among non‐elderly, non‐family renter households, 2,485 are LMI 

– some, but not all, of these households consist of University of Northern Iowa students. 

Among LMI owners, 45 percent of households are housing cost burdened, meaning that  they pay more than 30 

percent of their incomes on housing costs (including utilities, taxes, and insurance). This is slightly higher than the 

statewide cost burden rate of 41 percent among LMI owners. Moreover, 16 percent of LMI owner households are 

severely cost burdened, with housing costs exceeding 50 percent of their incomes. (Note that the percentage of cost 

burdened households is inclusive of severely cost burdened households.) 

Among LMI renters, 59% of family households and 52 percent of elderly households are cost burdened, while 37 

percent and 36 percent of family and elderly households, respectively, are severely cost burdened. 

Racial/ethnic groups with disproportionate housing problems (at least ten percentage points higher than the rate of 

housing problems in the general population) are listed below. Housing problems are defined as housing cost burden 

greater than 30 percent, incomplete plumbing and/or kitchen facilities, and overcrowding (more than 1 person per 

room).  Severe  housing  problems  include  housing  cost  burden  greater  than  50  percent,  or  any  of  the  other  3 

aforementioned housing problems.  

Housing Problems 

Asian households between >30 percent and 50 percent AMI 

Asian, American Indian/Alaska Native, and Hispanic households between >50 percent and 80 percent AMI 

Severe Housing Problems 

Black, Hispanic, and Other/Multi‐Racial households up to 30 percent AMI 

Asian households between >30 percent and 50 percent AMI 

Black and Hispanic households between >50 percent and 80 percent AMI 

Moderate Housing Cost Burden (>30 percent to 50 percent of income spent on housing costs) 

Asian and American Indian/Alaska Native households 

Severe Housing Cost Burden (>50 percent of income spent on housing costs) 

52

Item 5.



2 

 

Black and Hispanic households 

53

Item 5.



3 

 

NA‐50 Non‐Housing Community Development Needs ‐ 91.415, 91.215 (f) 

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Facilities: 

Feedback from a community‐wide survey indicated that the greatest public facility needs for Cedar Falls residents 

are mental health and substance abuse treatment facilities, child care centers, homeless shelters, and youth centers. 

Additional needs according  to City staff and resident  feedback  include bus shelter  repairs and park, playground, 

sidewalk, and trail improvements. 

How were these needs determined? 

These needs were determined through focus groups with agencies, non‐profit organizations, and other stakeholders, 

interviews, community wide surveys, and feedback discussions with community development staff members.   

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Improvements: 

Generally speaking, respondents to a community‐wide survey perceived less need for infrastructure improvements 

than  for  public  facilities  and  services.  The  greatest  infrastructure  needs  identified  are  street  and  sidewalk 

improvements. The latter can be critical for LMI homeowners, who may not be able to afford the improvements 

themselves.  Additional  needs  identified  by  City  staff  –  based  on  resident  feedback  and  quantitative  data  on 

infrastructure conditions and future capacity needs – include sanitary sewer updates in LMI areas, bridge and culvert 

replacements,  drainage  improvements  such  as  bioswales  and  permeable  alley  paving,  and  streetscaping 

improvements. 

How were these needs determined? 

These needs were determined through focus groups with agencies, non‐profit organizations, and other stakeholders, 

interviews, community wide surveys, and feedback discussions with community development staff members.   

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Services: 

In tandem with the public facility needs identified by stakeholders, the greatest public service needs include mental 

health and substance abuse treatment services; more child care options, especially during evenings, weekends, and 

holidays;  homeless  assistance  services,  including  more  rapid  re‐housing  options,  and  youth  programming. 

Additionally, more public transportation service, including more routes and longer hours, was identified as a major 

need for LMI residents. 

How were these needs determined? 

These needs were determined through focus groups with agencies, non‐profit organizations, and other stakeholders, 

interviews, community wide surveys, and feedback discussions with community development staff members.   

Based on the needs analysis above, describe the State's needs in Colonias 

Not applicable – Cedar Falls is a non‐state entitlement grantee. 

 

 

54

Item 5.



1 
 

Housing Market Analysis 

MA‐05 Overview 

Housing Market Analysis Overview: 

Cedar Falls, like many university towns, has a strong housing market. Although housing starts have not recovered to 

their pre‐recession levels, single‐family housing permits hovered between 100 and 150 per year from 2012 through 

2016, according to Iowa Finance Authority (IFA) data. Multifamily permits have increased in recent years, reaching 

nearly  80 housing units  in  2016.  The median home value  in Cedar  Falls was  $171,400  in  2016,  a  three percent 

increase  since 2010 and  a 20 percent  increase  since 2000,  adjusted  for  inflation  (ACS 5‐y  2016  and 2010;  2000 

Census), while the median single‐family permit value was $219,367 in 2016 (IFA). The City’s median contract rent 

(excluding utilities) was $619  in 2016, a nine percent  increase since 2010 and a 15 percent  increase since 2000. 

Moreover, among vacant‐for‐rent units, nearly half had a rent asked of $700 or more (ACS 2016) The most recent 

local data suggests that available 1‐ and 2‐bedroom rental units tend to start at the $750 to $1,000 range.  

The owner and rental vacancy rates were two percent and six percent, respectively in 2016 (ACS), compared to 1.8 

percent and 6.4 percent in the 2010 Census. Owner and rental vacancy rates of two percent and five percent are 

generally considered healthy, but a six percent rental vacancy rate is not excessively high. More recent local data 

suggests that rental vacancy rates are increasing as new rental developments come on‐line, but that the increased 

supply has not necessarily  lowered costs. The new rental units  tend to be marketed to professionals or  to well‐

resourced  students.  As  a  result,  households  with  lower  incomes  continue  to  struggle  to  find  decent‐quality, 

reasonably priced housing, as extensive community feedback indicated. 

Cedar Falls’ housing stock is generally in good condition. However, 16 percent of the City’s owner‐occupied housing 

and 20 percent of its rental units were built before 1950. Some of these units may have deferred maintenance needs, 

especially if the owners have low to moderate incomes (LMI). Multiple public survey responses reported a need to 

rehabilitate older units, both to assist LMI property owners and improve neighborhood appearance, especially in the 

North Cedar, College Hill, and College Square neighborhoods. Across the City, 63 percent of owner units and 74 

percent of rental units were built before 1980. Any units built before 1978 may have lead‐based paint (LBP) hazards, 

unless all LBP has been removed or encapsulated. Of all owner and rental units, 890 (6 percent) and 273 (5 percent), 

respectively, were built before 1980 and are occupied by at least one child under 6 years of age (2011‐2015 CHAS). 

Several distinct factors pose challenges to meeting affordable housing needs in Cedar Falls. Infill  lots are in short 

supply, and current zoning requirements in some older neighborhoods are prohibitive for residential development 

on small  lots. Additionally, the single‐family home market experiences pressure from investors who can realize a 

higher  rate of  return by converting homes  into multiple  rental units. Recently, Cedar Falls  initiated a  temporary 

$10,000 forgivable loan program for homebuyers to convert rental properties back to single family homes in certain 

neighborhoods.  

Low‐ and moderate‐income families may have difficulty competing with student markets for single‐family rentals, 

since several students rooming in one dwelling can pay a higher aggregate rent than a family with only one or two 

incomes. UNI students,  for  their part, have  fewer affordable on‐campus housing options  than  in previous years. 

Although UNI enrollment has declined  in recent years, and vacancy rates are high among UNI’s student housing 

portfolio,  some  older,  lower‐cost  dormitories  have  been  demolished.  These  units  were  outdated,  but  UNI  is 

cognizant  that  their  loss  has  disproportionately  impacted  low‐income, minority,  immigrant,  and  1st  generation 

55

Item 5.



2 
 

college students, and those aging out of foster care. To level the playing field between students and families, as well 

as avoiding overcrowding of dwelling units and parking areas, the City limits the number of adult tenants based on 

the number of bedrooms in rental units. UNI, meanwhile, is planning to increase the share of 2nd year students who 

live  on‐campus  (currently  47  percent),  since  on‐campus  living  is  strongly  correlated with  college  retention.  The 

University is also renovating several dormitories to make student housing a more viable and appealing option. 

Finally, local stakeholders note that the pool of single‐family and multi‐family housing developers in Cedar Falls is 

small, minimizing competition and limiting any incentive to provide housing that is affordable to low‐, moderate‐ 

and  middle‐income  families  (up  to  120  percent  AMI).  Many  Cedar  Falls  stakeholders,  from  students  to  young 

professionals to LMI households and their advocates, have noted the lack of a “missing middle” of decent‐quality, 

moderately priced housing.  

For some populations,  such as  those with physical disabilities  that  require accessibility  features,  the shortage of 

affordable housing is especially dire. Housing subsidies for the lowest‐income households in Cedar Falls are limited. 

The City has 360 units in subsidized, privately owned rental developments – of which the 128 units in The Villages at 

Park@Nine23 may be lost after 2025 due to affordability restrictions ending. Additionally, the Cedar Falls Housing 

Authority offers 326 Housing Choice Vouchers – of which only 215 are in use, since many rentals exceed the Cedar 

Falls Housing Authority’s  payment  standard  (110 percent  of  Fair Market Rent). Many  landlords  are unwilling  to 

participate in the Housing Choice Voucher program, thereby further limiting the pool of units that are affordable to 

low‐ and very low‐income households. The Villages units that may be lost after 2025 are among the few rentals in 

Cedar Falls that voucher holders can readily access. 

As a result of the considerable need for affordable housing, the goals and objectives for Cedar Falls place strong 

emphasis on housing for LMI populations, and on associated community services that CDBG can feasibly fund. 

   

56

Item 5.



3 
 

MA‐45 Non‐Housing Community Development Assets ‐ 91.410, 91.210(f) 

Introduction 

As a City and as part of  the Cedar Valley  region, Cedar Falls cultivates a diverse economic base, emphasizing  its 

strengths of high‐quality education and training opportunities, a diligent regional workforce, and its location along 

major transportation corridors. Two main elements of Cedar Falls’ recent economic development efforts include its 

growing industrial parks, and its designation as Iowa’s “first gigabit city” due to extensive investment by Cedar Falls 

Utilities, its municipal utility, in a robust fiber optic network.  

Among jobs located in Cedar Falls, the largest sectors are Education and Health Care Services (37.9 percent), Retail 

Trade  (17.6  percent),  Arts,  Entertainment,  and  Accommodations  (14.9  percent),  Professional,  Scientific,  and 

Management Services (13.4 percent), and Manufacturing (9.4 percent). Among workers who live in Cedar Falls, the 

most common sectors that employ them are Education and Health Care Services (22.6 percent), Manufacturing (12.6 

percent), Retail Trade (8.8 percent), and Professional, Scientific, and Management Services (7.7 percent). Cedar Falls 

has more workers than jobs overall (21,147 compared to 16,544). In terms of occupational categories, a plurality of 

Cedar Falls workers are in Management, Business, and Financial occupations (8,894 workers, or 39 percent of total). 

The  next  most  common  occupation  sectors  are  Sales  and  Office  (6,044/26  percent)  and  Service  occupations 

(4,730/21 percent). 

Thirty‐one percent of Cedar Falls’ adult population has a Bachelor’s degree or higher, while another nine percent 

and 39 percent have an Associate’s degree or some college education with no degree, respectively. Some college 

with no degree is the most common educational attainment among young adults (18 to 24; 75 percent), while a 

Bachelor’s degree is most common among prime working‐age adults (25 to 64). However, it is more common among 

25‐  to  34‐year‐olds  (41  percent)  than  among  the  35‐44  and  45‐64  age  groups  (26  percent  and  23  percent, 

respectively). Among residents 65 years or older, the most common educational attainment is a high school diploma 

(35). These numbers reflect both the presence of young adults enrolled at the University of Northern Iowa, and the 

increasing importance of a college education in the labor market in recent decades. 

The City’s overall unemployment rate is a fairly healthy 4.7 percent. The unemployment for youths and young adults 

in the civilian labor force (16 to 24) is 8.2 percent, while those age 25 to 64 have a very low unemployment rate of 

2.64  percent.  Unemployment  rates  and  labor  force  participation  also  vary  by  educational  attainment.  The 

unemployment rate ranges from seven percent for those with less than a high school diploma to one percent for 

those with  a  Bachelor’s  degree  or  higher.  For  labor  force  participation,  the  range  is  58  percent  to  88  percent, 

respectively. Median annual earnings also vary by educational attainment, from a low of $30,403 for high school 

graduates to $65,708 for those with graduate and professional degrees. Surprisingly, the median annual earnings 

for those with less than a high school diploma are higher than those for high school graduates and some college. The 

reason  for  this  is  unknown,  but  may  indicate  that  Cedar  Falls  workers  without  a  high  school  diploma  are 

disproportionately employed in fields with a high base wage and/or ample opportunity for overtime pay.  

Overall, Cedar Falls’ economic profile highlights the fact that the City is not homogeneous. It is relatively affluent 

and educated, but not all workers are employed in well‐paid, white‐collar jobs. As a result, Cedar Falls is not immune 

from the need for affordable housing and services for workers whose incomes are low, and whose work schedules 

may be more unpredictable or more rigid than in white‐collar work environments. Moreover, Cedar Falls workers 

can benefit from economic development efforts that create living‐wage jobs at all skill levels. 

57

Item 5.



4 
 

Economic Development Market Analysis 

Business Activity 

Business by Sector  Number of 
Workers 

Number of 
Jobs 

Share of 
Workers 

% 

Share of 
Jobs 
% 

Jobs less 
workers 

% 

Agriculture, Mining, Oil & Gas Extraction  79  5  0.4%  0.0%  ‐0.9 

Arts, Entertainment, Accommodations  1,439  2,463  6.8%  14.9%  0.7 

Construction  563  618  2.7%  3.7%  0.1 

Education and Health Care Services  4,782  6,277  22.6%  37.9%  0.3 

Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate  944  1,281  4.5%  7.7%  0.4 

Information  213  269  1.0%  1.6%  0.3 

Manufacturing  2,657  1,550  12.6%  9.4%  ‐0.4 

Other Services  562  589  2.7%  3.6%  0.0 

Professional, Scientific, Management 

Services  1,635  2,225  7.7%  13.4%  0.4 

Public Administration  531  356  2.5%  2.2%  ‐0.3 

Retail Trade  1,869  2,919  8.8%  17.6%  0.6 

Transportation and Warehousing  666  1,588  3.1%  9.6%  1.4 

Wholesale Trade  604  1,007  2.9%  6.1%  0.7 

Total  21,147  16,544  100%  100%  100% 

Table 2 ‐ Business Activity 
Data 
Source: 

U.S. Census Bureau, OnTheMap Application and Longitudinal Employer‐Household Dynamics Origin‐

Destination Employment Statistics (2015) 

 

   

58

Item 5.



5 
 

Labor Force 

Total Population in the Civilian Labor Force  24,128 

Civilian Employed Population 16 years and over  22,999 

Unemployment Rate  4.7% 

Unemployment Rate for Ages 16‐24  8.2% 

Unemployment Rate for Ages 25‐65  2.4% 

Table 3 ‐ Labor Force 
Data 
Source: 

2012‐2016 ACS 

 

Occupations by Sector  Number of People 

Management, business and financial  8,894 

Farming, fisheries and forestry 

occupations  99 

Service  4,730 

Sales and office  6,044 

Construction, extraction, 

maintenance and repair  923 

Production, transportation and 

material moving  2,309 

Table 4 – Occupations by Sector 
Data 
Source: 

2012‐2016 ACS 

 

Travel Time 

Travel Time  Number  Percentage 

< 30 Minutes  20,789  95% 

30‐59 Minutes  699  3% 

60 or More Minutes  398  2% 

Total  21,886  100% 

Table 5 ‐ Travel Time 
Data 
Source: 

2012‐2016 ACS 

 

59

Item 5.



6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Education: 
Educational Attainment by Employment Status (Population 25 and Older) 

Educational Attainment  In Labor Force   

Civilian Employed  Unemployed  Not in Labor Force 

Less than high school graduate  285  21  226 

High school graduate (includes 
equivalency)  2,298  103  687 

Some college or Associate's degree  4,316  115  761 

Bachelor's degree or higher  6,537  90  905 

Table 6 ‐ Educational Attainment by Employment Status 
Data 
Source: 

2012‐2016 ACS 

 
Educational Attainment by Age 

  Age 

18–24 yrs  25–34 yrs  35–44 yrs  45–65 yrs  65+ yrs 

Less than 9th grade  11  21  107  78  167 

9th to 12th grade, no diploma  102  95  96  135  249 

High school graduate, GED, or 

alternative  970  731  786  1,571  1,832 

Some college, no degree  9,039  868  634  1,663  864 

Associate's degree  773  604  572  851  282 

Bachelor's degree  1,021  2,032  986  1,751  839 

Graduate or professional degree  77  552  678  1,542  983 

Table 7 ‐ Educational Attainment by Age 
Data 
Source: 

2012‐2016 ACS 

 

Educational Attainment – Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 

Educational Attainment  Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 

Less than high school graduate  $35,372 

High school graduate (includes equivalency)  $30,403 

Some college or Associate's degree  $34,270 

Bachelor's degree  $46,239 

Graduate or professional degree  $65,708 

Table 8 – Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 
Data 
Source: 

2012‐2016 ACS 

 
 

 

60

Item 5.



7 
 

Based on the Business Activity table above, what are the major employment sectors within your jurisdiction? 

Education and Health Care Services (37.9 percent of jobs in Cedar Falls) 

Retail Trade (17.6 percent) 

Arts, Entertainment, and Accommodations (14.9 percent) 

Professional, Scientific, and Management Services (13.4 percent) 

Manufacturing (9.4 percent) 

Describe the workforce and infrastructure needs of the business community: 

The Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy for the region that includes Cedar Falls outlined the business 

community’s workforce and infrastructure needs. 

Workforce 

The CEDS identified several regional workforce challenges: 

•  Population  growth  is  slow. Between 2010 and 2015,  the  region’s  population  grew by  an  estimated 1.2 

percent. In Black Hawk County, the estimated growth was 1.8 percent. These growth rates were lower than the State 

of Iowa’s growth rate of 2.5 percent over the same period. 

•  Starting  wages  tend  to  be  low,  although  state  incentive  programs  set  minimum  levels  for  wages  and 

benefits. 

•  The region has a shortage of workforce housing affordable to blue‐collar workers and young professionals. 

•  The labor force reached a 10‐year low in 2016, and both general and skilled labor are in short supply. 

•  Employers have difficulty recruiting workers to the region, in part due to negative perceptions about the 

region’s quality of life. 

•  As Baby Boomers who own or have leadership positions in businesses near retirement age, there will be a 

need for succession planning to ensure that these businesses continue to provide employment. 

•  Technological advancements may create new high‐skilled jobs, but may also lead to net job losses in some 

sectors. 

At the same time, the CEDS projected a net addition of 8,515 jobs to the region between 2014 and 2024, with the 

largest  increases  occurring  in  healthcare  practitioner  and  technical  occupations,  sales  and  related  occupations, 

transportation/material  moving  occupations,  education/training/library  occupations,  and  healthcare  support 

occupations. These five  job classifications combined will account for an estimated 44 percent of the region’s  job 

growth. Some other occupation types,  including several manufacturing and clerical occupations, are expected to 

grow slowly or decline. The CEDS anticipates that  the current population growth rate would not be sufficient  to 

supply workers in high‐growth industries, a shortfall that is exacerbated by reduced labor force participation and 

skills mismatches between workers and jobs. In terms of workforce housing needed to recruit workers, the shortage 

may be more acute in Cedar Falls than in Waterloo, due to the former city’s higher housing costs. However, feedback 

61

Item 5.



8 
 

from residents in both cities points to a “missing middle” of decent‐quality, modestly priced housing, especially for 

low‐ and moderate‐income workers. 

The CEDS goal for addressing regional workforce housing needs includes measures to recruit new workers to the 

region, up‐skill existing workers, foster training and education opportunities to help workers fill high‐demand jobs, 

retain college graduates, and improve quality of life offerings to attract and retain workers. Additionally, the CEDS 

for providing adequate housing encourages efforts to expand workforce housing in close proximity to employment 

centers. 

Infrastructure 

Infrastructure needs in the next decade include water/sewer upgrades to maintain the level of service expected by 

residents  and  businesses  at  reasonable  rates;  increased  flood  mitigation  measures  and  renewable  energy 

generation, and execution of several planned projects to improve the area’s highway corridors, which are already a 

major  asset  to  the  metro  area’s  economy.  One  infrastructure  deficiency  identified  by  Black  Hawk  County 

stakeholders  in  the  CEDS development  is  limited  air  service.  Public  participation  for  other  planning  documents, 

including this Consolidated Plan, have also identified a need for expanded bus service in the Waterloo/Cedar Falls 

area. In particular, transportation is a barrier for 2nd and 3rd shift workers, those who work on weekends or holidays, 

and those who work at employment centers not currently served by bus. 

Describe any major changes that may have an economic impact, such as planned local or regional public or 

private sector investments or initiatives that have affected or may affect job and business growth opportunities 

during the planning period. Describe any needs for workforce development, business support or infrastructure 

these changes may create. 

The City of Cedar Falls continues to expand its Industrial and Technology Park to the south, as well as the Northern 

Cedar Falls Industrial Park. The City provides infrastructure in the industrial parks so that sites will be “shovel ready” 

for new businesses. Additionally, two Target distribution centers have located in Cedar Falls in recent years, and the 

City has partnered with other local governments in the region to fund three years of operations for The Millrace, a 

co‐work and startup incubator facility. Moreover, the City’s  investments in street improvements along University 

Avenue and Viking Road have spurred new investment along these commercial corridors. These investments are 

creating new jobs, new housing demand, and additional workforce training needs. 

How do the skills and education of the current workforce correspond to employment opportunities in the 

jurisdiction? 

Employers report a shortage of skilled workers in the region – in advanced manufacturing, for example. Moreover, 

as sectors such as healthcare, transportation, and education become more prominent in the region’s economy, the 

need for workers possessing these skills may grow. 

Describe any current workforce training initiatives, including those supported by Workforce Investment Boards, 

community colleges and other organizations. Describe how these efforts will support the jurisdiction's 

Consolidated Plan. 

In 2016, Cedar Falls, the region’s second largest school district, passed a $32 million bond measure to fund a new 

elementary building as well  as  the  expansion of Orchard Hill  and North Cedar elementary  schools.  The primary 

reason behind this effort was, in part, was due to the continued and projected increase in elementary enrollment. 

62

Item 5.



9 
 

According to the school, the district‘s student population grew by 850 over the past 10 years and is expected to grow 

by an additional 1,100 students in the coming decade.  

In 2016, the school district launched the Center for Advanced Professional Studies (CAPS) program. The program is 

a  partnership  with  local  businesses  to  provide  students  with  real‐world  experiences  outside  of  the  classroom 

focusing  on  career  readiness  skills.  Initially,  the  program  has  focused  on  engineering,  computer  science  and 

information technology fields. Study is held at a host business for approximately 2.5 hours each day where students 

focus on problem solving and completing projects in a business environment. 

Hawkeye Community College, based in Waterloo, offers vocational/technical programs and continuing education 

opportunities in a wide range of career choices, as well as general interest courses suited for any interest. Hawkeye 

Community College (HCC) is accredited as a 2‐year liberal arts institution with approximately 6,300 (3,000 full‐time) 

students currently enrolled. 

In recent years, Hawkeye has expanded its technical training and apprenticeship programs in response to regional 

workforce  demands.  HCC  offers  HVAC,  plumbing,  and  electrical  apprenticeship  curriculum  approved  by  the 

Department of Labor. As part of the requirements, an employer or local business sponsors students. HCC also offers 

programs for several technical high‐demand jobs, including Industrial Maintenance, Industrial Automation, Welding 

Technician & Technology, Tool and Die, Machining, and Computer‐Numeric Control (CNC). 

Hawkeye works in partnership with Cedar Valley IowaWORKS, the regional Iowa Workforce Development service 

center. IowaWORKS offers a variety of programs to support job seekers, including PROMISE JOBS, which provides 

training  and  support  to  TANF  recipients,  services  for  dislocated workers  and  those with  disabilities, Workforce 

Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) services for young adults, connections to training in high‐demand industries, 

and other programs. IowaWORKS focuses heavily on hard‐to‐serve populations. 

The above‐described efforts will support the Consortium’s anti‐poverty strategy by providing more opportunities for 

LMI residents to become and remain self‐sufficient. These efforts may also ease housing cost burdens by increasing 

workers’ ability to buy or rent decent housing. 

Does your jurisdiction participate in a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS)? 

Yes 

If so, what economic development initiatives are you undertaking that may be coordinated with the 

Consolidated Plan? If not, describe other local/regional plans or initiatives that impact economic growth. 

Several  of  Cedar  Falls’  economic  development  initiatives  pursuant  to  the  CEDS  may  be  coordinated  with  the 

Consolidated  Plan.  The  City  endeavors  to  combine  multiple  community  development  and  initiatives  and 

expenditures, such as street, water, and sewer  improvements, park upgrades, streetscape improvements, transit 

infrastructure  updates,  and  demolition  of  substandard  properties,  in  particular  neighborhoods  in  need  of  new 

investment. Some of these areas overlap with LMI Census block groups, where CDBG funds may be combined with 

other City revenue sources to fund improvements. 

Discussion 

Cedar Falls  is best known as a university town, but the City endeavors to cultivate a diverse economic base that 

offers  opportunities  to  residents  from  all  walks  of  life.  By  investing  in  its  growing  industrial  parks,  the  City  is 

capitalizing  on  the  Cedar  Valley  region’s  comparative  advantage  in  advanced  manufacturing  capabilities. 

63

Item 5.



10 
 

Additionally, the City supports information‐based business sectors by supporting work space, high‐speed internet, 

and other resources for start‐up businesses. 

 

64

Item 5.



11 
 

MA‐50 Needs and Market Analysis Discussion  

Are there areas where households with multiple housing problems are concentrated? (include a definition of 

"concentration") 

According to HUD’s Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing Data and Mapping Tool, the share of households with at 

least one housing problem is at least 10 percentage points higher in Census tracts 23.03 and 23.04 than in any other 

Census tract in Cedar Falls. 

No Census  tracts  in Cedar  Falls  have  a  concentration of multiple  housing problems.  The Census Bureau defines 

housing problems as housing cost burden greater than 30 percent, incomplete plumbing and/or kitchen facilities, or 

overcrowding (more than 1 person per room). However, in Census tracts 22 and 25, 10 percent of renter households 

have  2  or  more  housing  problems,  according  to  2016  ACS  data.  Census  tract  22  contains  the  oldest  platted 

neighborhoods in Cedar Falls, and a relatively high percentage of LMI households. Census tract 25 is in the College 

Square area, and its Block Group 3 is 51.3 percent LMI. In most cases, rental units in these Census tracts with multiple 

housing  problems  are  likely  to  be  experiencing  housing  cost  burden  and  crowding,  since  incomplete 

kitchen/plumbing facilities are rare. It is not known how many of these households are UNI students vs. non‐student 

households that live in crowded conditions out of necessity or preference.  

 

65

Item 5.



12 
 

Are there any areas in the jurisdiction where racial or ethnic minorities or low‐income families are 

concentrated? (include a definition of "concentration") 

No  Census  tract  has  a  “concentration”  of  specific  racial  or  ethnic  minorities  according  to  HUD’s  definition  (10 

percentage points higher than the citywide percentage). However, Census tract 23.04 (College Hill area) has the 

highest percentage of  racial  and ethnic minorities  (11.8 percent  and 4.0 percent,  respectively,  compared  to 7.1 

percent and 2 percent citywide). 

What are the characteristics of the market in these areas/neighborhoods? 

This Census tract is near the University of Northern Iowa, and includes a substantial supply of private rental housing 

occupied by students – which likely explains its relatively high racial and ethnic diversity. The homeownership rate 

is only 52.1 percent, compared to 64.6 percent citywide. The overall housing stock in this Census tract tends to be 

older, while the share of housing structures with 20 or more units (15.9 percent) is about double the citywide rate. 

The  percentage  of  homeowners  without mortgages  is  relatively  high  (46.7  percent,  compared  to  36.6  percent 

citywide),  suggesting  a  relatively  high  share  of  older  homeowners  who  have  paid  off  their mortgages. Median 

monthly housing costs for renters and owners with mortgages are lower in this Census tract than citywide, but are 

somewhat higher for owners without mortgages. A higher share of renters (61.6 percent, compared to 47.2 percent) 

pay 35 percent or more of their incomes on housing, which may reflect the presence of students (whose education 

loans are not counted as income).  

Community feedback about this area indicates concerns about the prevalence of deteriorated properties, many of 

which are rentals. Much of the rental stock is in older structures converted from single‐family homes. Many residents 

believe the rents charged for deteriorated units in this neighborhood are unreasonably high. Additionally, residents 

are concerned about crime and disruptions associated with the high student population. Because of these issues, 

community  feedback  indicates  that  some  older  residents  are  being  displaced,  and  the  neighborhood  is  not 

considered family‐friendly. This led the City to change its rental review process and requirements in 2015, in hopes 

to counteract these issues and improve rental property conditions. 

Are there any community assets in these areas/neighborhoods? 

The College Hill area has shopping, dining, and nightlife opportunities that are geared toward college students but 

may  appeal  to  other  residents,  especially  younger  demographics.  Its  proximity  to  the  University  also  offers 

educational and cultural opportunities, such as plays, concerts, art exhibits, and lectures. This neighborhood includes 

the Hearst Center for the Arts, and also has some older homes with historic value. 

Are there other strategic opportunities in any of these areas? 

Since the College Hill area has commercial and entertainment draws for young adults, and an abundance of older 

housing,  the  Cedar  Falls  Comprehensive  Plan  (2012)  and  Strategic  Plan  (Future  Forward  Cedar  Falls  2025) 

recommends that this neighborhood be targeted for mixed‐use development to expand housing opportunities and 

spaces for businesses and artists to establish themselves. The City anticipates implementing this recommendation 

by  conducting  visioning  exercises  and  revising  zoning  regulations  in  College  Hill  to  accommodate  mixed‐use 

development. The City may update the College Hill Overlay District zoning to meet this vision with new development 

or re‐development, while protecting public health, safety, and welfare. 

The planned College Hill visioning and zoning updates are part of a broader effort that includes downtown Cedar 

Falls and adjacent neighborhoods that are among the City’s oldest. The intention is to accommodate the compact, 

66

Item 5.



13 
 

mixed‐use nature of the development that has historically occurred in these neighborhoods, and to maintain them 

as vibrant, functional, interconnected hubs of City life. 

 

67

Item 5.



1 
 

Strategic Plan 

SP‐05: Overview 

The purpose of the Cedar Falls Strategic Plan is to outline a five‐year course of action that the City may follow 

when implementing their Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Program.  Said Strategic Plan 

will identify priorities, needs, market conditions, and define goals and action strategies, and is intended to address 

the Needs and Market Assessments that are part of the City’s overall Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2019‐2023 

Consolidated Plan. 

The City of Cedar Falls provides funding to four general programs including: housing development programs, 

economic and community development programs, neighborhood or area programs, and planning and 

administrative programs.  Needs in these areas are designed to increase opportunities for low‐and‐moderate 

income households to identify the availability of decent housing, safe and suitable living environments and provide 

economic opportunities.  As an overarching need, the community identified affordable housing, which is quality 

and lower priced, when compared to the existing housing market in the city. 

SP‐10: Geographic Priorities 91.215(a)(1) 

The City of Cedar Falls will focus its resources, budget and staff, in the areas deemed in greatest need of 

improvement.  Specifically, the City will use information and resources at its disposal for defining these areas, 

including but not limited to neighborhoods, census tracts and block groups, adopted urban renewal areas, and/or 

other geographic areas identified in the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, Overlay Districts, and 

renewal or revitalization boundaries, all within the City of Cedar Falls’ incorporated area. 

The City will expend all CDBG resources under one of three National Objectives: Benefit to Low‐and‐Moderate 

Income persons; Aiding in the Prevention or Elimination of Slums or Blight; or Meeting Community Development 

Needs having a Particular Urgency.  This final objective is defined as those needs, that because of existing 

conditions, pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community, and where other 

financial resources are not available to meet such needs.  Implementation of the City’s programs will be applied in 

one of two methods, citywide or in low‐to‐moderate income areas.  Further, this section of the Strategic Plan 

integrates the Analysis of Fair Housing Impediments into the planning process.  Specifically, the recommendations 

and actions of the AFH are being tied to goals and objectives of this plan. 

Citywide:  

The City of Cedar Falls will allocate housing rehabilitation and repair funds on a citywide basis.  Homeowners may 

apply directly to the City for funding, which the city prioritizes on a first qualified, first served basis.  A written 

application, income verification, and inspection will follow, assuming the owner meets income guidelines.  After 

need is determined, the scope of work is to be defined and either bid (rehab projects) or procured using small bid 

guidelines established by the city.  The City’s Housing Commission reviews and recommends all suitable projects to 

the City Council for approval.  Thereafter, contracts are executed by the parties and work is completed, with 

approvals and reimbursements being made available to contractors during and at the end of the process. 

Services provided, on behalf of the City, by agencies or organizations are also to be offered citywide.  The 
underlying reason for funding these services is to prevent the possibility of homelessness.  Eligible services will be 
consistent with CDBG guidelines, and may include, but not be limited to: healthcare, financial literacy and 
counseling, sheltering, transportation, nutrition, substance abuse, and family and children’s counseling services. 
 

68

Item 5.



2 
 

New programs, such as down‐payment assistance, first‐time homebuyers, and Housing Choice Voucher changes 
may also be implemented citywide.  Also, all related planning and program administration are intended to be 
offered citywide. 
 
LMI Area Benefit (See Attached Map): 

LMI Area Benefit Projects will be implemented in Census Tracts and Block Groups currently reporting income levels 

at or below 80% of Area Median Income (AMI).  There are currently 7 census tracts with 8 block groups that have 

an LMI percentage of 51 percent or greater (ACS 2011‐2015). Specifically, Census tract 2200 block group 2 and 3; 

tract 2301 block group 3; tract 2303 block group 1; tract 2304 block group 2; tract 2500 block group 3; tract 2603 

block group 4; and tract 2604 block group 5.    Categories of projects that are targeted include: neighborhood 

infrastructure, transportation, park and recreation, demolition and clearance, and accessibility (pedestrian) 

projects. 

Application of the Waterloo and Cedar Falls Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (2014 and 2019 
Draft) Recommendations and Actions 
 
An analysis of Fair Housing Impediments was completed in 2014, and being currently updated, for the Waterloo‐
Cedar Falls HOME Consortium, at about the same time as the current Consolidated Plan was being completed.  A 
draft of the Analysis is scheduled to be updated concurrently with the new 2019‐2023 Consolidated Plan.  Because 
the recommendations made in the Analysis, both the 2014 version and 2019 draft, are still relevant, the Analysis 
will be used when evaluating the effectiveness of fair housing initiatives for the next five years.  The actions, 
outlined specifically for Cedar Falls, are enumerated below and will be used for this planning process. 
 
Public Sector Impediments: Market Based 
 

1. Limited English‐Speaking Population. Conduct a four‐factor analysis to determine which current systems 
for interpretation and translation are adequately serving the community.  Ending with a Language Access 
Plan. 

2. Focus CDBG funding on the provision of affordable rental units. 
3. Consider a renter‐focused CDBG‐funded affordable housing project. 
4. Planning departments in Consortium work together to arrange for a workshop for developers and 

landlords to broaden awareness of the concepts of universal design. 
5. Provide incentives for employment training and apprenticeships aimed at residents of racially‐impacted 

neighborhoods. 
6. Target homeownership counseling to residents of impacted neighborhoods. 

 
Public Sector Impediments: Policy Based 
 

1. Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission outreach project.  Determine viability of using CDBG funds to 
support an outreach project. Empower the Commission to enforce fair housing laws rather than referring 
residents to the Iowa Civil Rights Commission 

2. Consortium should continue to engage in regional planning efforts to most efficiently match bus lines and 
stops with jobs, housing, and amenities. 

 
Private Sector Impediments: Market Based 
 

1. Consortium should consider testing for mortgage discrimination by a qualified entity in order to more 
effectively target education, outreach, referral, and enforcement activities. 

2. Apply for a grant for another round of testing, with particular emphasis on race and disability, should be 
considered by the Consortium. 

69

Item 5.



3 
 

3. Legal review of nuisance and rental inspection ordinances to ensure whether enforcement is consistent 
with applicable fair housing laws.   

70

Item 5.



4 
 

SP‐25: Priority Needs 91.215(a)(2) 

As a result of input from focus group participants, community survey responses, elected officials, and staff, the City 

has identified housing, community and economic development, homelessness, supportive social and educational 

service needs, directly and indirectly impacting affordable housing, infrastructure, public services and 

homelessness prevention.  The priority needs for the life of this Consolidated Plan and Strategic Plan (FFY 2019‐

2023), are listed below, and identified by “CP” in the table.  By way of comparison, actions from the 2014 Analysis 

of Fair Housing Impediments are measured against the Consolidated Plan needs and integrated into the table as 

well and identified as “AFH” in the table. 

1  Priority Need Name  Maintaining Existing Affordable Housing 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide 

Associated Goals: 
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Maintain Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied 
CP: Maintain Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied 
CP: Preserve Existing Affordable Housing Through Code Enforcement 
AFH: Focus CDBG Funding on Affordable Rental Units 
AFH: Consider Renter‐Focused CDBG‐Funded Affordable Housing Project 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 

Description  Preserve existing affordable housing stock in the community through 
rehabilitation, repair, safety or health‐related abatement measures. 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

2  Priority Need Name  Increasing Affordable Housing Units 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Maintain Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied 
CP: Maintain Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied 
AFH: Joint Workshop on Universal Design 
AFH: Focus CDBG Funding on Affordable Rental Units 
AFH: Consider Renter‐Focused CDBG‐Funded Affordable Housing Project 

Description  Increase the number of housing units in the community that are considered 
affordable. 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey, City input 

3  Priority Need Name  Ensuring Fair Housing for Residents 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low and Low‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: CDBG Planning and Administration 
AFH: Conduct Interpretation and Translation Analysis 
AFH: Joint Workshop on Universal Design 
AFH: Target Homeownership Counseling to Residents of Impacted 
Neighborhoods 
AFH: Human Rights Commission Empowerment and Outreach Project 
AFH: Test for Mortgage Discrimination; Apply for Grant to Test Validity 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 

Description  Enforce and implement affirmative fair housing certification, anti‐displacement 
and relocation plan, acquisition and relocation requirements, lead‐based paint 
protection including remediation, and anti‐discrimination laws 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups and community survey 

71

Item 5.



5 
 

4  Priority Need Name  Supporting Services for Homeless, Near‐Homeless, Special Needs and 
Populations 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
CP: Prevent Homelessness Through Agency and Organizational Support 
AFH: Incent Employment Training and Apprenticeships for Residents of Impacted 
Neighborhoods 

Description  Offer support service, either directly through the city or contracting agencies, for 
persons that are homeless, near homeless, have special needs, or that are 
transitioning from institutional settings such that they do not become homeless 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

5  Priority Need Name  Providing Family and Children’s Services 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Prevent Homelessness Through Agency and Organizational Support 
CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
AFH: Target Homeownership Counseling to Residents of Impacted 
Neighborhoods 

Description  Support agencies and organizations that offer healthcare, substance abuse 
counseling and treatment, financial literacy and counseling services, sheltering, 
basic needs such as food, and other services in order prevent homelessness. 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

6  Priority Need Name  Promoting Infrastructure Development 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Improve Infrastructure and Accessibility 
CP: Demolition and Clearance 
CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
CP: Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 
CP: Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 
AFH: Focus CDBG Funding on Affordable Rental Units 

Description  Provide infrastructure (i.e. street, water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, drainage, 
parking, trees) to areas that may be identified as LMI areas by the Census Bureau 

Basis for Relative Priority  Community survey and City input 

7  Priority Need Name  Promoting Neighborhood Development 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 
CP: Demolition and Clearance 
CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
CP: Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 
CP: Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 
AFH: Focus CDBG Funding on Affordable Rental Units 

72

Item 5.



6 
 

AFH: Regional Transit Planning Matching Service with Jobs, Housing, and 
Amenities 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 

Description  In order to stem possible neighborhood erosion, the City will work to offer 
infrastructure, amenities, and services in targeted neighborhoods, as identified 
by the Census Bureau as being LMI areas. 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

8  Priority Need Name  Supporting Economic Development, Business Opportunities and Commercial 
Building Redevelopment 

Priority Level  Moderate 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Neighborhood Infrastructure and Accessibility 
CP: Demolition and Clearance 
CP: Provide Access to Transportation 
AFH: Incent Employment Training and Apprenticeships for Residents of Impacted 
Neighborhoods 
AFH: Regional Transit Planning Matching Service with Jobs, Housing, and 
Amenities 

Description  Identify possible workforce for businesses and industries, as well as target areas 
where commercial redevelopment could occur 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey and City input 

9  Priority Need Name  Conducting Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Priority Level  Low 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals:  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Improve Infrastructure and Accessibility 
CP: Demolition and Clearance 
AFH: Consider Renter‐Focused CDBG‐Funded Affordable Housing Project 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 

Description  Clear lots for redevelopment 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey and City input 

10  Priority Need Name  Providing Effective Planning and Administration 

Priority Level  High 

Population  Extremely Low, Low, and Moderate‐Income Households 

Geographic Area Affected  Citywide and Low and Moderate Area Benefit 

Associated Goals  
CP: Consolidated Plan 
AFH: Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair 
Housing Choice 

CP: Housing Administration 
CP: CDBG Administration 
AFH: Consider Renter‐Focused CDBG‐Funded Affordable Housing Project 
AFH: Address Nuisance Property and Rental Inspection Ordinances 
AFH: Conduct Interpretation and Translation Analysis 
AFH: Joint Workshop on Universal Design 
AFH: Regional Transit Planning Matching Service with Jobs, Housing, and 
Amenities 

Description  Provide necessary administration and planning services, as well as complete all 
reports, as required by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Basis for Relative Priority  Focus groups, community survey, and City input 

Table 13 – Priority Needs 
 

   

73

Item 5.



7 
 

SP‐30: Influence of Market Conditions 91.215(b) 

Which market characteristics will influence use of TBRA, TBRA for non‐homeless special needs; New Unit 

production, rehabilitation, and acquisition?   

Affordable Housing 
Type 

Market Characteristics that will Influence the Use of Funds Available for Housing 
Type 

Tenant‐Based 
Rental Assistance 
(TBRA) 

The City of Cedar Falls has a shortage of housing units for low‐and‐moderate income 
households (<80% of AMI), which is even more pronounced for households earning 
less than 50% of Area Median Income.  In September 2018, the Housing Commission 
closed the Housing Choice Voucher waiting list, and it will remain closed until July 
31st, 2019.  Closure of the waiting list was publicly implemented.  Unfortunately, the 
need for rent assistance continues to rise in the community. 

Tenant‐Based 
Rental Assistance 
(TBRA) for Non‐
Homeless Special 
Needs 

The City manages a Housing Choice Vouchers (Section 8) program through an 
internal agency.  At this point, the City of Cedar Falls is not participating in a Housing 
Trust Fund, which could offer more TBRA assistance through at least two 
agencies/organizations (Operation Threshold and Exceptional Persons, 
Incorporated).  Both of these agencies may be working with Cedar Falls residents.  
However, with only limited funds and the high rent prices, the number of 
households assisted is limited. 

New Unit 
Production 

The City of Cedar Falls continues to support development of new affordable units.  
However, with the demand, much of which is driven by the University of Northern 
Iowa, housing ownership costs remain out‐of‐reach for many households.  
Conversely, senior housing continues to be a priority for the community, and at least 
two organizations are building senior housing, Western Home and New Aldaya. 

Rehabilitation  Rehabilitation continues to be a need for Cedar Falls homeowners in certain areas of 
the community.  The City is often maintaining a waiting list for both its owner‐
occupied rehabilitation and repair programs.  With that said, rehabilitation is a 
challenging activity insomuch as obtaining agency clearances, project approvals, and 
identifying contractors that are able to complete the work on‐budget and in a timely 
fashion. 

Acquisition, 
including 
Preservation 

According to the Iowa Finance Authority, there are 5 privately‐owned, subsidized 
developments in Cedar Falls containing 360 units.  Subsidies are either through Low 
Income Housing Tax Credits or Section 8 (See Section MA‐10 of this Plan.).  

Table 14 – Market Conditions 
 

Due primarily to the high cost of housing in the community, which is tied directly to the price of land and 

infrastructure, the City of Cedar Falls is challenged to provide affordable housing.  These factors, together with the 

demand for housing in the community, affect the price of housing.  As an aside, the demand for housing in the 

community is influenced by the University of Northern Iowa, which is located in the community. 

SP‐35: Anticipated Resources 91.215(a)(4), 91.220(c)(1,2) 

The City of Cedar Falls anticipates receiving Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding during FFY 2019 

through FFY 2023.  The uses of the funds include housing rehabilitation and repair, code enforcement, access to 

public services, public infrastructure and neighborhood improvements, clearance and demolition of property, and 

planning and administration.

74

Item 5.



8 
 

Explain how federal funds will leverage additional resources (private, state, and local funds), include a description of how matching requirements will be 

satisfied 

The City of Cedar Falls encourages applicants and sub‐recipients to obtain other public and private resources that address needs identified in the Consolidated 

Plan.  In order to implement most of the projects identified in this Plan, it will require additional resources to complete said projects.  During prior years, 

projects have leveraged other sources. 

Description of how match requirements will be satisfied 

There are no match requirements for CDBG funding under the Entitlement Program. 

If appropriate, describe the publicly owned land or property within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs identified in the plan 

Goals, and the activities under each goal, that are categorized as Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements (i.e. sanitary sewer, water, drainage), 
Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements (i.e. sidewalks, trails, curb cuts), and Neighborhood Recreational Improvements (i.e. parks, playgrounds) will likely 
occur on publicly‐owned land.  Specifically, the publicly‐owned rights‐of‐way and parks will be used to address the needs identified in this plan. 
 
Anticipated Resources 

A summary of anticipated resources for the CDBG Entitlement and Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Programs is shown in the table below. 

75

Item 5.



9 
 

Program  Source of 
Funds 

Uses of Funds  Expected Amount Available Year 1  Expected 
Amount 
Available 

Remainder of 
Con Plan $ 

Narrative 
Description Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG  Public/Federal  Housing Rehab and Repair, Agency 
Assistance, Infrastructure 

Development, Community and 
Economic Development Efforts, 
Public Service Improvements, 
Neighborhood Improvements, 

Demolition/Clearance, Neighborhood 
Access, Acquisition, Planning and 

Administration 

$253,085   $0  $372,039 
(Estimated) 

$625,124 
(Estimated) 

$1,012,340 
(Estimated) 

 

HCV  Public/Federal  Rent Assistance  $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$0  $0  $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$5,200,000 
(Estimated) 

 

Table 15 – Anticipated Resource 
 

76

Item 5.



10 
 

SP‐40: Institutional Delivery Structure 91.215(k) 

 
Responsible Entity  Responsible Entity Type  Role  Geographic Area Served 

City of Cedar Falls  Government  Economic Development, 
Homelessness, Non‐
Homeless Special Needs, 
Homeownership 
programs and 
improvements, 
Neighborhood 
Improvements, Public 
Facilities, Public Services, 
Demolition/Clearance, 
Planning and 
Administration 

Jurisdiction 

Iowa Northland Regional 
Council of Governments 

Contractor  Public Administrative 
Contractor 

Jurisdiction 

Table 16 ‐ Institutional Delivery Structure 
 

Strengths and gaps in the delivery system; how to overcome gaps 

The strengths in the delivery system include the use of another experienced local public sector entity, INRCOG, to 
help the City of Cedar Falls implement their program.  Further, working with the City of Waterloo has brought 
experience to this process.  Together, both entities will help to improve the effectiveness of the program for the 
City and its residents 
   

77

Item 5.



11 
 

Availability of services targeted to homeless persons and persons with HIV and mainstream services 
 

Homelessness Prevention 
Services 

Available in the 
Community 

Targeted to Homeless  Targeted to People 
with HIV 

Homelessness Prevention Services 

Counseling/Advocacy  X  X  X 

Legal Assistance  X     X 

Mortgage Assistance  X     X 

Rental Assistance  X    X  X 

Utilities Assistance  X   X  X 

Street Outreach Services 

Law Enforcement   X   X      

Mobile Clinics            

Other Street Outreach Services   X  X      

Supportive Services 

Alcohol & Drug Abuse  X  X  X 

Child Care  X  X   

Education  X       

Employment and Employment 
Training  X  X   

Healthcare  X  X   

HIV/AIDS  X  X   

Life Skills  X  X   

Mental Health Counseling  X  X   

Transportation  X  X   

Other 

           

Table 17 ‐ Homeless Prevention Services Summary 
 
Describe how the service delivery system including, but not limited to, the services listed above meet the needs 
of homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans 
and their families, and unaccompanied youth) 
 
As noted above, the City supports several agencies that address the needs of those persons that are homeless.  
Also, the City is participating in the Black Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating Board (LHCB).  Finally, the 
Cedar Falls Section 8 Program (may also be known as the Low Rent Housing Agency or Cedar Falls Housing 
Authority) reduces the potential for homelessness by providing rent assistance in the form of Housing Choice 
Vouchers.   
 
Describe the strengths and gaps of the service delivery system for special needs population and persons 
experiencing homelessness, including, but not limited to, the services listed above 
 
The strengths regarding the current delivery system is that the City is financially supporting service providers that 
can accommodate special needs populations using their expertise and facilities, thus preventing duplication of 
services in the community.  An additional strength is the sheer number of agencies, organization, and entities that 
can offer services to the community.  Gaps include those caused by funding limitations and an apparent lack of 
service education for residents and provider coordination. 
 
Provide a summary of the strategy for overcoming gaps in the institutional structure and service delivery system 
for carrying out a strategy to address priority needs 
 

78

Item 5.



12 
 

The Cedar Falls Housing Commission and City staff will continue to work to provide strategies that minimize gaps in 
the service delivery system.  As noted, the city works with multiple non‐profit and private organizations to address 
a host of housing and non‐housing community development needs and issues.  The City, at this point, is planning 
to continue to fund agencies, as is practicable.  Further, the City has discussed continuing the conversation 
between local government and the agencies, organizations, and entities that participated in the public input 
process within this plan. 
 
 

79

Item 5.



13 
 

SP‐45 Goals 91.215(a)(4) 

Goals Summary Information  
 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name  Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category  Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed  Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome 
Indicator 

1  Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing: 
Owner Occupied Units 

2019  2023  Affordable 
Housing 

Citywide  Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing 

CDBG: 
$172,500 

 

Homeowner Housing 
Rehabilitated or 
Repaired: 
11 Household Housing 
Units 

2  Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing: 
Renter Occupied Units 

2019  2023  Affordable 
Housing 

Citywide  Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing 

CDBG: 
$201,820  

Rental Housing 
Rehabilitated or 
Repaired: 
6 Household Housing 
Units 

3  Preserve Existing 
Affordable Housing 
through Code 
Enforcement 

2019  2023  Affordable 
Housing 

Citywide and 
LMI Area 
Benefit 

Maintain Existing 
Affordable Housing and 
Promote Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG: 
$51,750 

 

Apply Code 
requirements to 
residential units in LMI 
Areas: 
375 Households 
Assisted 

4  Prevent Homelessness 
Through Agency and 
Organization Support 

2019  2023  Affordable 
Housing 

Citywide  Prevent Homelessness and 
Offer Family and Children’s 
Services 

CDBG: 
$189,800 

 

Assist 7,500 
Households; 
Low/Moderate Income 
Clientele Benefit 

5  Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote Infrastructure 
Development 

CDBG: 
$414,480  

Assist 200 households 
in LMI Areas 

6  Provide Access to 
Transportation 
Services  

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide and 
LMI Area 
Benefit 

Prevent Homelessness and 
Offer Family and Children’s 
Services Support Economic 
Development 

CDBG: 
$52,420  

Assist 1,000 
households or offer 
transit service 
extensions to LMI 
Areas 

7  Neighborhood 
Accessibility 
Improvements 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote Infrastructure 
Development and Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG: 
$133,499  

Assist 35 Households in 
LMI Areas 

80

Item 5.



14 
 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name  Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category  Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed  Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome 
Indicator 

8  Neighborhood 
Recreational 
Amenities 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote Neighborhood 
Development and 
Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

CDBG: 
$158,120  

Assist 150 Households 
in LMI Areas 

9  Demolition and 
Clearance 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Demolition and Clearance  CDBG: 
$10,000 

 

Buildings Demolished: 
2 Buildings 

10  CDBG Planning and 
Administration 

2019  2023  Non‐Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide and 
LMI Area 
Benefit 

Provide Effective Planning 
and Administration 

CDBG: 
$253,075  

Not Applicable 

Table 18 – Goals Summary 

81

Item 5.



15 
 

Goal Descriptions 
 

1  Goal Name  Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Continue to provide housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility and structural 
hazard removal grants to eligible low‐and‐moderate income households in order to 
preserve owner‐occupied single‐family housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1 
 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons 

2  Goal Name  Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Create housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility, parking, and structural hazard 
removal grants to eligible low‐and‐moderate income households in order to preserve 
renter‐occupied housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1  
 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons 

3  Goal Name  Preserve Existing Affordable Housing through Code Enforcement 

Goal 
Description 

Working with the Elected Officials, Housing Commission, and Staff, continue to equitably 
enforce municipal code provisions that affect the safety of housing conditions, including 
property and rental inspections, municipal infractions, and building and structural codes 
(i.e. fire, mechanical, plumbing, electrical codes).  Associated expenses in low‐and‐
moderate income areas would benefit from implementing this goal. 

Plan 
Reference 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1  
 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objectives 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons 

4  Goal Name  Prevent Homelessness Through Support of Agencies and Organizations 

Goal 
Description 

Continue supporting agencies providing homeless services, including sheltering, in the 
community as well as providing financial counseling, nutritional, substance abuse, family 
services, and healthcare. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 3  
 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons; Limited Income Clientele 

5  Goal Name  Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

This goal provides for funding of infrastructure projects including street, water, sanitary 
sewer, stormwater management, drainage, parking, and other projects in specific 
neighborhoods qualifying as low‐and‐moderate income areas.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2 
 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons 

6  Goal Name  Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Goal 
Description 

Program provides funding for transportation to income‐eligible households, or areas, that 
are dependent upon these services in order to maintain employment. 

82

Item 5.



16 
 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 4 
 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector 
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons 

7  Goal Name  Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

Improved sidewalks, steps, walls, curb‐cuts, and trails that address accessibility barriers to 
residents in LMI areas, as identified by the Census Bureau. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4 
 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector 
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons 

8  Goal Name  Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Goal 
Description 

Provide funds for increasing access to healthy lifestyles and educational advancement 
related to parks, recreation, trees, and active living assets in LMI areas of the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4 
 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions and Private 
Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons 

9  Goal Name  Conduct Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Goal 
Description 

The primary purpose of this project is the demolition and clearance of dilapidated 
structures, thus eliminating specific conditions of blight or physical decay on a local 
basis.  Individual demolition/clearance activities will be subject to CDBG eligibility 
verification.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2 
 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons 

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

10  Goal Name  CDBG Planning and Administration 

Goal 
Description 

Provide CDBG Administrative Services, by city staff or contractors assisting city staff. The 
program provides effective planning and administration for CDBG programs that benefit 
low‐and‐moderate income areas and households in the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1, 2, 3, and 4 
 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector 
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low‐and‐moderate income (LMI) persons 

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

Table 19 – Goal Descriptions 
 
 

SP‐45: Estimate the number of extremely low‐income, low‐income, and moderate‐income families to whom the 
jurisdiction will provide affordable housing as defined by HOME 91.315(b)(2) 
 
HOME 91.315(b)(2) refers to the State’s goals, as opposed to the City of Cedar Falls’ goals. 
   

83

Item 5.



17 
 

SP‐50: Public Housing Accessibility and Involvement 91.215(c) 

The City of Cedar Falls does not own or manage public housing facilities, nor are there any located in the 
community, and therefore, this Consolidated Planning process did not include evaluation of the needs of public 
housing, attempt to increase engagement of public housing residents in the process, or address any “troubled” 
public housing agencies. 
 
Encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and participation in 

homeownership 

Because there is no public housing, further involvement of residents was not part of this planning process. 

Is Public Housing considered troubled in the jurisdiction 

Again, because there is no public housing, there are no units or facilities considered “troubled” in the community 

SP‐55: Barriers to Affordable Housing 91.215(h) 

Currently, the need for quality, affordable housing is outpacing the existence of such units in Cedar Falls.  Between 
demand on the units by full‐time residents, and that which comes with being a university community and its 
student housing needs, the City has demand for affordable housing. 
 
Two public policy issues were raised during the planning process, parking paving requirements for rental 
properties and the inability of the current zoning ordinance to effectively address growth that includes mixing of 
uses, increased development densities, and market pressures in fast‐growing areas of the community (i.e. Main 
Street). Regarding the paving requirement, since adoption of the ordinance in February 2015, the City has 
reviewed the requirement three separate times.  The cost impact of this policy has been part of that discussion, 
particularly a concern about hard‐surfacing gravel driveways of existing single‐unit rental homes, whereas, the 
drive of an existing single‐unit owner‐occupied unit may remain gravel.  CDBG funds could be used to assist 
qualifying properties comply with the requirement.   Also, recently, the City announced it was planning to update 
its existing zoning ordinance, with the idea that it may choose to include both form‐based and conventional zoning 
provisions for specific parts of the community.  This may promote more dense development, which could help to 
preserve affordability, that is design‐based, as opposed to being impacted exclusively by conventional zoning 
requirements, which focus on use and bulk requirements (i.e. height, setbacks, yard area).   
 
With that said, there are several different kinds of barriers to the development or creation of affordable housing in 
Cedar Falls, some of which are outside of the City’s ability to control.  First, the housing market, for low‐income 
residents in Cedar Falls, is relatively expensive, with home valuation and rent costs being relatively high.  Second, 
housing demand in the community has driven‐up construction costs for both single‐family and multiple‐family 
developments.  For example, significant demand for rental properties, some of which is attributed to the 
University of Northern Iowa student population, has increased prices dramatically, to the point of making units 
unaffordable for low‐and‐moderate income households.  Third, market demand has driven the price of land 
upward in the community, not to mention the high costs associated with “greenfield” residential development 
(that which occurs on previously undeveloped land), most notably infrastructure costs.   Finally, declining or static 
local and federal resources, which could be allocated toward affordable housing projects, coupled with ever‐
increasing program requirements, have also been a key impediment to addressing low‐and‐moderate income 
housing needs. 

By looking at the two issues cited above, the City of Cedar Falls is taking action to ameliorate negative effects of 
public policy during this process.  Also, the City may wish to explore public‐private‐nonprofit partnerships in the 
development of affordable housing.  Nonprofit developers can build mixed income housing and attract additional 
resources/financing that private developers cannot, when it comes to creating new affordable housing.  Said 

84

Item 5.



18 
 

housing may be marketed at workforce housing as opposed to being labeled affordable.  Nevertheless, the City 
does recognize the effect that their housing market is having on the price of housing, which may affect whether or 
not people can afford to live in the community.  Further, the City’s Comprehensive Plan identifies future use 
including areas that may be developed at higher densities, which may help address the availability of affordable 
housing.  Specifically, the plan identifies the following areas that may be suitable for higher density development: 
along University Avenue, west of Hudson Road; immediately east of the University of Northern Iowa; and 
intermixed with uses in the Main Street area, between 1st Street and 7th Street.  The codes, specifically zoning, 
building, and other regulatory ordinances that the City has adopted are designed and drafted to treat properties 
and people uniformly and fairly.  Further, fees are either “flat” or based upon the value of the improvements made 
to properties in an attempt to create fairness.  Finally, property tax assessment is based upon valuation, as 
determined by the County Assessor.  Regarding the levy rate for determining actual property tax amounts, they are 
set by the City Council as part of their annual budgeting process.  Said levy rates are set by classification (property 
use), the percentage of which that is actually collected by the City is determined by the State of Iowa.  Currently, 
residentially‐classified property is rolled‐back by the state such that local governments may only tax at a rate of 
approximately 55 percent of a property’s market or 100 percent value. In addition, in 2015, the State adopted a 
rollback for multi‐residential properties that was to be implemented over several years.  The tax rate began at 
86.25 percent of a property’s market value, and over eight years, it will incrementally reduce in percentage until it 
is the same rollback as that of residentially‐classified properties (i.e. in the 50‐60 percent range).  This, then, 
reduces property tax income for the City. 

With that said, the City recognizes the higher cost of housing in their community, which may be attributed to 
market demand, land value, and development cost (primarily infrastructure).  Obviously, then, this higher cost may 
not allow for persons with limited means to reside in the community.  As a result, the City’s participation in the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Program becomes that much more important.  The 
CDBG Entitlement has offered not only physical housing assistance in the way of rehabilitation and repair 
programs, the City offers assistance to residents for the services, the cost of which were borne by the Program, 
thus not requiring persons to have to make difficult decisions between paying for housing‐related expenses and 
the other services they may need.  It also allows for infrastructure investments, avoiding increases in other rates, 
taxes, or assessments for property owners because CDBG funds are used. 

Strategy to remove or ameliorate negative effects of public policies that serve as barriers to affordable housing, 

as identified in the Needs Assessment strategy 

The City has reviewed the previously‐discussed parking regulation several times since adoption.  Knowing that 
hard‐surfacing is an economic impact, the rental ordinance phased it in over six years.  All hard‐surfacing in rental 
unit driveways and parking areas will be completed by 2021.  In addition, it appears likely the City’s current zoning 
ordinance may undergo significant changes that may better serve affordable housing.  Further, the City will 
continue to study its Housing Choice Voucher program and effectiveness of how to best manage the program for 
participants.  Finally, the City will work with developers to identify possible areas or projects that could include 
affordable housing units, as part of developing a Housing Needs Assessment for the community. 
 
SP‐60: Homelessness Strategy 91.215(d) 
 
Homelessness is monitored as part of the Continuum of Care (CoC) model, as implemented through the Black 
Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating Board, which is comprised of public and private sector representatives, 
including local governments and non‐profit organizations, schools, faith‐based organizations, and service and 
advocacy agencies.  Several CoC providers took part in the focus group sessions described in this plan. 
 
With that said, the City of Cedar Falls also allocates the maximum allowable CDBG dollars for distribution to several 
agencies, as has been noted.  As part of those allocations, the City conducts a formal Request for Proposals (RFP) 
process, whereby prospective agencies outline the services they are able to offer to the City.  Homelessness, 
prevention and avoidance of homelessness, is the overarching reason for providing CDBG funds to the selected 

85

Item 5.



19 
 

agencies.  After award, but during the award year, the City then visits each agency to perform a monitoring of the 
services being offered to Cedar Falls residents.  These monitoring visits are quite helpful for the City, insomuch, as 
they provide an opportunity for staff to become aware of the service details, needs, and impacts.  Finally, the 
awarded agencies from the prior year are given an opportunity to attend the City’s Housing Commission Meetings 
to discuss their program; offer insight regarding the needs, particularly those that are unmet, of Cedar Falls 
residents; and assuring the City that the CDBG funds are having a positive impact on its residents. 
 
The City addresses homelessness and special needs in the following ways.  First, the City has been funding an 
agency, the Salvation Army, for part of their operational expenses related to operating two homeless shelters.  
Second, the City funds two agencies such that they may offer specific training and education that may affect a 
household’s housing situation, by hopefully offering resources regarding financial management, abuse, and family 
relationships.  Examples include Consumer Credit Counseling and Family and Children’s Council. Third, the City 
offered CDBG funding for at‐home healthcare, outpatient mental health services, and substance abuse counseling 
through two agencies, the Visiting Nurses Association and Pathways Behavioral, Incorporated.  Finally, the City, 
using its CDBG funds, hopes to address hunger and nutritional needs by funding the Northeast Iowa Food Bank and 
Food Pantry.  As was expected, resident needs outpaced the amount of funding the City was able to offer the 
agencies through the CDBG program alone.  Nevertheless, the City intends to continue funding agencies that offer 
ancillary services to its residents with the goal of preventing or minimizing homelessness. 
 
Strategy for reducing and ending homelessness through reaching‐out to homeless persons, particularly those 
unsheltered persons) and assessing their individual need 
 
Needs of the homeless are identified through the Black Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating Board.  This 
advocacy group shares information regarding homeless needs and services.  The Board serves as a large 
partnership for service providers, policy makers, and administrators for addressing housing and homeless services 
in the area.  In addition, the Salvation Army and Northeast Iowa Food Bank have provided services directly to 
persons that may be homeless or in danger of becoming homeless, on behalf of the City.  Finally, the City of Cedar 
Falls is always open to developing new partnerships and strategies designed to address homelessness.    
 
Strategy for reducing and ending homelessness through emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of 
homeless persons 
 
The City of Cedar Falls uses CDBG funds to address homelessness through funding of agency shelters, most 
recently the Salvation Army Women's and Children’s Shelter, as well as five other agencies that indirectly affect 
homelessness. The Shelter used the funds provided during this past year to finance rehabilitation work to the 
shelter itself. The shelter also provides services to assist the women in finding employment and permanent 
housing, as well as offers emergency assistance to those persons affected by disasters. 
 
Strategy for reducing and ending homelessness through helping homeless persons that could make the 
transition to permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the length of time homelessness 
is experienced; homeless relapse prevention 
 
The City will work with an agency that will offer shelter for persons in need, most notably those persons that may 
be homeless.  For example, the Salvation Army Shelter provides case management and supportive services to 
assist homeless persons make the transition to permanent, stable housing.  As previously noted, the City of Cedar 
Falls has a sub‐recipient agreement with Consumer Credit Counseling Services to provide budget and credit 
counseling, foreclosure prevention counseling, and home ownership counseling to low‐and‐moderate income 
Cedar Falls residents in order to prevent homelessness, as well. 
  
Strategy for reducing and ending homelessness after being discharged from publicly funded institutions and 
systems of care; addressing housing, health, social services, employment, education, or youth needs. 
In order to prevent homelessness, the City will participate in the Black Hawk County Local Homeless Coordinating 
Board, as well as address other systems of care.  Again, the City of Cedar Falls has provided awards to six agencies 

86

Item 5.



20 
 

that offer services to residents.  By doing so, the cost of these services is paid by the City, as opposed to residents, 
which in turn, helps stretch the budgets of served persons and prevent or minimize the threat of becoming 
homeless.  Furthermore, these paid services assist those households that may spend 50 percent or more of their 
budget on housing expenses, which may threaten housing status or the immediate and/or basic needs of the 
assisted household.  As an aside, any agencies funded will be classified as serving LMI Limited Clientele 
populations. 
 
CDBG funds are used to fund home healthcare to low income elderly and disabled residents. These services allow 
medically needy residents to remain in their homes even when assisted living in required. Funds are also provided 
for providing counseling services to families and youth. Also, on provider has a Parent Connection Program that 
provides parent education, social support and access to community resources through trained staff that meet 
weekly for a minimum of ninety minutes.  In addition, substance abuse treatment is offered, through a contracting 
agency, by the City for persons in need, and the regional food bank provides foodstuff for households in need of 
nutrition.  Finally, as indicated above, the City intends to consider funding financial literacy and household 
budgeting courses and assistance, as well as financial management services, to residents. 
 
SP‐65: Lead‐Based Paint Hazards 91.215(i) 
 
Actions to address lead‐based paint hazards and increased access to housing without lead‐based hazards 
 
The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments directly, or through its subcontractor, provides lead risk 
assessment and completes lead‐ based paint clearance testing on the housing rehabilitation projects in Cedar Falls.  
If abatement work is completed, the entire property/project is cleaned. At least one hour after the final cleaning a 
certified inspector does a visual examination to ensure there are no paint chips, dust, debris, or bare soil. The 
inspector then takes a dust sample from the window troughs, windowsills, and floors. The sampling is then tested 
in accordance with the HUD guidelines. In addition, per unit rehab budgets also include funds for relocation of 
families impacted by lead, as well as for addressing lead hazards such that units can be considered safe. 
 
Actions to address how lead‐based hazard are related to the extent of lead poisoning and hazards 
 
The City will continue to include lead‐based hazard prevention measures in its program, including identification, 
testing, relocation, and remediation actions.  Applicants, as a means of education, are also provided the lead paint 
brochure "Protect Your Family from Lead Paint in Your Home".  This brochure explains the dangers of lead in the 
home.  Households receiving assistance through the Housing Choice Voucher program are also advised of lead 
hazards and units built prior to 1978 are assessed for lead hazards. 
 
How will the plan for reduction of lead‐based hazards be integrated into housing policies and programs? 
 
As noted above, lead‐based hazard reduction measures are included in all housing rehabilitation projects, the 
Housing Choice Voucher program, specifically in actions and budgets.  These efforts will continue during the 
lifespan of this plan.   
 
SP‐70: Anti‐Poverty Strategy 91.215(j) 
 
Goals, program and policies for reducing the number of poverty‐level families 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is interested in retaining as well as improving the abilities of its workforce, which includes 
encouraging job skill development, job training, education, and other program opportunities that may arise, as a 
means of supporting self‐sufficiency and reducing poverty.  This includes working with its local businesses and 
industries and economic development professionals to do so.  In addition, the City will work with local service 
providers to pursue resources and innovative partnerships to support the development of affordable housing; 
prevent homelessness, abuse, and substance abuse; offer housing education and literacy; and provide emergency 

87

Item 5.



21 
 

food and shelter. 
 
Goals, program and policies for producing and preserving affordable housing will be coordinated with other 
programs designed to serve persons at the poverty level 
 
The City staff, and/or their contractor(s), will be tasked to coordinate the services provided under the CDBG 
Entitlement, HOME, and Housing Choice Vouchers Programs with other programs designed to serve persons at the 
poverty level.  Specifically, the City is hoping to develop a forum that would include the public sector and the 
agencies offering services to the community, which would be designed as a continuation of the discussions that 
occurred during the focus group meetings that were part of this planning effort. 
 
Community outreach is key in enhancing coordination between public and private housing and social service 
agencies. INRCOG staff, which helps the City manage the CDBG Entitlement Program, attends Community Resource 
Fairs, and workshops with a number of local public service agencies and non‐profit organizations. The meetings 
offer opportunities to foster relationships as well as identify the services each organization and/or agency is 
providing. By educating participating organizations on services available in the community, we are better 
positioned to meet the needs of the low‐moderate‐income individuals and households in the city. 
 
SP‐80: Monitoring 91.230 
 
Describe the standards and procedures that will be used to monitor activities carried out in furtherance of the 
plan and ensure long‐term compliance with requirements of the programs involved, including comprehensive 
planning requirements 
 
The City of Cedar Falls uses numerous methods of ensuring the projects funded under the CDBG Entitlement 
program comply with federal standards and requirements, including the National Objectives for the CDBG 
Program.  Further, said monitoring will utilize this plan and the Analysis of Fair Housing as the foundations and 
impetus for actions taken and implemented using CDBG funding in the community.  In short, expenditure of funds 
will be consistent with the goals outlined in both planning documents. 
 
All direct housing rehabilitation and repair projects will be conducted according to prescribed requirements, 
including written applications, income verifications, procurement, contracting, inspections, and closeout 
procedures.  Only low‐to‐moderate income households will be assisted.  
 
Any agencies receiving funding will be required to compete for funds, develop eligible proposals, provide quarterly 
reports, and be monitored for compliance and effectiveness.  The City of Cedar Falls intends to continue working 
with public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to ensure it is reaching the goal of assisting residents with 
the greatest need. In addition, we will work with code enforcement and other departments to identify potential at‐
risk residents. Declining resources have been a key impediment to addressing needs. By networking with other 
agencies, we can combine multiple funding sources to provide more services to low‐and‐moderate income 
residents.  Low‐and‐moderate income limited clientele services will be assisted, as is allowed. 
 
City‐directed projects will be implemented according to CDBG eligibility, monitoring, and reporting requirements.  
This will include all neighborhood projects, the scope of which shall be limited to low‐and‐moderate income areas, 
as defined by the US Census Bureau. 
 
Finally, the Housing Commission and City Council will review and approve this Consolidated Plan, each Annual 
Action Plan adopted under this Consolidated Plan, as well as each Consolidated Annual Performance and 
Evaluation Report (CAPER), which summarizes the accomplishments and efforts made under the CDBG Entitlement 
Program, all after conducting the required, appropriate public input processes outlined in the City’s Public 
Participation Plan. 
 
All CDBG funds expended will be subject to the US Department of Housing and Urban Development and the City’s 

88

Item 5.



22 
 

auditing and monitoring processes.  In addition, planning and administrative work performed by INRCOG are 
subject to its independent auditing and records inspections processes as well.   
 
 

89

Item 5.



K:\Projects\Citywide\Roads11x17.mxd

ICity of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Date

3/19/2019

© City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the
information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This
information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All
warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed.

Low-Moderate Income Areas 2011-15

90

Item 5.



  1 

 

 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
CDBG ENTITLEMENT PROGRAM 
FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR  2019 (CITY FISCAL YEAR 2020) ANNUAL ACTION PLAN-AMENDMENT #2 
CORONAVIRUS AID, RELIEF, AND ECONOMIC SECURITY ACT FORMULA FUNDING (CV-3) 
 
 
 
COMMENT PERIOD PUBLICATION (5-day public comment period, per Citizen Participation Plan): 
COMMENT PERIOD: November 9th, 2020 through November 16th, 2020 
Publication Date: November 4th, 2020 (Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier) 
 
 
HOUSING COMMISSION (PUBLIC) MEETING ON: 
November 10th, 2020  
Publication Date: November 6th, 2020 (Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier) 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL (PUBLIC) MEETINGS ON: 
November 2nd, 2020 (Council sets public hearing November 16th, 2020) 
Public Hearing Publication Date: November 6th, 2020 (Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier) 
November 15th, 2020 (Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier Article regarding potential award of funds) 
November 16th, 2020 (Adoption) (After a properly noticed public hearing was conducted) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

91

Item 5.



  2 

 

AP-15 Expected Resources - 91.420(b), 91.220(c)(1,2) 
 
Introduction 
 
The City of Cedar Falls anticipates receiving an allocation of $253,085 in Community Development Block Grant funding and approximately $1.3M in Housing 
Choice Voucher funding for Federal Fiscal Year 2019.  There are no match requirements for either CDBG under the Entitlement Program or HCV funding. 
 
Anticipated Resources 

Program Source of 
Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected Amount 
Available 

Remainder of Con 
Plan $ 

Narrative 
Description Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CDBG (CV-1) 
 

CDBG (CV-3) 

Public/Federal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public/Federal 
 

Public/Federal 

Housing Rehab and Repair, 
Agency Assistance, 

Infrastructure Development, 
Community and Economic 

Development Efforts, Public 
Service Improvements, 
Demolition/Clearance, 
Neighborhood Access, 

Neighborhood Improvements, 
Acquisition, Planning and 

Administration 
 

Housing Rehab and Repair, 
Agency Assistance, Planning 

and Administration 
 

Agency Assistance, Planning 
and Administration 

$253,085  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$160,662 
 
 

$157,775 

$0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0 
 
 

$0 

$372,039 
(Estimated) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0 
 
 

$0 

$625,124 
(Estimated) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$160,662 
 
 

$157,775 

$1,012,340 
(Estimated) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0 
 
 

$0 

 

HCV Public/Federal Rent Assistance $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$0 $0 $1,300,000 
(Estimated) 

$5,200,000 
(Estimated) 

 

Table 1 – Goals Summary 
 
Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how matching requirements 

92

Item 5.



  3 

 

will be satisfied 
 
CDBG funds will be used to provide rehabilitation and repair grants for single family homeowners.  Also, CDBG funds, awarded to agencies, will be used in 
conjunction with other agency funding sources in order to provide services to Cedar Falls households.  Finally, the City will support Code Enforcement, 
Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements, Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements, and Neighborhood Recreational Improvements, and transportation 
services or amenities in low-to-moderate income areas of the community. 
 
If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs identified in the plan 
 
Goals, and the activities under each goal, that are categorized as Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements (i.e. sanitary sewer, water, drainage), 
Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements (i.e. sidewalks, trails, curb cuts), and Neighborhood Recreational Improvements (i.e. parks, playgrounds) will likely 
occur on publicly-owned land.  Specifically, the publicly-owned rights-of-way and parks will be used to address the needs identified in this plan. 

93

Item 5.



  4 

 

Annual Goals and Objectives 
 
AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives - 91.220(c)(3)&(e) 
 
Goals Summary Information  
 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Maintain 
Affordable 
Housing: Owner 
Occupied Units 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide Maintain 
Existing 
Affordable 
Housing 

CDBG:  
$116,500 

 

Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated or Repaired: 
6 Household Housing Units 

2 Maintain 
Affordable 
Housing: Renter 
Occupied Units 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide Maintain 
Existing 
Affordable 
Housing 

CDBG: 
$101,320  

Rental Housing Rehabilitated or Repaired: 
3 Household Housing Units 

3 Preserve Existing 
Affordable 
Housing through 
Code 
Enforcement 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide Maintain 
Existing 
Affordable 
Housing and 
Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG: 
$10,000 

 

Apply Code requirements to residential units in 
LMI Areas: 
75 Households Assisted 

4 Prevent 
Homelessness 
Through Agency 
and 
Organization 
Support 

2019 2023 Affordable 
Housing 

 Citywide Prevent 
Homelessness 
and Offer Family 
and Children’s 
Services 

CDBG:  
$205,092 

Public Service Activities Other than LMI Housing 
Benefit: 6,030 persons assisted 
Homeless person overnight shelter: 40 persons 
assisted 

5 Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide 
and LMI 
Area Benefit 

Promote 
Infrastructure 
Development 

CDBG: 
$251,820  

Public Facility or Infrastructure Activity, other 
than LMI Housing Benefit: 375 persons assisted 

94

Item 5.



  5 

 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding 
Estimate 

Goal Outcome Indicator 

6 Provide Access 
to 
Transportation 
Services  

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide 
and LMI 
Area Benefit 

Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development; 
Support 
Economic 
Development; 
Business 
Development 

CDBG: $0  Public Service Activities Other than LMI Housing 
Benefit: 0 persons assisted 

7 Neighborhood 
Accessibility 
Improvements 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote 
Infrastructure 
Development 
and Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 

CDBG: 
$106,909  

Public Facility or Infrastructure Activity, other 
than LMI Housing Benefit: 80 persons assisted 

8 Neighborhood 
Recreational 
Amenities 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Promote 
Neighborhood 
Development 
and 
Neighborhood 
Infrastructure 
Improvements 

CDBG: 
$50,000  

Public Facility or Infrastructure Activity, other 
than LMI Housing Benefit: 135 persons assisted 

9 Demolition and 
Clearance 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

LMI Area 
Benefit 

Demolition and 
Clearance 

CDBG: $0 
 

Buildings Demolished: 
0 Buildings 

10 CDBG Planning 
and 
Administration 

2019 2023 Non-Housing 
Community 
Development 

Citywide 
and LMI 
Area Benefit 

Provide Effective 
Planning and 
Administration 

CDBG:  
$101,920  

Not Applicable 

Table 2 – Goals Summary 
 
 
 

95

Item 5.



  6 

 

AP-35 Projects - 91.220(d) 
 
Introduction  
 
The projects chosen for funding allocation all serve a purpose in efforts to prevent homelessness, preserve the 
current housing stock of affordable homes in the area and provide services that are essential to keeping residents 
in their homes. These programs were designated to improve the housing stock, prevent homelessness and 
improve areas that meet the national objective in the community. Funds will be utilized in an efficient manner and 
serve those with the greatest need. 
 

# Project Name 

1 Single-Family Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation 

2 Rental Housing Rehabilitation 

3 Code Enforcement 

4 Agency and Organization Support 

5 Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

6 Provide Access to Transportation Service 

7 Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

8 Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

9 Demolition and Clearance 

10 CDBG Planning and Administration 

Table 3 – Project Information 
 
Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved needs 
 
 
In order to serve Cedar Falls residents, funding will be allocated toward making housing more affordable, 
preserving existing affordable housing stock, increasing affordable housing, supporting low-to-moderate income 
neighborhood investment, and assisting citizens with accessing services.  Funding will be focused on meeting two 
National CDBG Objectives, assisting low-to-moderate income persons and eliminating slum and blight in the 
community. 
 
The primary barrier for assisted households is, and has been, the price of housing.  Further, the resources available 
for the program outlined in this plan have been static, or even declining in some years.  Conversely, the regulations 
and requirements associated with funded projects have increased along with administrative expenditures 
 
 

96

Item 5.



  7 

 

Project Summary Information 
 

1 Project Name Single-Family Owner-Occupied Home Rehabilitation 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls (Citywide) 

Goals Supported Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied Units 

Needs Addressed Maintain Affordable Housing 

Funding Target CDBG: $116,500 (Estimated) 

Description Rehabilitation of Owner Occupied Units; LMI Households 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Approximately 6 households will benefit from the CBBG Rehabilitation 
Program 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Eligible activities expected to be conducted include (but not limited to) 
repair or replacement of the mechanical systems, roofs, doors, foundations, 
structural repair, wall and attic insulation, interior wall panels, windows and 
siding. 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

2 Project Name Rental Housing Rehabilitation 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls (Citywide) 

Goals Supported Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied Units 

Needs Addressed Maintain Affordable Housing; Ensure Fair Housing for Residents 

Funding Target $101,320 (Estimated) 

Description Repair of Renter Occupied Units; LMI Households 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Approximately 3 households will benefit from this limited CDBG 
Rehabilitation Program 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Eligible activities expected to be conducted include (but not limited to) 
repair or replacement of the mechanical systems, roofs, doors, foundations, 
structural repair, wall and attic insulation, interior wall panels, windows and 
siding. 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

3 Project Name Code Enforcement 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls; LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Preserve Affordable Housing Through Code Enforcement 

Needs Addressed Maintain Existing Affordable Housing 

Funding Target CDBG: $10,000 (Estimated) 

Description Funds will be used to pay for code enforcement services provided to LMI 
areas. 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 75 households in Cedar Falls. 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities City staff inspection services for persons in LMI Areas in the community 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

97

Item 5.



  8 

 

4 Project Name Agency and Organization Support 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls; LMI Limited Clientele 

Goals Supported Prevent Homelessness Through Support of Agencies and Organizations 

Needs Addressed Support for Services for Homeless, Near-Homeless, Special Needs; Provide 
Family and Children’s Services 

Funding Target CDBG: $205,092 (Estimated) 

Description Funds will be used to pay for financial education, nutrition, homelessness 
and sheltering, healthcare, family and children’s, and substance abuse 
services for Cedar Falls residents who are seeking assistance that prevent 
homelessness. 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 6,030 persons in the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Offer eligible services, through contracting agencies and organizations, 
which could prevent homelessness in the community 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons; Limited Clientele 

5 Project Name Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Needs Addressed Promote Infrastructure Development 

Funding Target CDBG: $251,820 (Estimated) 

Description Funds will be used to improve infrastructure, specifically sanitary sewer 
service, to LMI areas.  Street, water, stormwater management, and drainage 
improvements may also be funded. 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 375 persons in the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description LMI Areas 

Planned Activities Line sanitary sewer lines to residential units located in LMI areas in the 
community 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

6 Project Name Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls (Citywide); LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Needs Addressed Support Economic Development, Business Opportunities, and Commercial 
Building Redevelopment; Promote Neighborhood Development 

Funding Target CDBG: $0 (Estimated) 

Description Provide access to transit services for LMI households in the community 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 0 people in the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Offer transit passes to LMI households or extend transit service routes 
and/or hours of service to LMI areas 

98

Item 5.



  9 

 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

7 Project Name Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Needs Addressed Promote Neighborhood Development 

Funding Target CDBG: $106,909 (Estimated) 

Description Infill sidewalk and trail gaps in LMI areas in the community 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 80 persons in the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description LMI Areas 

Planned Activities This will be accomplished by infilling pedestrian improvements that will 
connect LMI households to service agencies, organizations, educational, 
recreational facilities, and employment opportunities and centers.  Projects 
will be completed in residential neighborhoods using sidewalk, curb 
cuts/ADA ramps, and trails in LMI areas.   

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

8 Project Name Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Needs Addressed Promote Neighborhood Development 

Funding Target CDBG: $50,000 (Estimated) 

Description Install park and recreational improvements, trees, and aesthetic amenities 
located in parks or other public property in LMI areas of the community 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

This activity will benefit approximately 500 persons in the Cedar Falls area. 

Location Description LMI Areas 

Planned Activities Install or replace playground equipment, trees, and recreational amenities in 
local city parks or other public properties serving LMI areas and households 

CDBG National Objective Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

9 Project Name Demolition and Clearance 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls LMI Areas 

Goals Supported Demolition and Clearance 

Needs Addressed Conduct Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Funding Target CDBG: $0 (Estimated) 

Description The funds will be used to prevent slum and blight throughout the Cedar Falls 
City limits by demolishing and clearing dilapidated buildings and structures 
in the community 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Demolition of approximately 0 dilapidated units in the City 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 
 

99

Item 5.



  10 

 

Planned Activities Demolish approximately 0 dilapidated units within the City 
 

CDBG National Objectives Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas; 
Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

10 Project Name CDBG Planning and Administration 

Target Area City of Cedar Falls (Citywide) 

Goals Supported All of the AAP goals are supported by this function or activity 

Needs Addressed Provide Effective Planning and Administration 

Funding Target CDBG: $101,920 (Estimated) 

Description General management, oversight and coordination of the CDBG Program, 
policy planning, environmental reviews, report preparation, and 
administration will be financed using CDBG funds 

Target Date 6/30/2020 

Estimate the number and 
type of families that will 
benefit from the proposed 
activities 

Not Applicable 

Location Description City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (Administered) 

Planned Activities Administrative and planning activities, associated with the CDBG program 

CDBG National Objectives Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas; 
Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

Table 4 – Project Summary 

100

Item 5.



  11 

 

AP-50 Geographic Distribution - 91.220(f) 
 
Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and minority 
concentration) where assistance will be directed  
 
Our programs will serve Low-Moderate Income (LMI) households, LMI Limited Clientele agencies or organizations, 
or serve LMI areas, as defined by the Census Bureau and HUD.  CDBG funding is used throughout the City of Cedar 
Falls as well as for purchasing services from a limited number of agencies that may not be located in Cedar Falls, 
but which will provide services to Cedar Falls residents. 
 
Geographic Distribution 
 

Target Area Percentage of Funds 

City of Cedar Falls and/or its Residents 100% 

Table 5 – Geographic Distribution  
 
Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically  
 
As noted above, the City will only assist individual LMI households under activities 1, 2, and 6, and it plans to fund 
agencies serving LMI households or offering LMI Limited Clientele, as is allowed annually under activity 4.  Also, it 
plans to use funds to benefit LMI areas within the community for activities 3, 5, 7, 8, and 9 shown above.  To that 
end, there are currently 7 census tracts with 8 block groups that have an LMI percentage of 51 percent or greater 
(ACS 2011-2015). Specifically, Census tract 2200 block group 2 and 3; tract 2301 block group 3; tract 2303 block 
group 1; tract 2304 block group 2; tract 2500 block group 3; tract 2603 block group 4; and tract 2604 block group 5.  
These areas may receive funding assistance for improving infrastructure, transportation connectivity, and park and 
recreational amenities and services. 
 
Discussion 
 
The qualifying block groups are scattered throughout the community, and the City does intend to use CDBG 
funding to support LMI-specific areas. Most of the agency or family support programs funded through CDBG and 
these programs are based on an individual household LMI determination or on a Limited Clientele basis.  
Rehabilitation programs, and those benefitting a specific household, will require participants to meet LMI income 
guidelines. 
 
The City was unable to amend the table in this section.  With that said, for the life of this Annual Action Plan, the 
City has projected that it will expend 19 percent of its budget on specific low-and-moderate income households 
under its homeowner and rental rehabilitation programs citywide, while planning to expend 67 percent of its 
overall budget for LMI area benefit projects.  Public service support citywide is projected to be six percent and 
planning and administration eight percent.  

101

Item 5.



  12 

 

AP-55 Affordable Housing Goals – 91.220(g) 
 
Goals: The following goals were established in this Action Plan for CDBG Use in the City. 
 

1 Goal Name Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Continue to provide housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility and structural 
hazard removal grants to eligible low-and-moderate income households in order to 
preserve owner-occupied single-family housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

2 Goal Name Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied Units 

Goal 
Description 

Create housing grants for rehabilitation, repair, accessibility, and structural hazard removal 
grants to eligible low-and-moderate income households in order to preserve renter-
occupied housing stock.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1  

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons 

3 Goal Name Preserve Existing Affordable Housing through Code Enforcement 

Goal 
Description 

Working with the Elected Officials, Housing Commission, and Staff, continue to equitably 
enforce municipal code provisions that affect the safety of housing conditions, including 
property and rental inspections, municipal infractions, and building and structural codes 
(i.e. fire, mechanical, plumbing, electrical codes).  Associated expenses in low-and-
moderate income areas would benefit from implementing this goal. 

Plan 
Reference 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 1  

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objectives 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

4 Goal Name Prevent Homelessness Through Support of Agencies and Organizations 

Goal 
Description 

Continue supporting agencies providing homeless services, including sheltering, in the 
community, as well as providing financial counseling, nutritional, substance abuse, family 
services, rent assistance, mortgage assistance, and healthcare. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 3  

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons; Limited Income Clientele 

5 Goal Name Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

This goal provides for funding of infrastructure projects including street, water, sanitary 
sewer, stormwater management, and other projects in specific neighborhoods qualifying 
as low-and-moderate income areas.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

6 Goal Name Provide Access to Transportation Services 

Goal 
Description 

Program provides funding for transportation to income-eligible households that are 
dependent upon these services in order to maintain employment. 

102

Item 5.



  13 

 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1 and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector 
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

7 Goal Name Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements 

Goal 
Description 

Improved sidewalks, steps, curb-cuts, and trails that address accessibility barriers to 
residents in LMI areas, as identified by the Census Bureau. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector 
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

8 Goal Name Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

Goal 
Description 

Provide funds for increasing access to healthy lifestyles and educational advancement 
related to parks, recreation, trees, and active living parks in LMI areas of the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 2 and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based Actions and Private 
Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

9 Goal Name Conduct Demolition and Clearance Activities 

Goal 
Description 

The primary purpose of this project is the demolition and clearance of dilapidated 
structures, thus eliminating specific conditions of blight or physical decay on a local 
basis.  Individual demolition/clearance activities will be subject to CDBG eligibility 
verification.  

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objective 2 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based and Private Sector 
Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

10 Goal Name CDBG Planning and Administration 

Goal 
Description 

Provide CDBG Administrative Services, by city staff or contractors assisting city staff. The 
program provides effective planning and administration for CDBG programs that benefit 
low-and-moderate income areas and households in the community. 

Plan 
References 

 Consolidated Plan Objectives 1, 2, 3, and 4 

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Public Sector Market Based, Public Sector 
Policy Based, and Private Sector Market Based Actions. 

National 
Objective 

 Benefit to low-and-moderate income (LMI) persons and/or areas 

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 

Table 6 – Goal Description 

  

103

Item 5.



  14 

 

AP-60 Public Housing – 91.220(h) 
 
The City of Cedar Falls does not own or manage public housing facilities, nor are there any located in the 
community, and therefore, this Action Planning process did not include evaluation of the needs of public housing, 
increasing engagement of public housing residents in the process, or addressing a “troubled” public housing 
agency. 
 
AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Need Activities – 91.220(i) 
 
To address homeless and special needs populations, the City of Cedar Falls uses the maximum allowable dollars for 
distribution to several agencies, as has been noted.  The allocation process includes a formal Request for Proposals 
(RFP) process, whereby prospective agencies outline the services that they can offer to the City.  The City conducts 
onsite monitoring visits to each agency receiving funds.  These monitoring visits help ensure that quality services 
are being delivered while providing an opportunity for staff to become more aware of the service details, needs, 
and impacts.  Finally, the awarded agencies from the prior year are given an opportunity to attend a City Housing 
Commission Meeting to discuss their program; offer insight regarding needs, particularly those that are unmet; 
and assuring the City that the CDBG funds are having a positive impact on its residents. 
 
The City addresses homelessness and special needs in the following ways.  First, the City funds agencies where 
expenses relate to operating homeless shelters (Salvation Army in prior years).  Second, the City also funds 
agencies such that they may offer specific training and education that may affect a household’s needs, by 
hopefully offering resources regarding financial management, abuse, and family relationships, credit counseling 
and Family and Children’s Council. Third, the City offered CDBG funding for at-home healthcare, outpatient mental 
health services, and substance abuse counseling.  Finally, the City, using its CDBG funds, hopes to address hunger 
and nutritional needs by funding the regional food bank.  As is generally expected, resident needs outpace the 
amount of funding the City is able to offer the agencies through the CDBG program alone. 
 
AP-70: HOPWA Goals – 91.220(l)(3) 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is not a HOPWA recipient. 
 
AP-75 Barriers to Affordable Housing – 91.220(j) 
 
Currently, the need for quality, affordable housing is outpacing the existence of such units in Cedar Falls.  Between 
demand on the units by full-time residents, and that which comes with being a university community and its 
student housing needs, the City has demand for affordable housing. 
 
Two public policy issues were raised during the planning process, parking paving requirements for rental 
properties and the inability of the current zoning ordinance to effectively address growth that includes mixing of 
uses, increased development densities, and market pressures in fast-growing areas of the community (i.e. Main 
Street). Regarding the paving requirement, since adoption of the ordinance in February 2015, the City has 
reviewed the requirement three separate times.  The cost impact of this policy has been part of that discussion, 
particularly a concern about hard-surfacing gravel driveways of existing single-unit rental homes, whereas, the 
drive of an existing single-unit owner-occupied unit may remain gravel.  CDBG funds could be used to assist 
qualifying properties comply with the requirement.   Also, recently, the City announced it was planning to update 
its existing zoning ordinance, with the idea that it may choose to include both form-based and conventional zoning 
provisions for specific parts of the community.  This may promote more dense development, which could help to 
preserve affordability, that is design-based, as opposed to being impacted exclusively by conventional zoning 
requirements, which focus on use and bulk requirements (i.e. height, setbacks, yard area).   
 
With that said, there are several different kinds of barriers to the development or creation of affordable housing in 
Cedar Falls, some of which are outside of the City’s ability to control.  First, the housing market, for low-income 
residents in Cedar Falls, is relatively expensive, with home valuation and rent costs being relatively high.  Second, 

104

Item 5.



  15 

 

housing demand in the community has driven-up construction costs for both single-family and multiple-family 
developments.  For example, significant demand for rental properties, some of which is attributed to the 
University of Northern Iowa student population, has increased prices dramatically, to the point of making units 
unaffordable for low-and-moderate income households.  Third, market demand has driven the price of land 
upward in the community, not to mention the high costs associated with “greenfield” residential development 
(that which occurs on previously undeveloped land), most notably infrastructure costs.   Finally, declining or static 
local and federal resources, which could be allocated toward affordable housing projects, coupled with ever-
increasing program requirements, have also been a key impediment to addressing low-and-moderate income 
housing needs. 

By looking at the two issues cited above, the City of Cedar Falls is taking action to ameliorate negative effects of 
public policy during this process.  Also, the City may wish to explore public-private-nonprofit partnerships in the 
development of affordable housing.  Nonprofit developers can build mixed income housing and attract additional 
resources/financing that private developers cannot, when it comes to creating new affordable housing.  Said 
housing may be marketed at workforce housing as opposed to being labeled affordable.  Nevertheless, the City 
does recognize the effect that their housing market is having on the price of housing, which may affect whether or 
not people can afford to live in the community.  Further, the City’s Comprehensive Plan identifies future use 
including areas that may be developed at higher densities, which may help address the availability of affordable 
housing.  Specifically, the plan identifies the following areas that may be suitable for higher density development: 
along University Avenue, west of Hudson Road; immediately east of the University of Northern Iowa; and 
intermixed with uses in the Main Street area, between 1st Street and 7th Street. The codes, specifically zoning, 
building, and other regulatory ordinances that the City has adopted are designed and drafted to treat properties 
and people uniformly and fairly.  Further, fees are either “flat” or based upon the value of the improvements made 
to properties in an attempt to create fairness.  Finally, property tax assessment is based upon valuation, as 
determined by the County Assessor.  Regarding the levy rate for determining actual property tax amounts, they are 
set by the City Council as part of their annual budgeting process.  Said levy rates are set by classification (property 
use), the percentage of which that is actually collected by the City is determined by the State of Iowa.  Currently, 
residentially-classified property is rolled-back by the state such that local governments may only tax at a rate of 
approximately 55 percent of a property’s market or 100 percent value. In addition, in 2015, the State adopted a 
rollback for multi-residential properties that was to be implemented over several years.  The tax rate began at 
86.25 percent of a property’s market value, and over eight years, it will incrementally reduce in percentage until it 
is the same rollback as that of residentially-classified properties (i.e. in the 50-60 percent range).  This, then, 
reduces property tax income for the City. 

With that said, the City recognizes the higher cost of housing in their community, which may be attributed to 
market demand, land value, and development cost (primarily infrastructure).  Obviously, then, this higher cost may 
not allow for persons with limited means to reside in the community.  As a result, the City’s participation in the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Program becomes that much more important.  The 
CDBG Entitlement has offered not only physical housing assistance in the way of rehabilitation and repair 
programs, the City offers assistance to residents for the services, the cost of which were borne by the Program, 
thus not requiring persons to have to make difficult decisions between paying for housing-related expenses and 
the other services they may need.  It also allows for infrastructure investments, avoiding increases in other rates, 
taxes, or assessments for property owners because CDBG funds are used. 

 

105

Item 5.



  16 

 

AP-85 Other Actions - 91.220(k) 
 
Introduction 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is able to address obstacles to meeting the underserved needs through networking with 
public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to prevent homelessness and provide affordable housing to 
Cedar Falls residents. Also, the City is working to maintain the affordable housing stock in the area and provide 
decent and safe conditions to its residents. 
 
Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs 
 
The City of Cedar Falls will continue to work with public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to ensure we 
are reaching the goal of assisting residents with the greatest need. In addition, we will work with code 
enforcement and other departments to identify potential at-risk residents. Declining resources have been a key 
impediment to addressing needs. By networking with other agencies, we can combine multiple funding sources to 
provide more services to low-and-moderate income residents. 
 
Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing 
 
Cedar Falls continues to work to foster and maintain affordable housing. The Housing Rehabilitation and Repair 
Programs assist qualified homeowners with substantial home rehabilitation or repairs to existing units. Funding 
has also been provided to provide financial education classes and planning, as well as family support services and 
provide rent and mortgage assistance. Habitat for Humanity encourages affordable housing through new 
construction and housing rehabilitation programs that they manage within the community. In addition, the City 
offers reduced refuse, sewer and storm water fees to households below the 50% income guidelines.  This is 
accomplished by the City using its general funds to assist, which in-turn lowers the cost of housing. 
 
Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards 
 
The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments directly, or through its subcontractor, provides lead risk 
assessment and completes lead- based paint clearance testing on the housing rehabilitation projects in Cedar Falls. 
The City will continue to work with local, county, regional and other government agencies to achieve lead safe 
homes. The city provides "Protect Your Family from Lead in Your Home" brochure to educate CDBG applicants 
about the dangers of lead in the home. 
 
Actions planned to develop institutional structure  
 
The City, including Community Development Department and its Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 
(which may also be known as the Cedar Falls Low Rent Housing Agency or Cedar Falls Housing Authority), and their 
contractor, the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments will work to strengthen the institutional structure 
used to manage the CDBG Entitlement Program.  Together, they will also work to close the housing delivery gap 
between public and non-public organizations in the community.  Said organizations will also address the gap that 
exists with regard to private housing industry participation in developing the City’s institutional structure.  
Specifically, the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program will work with private industry to increase and 
maintain affordable housing stock for low-to-moderate income households.  Through experience, participation in 
local, regional (PHA Director Association), state (Iowa NAHRO, Iowa Association of Housing Officials), and national 
(NAHRO, American Planning Association) housing and planning organizations, educational opportunities, and peer-
to-peer exchanges with other CDBG Entitlement recipients, staff-members will become more proficient in 
executing, managing, assessing, and anticipating change within the program.  Further, the same entities, together 
with the City of Waterloo Community Development Department, will continue to do likewise with the institutional 

106

Item 5.



  17 

 

structure associated with administering the HOME Program. 
 
Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families 
 
Cedar Falls has incorporated the Continuum of Care approach, providing an integrated system of services and 
programs to meet the various needs of individuals as they progress toward financial self-sufficiency. Cedar Falls 
has worked with local service providers to pursue resources and innovative partnerships to support the 
development of affordable housing; prevent homelessness, abuse, and substance abuse; offer housing education 
and literacy; and provide emergency food and shelter. 
 
Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies 
 
Community outreach is key in enhancing coordination between public and private housing and social service 
agencies. Staff attends Community Resource Fairs, and workshops with a number of local public service agencies 
and non-profit organizations. The meetings offer opportunities to foster relationships as well as identify the 
services each organization and/or agency is providing. By educating participating organizations on services 
available in the community, we are better positioned to meet the needs of the low-moderate-income individuals 
and households in the city. 
 
AP-90 Program Specific Requirements - CDBG 91.220(l)(1) 

 
CDBG-funded projects that are expected to be available during the year are identified in the Projects Summary 
Table (AP-35) above. The following identifies any program income that may available for use in said projects.  

 
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the next program 

year and that has not yet been reprogrammed $0 
2. The amount of proceeds from Section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the year to address 

the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic plan. $0 
3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements $0 
4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use has not been 

included in a prior statement or plan $0 
5. The amount of income from float-funded activities $0 
Total Program Income: $0 

 
Other CDBG Requirements  

 
1. The amount of urgent need activities 0 
  
2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit 

persons of low and moderate income. Overall Benefit - A consecutive period of one, two 
or three years may be used to determine that a minimum overall benefit of 70 percent of 
CDBG funds is used to benefit persons of low-and-moderate income. Specify the years 
covered that include this Annual Action Plan. 70.00% 

 
  

107

Item 5.



  18 

 

AP-90: Program-Specific Requirements-HOME 91.220(l)(2) 

The City of Cedar Falls is not a direct HOME recipient.  It is part of a consortium with the City of Waterloo, Iowa. 

AP-90: Program-Specific Requirements-ESG 91.220(l)(4) 

The City of Cedar Falls is not an ESG recipient. 

AP-90: Program-Specific Requirements-HOPWA 91.220(l)(3) 

The City of Cedar Falls is not a HOPWA recipient. 

AP-90: HTF Specific Review 91.220(l)(5) 

The City of Cedar Falls does not administer HTF funds. 

108

Item 5.



K:\Projects\Citywide\Roads11x17.mxd

ICity of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Date

3/19/2019

© City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the
information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This
information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All
warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed.

Low-Moderate Income Areas 2011-15

109

Item 5.



Greenhill Rd

Ridgeway Ave Ridgeway Ave

Hudson Rd

1st St

1st St

University Ave

Lincoln St

Wa
ver

ly R
d

W Airline Hwy

Center St

Ce
nte

r S
t

Hudson Rd

1st St

Lincoln St

University Ave

Greenhill Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

Lone Tree Rd

De
ere

 Rd

18th St

Dunkerton Rd

S U
nio

n R
d

18th St

Viking Rd

Rainbow Dr

Co
lleg

e S
t

12th St

University Ave

27th St

Lev
ers

ee 
Rd

N U
nio

n R
d

Ma
in 

St

Waterloo Rd

Cedar Heights Dr

S M
ain

 St

12th St

Viking Rd

Ma
in 

St

Cedar Heights Dr

Viking Rd

Viking Rd

Cedar Heights Dr

Orchard Dr

4T75

4D17

4D18

4D19

4V14

College S quare Mall
Black Hawk

Village

North
Industrial

Park

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Technology
Park

Industrial
Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Holiday
Plaza

Greenhill
Market

Goodwill
Center

ThunderRidge Court

Time
Square

Midway
Mall

Melrose
Mall

Bluegrass C t

Blue
g ra

ss
Cir

Wild Rye Way

University of
Northern Iowa

North
Cedar
Elem

Hansen
Elem.

Holmes
Jr High

Cedar Falls
High Sch.

Lincoln Elem

Peet Jr High

Cedar
Heights

Elem

River Hills
School

Southdale
Elem

Orchard
Hill Elem

Valley Lutheran
School

Aldrich
Elem

Central
Rivers AEA

St
Pats

"!58

"!27

"!27

"!27

"!27

"!58

"!57
"!57

"!58

"!27

"!27

Fra
nk

lin
 St

Grand Blvd

5th St

Blu
ff S

t

Ch
ris

kin
 Rd Brookside Dr

Prairie View Rd

Pro
gre

ss 
Av

e

Ch
an

ce
llo

r D
r

Ann
Ave

Flynn Dr

Laverne Ln

Pa
nth

er 
LnSpringbrook Dr

Ka
ra 

Dr

Athens
Ct

E 14th
Ct

17th
St

Hacienda
Ct

Opal Ln

Bla
ckh

aw
k

Vlg

Carol Ct

RiverRidge Ln

Cherr
ywood

Pl

AliceAve

Horty St

Knoke
Pl

Leg
acy

 Ln

Gra
nd

vie
w

Ct

Lo
ng

vie
w

Ct

Ka
nsa

s S
t

Me
lro

se
Ct

Em
era

ld Rd

He
dg

ew
oo

d
Cir

Illin
ois

 St

Eth
an

 Ct

Cro
ss

Cre
ek 

Dr

High
St

Grant St

Union Dr

Wh
ite

Wa
y

S Forest
Rd

Jade
Rd

Floral Ct

Ind
ian

a S
t

Woodlawn
Ave

Superior
Way

Orchard
Pl

25th
St

Andover
Ct

Eagle Ridge Rd

Ba
rba

ra
Dr

Sa
ma

nth
a

Cir

Beach St

6th St

Bro
ns

on
 Ct

Es
tat

e
Dr

26th St

Meadow
Park Dr

Ch
ap

ma
n

Ct

Stanwood Dr

Ida St

Ho
we St

Co
tta

ge
Ln

Ga
llo

wa
y

Av
e

Tilton
Dr

Onawa
Dr

Hil
l C

t

Briarwood
Hills Dr

Ke
lly Ct

Ge
ne

vie
ve

Gram
Ct

Gre
ele

y S
t

A S
t

B S
t

Linda Dr

Idaho Rd

Wa
lm

art
Dr

Sunray
Dr

DruryLn

Tun
is

Cir

Hig
hg

ate
 Ln

Market
St

Goldenrod Way

Faithway Dr

Woodland
Dr

Lau
rie

Av
e

Rosemary Dr

Del Matro
Rd

Walters Pond Pl

Mustang Rd

Irv
ing

 St

Fer
n

Av
e

Horizon
Dr

Concord Cir

Cedar St

Blackhawk
Ln

Sta
nle

y S
t

Elm Dr

19th St

Arizona
Rd

Utah
Rd

Wi
nte

rbe
rry

Dr

Ke
nn

ed
y

Av
e

Seerley Blvd

Sh
irle

y S
t

Cyclone Dr

Ore
llan

a
Ave

Wi
llia

ms
on

 Av
e

Hig
hv

iew Ct

Douglas
St

Edgewood St

Elm
wo

od
Av

e

Min
ne

so
ta 

St

Bre
ntw

oo
d D

r

Meadow
View Cir

Ho
lid

ay 
Rd

Theimer
St

Evergreen
Ln Sta

rlit
e

Blv
d

Jes
sic

a L
n

Ch
ad

wic
k R

d

Shawnee
Rd

Sands
Ave

Patterson
Ln

Mathew DrHarriet Ln

Co
ne

flo
we

r
Pk

wy

Jill Dr
Mark Dr
Jodi Dr

Jen
nif

er 
Ln

He
len

 Rd

Green Ave

Shelden Ave

Alden Ave

Am
ity

 Dr

Bir
ds

all 
Dr

Tim
oth

y S
t

Redeker Dr

Sh
elle

y L
n

Meadow
Ln

Loma St

Sc
og

gin St

30th St

Sa
ble

 Ln

Tif
fan

y L
n

Greenhill
Cir

Westgate
Ave

Me
ad

ow
lar

k L
n

WestwoodDr

Linden
Ave

MaCallan
Ln

Chateau
Ct

Glo
ria

 St

Ka
spe

nd
 Pl

S Park Rd

Cooley St

Ma
gn

olia
 Dr

12th St

LeC
lair

 St

29th St

Feather

Ridge Dr

Fieldstone
Blvd

Glen
Oaks Dr

Joy St

Rocklyn St
Westview

St
Rosewood

Dr
Cadam Ct

Maple St

Parkway
Ave

Wo
od

rid
ge

Dr

Sta
te 

St

Be
lle 

Av
e

Bertchwood

Colorado

Lantz Ave

Jay Ln

Qu
esa

da 
Ct

As
hla

nd
 Av

e

Hunter Dr

Mis
sou

ri S
t

Po
ss

um
 Rd

Ca
rria

ge
 Ln

Tomahawk
Ln

Minnehaha
Ln

Co
rdu

roy
 Dr

Parsley Dr

Timber Cove Dr

Wembly Rd

Prairie St

McKinley St

An
dre

a D
r

Frontier Rd

Gib
son

 St

Cottonwood Ln

Ba
ker

 Dr
Fo

rre
st 

Rd

Pic
tur

esq
ue

Dr

Ce
ltic

 Ct

Dako
ta S

t

Bre
nto

n D
r

Winters Dr

Whitetail Dr

Fjo
rd 

Dr

Ca
lifo

rni
a S

t

Lindale Rd

Newland Dr

Ste
wa

rt L
n

Hiawatha Rd

Sw
eet

Ba
sil 

Ln

Cottage Row Ln

Ro
os

eve
lt S

t

Lo
ng

vie
w D

r

Drynan
Dr

Iris Dr

Oster Pkwy

Win dingR idge Rd

Lau
rin

da
Dr

Co
lleg

e S
t

Thresher Ct

Wa
rw

ick
 Dr

Ba
rrin

gto
n

Dr

Ad
am

s S
t

Austin Way

Windsor Dr

Jac
lyn

 St

Covey Ct

Ed
die

 St

Quail Hollow Ln

Hic
ko

ry 
Ln

Ca
rey

 Dr
Gla

cie
r D

r

Bonita Blvd

Falcon Ln

Western Ave

Da
ina

 Dr

De
ena

 Dr

Vin
e S

t

An
gie

 Dr

Pa
rkg

ate
 Rd

Ba
rne

tt D
r

Da
ma

scu
s D

r

No
rse

 Dr

Beaver Rd

Cobblestone Ct

Ca
mb

rid
ge

 Av
e

Ste
rlin

g L
n

Fandre Dr

Stratford Ct

Cre
stv

iew
 Dr

Bir
ch

 St

Ryan Dr

Oxford Ln
Coventry Ln
Yorkshire Dr

Joanne St

Ch
err

yw
oo

d D
r

Ga
s L

igh
t D

r

Pe
arl

 St

Ru
sse

ll D
r

Northview
Ln

Div
isio

n S
t

Po
cah

on
tas

 Rd

Maverick Ave

Fra
nc

is S
t

Edw
ard

s A
ve

Pleasant Dr

31st St

Hazelwood Ln

Butternut Ln

Hilton Dr

Continental Dr

Prair ie Rd

Re
dw

oo
d L

n

Hil
lcr

est
 Dr

Elm St

Dr

Orc
ha

rd 
Hil

l D
r

Camden St

Concord St
Saratoga St

Montclair St

Scranton St

Columbia St

Meado w L n

Country

Viking Plaza Dr

Co
lum

bin
e D

r

Lloyd Ln

Midway Dr

Timberledge Dr

Acorn Ln

Ma
riu

s D
r

Ap
ple

wo
od

 Ln

De
lta 

Dr

He
art

lan
d H

ills
 Dr

Paddington Dr

28th St

Viking Pl

Au
tum

n L
n

Newman Ave

Co
lum

bia Dr

Fir
esi

de
 Dr

Clair St

Tre
nto

n A
ve

Danish Dr

Hig
hla

nd

Cardinal Dr

Shocker Rd

Oak
lan

d A
ve

9th St
10th St

Richard Rd

He
art

hs
ide

 Dr

Beech Ave

16th St

Ce
dar

 Cr
est

 Dr

S Ridge Dr

Tilb
ury

 Rd

Castle St
Ala

me
da

 St

Huntington Rd

Oh
io 

St

Ell
en

Alvarado Ave

Pa
rris

h S
t

Fo
ur 

Se
aso

ns
 Dr

Berry Hill Rd

Longview St

Mil
len

ium
 Dr

Ca
raw

ay 
Ln

We
dg

ew
oo

d D
r

Cordoba Ave

5th St
Blu

eb
ell 

Rd

Pro
du

cti
on

 Dr

PE
 Ce

nte
r D

r

Quail Ridge Rd

Sunnyside Dr

Mc
Cla

in D
r

Val
ley

 Pa
rk 

Dr

Lake St

Madison St

Spruce

Technology Pkwy

Pa
nth

er 
Pk

wy

Westminster Dr

Ridgeway

Ln

Technolo gy P kwy

Mo
rris

on
 Ln

Winter
Ridge Ln

Sp
rin

g
Val

ley
 Ln

Continental
Acc

Sapphire Rd

Me
mo

ria
l

Av
e

Oak
St

Poplar Hollow Ln

Cedar
Hill
Rd

Linden
St

Timberledge
Pl

Willow Ave

Thomas
St

Co
ron

ado
Ct

Jo
rda

n S
t

RiverBluff Dr

Flying
Cloud Ln

Willow
Bend Rd

Sy
mo

ns
 Rd

Lu
ke 

St

Su
ma

c A
ve

Pin
e S

t

Higby Dr

Laurel
Cir

Co
lle

ge
 StHarvest Ln

Boxwood Dr

Wellington Dr

Fai
rvi

ew
 Dr

Ad
dis

on
 Dr

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Ac
e P

l

Four Winds Dr

As
pen

 Dr

Valley High Dr

Balboa Ave

Primrose

Pri
nc

eto
n A

ve

Pheasant Dr

Vir
gil

 St

Vera Way

Wisconsin St

Ne
ola

 St

Venture Way

Waterbury Dr

Bergstrom Blvd

11th St

Me
rne

r A
ve

Ea
st 

St

DrDr

Dr

Fle
ur 

Dr

Tita
n T

rl

Ce
ntr

al A
ve

Five Seasons Blvd

Gr
ov

e S
t

Commerce Dr

Wi
llo

w L
n

En
ter

pri
se 

Dr

Div
isio

n S
t

Performance Dr

Savannah Park Rd

De
wit

t R
d

Big
 W

oo
ds

 Rd

Elmridge Dr

Campus St

Athens Dr

Ironwood Dr

S Court D
r

Hyacinth Dr

Pendleton Dr

Sunset Blvd

Nordic Ridge Dr

Capital Way

Quail Run Ln

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Calumett Dr

Holmes Dr

Parker St

Lak
evi

ew
  D

r

Pin Oak Dr

Brandilynn Blvd

Loren Dr

Cy
pre

ss 
Av

e

Da
llas

 Dr

Heritage Rd

Apollo St

Abraham Dr

Kn
oll

 Ri
dg

e D
r

Ea
stp

ark
 Rd

Dr

7th St

Greenhill Dr

Starview Dr

Wynnewood
Dr

19th St

Bo
uld

er 
Dr

Skyview Dr

Lake  Ridge Dr
Vic

tor
y D

r

23rd St

Tuc
so

n D
r

20th St

22nd St

21st St

Independence St

Cla
rk 

     
     

     
    D

r

Carlton Dr

17th St

E Main St

Melrose Dr

Gre
yh

ou
nd

 Dr

15th St
14th St
13th St

Green Creek Rd

Park Dr
Tim

be
r R

idg
e R

d

Ra
il W

ay

Oa
k

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St
Crescent Dr

S M
ain

 St

No
rdi

c D
r

Briarwood Dr

Oli
ve

 St

Erik Rd

Lone Tree Rd

8th St

Fitkin Rd

2nd St

Iow
a S

t

3rd St

Lilac Ln

Fra
nk

lin
 St

Cottage Row Rd

S U
nio

n R
d

Cla
y S

t

Ro
wn

d S
t

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Wa
lnu

t S
t

4th St

Wyth Rd

Ca
tal

pa
 Ln

Sp
ruc

e L
n

Bo
x E

lde
r L

n

Ha
ck

be
rry

 Ln

Fo
x

Vie
w D

r

Parkway Ave | Ct

PrairieCt

Le
xin

gto
n B

lvd

Purple
Clover Dr

Woodland Ave
Glenwood Ave

Ga
rne

t Rd

N Ridge Cir

Zircon Ln

Normandy
Dr

W Sunshine Ln

Sonoma Dr

Sc
hre

ibe
r

St

Richmond St

Lex
ing

ton
 Dr

St

Ro
os

eve
lt S

t

6th St

5th St
4th St

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

St

Pa
rk 

Dr

Minnetonka

8th St

Ell
en

 St

20th St

Brookside Dr

22nd St

Melrose Dr

Sta
te 

St

Gro
ve 

St

Au
tum

n L
n

Edgew
ood Dr

Bicentennial
Dr

Valley High Dr

Cardinal

Ct

Midway Dr

Ro
wn

d S
t

Valley High Dr

Carlton Dr

Greenhill DrHills Dr

Nordic Dr

Katoski Dr

De
wit

t R
d

Cy
pre

ss 
     

    
   A

ve Lake St

Western Ave

Ford Rd

Cre
sce

nt D
r

18th
St

Grand Blvd

Bri
arw

oo
d D

r

Algonquin Dr
Erik Rd

Cle
arv

iew
 Dr

Maplewood Dr

Greenwood Ave

Madison St

Irving St

Acorn Ln

Ca
mp

us 
St

Ca
mp

us 
St

Pa
nth

er
Ln

E Main StBig
 W

oo
ds 

Rd

Lo
ga

n
St

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St

3rd St

Rd
Pra

irie
 Do

ck

Technology Pkwy

Sager Ave

Scenic Dr

Amber
Valley Rd

Arbor
Way Blvd

Autumn
Woods Dr

Oli
ve

 St

Scenic
Dr

Ne
bra

ska
 St

Par
k

Blvd

Pe
arl

 St

Cla
y S

t

St

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Blu
ff S

t

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Ca
me

o S
t

OakAve

Grand Blvd

Oak ParkCir

Lamb et h
Rd

Peri dotRd

Winter Ridge Rd

Jam
es

Dr

Logan St

Dr

Ma
ryh

ill
Dr

Alexis Blvd

Ridge

Jua
nita

Ave

L ill
ipu t Ln

Westbrook Rd

Ques adaAve

Monterey Dr
IngersollRd Edg

ew
ood

Dr

Valdez Dr

SOakA ve

Reese Rd

Blythe Blvd

Ironwood Dr

Lark Ln

Mauker

Dr

W ood cres tDr

N C
ott

ag
e R

ow
 Rd

River RidgeRd

Sa
int

s
Dr

As
bu

ry 
Ln

Aspen Ct

Fountains Way

Da
llas Dr

Garden Ave

Ver
alt

a D
r

Cle
arv

iew

Hil
lsid

e

Lakesho reDr

23rd St

Ho
rs eshoe Dr

Hawthorne Dr

Ro
yal

Dr

Thunder Rid ge Blvd

University Dr

Th
ym

eR
d

Cottage Grv

FastLn

Jakob Cir

Go
lde

n
Ln

Fer
nw

oo
d D

r

Maple St Park Pl
Chestnut St

Pine St

Se awardD r

Linnwo od Dr

Sunnysid e C ir

Shooting Star Way

Prairie Pkwy

Prairie View Rd

Starb
eck

 Cir

Je nnings Dr

Willow Oak Dr

Post Oak Dr

Tw
in 

Oa
ks 

Ln

Sartori
Hospital

Peter
Melendy
Park

Olsens
Riverside

Park

TJs
Park

Prairie
Lakes
Park

Sa
ge

Rd

WildF lower Ln

Pri
de

mo
re 

DrHomeway Dr

Southdale
Park

Orchard
Hill Park

Rownd
Park

Kuehns Park

Clay
Street

Park

Overman
Park

Po
lic

em
an

s
Pa

rk

Robinson-Dresser
Sports Complex

Seerley
Park

El D
ora

do
Hei

ght
s P

ark

Fairview
Cemetery

Pheasant
Ridge Golf

Course

Holmes
Park

Sartori
Park

Kiwanis
Bluff Park

Ulrich
Park

Lookout
Park

Washington
Park

Tourist
Park

Island
Park

Sturgis
Park

Bess Streeter
Aldrich Park

Gateway
Park

Pfeiffer
Springs

Park

Central
Park

Big Woods Lake
Recreation Area

Walters
Ridge Golf

Course
Roger

Birdsall
Memorial Park

Paw
Park

Gateway
Park

Valley
High
Park

Greenwood
Cemetery

Hil
lsi

de
Ce

me
ter

y

Hartman
Reserve

George Wyth
State Park

Black
Hawk Park

Neighbors
Park

Skate
Park

Vetrans
Memorial
Park

UNI Wetland Park

Tondro Pray
Bike Park

NC Natural
Resource

Area

Nordic
Ridge
Park

South
Main
Park

Cedar Woods
Disc Golf Course

Lions
Field

Firemans
Park

Cedar Valley
Memorial Gardens

Castle
Hill Park

Cedar Valley
Soccer Complex

Katoski Greenbelt

Miriams
Park

Black
Hawk Park

Falls Access

Beaver Creek Access

Dead Mans Island

Hartman Bluff
State Preserve

Pettersen
Plaza

CFU
Solar

Garden

¡¢20

¡¢218

¡¢218

¡¢20

¡¢218

Cedar River

Cedar RiverAlice Wyth Lake

Fisher Lake George Wyth Lake

Big Wood Lake

Snag Creek

South
Prairie
Lake

North
Prair ie
Lake

Dry
 Ru

n C
ree

k

Dry
 Ru

n C
ree

k (S
)

Dry Run Creek (SW)

Dry Run Creek (Univ)

Dry Run Creek (W)

Shirey Lake

Lake Manatt

Mullens Pond

Beaver Creek

Bullfrog Bayou

Railroad Lake

Green Creek

1st Slough

2nd Slough
3rd Slough

á190

á189

á188

á187

á185

á184

á183

á182

á181

á224 á225 á226

á227

á159

á223

á40 á41

á42 á43

Rd

N ordicDr

Ashworth Dr

Donald D r

Re
d O

ak 
Ln

Ashworth Dr

Andy Ave

Leigh LnEden Way

Lak
esh

ore
 Dr

Arbor Ridge  Rd
Maple Grove Dr

Bark wo od D r

Arb
ors

 Dr

G reen Creek Rd

Whisperi ngPinesCir

Dr

Ca
llu

m C

t

Ver
alt

a

Tec
hn

olo
gy

Pl

Cyber Ln

Pizar ro Ct

K y l i e Ct

Kael Trl

L ore
n D

r

Norse Dr

Ash wor th Dr

Amel i a Dr

Alg on quin Dr

W i
ld Rose Ct

Cadillac Dr
Terrace Dr

Crossway Dr

Greenh illRd

Oregon Rd

Con
vai

r L
n

Devlin
Cir

Latham Pl Richland Dr

Lovejoy Dr

Melendy L nStu
r gi

sD
r

SL
aw

n R
d

Bic entennial Dr

McCl
ai n

Dr

Pleasant Dr

Terrace Dr

Sun
ny

Ln

Sha
dy

Ln

Park Ci r

C h
err

y L
n

E R i dg
ew

oo
dD

r

W
Rid

gew
o o

dD
r

Rese

rve Dr

TimberDr

Utility
Pkwy

Summit

Dr

Feather RunT rl

Blu ff St

Ro
cky

Rd

Blai r Ridge Rd

Wi ld Horse Dr

S a
nda

hlwoodCir

Autumn Ridge Rd

Bi rd
sal

l P
ark

Dr

G e ral dine R d

Pa
rk

Dr

Lemongrass Dr

Savory
Ln

Cohen Ct

K ea g le s Xing

Pete rs Pkwy

Tierney
Trl

Unity
Point
Clinic

Mercy OneClinic

B ig Woods Creek

Ca stle Hill Creek

Riders Rd

Arb
ors

D r

Mandalay Dr

Library Dr

Plaza

Warp Dr

Grani
te Ridge Rd

Spruce Creek DrSpruce
Needle Ln

Innovation Dr

ICity of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Future Land Use

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

High Density Residential

Planned Development

Office & Business Park

Nbhood Comm & Mixed Use

Community Commercial

Commercial Corridor

Regional Commercial

Downtown

Industrial

Schools

University

Civic

Parks & Rec

Greenways & Floodplain

Public & Utilities

Proposed Stormwater

© City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed. 7/5/2022
K:\Projects\Citywide\Roads11x17.mxd

110

Item 5.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
   

 

 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: July 11, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Public Hearing on Status of Funded Activities for State Award of CARES 
Act Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG-CV2)  

 
 
In May 2020, funding was allocated to Cedar Falls from the CARES Act CDBG funds 
the State received (referred to as CDBG-CV2, to distinguish from other CARES Act 
funding the City has received through CDBG).  The State proportionally allocated some 
of the CARES Act CDBG funding they received to CDBG Entitlement Communities.  
Cedar Falls was allocated $369,432.  In January 2021, the City entered into a contract 
for a majority of the funds, subsequently completing amendments in August 2021 and 
April 2022.  We have submitted four requests for reimbursement, for approved activities 
in the agreement.  Through the fourth claim we have claimed nearly 61% of our total 
award.  The State requires a public hearing on the status of funded activities once a 
project is reported at 50% complete.   
 
Following is an updated summary of the CDBG-CV2 allocation of funds and total spent.  
All activities are using 100% CDBG-CV2 funds, there are no matching dollars. 
 

 
Amount 

Project 
Delivery 

Total 
Allocated 

Total Spent 
(Claims 1-4) 

Percent 
of 

Activity 

Percent 
of Total 
Grant 

Service Agencies $ 134,800.00 $ 17,092.00 $ 151,892.00 $17,036.91 11% 5.16% 

City $   83,446.71  $   8,342.00  $   91,788.71  $64,190.76  70% 19.43% 

Schools $ 111,152.00 $ 14,592.00 $ 125,744.00 $119,031.33 95% 36.03% 

   
$ 330,406.71 $200,258.99  60.61% 

 
A general description of remaining work is as follows: 

 Service Agencies 
This activity has seen the least activity.  Following is a listing of the contracts 
executed and the anticipated use of funds.  An additional column reports their 
progress.  The April 2022 amendment added a new service agency to the list: 
Operation Threshold.  Staff has reached out to the agencies to confirm if services 
are being provided or if the contract may need to be revised or terminated. 
 

111

Item 6.



 
Awarded Expended 

Percent 
Expended 

Exceptional Persons, Inc. $10,000.00 $8,339.50 83.40% 

Jesse Cosby Center $10,000.00 $0.00 0.00% 

EMBARC $40,000.00 $0.00 0.00% 

East Side Ministerial Alliance $15,000.00 $0.00 0.00% 

NE IA Food Bank $40,000.00 $4,010.88 10.03% 

Operation Threshold  $19,800.00 $0.00 0.00% 

 

 City 
This activity is 70% complete.  In each of our amendments, we have worked to 
identify as many needs as possible to help the city in pandemic response, 

preparation and prevention.  Our focus has been equipment or communications 
needs.  This has included Zoom expenses, electronic record keeping 
(Laserfische), tablets, multi factor authentication, and more. Remaining 
expenditures include $6,750 for the next multi factor authentication invoice on a 
three-year contract as well as $2,100 for additional electrostatic sprayers for 
disinfection.  We anticipate being underspent on the activity delivery 
expenditures (staff time: INRCOG and City), originally estimated at $8,342. 
 

 Schools 
This activity is 95% complete.  Cedar Falls Schools has utilized 100% of the 
funding allocated to them ($82,984). The April 2022 amendment clarified several 
remaining items St. Patrick’s and Valley Lutheran would be able to purchase to 
fully utilize the original grant allotment to each of them.  Both schools are working 
to complete orders and submit required materials to complete their grants.  
INRCOG will also submit an invoice for their time in working with the schools to 
complete their grants.  

 
For State reporting purposes, following is a general description of the changes made to 
the Project Budget, Performance Targets, Activity Schedules, Project Scope, Location, 
Objectives, or Beneficiaries. 
 

 Project Budget: To date, this project is considered within its budget.  
Amendments have worked to fully allocate the funds provided by the State 
through the CDBG-CV2 funds.  If several service agencies are not able to 
utilize the funds and City use is slightly lower than anticipated, the grant will 
be under budget. 

 Performance Targets: Our contract with the State ends on June 30, 2023 
(even though CDBG-CV funds are available a total of six years).  We will be 
paid for any invoices submitted prior to that date. 

 Activity Schedules: The City and its partners have continued to utilize funds in 
pandemic response, preparation and prevention.  Substantial completion is 
anticipated by May 2023. 

 Project Scope: The project activities have remained the same, with some 
equipment being added or removed as seen feasible during implementation.  

112

Item 6.



Any of those changes were tracked with amendments that are part of the 
public record in the timeframes noted at the beginning of this memo.   

 Location:  The activities are all benefitting residents within the incorporated 
limits of Cedar Falls.  While some service agencies are located outside of the 
city limits, any invoicing is for services provided to Cedar Falls residents. 

 Objectives/Beneficiaries: These have not changed since submittal of the 
CDBG application. Activities were pandemic response, preparation and 
prevention. The project beneficiaries, residents and businesses of the City of 
Cedar Falls, have not changed since the CDBG-CV2 application was 
submitted. 

 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends holding a public hearing at 
the July 18, 2022 meeting for public comment or questions regarding the City’s status of 
funded activities under the CDBG-CV2 grant.  Please contact Stephanie Houk Sheetz 
with any questions at 319-268-5151. 
 
 
Xc:   Lisa Roeding, Comptroller/City Treasurer 
 Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      
 Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

113

Item 6.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
             TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: July 11, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request 2209 N Union Road (RZ22-002) 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone property from R-1: Residence District to A-1: Agriculture District. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Kel-Mar, LC (Shawn and Paula Kelly) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

2209 N. Union Road  

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The proposal is to rezone approximately 0.98 acre portion of the property located at 2209 N 
Union Road, formerly the Martyrs Retreat, and 8.86 acres of a 17.86 acre parcel located 
adjacent to the south of 2209 N Union Road from the R-1: Residence District, to A-1: 
Agriculture District.  
 
BACKGROUND 
This property was established as the American Martyrs Retreat House by the Archdiocese of 
Dubuque in 1960. The property was annexed into Cedar Falls in 1971 at which time a 1,450’ x 
600’ area was zoned to R-1 to accommodate the existing private institutional use, which was 
not permitted in an agriculture district. In 2019, the facility closed and Mr. Kelly purchased both 
tracts. 
 
In February 2021, Mr. Kelly approached the City with a request rezone Tract 2 (shown in blue 
on the next page and attached zoning illustration) and the portion of Martyrs Retreat property, 
Tract 1 (outlined in black), to R-1 to create a buildable lot for the construction of a new 
residential structure. However, this was not possible, because in order to rezone the property 
to R-1, city services would have to be extended to the lot per City Code requirement. The 
nearest available utilities are greater than 2,000 feet to the south and the existing railroad right-
of-way would make extending the utilities cost-prohibitive.  
 
In March 2021, staff set up a meeting to discuss possible options that would allow the owner to 
achieve their goal of building one house on the property.  At that meeting, staff suggested 

114

Item 7.



exploring the possibility for reconfiguring the existing parcel lines with plats of survey. 
Research by Mr. Kelly’s surveyor identified two existing lots of record, which could be 
reconfigured to allow a house to be built in the desired location overlooking the Cedar River. 
This reconfiguration of the lots of record involve two plats of survey:  a transfer of the portion of 
Tract 1 outlined in black to Tract 2; and the transfer of the portion of Tract 2 outlined in red, 
which contains the existing  Martyrs Retreat building, to Tract 1. The condition for a plat of 
survey is that no new building lots can be created nor can the transfer area constitute more 
than 25 percent of a parcel after the transfer takes place. Staff also recommended rezoning 
the portion of the property not associated with the Martyrs Retreat building from R-1 
Residential to A-1, Agricultural District, both to acknowledge the lack of city services and so 
that zoning boundaries coincide with the new parcel lines created with the plats of survey. In 
other words, the proposed rezoning will clean up the split zoning on these tracts.   
 

 
 
In February 2022, VJ Engineering, Mr. Kelly’s surveyor, requested further discussion about the 
next steps for the rezoning. Staff recommended completing a plat of Survey for Parcel ‘E’ to 
define the area involved in the request to rezone from R-1 to A-1. As part of the approval of the 
plats of survey for the property, staff recommended Tract 2 share access from N. Union Road 
with the Martyrs Retreat property and a note be added to the plats of survey stating no building 
permits can be issued for the transfer areas unless merged with  the receiving parcels. Cedar 
Falls Utilities requested utility easements be dedicated for electric and communication services 
and that all existing utility easements be maintained. Staff also recommended a meeting with 
Mr. Kelly to discuss the future use of the Martyrs Retreat property.   
 
On April 18, 2022, the applicant’s surveyor submitted a plat of survey for Tract 2 and a survey 
showing the location of easements for both utilities and access.  
 
On May 9th 2022, staff met with Mr. Kelly and his daughter to finalize the documentation 
needed for the rezoning and to discuss future options for the Martyrs Retreat property. The 
owners do not have any immediate plans for re-use of the Martyrs Retreat building, but the 
recent zoning code amendment that allows consideration of requests for alternative uses of 

115

Item 7.



defunct institutional buildings will provide more flexibility for an appropriate adaptive re-use of 
the building with Board of Adjustment approval of a conditional use permit. In the meantime, 
the owner has acknowledged that any re-use of the building must be approved by the City 
according to City Code requirements and that the property will not be used for residential 
purposes.    
 
ANALYSIS 
 
CURRENT ZONING 
R-1 Residence District and A-1 Agriculture District 
 
The R-1 Residence District allows one and two unit dwellings and a limited number of other 
uses, including private institutional or community recreation centers; however, all subdivision of 
property in the R-1 Residence District requires the installation of public sewer and water.   
 
The purpose of the A-1 Agriculture District is to act as a “holding zone” in areas of the city that 
are undeveloped and not served by essential municipal services.  
 
PROPOSED ZONING 
The request is to downzone approximately 0.98 acre of land at 2209 N Union Road and 8.86 
acres on the adjacent tract to the south from the R-1 Residence zoning district to A-1 
Agriculture.  The requested change will place those portions of the reconfigured parcel that do 
not have adequate services available back into the “holding zone” and clean up the split zoning 
on the parcel. The remaining R-1 zoned area where the Martyrs Retreat building is located will 
remain zoned R-1 to allow the potential for an adaptive reuse of the building under the R-1 
standards.   
 
The A-1 district allows no more than one single-unit or one two-unit residential dwelling in the 
following circumstances:  

1. as an incidental use to a permitted agriculture use, such as growing crops, grain, and 
limited animal production (20 acres minimum lot area) or  

2. if located on a lot of record as of August 1, 1979 with a minimum lot area of three acres. 
The existing Tract 2 (see image above) is considered a lot of record, so it would be 
allowed one single-unit dwelling, as proposed by the applicant.   

 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map identifies this entire property and the properties south of the rail line 
as Low Density Residential. The characteristics of this designation include an emphasis on 
single-family residential forms and civic uses. The intent is that at build-out development is 
provided a full range of municipal services (see map next page). Staff finds that the proposed 
rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan as the long term goal is for low density 
residential development. At this time, however, the A-1 Zoning is appropriate to acknowledge 
the lack of city services.  
 

116

Item 7.



 
 
ACCESS TO PUBLIC SERVICES 
The property is located in an area of the city where public services are not currently available 
and it is difficult to extend water and sewer because of the railroad right-of-way. This lack of 
services indicates that the A-1 Agricultural District is an appropriate zoning district, because it 
is considered a holding zone until adequate city services are extended to allow for residential 
development at an urban density.  
 
ACCESS TO ADEQUATE STREET NETWORK 
The property currently has access from N. Union Road. There will be no new streets proposed 
to serve this area until city services are available. Therefore, the request to downzone the 
property from R-1 to A-1 is warranted and will keep traffic volumes low. A single private drive 
that shares the street access point with the Martyrs Retreat property will serve the proposed 
single unit dwelling. With the new zoning, no additional development can occur beyond the 
construction of the one residential dwelling proposed.  
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
City staff mailed letters to the surrounding property owners notifying them of the rezoning 
request. A notice of Public hearing was published in the Courier on June 15, 2022  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
The City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities, has no concerns with the proposed 
rezoning request. The two plats of survey that reconfigure the parcel lines to coincide with the 
proposed zoning boundaries can be approved administratively by the Zoning Administrator, 
per the City Subdivision Code regulations.   
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development recommends approval of RZ22-002, A request to rezone 
approximately 0.98 acre portion of the property located at 2209 N Union Road, formerly the 
Martyrs Retreat, and 8.86 acres of a 17.86 acre parcel located adjacent to the south of 2209 N 
Union Road from the R-1: Residence District, to A-1: Agriculture District.  
 
 

117

Item 7.



 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
6/8/2022 

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided background 
information. He explained that this is a request to rezone approximately 9.94 acres 
of the Martyrs Retreat and a parcel to the south property from R-1, Residential to A-
1, Agricultural, which would allow for one residence to be built on the tract of land. 
No further residential development would be allowed. The new zoning boundaries 
will then match the lot boundaries. Staff recommends that comments be gathered 
from the Planning and Zoning Commission and the public and a public hearing be 
set for the next Commission meeting on June 22. 
 
Mr. Holst made a motion to move the item forward to public hearing. Ms. Saul 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Crisman, 
Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays. 

 
Discussion 
& Vote 
6/22/2022 

The first item of business was a public hearing regarding a rezoning request for 2209 
North Union Road. Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided 
background information. He stated that the request is to rezone approximately 9.94 
acres of land located at 2209 North Union Road and displayed a rendering of the 
location and rezoning plat. The petitioner would like to rezone the area from R-1, 
Residential to A-1, Agriculture to allow for the addition of one residential structure.  
 
Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch 
and Saul), and 0 nays. 

 

 
Attachments: Location Map 
  Rezoning Plat 
  Zoning Illustration  
 Letter of Request 
  Published Public Notice 

118

Item 7.



Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission 

June 8, 2022 

Corporate Limits 

Location 
Map 

 

2209 N Union Road 
R-1 to A-1 
 

119

Item 7.



120

Item 7.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Thomas Weintraut, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO._____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA FOR APPROXIMATELY 9.94 ACRES OF LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN, 

REMOVING SAID AREA FROM THE R-1, RESIDENCE DISTRICT AND ADDING IT TO 

THE A-1, AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 
 

 

WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission to 

rezone approximately a 0.98 acre portion of the property located at 2209 N Union Road and 

8.86 acres of a 17.86 acre parcel located adjacent to the south of 2209 N Union Road from the 

R-1: Residence District, to A-1, Agricultural District: and  

 

WHEREAS, said A-1, Agricultural District allows for the establishment a single-unit 

residential dwelling on a lot of record as of August 1, 1979 and recognizes the A-1: Agriculture 

District as a holding district for property(s) until services are available; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the rezoning request and 

find that said rezoning is consistent with the City of Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan and the 

intent of the A-1, Agricultural District; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval of said 

rezoning under case #RZ22-002; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to be in the best interests of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve said rezoning; and 
 

  WHEREAS, Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III, 

Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, attached 

thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; and 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

121

Item 7.



 
Section 1. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 

amended to show the property legally described below, as now being in the A-l, Agricultural District, 

and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as 

amended. 

 

The West 1450.0 feet of the North 300.0 feet of the Northwest Quarter (NW ¼) of Section 

Three (3), Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the Fifth (5TH) 

Principal Meridian, except the North 70 feet of the East 700 feet of the Northwest Fractional 

Quarter of said Section 3, and that part of West 1450.0 feet of the South 300.0 feet of the 

Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of Section Thirty-four (34) Township Ninety (90) North, Range 

Fourteen (14) West of the Fifth (5th) Principal Meridian, Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying 

within the Southeast Quarter of said Southwest Quarter except that parcel of Land recorded 

on File 2018-00018291 in the office of the Black Hawk County Recorder.  

 

 

INTRODUCED:                    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

         _________________________ 

ATTEST:        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

122

Item 7.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: July 8, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Petition from City Council to amend the Downtown Character District (TA22-003) 
 

 
The City Council directed staff to forward to the Planning and Zoning Commission their request 
for additional amendments to the recently adopted Downtown Character District code. They 
request that the Planning and Zoning Commission reconsider their previous recommendation to 
have all site plans reviewed and approved administratively by staff without additional Planning 
and Zoning Commission review.  
 
Background 
 
The Downtown Character District regulations were adopted by City Council on November 1, 
2021. These new zoning regulations are intended to implement the Imagine Downtown! Vision 
Plan adopted in November of 2019. The second phase of the project was to draft zoning 
regulations to encourage future development that is consistent with the adopted Vision.  The 
draft code was presented to the public in February, 2021. The Commission considered the new 
code at four special work sessions and held 3 public hearings to consider public comments and 
suggestions for changes to the code.  The Commission discussed all proposed changes to the 
draft and made decisions on each one before forwarding a final draft to the City Council for 
consideration in May 2021.  The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommended draft was 
reviewed at five City Council Committee of the Whole/ Work Session before a public hearing 
was scheduled. The draft was discussed at three separate readings before being adopted on 
November 1, 2021.  
 
Council Petition: Re-establish Planning and Zoning Commission review of site plans for 
development in the Downtown Character District.  
 
During the initial review of the new code, the Planning and Zoning Commission discussed the 
pros and cons of continuing the practice of P&Z review of all site plans for development in the 
downtown. After discussion, the Commission decided to keep the new code as proposed 
without additional Planning and Zoning Commission Review.  The following pros and cons are 
excerpted from the decision matrix, which was the tool used to carefully consider all requests for 
changes to the draft code (see item #8 in the attached decision matrix from April 2021).  
 
 

123

Item 8.



 
 

Issue: Include a design review process/role for P&Z 
 
Pros:  

 Provides for more public scrutiny of development projects in the 
downtown area.  

 Provides additional reassurance that a project will be consistent with the 
vision for downtown.  

 
Cons:  

 One of the goals of the Downtown Zoning Code update was to streamline 
the development review process and move toward by-right approvals for 
those projects that meet a set of objective form-based standards. The 
benefits of this approach are to a) provide a greater level of predictability 
for property owners, developers, and neighbors; b) move away from the 
time and expense of negotiating individual projects in the Downtown 
district, particularly if it requires project redesign or additional legal fees; 
and c) remove the subjectivity of the public review process, where 
individual opinions can cause projects that otherwise meet the standards 
to be redesigned adding cost to the project.   

 

 From a fairness and equity standpoint, [review at P&Z] can also give 
undue influence to particularly persuasive or well-connected applicants or 
to those who may simply want to prevent development from occurring.   

 

 The purpose of establishing the staff Zoning Review Committee is to 
ensure that development projects meet the adopted standards, but also 
to assist applicants in their understanding of the intent of the provisions of 
the code, so they can achieve a more cohesive design, so in essence will 
serve as an administrative design review. 

 
Staff notes that site plans in previous zoning districts that surrounded the Central Business 
District Overlay (R-3, R-4, C-2, C-1, etc.) did not require Planning and Zoning Commission and 
City Council review and approval. It was only within the Central Business District Overlay where 
all improvements to existing buildings and all new buildings proposed were subject to P&Z and 
Council review.  
 
At the Commission’s March 23, 2022 meeting staff forwarded the petition from the City Council 
for discussion. The Commission discussed the following non-exhaustive list of potential options 
for discussion ranging from least P&Z oversight to full review by P&Z and Council. At that 
meeting the Commission directed staff to bring back proposed code amendments according to 
the 3rd option below (highlighted) and noted that they would also like to be updated on site plans 
that are under review in the Downtown Character District on a monthly basis.  
 
Options Considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission:  
 

1. Maintain the currently adopted process for site plan review – administrative review by 
staff. If a proposed project meets the code requirements it will be approved. If it does 
not, it will be denied.  
  

124

Item 8.



 
 

2. Maintain the currently adopted process for site plan review, but for an initial period of 
time (one year? two years?) have staff provide a monthly report to the Commission on 
the site plans under administrative review in the Downtown Character District, so that the 
Commission can monitor, ask questions, discuss concerns, and if necessary initiate 
code amendments if problems arise. This would also provide an opportunity for staff to 
note any code provisions that may not be working as intended and to suggest solutions.  
 

3. Require new buildings in the Urban General, Urban General 2, and Storefront frontages 
to be reviewed by P&Z to confirm staff administrative review decisions. 
 

4. Require all new buildings in the Downtown Character District to be reviewed by P&Z to 
confirm staff administrative decisions, including in the Neighborhood frontages.  
 

5. Require all site plans (including all new buildings, all changes to existing buildings, 
projecting signs, site changes) to be reviewed by P&Z and approved by City Council (as 
was previously done in the CBD Overlay).   

 
Staff drafted the attached amendments to the zoning code based on the Commission’s 
direction, with an additional step to the approval process as advised by the City Attorney. He 
advised that if there is a desire to have Planning and Zoning Commission review certain site 
plans, that it would be best to establish a process that is similar to the other zoning districts (e.g. 
MU, HWY-1, MPC Districts) where the Commission is a recommending body to the City Council 
and the final decisions are made by the City Council. This would add an additional step to what 
is noted in option 3 above, which proposes that the Commission would be the decision-making 
body and additional review and approval by Council would not be needed. 
 
In summary, the effect of these changes will be to require site plans for new buildings proposed 
in the Urban General, Urban General 2, and Storefront frontages in the Downtown Character 
District to be reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and approved by City Council.  
 
The proposed changes to the code language were introduced and discussed at the May 25th 
Commission meeting. The Commission agreed that what was proposed was consistent with 
their direction to staff with the additional change recommended by the City Attorney and various 
other minor adjustments to the language for clarification and consistency. The Commission set a 
public hearing on the proposed amendments for their June 8th meeting.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Following the public hearing on June 8th, on a vote of 9-0, the Planning 
and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the attached amendments to the zoning 
ordinance and forward the proposed ordinance to the City Council for consideration.   
 
Attachments:  

 Ordinance with the proposed changes to the zoning code 

 Red-lined draft of the proposed changes to the zoning code 

 P&Z Decision Matrix from April 2021 

 Minutes from P&Z discussions attached on the following pages 
 

 

 

 
 

125

Item 8.



 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 

Introduction 

03/23/22 
The Commission then considered a zoning text amendment to add a requirement for 
Planning and Zoning review of site plans in the CD-DT. Chair Leeper introduced the 
item and Ms. Howard provided background information. She explained that some 
commission members were not on the commission when the new code was 
discussed, so she will be providing some background information again. She 
explained that there was concern and frustration with the fact that it seemed as 
though a great deal of projects had to come through the commission for approval. 
The idea behind the new code was to create more clear and objective standards in 
the code, making less reason to have an extra review by the Commission. She 
discussed the role of the Commission, which includes planning for the future growth 
of the city, making recommendations on legislative matters related to planning and 
zoning (amendments to the zoning code, changes to zoning map, etc.) and making 
recommendations on subdivision of land, including street extensions and proposals 
for parks. Review of site plans was not one of the official listed duties and was added 
to the code later for certain newer zoning and overlay districts.  
 
Ms. Howard discussed potential options which include: 

1. Maintain the code as currently adopted 
2. Maintain as currently adopted, but staff provides monthly report to the 

Commission on site plans under review. 
3. Require new buildings in the UG, UG2 and Storefront frontages to be 

reviewed and approved by Planning and Zoning. 
4. Require all new buildings in the Downtown Character District to be reviewed 

and approved by Planning and Zoning 
5. Require all site plans to be reviewed by Planning and Zoning and approved by 

City Council as was previously done in the CBD Overlay. 
 
Mr. Larson feels that one of the primary objectives of the new zoning ordinance was 
to provide a clear set of rules and make it easier for developers and to potentially 
remove an often unnecessary step for the process. He suggested trying out option 
two to make sure there is some kind of a review. 

 
Ms. Crisman also likes the second option and stated that she feels a bit discouraged 
by how many things have been coming back from council that the commission has 
put so much work into. She’s not sure that adding another thing for approval is a 
great idea if things that have been worked so hard on are going to come back again. 
She likes the idea of staying in the loop and checking in on the work already done. 
 
Mr. Holst feels that the new zoning process is a lot more efficient and less subjective 
so it is easier to check things through. The only thing that will be unfortunate to lose is 
the chance for public input. He also said that Planning and Zoning is a check for staff.  

 
Mr. Leeper agreed with the comments from the Commission and stated that it is a 
tough place to be. He likes the second option and asked if there is a mechanism that 
would allow the planning and zoning commission to pull an item in for approval.  
 
Mr. Hartley feels that it would be nice to have an overview for projects, maybe in the 
form of a monthly report so that the Commission can decide if they should take a 
closer look. His concern isn’t just with the Commission not being able to see what is 
going to happen, but to give the public a chance to comment as well. 

 
Ms. Howard stated that there needs to be a clear path created to deciding on whether 
a project needs to be considered by the Commission. After further conversation, the 

126

Item 8.



 
 

general direction from the Commission to go with a mixture of options two and three.  

 
Review of 

proposed 

amendments 

5/25/2022 

The Commission then considered Zoning Text Amendment and review of certain site 
plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT). Chair Leeper introduced the item 
and Ms. Howard provided background information with regard to previously 
discussed potential options for the review of site plans in the Downtown Character 
District. She discussed the proposed code language and showed a rendering of the 
frontage designations within the downtown area where P&Z and Council review of 
site plans would be required if these changes are adopted. She displayed the 
clarified/updated code language being proposed and explained what those changes 
mean and asked if there were any questions. Staff recommended that the 
Commission discuss the draft text amendment, provide direction, and consider setting 
a date of public hearing for the June 8 meeting. 
 
Ms. Saul commented that the code changes proposed reflect what the Commission 
discussed and asked for. There was brief discussion with regard to different aspects 
of the changes.  
 
A public hearing was set for the Commission meeting on June 8, 2022. 
 

   

Public hearing and 

Vote 

6/8/2022 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a zoning text amendment 
with regard to review of certain site plans in the CD-DT District. Chair Leeper 
introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background information. She explained 
that it is currently on the table to change the zoning code to require new buildings in 
the Urban General (UG), Urban General 2 (UG2) and Storefront frontages to be 
reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission. She displayed a rendering of the 
Character District and the frontage destinations where the proposed amendments 
would apply. She offered to answer any questions about the proposed code changes 
and recommended that that Commission open the public hearing, discuss and make 
a recommendation to City Council on the proposed amendments. 
 
Ms. Saul asked about the process if a residence is going to add square footage. Ms. 
Howard stated that this text amendment only addresses new buildings.  
 
Mr. Holst clarified that this amendment addresses concerns about new construction 
and public input. Mr. Leeper added that this is a check and balance for significant 
projects in the area. Mr. Larson noted that the amendment could be revisited after a 
year to see if it is still necessary. 
 
Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, 
Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays. 
 

 

 

 

 

127

Item 8.



Prepared by: Karen Howard, P&CS Manager, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO CLARIFY TERMINOLOGY AND ESTABLISH 

NEW PROCEDURES FOR REVIEW OF SITE PLANS FOR 

DEVELOPMENT IN THE DOWNTOWN CHARACTER DISTRICT 

BY AMENDING SECTION 26-191, INTRODUCTION TO 

CHARACTER DISTRICTS AND DEFINITIONS, UNDER DIVISION 

2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND 

DISTRICT REGULATIONS; AND SECTION 26-36, SITE PLAN 

REVIEW, PROPORTIONATE COMPLIANCE DETERMINATIONS, 

AND MINOR ADJUSTMENTS, AND SECTION 26-37, SITE PLAN,  

UNDER DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, UNDER ARTICLE II, 

ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT; ALL WITHIN 

CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

WHEREAS, the Downtown Character District zoning regulations, adopted November 1, 

2021, established procedures for the review of site plans for development within the Downtown 

Character District; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has petitioned the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to consider requiring Planning and Zoning Commission Review of development 

proposals in the Downtown Character District rather than administrative review and approval; 

and 

WHEREAS, at a public hearing on June 8, 2022, the Planning and  

Zoning Commission recommended approval of zoning code amendments to clarify the 

procedures for review of site plans in the Downtown Character District and to require Planning 

and Zoning Commission review and City Council approval of site plans for new buildings in the 

Urban General, Urban General 2, and Storefront frontages, with all other site plans to be 

reviewed administratively (TA22-003);  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Section 1: Subsection C, Applicability, of Section 26-191, Introduction to Character Districts 

and Definitions,  within Division 2 Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District 

Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:  
 

C.  Applicability and Development Review 

1. Where an adopted Regulating Plan is shown on the zoning map, these Character 
District standards immediately apply at the parcel level.  

2. All applications for development or redevelopment within a Character District shall be 
reviewed and approved according to the procedures set forth in Section 26-36 
through Section 26-39. Applications shall be administratively reviewed and approved, 
except for site plans for new buildings on property designated as Urban General, 

128

Item 8.



Urban General 2, or Storefront on an adopted Regulating Plan. For new buildings on 
property designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront on an adopted 
Regulating Plan, the Zoning Administrator, in consultation with the Zoning Review 
Committee and Technical Review Committee, shall prepare and forward a report 
along with the site plan and supporting documents to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council for review and approval according to procedures set 
forth in Section 26-36(d), Review and Decision-making. 

 

Section 2: Section 26-36, within Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Administration and 

Enforcement, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof: 

Sec. 26-36. Site Plan Review, Proportionate Compliance Determinations, and Minor 

Adjustments 

(a) GENERAL APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

Applications and submittal materials required for site plan review, proportionate 
compliance determinations, and minor adjustments under this Chapter shall be 
submitted on forms and in such numbers as required by the City. The applicable filing 
fee shall be paid at the time the application is filed. Additional fees may be required 
for re-submittals. Fees are determined by resolution of the City Council.  

(b) APPLICATION  COMPLETENESS REVIEW 

(1) Applications shall not be processed until all fees and materials have been 
submitted and are deemed complete in form and content such that 
recommendations, as required, and a decision may be made on the application by 
the Zoning Administrator, or other decision-making body, as specified in this 
chapter. The Zoning Administrator shall determine application completeness.  

(2) If an application is deemed incomplete, the Zoning Administrator shall notify the 
applicant of the specific submittal requirements that have not been met.  

(3) If an application is deemed incomplete, the applicant must resubmit the materials 
required to complete the application within 30 days of the date notified of the 
insufficiency of the application.  
a. An incomplete application that has not been revised to meet the completeness 

requirements shall expire on the 30th day.  An expired application shall be 
returned to the applicant along with any original documents submitted in 
support of the application.  

b. The City, at its discretion, may retain the application fee paid. Once an 
application has expired, the application must be resubmitted in full, including 
payment of the application fee. 

(c) REVIEW, REFERRAL, AND RECOMMENDATION 

(1) Upon submission of an application, the Zoning Administrator shall review the 
application and accompanying documentation to determine whether the 
information included in the application is sufficient to evaluate the application 
against the approval criteria of the procedure or permit requested. 

(2) The Zoning Administrator may refer any application to the Zoning Review 
Committee (ZRC) or Technical Review Committee (TRC) for review and 
recommendation.  

(d) REVIEW AND DECISION-MAKING 

(1) Applications shall be reviewed for conformance with all applicable provisions of 
this Code.  

129

Item 8.



(2) To be approved, an application shall be fully consistent with the standards of this 
Code, unless a minor adjustment is concurrently approved to allow specified 
deviation from applicable standards.  

(3) Except as specified in paragraph (4) below, after consultation with the TRC and 
ZRC, as applicable, the Zoning Administrator shall approve or deny applications 
for site plan review and minor adjustments and shall make determinations 
regarding proportionate compliance and provide written notification of the decision 
to the applicant. If an application is denied, the written notification shall include the 
reasons for denial. Administrative decisions are appealable pursuant to Section 
26-62.  

(4) For any site plan that requires Planning and Zoning Commission and/or City 
Council review and approval, as set forth in this Chapter, the Zoning Administrator 
shall prepare a staff report and recommendation based on the approval criteria, 
standards and requirements of this Code, and any other applicable policies and 
regulations. The staff report and recommendation shall be forwarded to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission for its review and recommendation to the City 
Council. If the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends denial, the site plan 
shall not be forwarded to the City Council, unless so requested by the applicant in 
writing. After consideration of the staff report and the Planning and Zoning 
Commission’s recommendation, the City Council may approve, approve with 
conditions, or deny the site plan. If a site plan is denied, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and/or City Council, as applicable, shall state the reasons for denial.  

 

Section 3: Section 26-37, Site Plan, within Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Administration and 

Enforcement, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof: 

Sec. 26-37. Site Plan  
(a) APPLICABILITY 

The purpose of this section is to set forth the procedures and criteria for review and 
approval of site plans, which shall include when referenced in this Chapter, site 
development plans, development plans, or similar.  Site plans are technical documents 
that illustrate how the structure(s), layout of an area, and proposed uses meet the 
requirements of this chapter and any other applicable ordinances, standards, 
regulations, and with all previously approved plans applicable to the property.  

(b) AUTHORITY 

A site plan is required for: 

(1) Character Districts 

a. Any application for development in a character district. 
b. All requests for structures, architectural elements or accessory structures (e.g., 

front porch, front yard fence) at or forward of the required building line, and 
accessory or temporary uses; however, for minor accessory structures not 
located forward of the required building line, such as sheds, fences, or decks, 
the site plan shall only be required to show the location of the proposed 
structure or addition in relation to property boundaries, required setbacks, 
easements, and terrain changes as more fully detailed in this Code. 

130

Item 8.



(2) All Other Zoning Districts 

a. Any application for commercial, industrial, institutional, or multi-unit residential 
development;  

b. Any application for development requiring site plan review, site development 
plan review, development plan review, plan review, or similar review as set 
forth elsewhere in this chapter.  

(c) APPLICATION PROCEDURES 
(1) A pre-application meeting with the Zoning Review Committee (ZRC) is required 

prior to the submission of a site plan application for development in a character 
district. Pre-application meetings are optional but encouraged for all other 
applications. 

(2) The applicant shall submit the site plan application to the Planning and Community 
Services Division. Application submittal deadlines and requirements shall be 
established on submittal forms available from the Planning and Community 
Services Division and on the City’s website.   

(d) DECISION CRITERIA 
The site plan shall be reviewed against the following criteria:  

(1) The site plan is consistent with all applicable adopted plans and policies; and 
(2) The site plan is consistent with any prior approvals, including any conditions that 

may have been placed on such approvals; and  
(3) The site plan conforms with all applicable requirements of this Code, or with all 

applicable requirements as modified by an approved minor adjustment. 

(e) EFFECT 
(1) Approved site plans shall be binding upon the property owner(s) and their 

successors and assigns.   
(2) No building, structure, use or other element of the approved site plan shall be 

modified without amending the site plan, unless it is determined by the City that 
such modification will not require an amended site plan.   

(3) All buildings, structures and uses shall remain in conformance with the approved 
site plan or be subject to enforcement action. 

(f) POST-APPROVAL ACTIONS 

(1) Expiration  

a. Approved site plans shall expire one year after approval if the applicable 
permit(s) for the proposed development have not been issued. In the event 
that the documents expire due to the passage of this time period, new site 
plan review documents must be submitted for approval in the same manner as 
an original application for site plan review.   

b. For good cause, an extension not to exceed one year may be granted by the 
Zoning Administrator. Requests for an extension must be in writing stating the 
reasons for such request.  

(2) Modifications to Site Plans  
The holder of an approved site plan may request an adjustment to the document, 
or the conditions of approval, by submitting either an application for minor 
adjustment or an amended site plan, whichever is appropriate, to the Zoning 
Administrator. An amended site plan shall be filed and processed in accordance 
with the procedures specified in this Chapter for the initial site plan submittal, or as 
otherwise specified in this Chapter. 

 

INTRODUCED:        

131

Item 8.



PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 
____________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

132

Item 8.



Note that in the red-lined version of the proposed code amendments, the strike-through 
notation indicates language to be deleted. Underlined text is new language added.  All 
other language is unchanged and is included to provide context for the changes 
proposed.   

Amend Section 26-191C., Applicability, as follows:  

C.  Applicability and Development Review 

 1.  Where an adopted Regulating Plan is shown on the zoning map, these Character District 

standards immediately apply at the parcel level.  

 2. The process for developing or redeveloping within a Character District is delineated in 

Section 26-36 through Section 26-39. All applications for development or redevelopment 

within a Character District shall be reviewed and approved according to the procedures 

set forth in Section 26-36 through Section 26-39. Applications shall be administratively 

reviewed and approved, except for site plans for new buildings on property designated 

as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront on an adopted Regulating Plan. For 

new buildings on property designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront 

on an adopted Regulating Plan, the Zoning Administrator, in consultation with the Zoning 

Review Committee and Technical Review Committee, shall prepare and forward a report 

along with the site plan and supporting documents to the Planning and Zoning 

Commission and City Council for review and approval according to procedures set forth 

in Section 26-36(d), Review and Decision-making. 

Amend Section 26-36 and 26-37, as follows:  

Sec. 26-36. Administrative Determination Site Plan Review, Proportionate Compliance 

Determinations, and Minor Adjustments 

(a) APPLICABILITY GENERAL APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

The Zoning Administrator shall review and decide upon applications for the following 
administrative reviews and code adjustments in consultation with the Zoning Review 
Committee(ZRC) and/or the staff Technical Review Committee, as applicable. Some of 
these processes have additional review and approval requirements; a cross-reference to 
those requirements is provided in the right column.  

Permit or Adjustment Additional Review Requirements 

Site Plan Section 26-37.D 

Proportionate 
Compliance 

n/a 

Minor Adjustment Section 26-39.E 

Applications and submittal materials required for site plan review, proportionate 
compliance determinations, and minor adjustments under this Chapter shall be submitted 
on forms and in such numbers as required by the City. The applicable filing fee shall be 
paid at the time the application is filed. Additional fees may be required for re-submittals. 
Fees are determined by resolution of the City Council.  

(b) APPLICATION  COMPLETENESS REVIEW 

(1) Applications shall not be processed until all fees and materials have been submitted 
and are deemed sufficient complete in form and content such that recommendations, 

133

Item 8.



as required, and a decision may be made on the application by the Zoning 
Administrator, or other decision-making body, as specified in this chapter. The Zoning 
Administrator shall determine application sufficiency completeness.  

(2) If an application is deemed insufficient incomplete, the Zoning Administrator shall 
inform the applicant of the specific submittal requirements that have not been met. The 
Zoning Administrator may provide notice in writing, electronically, or in conversation 
with the applicant.   

(3) If an application is deemed insufficient incomplete, the applicant must resolve and 
resubmit the materials required to complete the application within 30 days of the date 
informed of the insufficiency of the application.  
a. An insufficient incomplete application that has not been revised to meet the 

completeness requirements shall expire on the 30th day.  An expired application 
shall be returned to the applicant along with any original documents submitted in 
support of the application.  

b. The City, at its discretion, may retain the application fee paid. Once an application 
has expired, the application must be resubmitted in full, including payment of the 
application fee. 

(c) REVIEW, REFERRAL, AND RECOMMENDATION 

(1) Upon submission of an application, the Zoning Administrator shall review the 
application and accompanying documentation to determine whether the information 
included in the application is sufficient to evaluate the application against the approval 
criteria of the procedure or permit requested. 

(2) The Zoning Administrator may refer any application to the Zoning Review Committee 
(ZRC) or Technical Review Committee (TRC) for review and recommendation.  

(d) REVIEW AND DECISION-MAKING 

(1) The Zoning Administrator shall review the Applications shall be reviewed for 
conformance with all applicable provisions of this Code chapter.  

(2) To be approved, an application shall be fully consistent with the standards of this 
chapter Code unless a minor adjustment is concurrently approved to allow specified 
deviation from applicable standards. An administrative approval may include 
instructions and clarifications regarding compliance with this Code, but shall not be 
approved with conditions that require action beyond the specific requirements of the 
City Code of Ordinances.   

(3) Except as specified in paragraphs (4) below, after consultation with the TRC and ZRC, 
as applicable, the Zoning Administrator shall approve or deny the applications for site 
plan review and minor adjustments and shall make determinations regarding 
proportionate compliance and provide written notification of the decision to the 
applicant. If an application is denied, the written notification shall include the reasons 
for denial. Administrative decisions are appealable pursuant to Section 26-62.  
 

(4) For any site plan that requires Planning and Zoning Commission and/or City Council 
review and approval, as set forth in this Chapter, the Zoning Administrator shall 
prepare a staff report and recommendation based on the approval criteria, standards 
and requirements of this Code, and any other applicable policies and regulations. The 
staff report and recommendation shall be forwarded to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for its review and recommendation to the City Council. If the Planning and 
Zoning Commission recommends denial, the site plan shall not be forwarded to the 
City Council, unless so requested by the applicant in writing. After consideration of the 
staff report and the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation, the City 
Council may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the site plan. If a site plan is 

134

Item 8.



denied, the Planning and Zoning Commission and/or City Council, as applicable, shall 
state the reasons for denial.  

 
(e) APPEAL 

1. Administrative determinations are appealable pursuant to Section 26-62. 

Sec. 26-37. Site Plan  

(a) APPLICABILITY 

The purpose of this section is to set forth the procedures and criteria for review and 
approval of site plans, which shall include when referenced in this Chapter, site 
development plans, development plans, or similar.  Site plans are technical documents that 
illustrate how the structure(s), layout of an area, and proposed uses meet the requirements 
of this chapter and any other applicable ordinances, standards, regulations, and with all 
previously approved plans applicable to the property.  

(b) AUTHORITY 

A site plan is required for: 

(1) Character Districts 

a. Any application for development in a character district. 
b. All requests for structures, architectural elements or accessory structures (front 

porch, front yard fence) at or forward of the required building line, and accessory 
or temporary uses; however, for minor accessory structures not located forward of 
the required building line, such as sheds, fences, or decks, the site plan shall only 
be required to show the location of the proposed structure or addition in relation to 
property boundaries, required setbacks, easements, and terrain changes as more 
fully detailed in this Code; 

(2) Traditional Zone Districts All other Zoning Districts 

a. Any application for a commercial, industrial, institutional, or multi-unit residential 
dwelling project development;  

b. Any application for development requiring site plan review, site development plan 
review, development plan review, plan review, or similar review as set forth 
elsewhere in this chapter.  

(c) APPLICATION PROCEDURES 

(1) A pre-application meeting with the Zoning Review Committee (ZRC) is required prior to 
the submission of a site plan application for development in a character district. Pre-
application meetings are optional and encouraged for all other applications. 

(2) The applicant shall submit the site plan application to the Planning and Community 
Services Division. Application submittal deadlines and requirements shall be 
established on submittal forms available from the Planning and Community Services 
Division and on the City’s website.   

(d) DECISION CRITERIA 

The site plan shall be reviewed against the following criteria:  

(1) The site plan is consistent with all applicable adopted plans and policies; 
(2) The site plan is consistent with any prior approvals, including any conditions that may 

have been placed on such approvals; and  
(3) The site plan conforms with all applicable requirements of this Code the Code of 

Ordinances, or with all applicable requirements as modified by a request for a an 
approved minor adjustment. 

(e) LIMITATION OF APPROVAL 

135

Item 8.



Zoning Administrator approval of a site plan does not in any way imply approval by any 
other City department. 

(f) EFFECT 

(1) Approved site plans shall be binding upon the property owner(s) and their successors 
and assigns.   

(2) No permit shall be issued for any building, structure, or use that does not conform to an 
approved site plan.   

(3) No building, structure, use or other element of the approved site plan shall be modified 
without amending the site plan, unless it is determined by the City that such 
modification will not require an amended site plan.   

(4) All buildings, structures and uses shall remain in conformance with the approved site 
plan or be subject to enforcement action. 

(g) POST-APPROVAL ACTIONS 

(1) Expiration  

a. Approved site plans shall expire one year after approval if the applicable permit(s) 
for the proposed development a building permit has have not been issued. or the 
approved use established. In the event that the documents expire due to the 
passage of this time period, new site plan review documents must be submitted for 
approval in the same manner as an original application for development review.   

b. For good cause, an extension not to exceed one year may be granted by the 
Zoning Administrator. Requests for an extension must be in writing stating the 
reasons for such request.  

(2) Modifications to Site plans  

The holder of an approved site plan may request an adjustment to the document, or 
the conditions of approval, by submitting either an application for minor adjustment or 
an amended site plan, whichever is appropriate, to the Zoning Administrator. An 
amended site plan shall be filed and processed in accordance with the procedures 
specified in this Chapter for the an initial site plan submittal, or as otherwise specified 
in this Chapter.  

 

136

Item 8.



 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT OF THE DOWNTOWN ZONING CODE 
 

26-193 – Building Form Standards 

  
Proposed Amendment 

 
Explanatory Notes 

 
Consultant/Staff 
Recommendation 

P&Z Discussion   
(Date) 

P&Z Decision 

 
1 

 
Requestor: Consultant/staff   
 
Change Building Form Standards (BFS) 
Section 193.5 Neighborhood Small 
Frontage B. Placement 4. Buildable 
Area to allow Private Open Area to be 
above grade for lots with less than 70 ft 
of depth. 

 
Technical Fix: This better accommodates rowhouses on 
especially shallow lots (such as many of the lots along 2nd 
Street, as shown in the Vision Plan) with their 66ft 
width/depth. This will make Neighborhood Small consistent 
with Neighborhood Medium. 

 
Consultant/staff are in support of 
this amendment.  

 
Commission 
directed staff to 
make the change.  

 
Amendment 
Approved  
 

 
2 

 
Requestor: Consultant/staff  
 
Change Required Building Line (RBL) 
on the Downtown Regulating Plan, on 
the north side of W 2nd St. from Franklin 
St. to the western border of the District. 
The RBL should be moved forward an 
additional 5ft, from 15ft to 10ft off the 
front property line.   

 
Technical Fix: This is for consistency with the RBL to the 
east of Franklin (Urban General 2) and better 
accommodates rowhouses fronting 2nd Street (as shown in 
the Vision Plan) within the shallower (66ft) depth of many of 
those lots.  
 
This keeps the building form and scale consistent with the 
Neighborhood Small designation, but allows room for both 
parking and for usable ground floor space within the 
buildings.  

 
Consultant/staff are in support of 
this amendment to the Downtown 
Character District Regulating Plan.  
 

 
Commission 
directed staff to 
make the change. 

 
Amendment 
Approved 
 

 
3 

 
Requestor: Staff 

a) Insure consistency of terms 
between new proposed Section 
26-140. Use-Specific 
Standards, Category 
Descriptions, and Definitions 
and proposed Section 26-197. 
Building Functions;  

b) Clarify language in Character 
District Use Table introductory 
paragraph concerning additional 
standards that apply 

 
Technical Fix:  
a) Because drafting was an iterative process, additional 
revisions were made to Section 26-140, Use Classification, 
after the public review draft of Downtown Character District 
Code (Section 26-197) was released. This is a simple 
clean-up to make sure terms are internally consistent. Also 
to correct the Code Section number of the Use 
Classification to Sec. 26-140 (not 26-132).   
 
b) Make clear that additional development and performance 
standards apply above and beyond the broad permitted use 
categories. 

 
Consultant/staff are in support of 
these amendments 
 

 
Commission 
directed staff to 
make these 
changes.  

Amendment 
Approved  
 

137

Item 8.



 
4 

 
Requestor: Staff 
 
Correct outline format, as needed 

 
Technical Fix: Some outline numbers are out of sequence 
and need correction 

 
Consultant/staff are in support of 
this amendment 
 

 
Commission 
directed staff to 
make these 
changes.  

Amendment 
Approved  
 

 
5 

 
Requestor: Historical Society and 
Planning Staff 
 
Add Civic Building designations to 
Regulating Plan 

 
Technical Fix: The Cedar Falls Woman’s Club and Cedar 
Falls Historical Society Victorian House Museum and 
Museum Buildings in Sturgis Park should be identified as 
Civic Buildings.  

 
Consultant/staff are in support of 
this amendment 
 

 
Commission 
directed staff to 
make these 
changes. 

Amendment 
Approved  
 

 
6 

 
Requestor: Consultant/Staff 
 
Change to Section 26-140. Use-
Specific Standards, Category 
Descriptions, and Definitions for 
clarity, etc. 

 
Technical Fix:  Clarification concerning categorization of 
commercial assembly uses as large or small based on size 
and the other classification criteria in Section 26-140(a)(3) 
 
This will help in classifying uses appropriately in different 
zoning districts. Examples include small commercial 
assembly uses, such as theaters that fit into a main street 
area, like the Oster Regent Theater downtown versus large 
commercial assembly uses, such as a large metroplex 
theater complex located in a suburban shopping center.  

 
Consultant/staff are in support of 
this amendment 

 
Commission 
directed staff to 
make these 
changes.  

Amendment 
Approved  
 

138

Item 8.



 
7 

 
Requestor: P&Z Member Larson 
 
Change the Regulating Plan designated 
building frontage on west side of 
Overman Park from Neighborhood 
Small to Urban General 2 to 
accommodate existing businesses 
located in buildings along Franklin 
Street;  
 
or alternatively: 
 
Requestor: Tom and Dorinda Pounds 
They own a house on Franklin Street 
that was converted to office space for 
their business. They want assurance 
their business can continue, but also 
have maintained many of the historic 
residential features of the home, so it 
could be converted back to residential 
use in the future, if desired. 
 
They would like an approach to better 
accommodate existing businesses, 
while maintaining the residential 
character and scale of the area 

 
As drafted, all existing businesses can remain as non-
conforming uses. The new code requires no changes 
unless/until the owner makes a significant change to their 
business or building, at which time the standards identified 
in Section 26-38 Proportionate Compliance would apply, 
based on the [level/degree] of proposed change.  
 
The intent of the proposed limitations on new businesses in 
the Neighborhood frontage areas is to encourage their 
concentration in the core of Downtown for the synergy it 
creates and to stabilize and encourage reinvestment in the 
surrounding residential areas and preservation of the 
historic character of these areas. 
 
Options for change:  
 
Option 1: Change the regulating plan along west side of 
Franklin Street to Urban General 2. 
 

Pro: Insure existing business are not made non-
conforming 
 
Con: Change in building frontage designation affects 
more than use; it would also change the physical scale 
and character of permitted new buildings, potentially 
incentivizing the demolition of other houses in the 
neighborhood. This could potential affect the historic 
residential character along Franklin Street. Most 
businesses are located within existing residential 
structures.  

 
Option 2: Language could be added to state that all existing 
businesses at the time of code adoption are considered 
conforming, so can continue and even expand, but that no 
new businesses are permitted in the Neighborhood 
frontages. This is a similar approach we took for 
manufacturing businesses on the far east side of the study 
area.  
 
 

 
Consultant/staff are in support of 
Option 2, as it achieves the goal of 
keeping existing businesses 
conforming, but doesn’t have the 
unintended consequences noted 
with Option 1.  

 
Commission 
directed staff to 
make the changes 
per Option 2.  

 
Amendment 
Approved 
Option 2.  
 
(Note: add a 
parking 
requirement for 
non-residential 
uses in 
Neighborhood 
Frontages).  
 
 

139

Item 8.



 
8 

 
Requestor: P & Z Chair: 
Include a design review process/role for 
P&Z 

Commission expressed concern that it is difficult to legislate 
good design and that some additional design guidance may 
be needed, at least for some projects; and this process 
should be conducted through a public review process at 
P&Z and/or Council.  
 
Pros: Provides for more public scrutiny of development 
projects in the downtown area. Provides additional 
reassurance that a project will be consistent with the vision 
for downtown.  
 
Cons: One of the goals of the Downtown Zoning Code 
update was to streamline the development review process 
and move toward by-right approvals for those projects that 
meet a set of objective form-based standards. The benefits 
of this approach are to a) provide a greater level of 
predictability for property owners, developers, and 
neighbors; b) move away from the time and expense of 
negotiating individual projects in the Downtown district, 
particularly if it requires project redesign or additional legal 
fees; and c) remove the subjectivity of the public review 
process, where individual opinions can cause projects that 
otherwise meet the standards to be redesigned adding cost 
to the project.   
 
From a fairness and equity standpoint, it can also give 
undue influence to particularly persuasive or well-
connected applicants or to those who may simply want to 
prevent development from occurring.   
 
The purpose of establishing the staff Zoning Review 
Committee is to ensure that development projects meet the 
adopted standards, but also to assist applicants in their 
understanding of the intent of the provisions of the code, so 
they can achieve a more cohesive design, so in essence 
will serve as an administrative design review.  

Consultants/staff do not 
recommend adopting a pubic 
design review process at this time.  
 
If a majority of the Commission 
would still like to move forward with 
a public design review process, the 
consultants and staff will continue 
to work to determine a workable 
approach.   

Commission 
directed staff to 
keep the draft the 
same and not 
require a separate 
design review 
through P&Z and 
Council.  

No change 
recommended 

140

Item 8.



 
9 

 
Requestor: Kevin Harberts (owns two 
residential properties along 2nd Street). 
 
Change the Regulating Plan so that the 
General Urban frontage designation 
goes from the 1st Street frontage to 2nd 
Street frontage  
 
The requestor would like the option to 
create larger through lots for 
commercial uses that extend the full 
depth of the block from 1st to 2nd Street. 
 

 
The regulating plan designations between 1st and 2nd Street 
are already set up to provide more lot depth for Urban 
General along 1st Street to accommodate the larger 
footprint of many commercial buildings, leaving a shallower 
depth for the neighborhood frontage designation along 2nd 
Street, which can accommodate smaller footprint 
residential building types, such as rowhouses.  
 
Pros and Cons of making this change:  
  
Pro: Uniform building form standards for the entire parcel 
(with considerably more buildable area) 
 
Con: This would undermine the scale transition from the 
higher intensity, mixed-use 1st Street down to the less 
intense Overman Park neighborhood to the south. 
 
The code provides considerable flexibility for parcels with 
more than one frontage designation to shift the frontage 
designation to accommodate specific needs of the 
development. However, it is important for the buildings 
along both sides of 2nd Street to relate to one another, 
rather than having residential buildings facing the backs of 
1st Street businesses. The regulating plan designations 
ensure buildings of similar scale and character along both 
sides of a street.  
 

 
Consultant/staff are not in support 
of this amendment.  
 
The regulating plan already 
establishes  Urban General deeper 
into the block (from north to south) 
and leaves a rather shallow area 
along  2nd Street that will 
accommodate residential building 
forms, such as townhomes, as 
shown in the Imagine Downtown! 
Vision Plan.  

Commission 
directed staff to 
keep the 
regulating plan the 
same.  No change 
recommended.  

No change 
recommended 

141

Item 8.



 
10 

 
Requestor: Planning & Zoning 
Commission and questions from several 
members of the public.  
 
Consider the inclusion of vinyl siding as 
an approved wall material in 
Neighborhood Frontages 

 
There is concern that prohibiting vinyl siding in the 
Neighborhood Frontages could be cost prohibitive and 
encourage disinvestment in existing residential properties.  
 
The intent of the proposed prohibition was to promote more 
durable and environmentally sustainable building materials. 
(The issue is not one of aesthetics). 
 

Pro: Reduce the up-front cost of building construction 
and maintenance 
 
Con: Higher long-term costs for maintenance and 
upkeep; concerns related to durability and fire-
resistance; environmental impacts of PVC, i.e. 
produces toxic smoke when it burns and melts at a 
fairly low temperature; damaged or melted siding often 
ends up in the landfill and is not biodegradable. While it 
is possible to recycle it, there are often issues of 
contamination from dirt, nails, and mixed-in aluminum 
flashing. In contrast, wood, brick or stone have a life 
cycle of more than 100 years. The life span of vinyl is 
15 to 20 years before it becomes brittle from ultraviolet 
light and is easily damaged.   
 

If change to the ordinance is desired, following are some 
options:  

1. Maintain the prohibition of vinyl siding for new 
construction.  

2. Permit the use of vinyl siding to replace or repair 
existing vinyl siding. 

3. Permit use of vinyl siding that meets higher 
minimum standards for quality, maintenance, and 
durability, based on industry standards to replace or 
cover over other types of siding on existing single 
family dwellings.  

4. Delete the prohibition on vinyl siding from the code 
altogether, so it would be allowed on all existing and 
new buildings in the Neighborhood Frontages.  

 
 

 
Consultant/staff are particularly 
concerned about the long term 
consequences of allowing vinyl 
siding related to the noted 
environmental concerns, so 
recommend prohibiting vinyl siding 
for new construction.  
 
With regard to the second bullet 
point, the current draft already 
allows replacement of like material 
with like material for maintenance 
purposes. Consultant/staff would 
be in support of adding some 
additional language to make sure 
this is clear.  
 
Consultant/staff are not supportive 
of allowing vinyl siding to replace 
existing environmentally 
sustainable building materials, such 
as wood, stone, or brick. We feel 
that the long term costs outweigh 
the short term savings.  
 
Consultant/staff strongly 
recommend against listing vinyl 
siding as a generally allowed 
building material.  
 
 
 
 

 
Commission 
directed staff to 
move forward with 
making changes 
consistent with 1, 
2, and 3, but did 
not support option 
4.  
 
Bullet points 1 and 
2 were supported 
unanimously. 
Bullet point 3 was 
supported by a 
majority. 
 
With regard to 
bullet 1, the 
Commission 
requests that the 
language be 
clarified to indicate 
that for additions 
to existing 
buildings that have 
vinyl siding that 
vinyl siding can be 
used for the 
addition. We will 
need to discuss 
how to fit that into 
the trigger chart.   
 
Bullet point 4 was 
rejected by a 
majority. 

 
Amendments 
Approved 
according to 
bullet points 1, 
2, and 3.  
Majority of the 
Commission 
does not 
support 4.    
 
 

142

Item 8.



 
11 

Requestor: Jesse Lizer, Emergent 
Architects 
 
Permit the use of higher quality foam 
products for architectural detailing  

There is concern that the prohibition of “all other foam-
based products” in Sec. 26-194.C.5. would limit options for 
restoration of historic buildings. That was never the intent of 
this prohibition, but rather to limit the use of flimsy, easily 
damaged building materials, particularly at the street level. 
Potential change: 
 

 Delete “all other foam-based products” from the 
prohibited list and add a new item to the secondary 
materials list in Sec. 26-194.C.4. as follows: 
“Durable foam-based products, such as Fypon, may 
be used for architectural detailing.” 
 

 
Consultant/staff are in support of 
this amendment, 

Commission 
directed staff to 
make this change.  

Amendment 
Approved  
 

 
12 

 
Requestor: Staff 
 
Provide more direction for ADUs 

Concern that there is insufficient enforceability of owner-
occupancy requirement following the development of an 
ADU. Consider including a requirement for an affidavit/legal 
agreement with the City in Sec. 26-193.1.G (p.24) to be 
filed and recorded, so that it is clear to future owners or 
prospective buyers that the dwelling is not considered a 
duplex, so that the limits on size and occupancy for ADUs 
continue to be enforceable over time.   
 
The allowance for ADUs is intended to make home 
ownership more affordable and encourage investment and 
reinvestment that will help stabilize existing older 
neighborhoods surrounding downtown.   
 

Consultant/staff are in support of 
this amendment.  

Commission 
directed staff to 
make this change.  

Amendment 
Approved 
 

143

Item 8.



13 Requestor: Staff 
 
Prohibit conversion of existing single 
unit dwellings into duplexes or multi-unit 
dwellings. 
 

The new code opens up the possibility for new types of 
housing, but in a manner that ensures that new housing fits 
into the context of the neighborhood with quality design and 
a logical configuration of the dwelling units. However, the 
new standards and allowances are not intended to 
encourage existing single unit dwellings to be chopped up 
into additional units in a manner that reduces the 
functionality and livability of the dwelling and makes it less 
desirable for those seeking a long term rental opportunity or 
homeownership. As is often experienced in college towns 
this is a common practice to provide short term rentals for 
college students by converting living rooms, dining rooms, 
and other spaces to maximize the number of bedrooms. 
While providing rental housing for students is important, 
this particular practice often creates units that are not very 
conducive to long term renters and  cannot be easily or 
cost-effectively adapted or converted back to the original 
condition in response to market fluctuations, such as a drop 
in enrollment.   
 
Staff notes that making this change will keep the new code 
consistent with the City’s current conversion prohibition in 
the R1 and R2 Districts.  

Staff is in support of this change.  Commission 
directed staff to 
make this change.  

Amendment 
approved.  

 

144

Item 8.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: July 6, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:  Updates to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking Prohibited on Specific 

Streets 
 
The current no parking ordinance on South Lawn Road from Stanwood Drive to 
Melendy Lane on the east side of South Lawn extends from Stanwood to 240 feet 
south. This leaves a small section of approximately 60 feet north of Melendy Lane 
where parking is currently allowed on the east side of South Lawn. This area creates 
concerns of a congested corridor that can lead to single lane traffic and also potential 
vehicular movement conflicts onto and from Melendy Lane.  
 
The Engineering Division is recommending that the current no parking that exists on the 
east side of South Lawn Road from Stanwood Drive south to extend through to Melendy 
Lane and designated as permanently prohibited parking. This will make the parking 
prohibition on the east side of South Lawn Road more consistent along the corridor from 
Stanwood Drive to Melendy Lane.  
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking 
Prohibited on Specific Streets so the code will match the proposed limits of the no 
parking along the east side of South Lawn Road. Please see the attached changes to 
City Code Section 23-374 – Parking Prohibited on Specific Streets.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends approval to set the newly defined area to 
prohibit on-street parking. This area is highlighted in the attached map.  
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 
 
 
 
    

145

Item 9.



146

Item 9.

WickeD
Line

WickeD
Callout
Current No Parking Limits

WickeD
Line

WickeD
Line

WickeD
Line

WickeD
Callout
Proposed Area of Additional Prohibited Parking



Prepared By: David Wicke, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3013 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 23-374, PARKING PROHIBITED ON 
SPECIFIC STREETS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, 
STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY STRIKING THE SUBSECTION  PROHIBITING 
PARKING ON PORTIONS OF SOUTH LAWN ROAD, AND ENACTING A NEW 
SUBSECTION PROHIBITING PARKING ON PORTIONS OF SOUTH LAWN 
ROAD IN LIEU THEREOF.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1.  The unnumbered subsection prohibiting parking on portions of South Lawn 
Road contained in Section 23-374, Parking prohibited on specific streets, of Division 1, 
Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and 
Motor Vehicles, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new unnumbered subsection 
prohibiting parking on portions of South Lawn Road contained in Section 23-374 is 
enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 

            Street                                    Portion Where Parking Prohibited 

South Lawn Road On the east side from the north line of Bonita Boulevard 
south a distance of 200 feet. 

 
                                           On the west side from the south line of Bonita Boulevard 

south a distance of 60 feet. 
 
                                           On the east side from the south curb line of Stanwood 

Drive south to the north curb line of Melendy Lane. 
 

 

INTRODUCED:       June 20, 2022    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:     June 20, 2022    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:     July 5, 2022    

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:          

ADOPTED:             

        
 
                                                                                      ___________________________ 
                                                                                      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

147

Item 9.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 23-374. Parking prohibited on specific streets. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle at any time upon any of the 
streets or portions of streets enumerated in this section.  

Street  Portion Where  
Parking Prohibited  

South Lawn Road  On the east side from the north line of Bonita Boulevard south a distance of 200 feet.  

 On the west side from the south line of Bonita Boulevard south a distance of 60 feet.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of Stanwood Drive south to the north curb 

line of Melendy Lane a distance of 240 feet.  

 

148

Item 9.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 DATE: July 11, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Appointments to the Community Center & Senior Services Board 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §17-331: Community Center and Senior 

Services Board Membership 

  (b) Iowa Code Chapter 69.16A – Gender Balance Law 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I hereby 

appoint to the Community Center and Senior Services Board: 

 

 Ms. Tori Hale – Filling a vacancy for a term ending June 30, 2024  

 Ms. Lorene Hosler – For a full term ending on June 30, 2025 

 

2. Though the application process sought male candidates to maintain gender balance per 

reference (a), no qualified candidates applied.  For this reason, and in keeping with the 

exceptions granted in reference (a), the board will consist of 4 females and 1 male following 

the appointments in this letter.  

 

3. My thanks go to the Selection Panel, consisting of Councilor Simon Harding, Kelly Sterns 

(Library Director) and Maureen Brum (board president) for their excellent work in bring 

forward excellent candidates for final consideration. 

 

Encl: (1) General Applications for Hale and Hosler 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Finance and Business Operations 

  Library Director 

 

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

149

Item 10.



150

Item 10.



151

Item 10.



From: Sarah Corkery 

Sent: Thursday, June 23, 2022 4:02 PM 
To: Stephanie Sheetz; Rob Green 

Subject: Parks and Rec - Resignation 

Hi Stephanie and Mayor Green,   

 

I am submitting my resignation from the Parks & Board Commission in Cedar Falls effective 

immediately.  

 

I need to find more balance in my life, and I have tried to influence more inclusive play, but I 

feel I have served my duty and have nothing more to offer.  

 

I did find this Park in Hudson to be interesting. It is about $210,000. They got a 50% grant from 

BH Gaming and another big grant from the state. They only had to fundraise 10% from city 

funds.  While not ideal as the surfacing doesn't allow ALL kids to play together everywhere, it's 

a better step in the direction than a traditional park, which is all we ever discuss.  

 

Also, when Beau's Beautiful Blessings runs out of money on the repairs this year, we will be out 

of funds. The city will need to figure out how to make repairs. I would recommend the city starts 

a fund NOW to be ready in 5 years to replace the surfacing and make any updates as it is so 

much overused than we'd ever have guessed.  

 

I'm also going to meet with the McElroy Trust and Gaming Association to be sure they 

understand what truly inclusive play is -- based off universal design principles. It's so much more 

than equipment.  

 

I wish you all the best in the future.  

 

--  

Thank you,  
 

Sarah Corkery 

 

“For there is always light. If only we’re brave enough to see it. If only we’re brave enough 

to be it.” - Amanda Gorman 

 

152

Item 11.



153

Item 12.



154

Item 12.



155

Item 12.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Acting Police Chief 

Date:  July 11, 2022 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Dollar General, 1922 Valley Park Drive, Class C Beer & Class B Wine - renewal. 

b) Smokin Oak Wood Fired Pizza, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class B beer – 
renewal. 

c) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

d) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 

e) Octopus, 2205 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

f) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

g) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street – Plaza, Special Class C liquor & outdoor 
service – temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (September 3-4, 2022) 

156

Item 13.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M
Human Resources Division

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager 

 DATE: July 11, 2022 

 SUBJECT: FY23 Employee Climate Survey Agreement  

 

Attached for your approval is an agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and the 
University of Northern Iowa for the FY23 Employee Climate Survey. An employee 
survey was a Council goal as stated in FY23 Detailed Objective S.C.1 City Council goal 
document. As a part of this survey, we will be asking additional questions to gain a 
better understanding of the culture and climate within the Public Safety Division. 
Several vendors/sources were reviewed, and UNI was selected as best meeting our 
needs with the benefit of serving as a local resource.  
 
If you have questions regarding the attached, feel free to contact me at 319-268-5531. 
 
Attachment 

157

Item 14.



158

Item 14.



159

Item 14.



160

Item 14.



161

Item 14.



162

Item 14.



163

Item 14.



Director Research & Sponsored Programs 07/11/2022

Tolif R. Hunt Digitally signed by Tolif R. Hunt 
Date: 2022.07.11 14:49:23 -05'00'

164

Item 14.



165

Item 14.



166

Item 14.



167

Item 14.



168

Item 14.



169

Item 14.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M
Human Resources Division

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager 

 DATE: July 8, 2022 

 SUBJECT: FY23 COOP Agreement with the Iowa Civil Rights Commission 

 

Attached for your approval is a cooperative agreement between the Cedar Falls Human 
Rights Commission (CFHRC) and the Iowa Civil Rights Commission (ICRC) for FY23.  
While the CFHRC’s focus remains on advocacy, education, and outreach, the 
agreement serves as the mechanism that allows the City to direct complainants to file 
directly with the ICRC.   
 
If you have questions regarding the attached, feel free to contact me at 319-268-5531. 
 
Attachment 

170

Item 15.



171

Item 15.



172

Item 15.



173

Item 15.



174

Item 15.



175

Item 15.



176

Item 15.



177

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

Information Systems Division 
 

 TO: Mayor Rob Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

 DATE: July 11, 2022 

 SUBJECT: M365 Migration 

 

Our current Microsoft Office and Exchange server is end of life and required to be replaced by September 1 to be in good standing with our 
cyber security insurance.   
 
Because of this mandate, we deemed this purchase as an emergency purchase and asked for quotes directly from four different vendors 
instead of sending Request for Quotes and waiting for replies.  We gave each vendor the same requirements: we needed migration services and 
Microsoft Licenses for a certain number of users and the Microsoft tenant needed to be in the Government services portal of Azure because of 
CJIS.   
 
We started this process on June 10 with our first vendor.  We just recently received quotes from two vendors, and one vendor had to withdraw 
because they cannot implement government licensing.  
 
 

Vendor Total Implementation Cost   

Heartland Business Systems  Total Services for Migration - $37185.00 plus committed 

to a Sept 1 completion date 

Microsoft licensing subscription of $5893.20 /month 

Marco  Total Services for Migration - $11809.00 

Microsoft licensing subscription of $5893.20/month 

Suggested Backup services $547.40 a month optional 

Insight – currently has the State of Iowa’s Microsoft 

licensing 

We met with them on June 14, after I asked for a status 

on the quote, they requested we fill out a questionnaire 

on July 10, I requested twice that they give us a quote 

and as of this date we have not heard back. 

IP Pathways Could not quote government Microsoft Licensing 

  

We recommend going with the Heartland Business Systems although their quote was higher than Marco’s they included items like end user 
training for Microsoft Teams, which will be recorded and given to use for future training, system administration training and they are Microsoft 
Partner.  They also committed to a September 1 completion in order to meet our Cyber Security Insurance requirement.    
 
This project was budgeted for $50,000 a year starting in Fiscal year 22 in the Network Upgrades line item.  The Services portion will utilize the 
Penetration Security testing Services line item.   
 
I’ve enclosed the Master Service Agreement provided by Heartland Business Systems and their Statement of Work.  They are still working on 
the Certificate of Insurance but will provide that at a later date.  
 
Please reach out to me with any questions.  
 
Julie Sorensen 
Manager of Information Systems 
 
Attachments: 
Cedar Falls HBS Master Service Agreement  
Cedar Falls Statement of Work 

178

Item 16.



1 
 

MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement is made by and between Heartland Business Systems, LLC, a 
Wisconsin limited liability company (“Seller”) with an address of P. O. Box 347, 1700 
Stephen Street, Little Chute, WI  54140, and City of Cedar Falls, a city (“Buyer”) 

with an address of 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613. 

Recitals 

i.  The Seller is engaged in the business of providing information technology 
solutions. 

ii. The Buyer wishes to purchase certain products and services from the Seller. 

iii. The parties wish to enter into a master agreement to govern the purchase and 
sale of products and services. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 

herein contain, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1.  The Seller agrees to provide products and services to the Buyer as described in 
one or more Statements of Work executed by the Seller and the Buyer (a “Statement 
of Work”).  The parties may agree to additional Statements of Work which will become 

part of this Agreement upon execution by the Seller and the Buyer.  In addition, any 
other products or services provided by Seller shall be subject to the terms of this 
Agreement. 

2.  The terms of this Agreement will commence upon execution of this Agreement 

and will continue until terminated by the mutual agreement of the parties or as 
provided herein.  In the event that a Statement of Work provides for a different term, 
the Statement of Work term will control for that specific Statement of Work only. 

3.  In exchange for the products and services provided by the Seller, as set forth 

in any Statement of Work, the Buyer shall compensate the Seller at the rates set 
forth in the Statement of Work. 

179

Item 16.



2 
 

4.  If the Buyer desires a change to a Statement of Work, the Buyer shall submit 
a written request to the Seller, in accordance with the change order process defined 

in the applicable Statement of Work.   If a change order is executed by both parties, 
the change order shall be incorporated into the applicable Statement of Work and 
shall have the same legal effect as the Statement of Work. 

5.  The relationship between the parties shall be that of an independent 

contractor, and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a partnership, 
joint venture or employer-employee relationship.  Any employee of the Seller who is 
assigned to perform services at the Buyer’s facility shall be considered to be an 

employee of the Seller only, and will not be considered an agent or employee of the 
Buyer for any purpose.  Neither party is an agent of the other party, and neither party 
is authorized to make any representation, contract or commitment on behalf of the 

other party. 

6.  Each party warrants and represents that: (a) it has obtained all necessary 
approvals and consents to perform its obligations under the terms of this Agreement; 
and (b) it is duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of 
its state of organization and has full corporate power and authority to conduct its 

business.  Each party shall perform all of its obligations under this Agreement in 
accordance with all laws and regulations. 

7.  The Seller shall maintain the insurance necessary to cover its obligations and 
responsibilities under this Agreement.  Upon written request by the Buyer, the Seller 

shall provide a certificate of insurance or other acceptable proof of its insurance. 

8.  Each party shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement in 
the event that the other party becomes insolvent, enters into receivership, is the 
subject of a voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy proceeding, or makes an assignment 

for the benefits of creditors. 

9.  Either party may terminate this Agreement if the other party materially 
breaches any obligation under this Agreement, and such breach is not cured within 

180

Item 16.



3 
 

thirty (30) days after written notice thereof to the other party.  This right is in 
addition to any other right or remedy allowed under this Agreement or applicable 

law. 

10.  The termination of this Agreement shall not release either party from the 
obligation to make payment of any amounts that are or will become due and payable. 

11.  The Seller’s Standard Terms and Conditions located at 
http://www.hbs.net/standard-terms-and-conditions are incorporated herein by 

reference and made part of this Agreement.  In the event of any direct conflict 
between or among a Statement of Work, this Agreement, and the Standard Terms 
and Conditions, the order of precedence shall be as follows:  (a) the Statement of 

Work, (b) this Agreement, and (c) the Standard Terms and Conditions. 

12.  All notices or demands required or permitted by the terms of this Agreement 
will be given in writing and delivered to the parties at the addresses set forth in the 
introductory paragraph above, or any updated address provided by a party.   

13.  The waiver of any breach of any term contained in this Agreement shall not be 

deemed to be a waiver of that term or any subsequent breach of the same or any other 
term contained in this Agreement. 

14.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and all of the 
counterparts shall together constitute one instrument.  A signed copy of this 
Agreement delivered by facsimile, electronic mail or other means of electronic 

transmission shall have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of 
this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the dates 
set forth below. 

 

 

 

181

Item 16.



4 
 

Heartland Business Systems, LLC 

 

By: _________________________________ 

Print Name: __________________________ 

Print Title: ___________________________ 

Date: ________________________________ 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls 

 

By: __________________________________ 

Print Name: __________________________ 

Print Title: ___________________________ 

Date: ________________________________ 

 

182

Item 16.



 
 

   

 www.hbs.net  |  Linkedin.HBS.net  |  @HBSTech   800-236-7914  |   Heartland Business Systems, L.L.C.

   

 

Statement of Work 
City of Cedar Falls, IA 

MICROSOFT 365 MIGRATION 

 

SOW Prepared By: 

Keri McMahon                                  
Heartland Business Systems        

Phone: (515) 400- 8296 
kmcmahon@hbs.net  

Drew Poggeman 
Heartland Business Systems    
Phone: (920) 687-4765 
dpoggemann@hbs.net  

Kevin Coe 
Heartland Business Systems 
Phone: (515) 414-2795 
kcoe@hbs.net 

183

Item 16.

http://www.hbs.net/
mailto:kmcmahon@hbs.net
mailto:dpoggemann@hbs.net
mailto:kcoe@hbs.net


STATEMENT OF WORK 
City of Cedar Falls, IA - Microsoft 365 Migration 

CONFIDENTIAL  2 

Project Overview  
This Statement of Work (“SOW”) reflects the services and material to be provided by Heartland Business Systems, LLC, 

hereinafter referred to as “HBS" for City of Cedar Falls, IA (hereinafter referred to as “Cedar Falls” or “Customer”).  

The purpose of this SOW is to implement the technology, standards, processes, and training to enable Cedar Falls to 

achieve the following goals for the project: 

• Cyber Insurance requirements for MFA, CJIS, HIPAA 

• Configure new government GCC Azure tenant 

• Migrate from Exchange 2010 to Microsoft Exchange Online 

• Provide robust security and reliability capabilities 

• Facilitate productivity gains with strong collaboration, sharing, and integration 

• Enable remote and mobile workforce 

• Improve manageability and governance of applications 

Licensing 
One of the first areas that will need to be finalized is the licensing for Cedar Falls around Microsoft 365. Many of the 

components in the roadmap are tied specifically to licensing Microsoft 365 functionality that will enable key 

manageability functionalities. 

1. Self Service Password Reset (SSPR) 

2. Defender for Office 365 

3. Email Encryption and Information Protection 

4. Conditional Access Policies 

5. Intune 

6. Advanced MFA  

HBS will work with Cedar Falls on recommended cloud licensing to accomplish the business and technical capabilities 

outlined in this SOW and migrate licensing to HBS’ Cloud Solution Provider (CSP) licensing model.  

General expectations at this time to support the capabilities for all users (if enabled for all users) would be licens ed as 

follows: 

Information Workers 
1. Office 365 G3 

2. Enterprise Mobility and Security G3 

3. Microsoft Defender for Office 365 (Plan 1) GCC 

Frontline Workers 
1. Azure Active Directory Premium P1 for Government 

2. Azure Information Protection P1 for Government 

3. Microsoft Defender for Office 365 (Plan 1) GCC 

4. Microsoft Intune for Government 

5. Office 365 F3 GCC 

184

Item 16.



STATEMENT OF WORK 
City of Cedar Falls, IA - Microsoft 365 Migration 

CONFIDENTIAL  3 

Approach  
HBS will work with Cedar Falls to provide a step-by-step implementation of Microsoft 365 solutions that will leverage 

many benefits of Microsoft’s cloud including AI to help improve productivity with an underlying focus on security. This 

project focuses on some of the foundational components to establish a secure and governed cloud foundation.  

Foundation 
The foundational components are critical to the success of the overall deployment / program for Microsoft 365. The 

right amount of focus on these areas will reduce the effort for additional deployments and improve manageability of the 

environment. The timelines identified below are representative and will be defined in more detail in the scope portion 

of this SOW. 

 

Collaboration 
The collaboration components of the Microsoft cloud adoption roadmap are essential because they will transform how 

things get done over time in an organization. Great products that can be aligned with Cedar Falls’ culture and 

implemented incrementally to build upon the capabilities of the prior. Organizational change management is key for this 

rollout and HBS will guide Cedar Falls through this with a champion program utilizing the ADKAR methodology.  

The scope of this SOW will implement a couple of the baseline functionalities, highlighted in yellow, and perform virtual 

workshops with the Cedar Falls team to define the goals and implementation scope for the additional productivity and 

collaboration components of Office 365.  

The timelines identified below are representative and will be defined in more detail in the workshop portion of this 

SOW. 

185

Item 16.



STATEMENT OF WORK 
City of Cedar Falls, IA - Microsoft 365 Migration 

CONFIDENTIAL  4 

 

Security 
Security is one of the core focus areas for this project with MFA being the highest priority scope to complete. The 

features will be configured / aligned with Cedar Falls security posture and alignment with other tools already in place. 

The timelines identified below are representative and will be defined in more detail in the scope portion of this SOW. 

 

 

186

Item 16.



STATEMENT OF WORK 
City of Cedar Falls, IA - Microsoft 365 Migration 

CONFIDENTIAL  5 

Project Scope 
HBS will provide the following services and material, herein referred to as “Scope”:  

In Scope 

Technical Overview 
HBS and Cedar Falls have reviewed the recommendations for how to guide the implementation of the different solutions 

within Microsoft cloud technologies. These recommendations are built on experience and defined best practices for 

implementation and are based on user needs and ease, as well as technical requirements and efficiency.  

 

This project is expected to take an estimated 8 weeks to complete from the project kick-off. If an extension to the project 

timeline is required, the parties shall utilize the Change Order process.  

This project will address the following solutions from the roadmap recommendations:  

 

Foundational 

• Licensing Review 

o Review licensing options for Cedar Falls to verify proper licenses aligned to personnel and their 

requirements. 

• Active Directory Review 

o Run AD health check tools and procedures for the following: 

▪ Domain Modes 

▪ Role holders 

▪ Basic domain controller tests 

• IP info 

• DNS info 

• DNS Suffix info 

• Online 

• System Uptime 

• System Version 

▪ Disk drives and space 

▪ Full DC Diags 

▪ Full DC DNS Diags 

▪ Domain Replication and timing 

▪ Domain Time Configuration 

• Master time server 

• Synchronizing domain controllers 
▪ Netlogon site information 

▪ DNS Domain scavenging settings 

o Check manual AD items 

▪ Review of IPv4 and suffix for this connection settings 

▪ Review of NIC power settings 

▪ Review of allowed updates to DNS 

▪ Review of DNS forwarders and setup 

187

Item 16.



STATEMENT OF WORK 
City of Cedar Falls, IA - Microsoft 365 Migration 

CONFIDENTIAL  6 

▪ Review of DNS conditional forwarders if applicable 

▪ Review of _msdcs zone  

▪ Review of primary domain zone 

• Include NSLOOKUP <domain> to ensure correct registered servers or other services that 
may be sharing it 

▪ Review Domain Sites and Services 

• Subnets 

• Sites 

• Servers contained within sites 

o Documentation and applicable recommendations to customer.  

• Tenant Configuration  

o Establish new GCC tenant and configure to support the Customer’s ecosystem. The configuration will 

apply the identified settings for security and regulatory compliance requirements.  

o Setup Azure Active Directory Connect (AADC) 

• Intune Workstation and Mobile Device Management (Pilot) 

• Intune Design Session 
• Configure Intune to remove Office 2010 from machines and install Microsoft 365 Apps for Enterprise 

• Rollout Intune management for pilot of 5 users with one device for each user (desktop, laptop, or 
mobile android / iOS devices) 

• Does not include Apple Business Manager and/or Android Enterprise Accounts configured 
• Package up to 3 iOS Apps, and 3 Android Apps 

• Train customer in Intune management (up to 2 hours) 
• Single Sign On (SSO) Configuration 

• Enable Single Sign-on in Azure AD for SaaS and on premises applications that support SAML/ADFS to 
improve the end user login experience, and to reduce the number of account lockouts.  

▪ Create Group Policy Object (GPO) for enabling Seamless Single-Sign-On (SSO) in Office 365 
tenant 

▪ Only IE, Edge, Firefox, and Chrome will be supported  
▪ Install necessary ADMX files into GPO 

Productivity & Collaboration Overview 
Cedar Falls is looking to plan the roadmap and adoption of the Office 365 productivity tools. HBS recommends a 

discovery effort and Teams Rapid Implementation to kickstart this effort and define the path to success.  

Office 365 Discovery will include: 
• Discovery Prep (Prior to Workshop): Run assessment of current environment 

• Virtual Workshop: One day discovery session focused on:  
o Review current environment findings 
o Capture business goals/objectives 

o Office 365/Modern Overview 

o Brainstorm use cases based on features/functions shown in Office 365 
o Identify power users/early adopters for pilot program 

o Whiteboard Office 365 adoption roadmap/timeline 
o Review Office 365 Admin Tenant setup 

▪ External sharing 

▪ Retention policy setup 

188

Item 16.



STATEMENT OF WORK 
City of Cedar Falls, IA - Microsoft 365 Migration 

CONFIDENTIAL  7 

▪ Group/Teams creation 

o Create up to two Office 365 Groups to support pilot activities 
o Display sample Organizational Change Management plan 

• Begin Collaboration Roadmap Definition & Capital Estimates 

MS Teams Rapid Implementation will include: 

• Tenant Setup 
o Setup user with Azure AD Premium P1 to lock down Office 365 Group creation 

o Lock down Microsoft Teams creation to a smaller group 

o Setup records retention for future eDiscovery requirements, up to a half-hour for configuration of an 

Office 365 Retention Policy 

▪ Not strictly required, but strongly recommended from a data governance / information 

management perspective. Determine if customer already has an organizational / written policy, 
for which this should be implemented to match as a supporting technical control. Otherwise, by 

default, how long (minimum) should Office 365 content be retained for? 

• Teams Configuration 

o Create up to three Teams, including a company-wide Team having:  

▪ Organization-wide communication channel (General) 

▪ Recognition channel (open to all) 

▪ Teams Help, including a Teams Request form 

• End User Messaging/Adoption 

o Provide 3 email communication templates for use with end users 

o Share a recording of an HBS-led Teams onboarding training session 

 

Exchange Migration will include: 

• Exchange Online to replace current Exchange on-premises environment 
o HBS will assist with the migration planning and communication efforts. HBS will work with Cedar Falls IT 

Staff to outline all user mailboxes and group them according to the coordination of the migration plan 
created. The communication plan will include templates to aid with setting user expectations during the 
migration process. The templates include: 

▪ General awareness communication 

▪ Countdown to implementation (Coming soon - what you need to do) 

▪ Today is the day! Implementation communication 

▪ Post-migration communication, Reminder of support channels 

▪ One-week post-go live reinforcement communication 

o The technical migration will include: 
▪ Introduce Exchange 2016 for hybrid migration to Microsoft 365 

▪ Discovery and health check of current Exchange on premises environment  

o Verify correct version of .NET is installed, both pre- and post-upgrade 
o Verify latest or previous release cumulative update is installed. Setup time to perform a 

backup/snapshot and apply the update. Multiple reboots required if updated needed. 
Will be performed after hours at a time of customer choosing, if possible 

o No Exchange Edge servers will be installed and/or configured 
▪ Public DNS 

o Access customers own public DNS Name Servers for any changes 

189

Item 16.



STATEMENT OF WORK 
City of Cedar Falls, IA - Microsoft 365 Migration 

CONFIDENTIAL  8 

▪ Provision and configure Office 365 tenant for Hybrid implementation 
▪ Apply licensing to Office 365 tenant 
▪ Setup Office 365 Retention policy 
▪ Setup Office 365 Email Encryption 
▪ HBS will modify public and private DNS to support the new Exchange and Office 365 

environment 
▪ Configure DMARC, DKIM, and SPF settings for enhanced security and usability of the Office 365 

tenant 
▪ Work with Cedar Falls IT Staff to reconfigure firewall to allow appropriate Office 365 network 

traffic to proper internal IPs and ports 
▪ Configure hybrid relationship between hosted Exchange servers and Office 365 
▪ Verify hybrid co-existence, migrate a test user, and test mail flow. Also, test ActiveSync and 

Autodiscover functionality via Outlook 2019 and Outlook mobile app 
▪ Migrate mailboxes to Exchange Online 
▪ Once all data has been migrated to the Office 365 tenant, turn off all Exchange 2010 servers for 

a few days to verify there are no issues in the environment. Triage, as necessary. 
▪ Existing servers will be decommissioned. A new Server 2019 VM will be created for a new 

Exchange 2019 installation. This will be used for hybrid management purposes, SMTP relay, and 
to remain in a Microsoft supported configuration. 

Security 
Security Baseline and Management 

• Multi-factor Authentication (MFA) Configuration 
o Implement Azure MFA to add multi factor authentication solution for Microsoft 365 and determine co-

existence with Duo MFA. Identify applications requiring protection with MFA and investigate integration 
with Conditional Access 

o This includes the set-up and deployment of up to 5 users 
o Microsoft MFA Training (up to 2 hours) 
o All additional users migrated to MFA by Cedar Falls IT staff 

• Conditional Access 
o Build conditional access policies to improve Cedar Falls security posture by requiring that successful 

authentication requests utilize MFA, managed devices, or other conditions of access.  
o This will include one policy implemented hand in hand with the Cedar Falls IT team. 

• Self-Service Password Reset (SSPRM) 
o Deploy Azure SSPRM to allow users to reset their on-premises passwords 

as needed.  Additionally, connections can be installed on the internal domain controllers plus the 
proxy role to allow the same strong password enforcement for on-premises changes as ones performed 
in the cloud.   

o This includes the set-up and deployment of up to 5 users 
o SSPRM Training (up to 1 hour) 
o All additional users migrated to SSPRM will be completed by Cedar Falls IT staff 

• Azure Information Protection (AIP) 
o Setup AIP to provide the ability to classify, label data, and protect it using encryption.  
o This will include one policy implemented hand in hand with the Cedar Falls IT team. 

• Defender for Office 365 
o Configure Defender for Office 365 to help protect against malicious attachments and phishing links in 

emails with Safe Links.  

190

Item 16.



STATEMENT OF WORK 
City of Cedar Falls, IA - Microsoft 365 Migration 

CONFIDENTIAL  9 

o Review of Anti-phishing policies with Cedar Falls IT team 

 

Project Management 
Due to the number of projects within this overall digital transformation, HBS will provide a senior project lead to act as 
the Project Manager to manage plans, timelines, and budget for all efforts provided by HBS. This single point of contact 
will have expertise and experience across the multiple featured solutions and will understand how to manage all team 
members involved to keep budget spend under control and ensure the overall program plan remains focused and 
effective. As part of project management, regular status reporting will be provided, including a summary of progress on 
deliverable completion versus spending for each deliverable will be provided for approval. 

Out of Scope 
• Exchange Online Migration 

o Installing and configuring client software 
o Network changes (Example: Creating DMZ, firewall rules, etc.) 
o Mitigation of existing Active Directory health issues 

• Any issues encountered with end-users' mobile devices. Any issues encountered with end-users' PCs.  

Issues encountered due to Legacy Exchange server existing within Active Directory prior to this migration File 

migration to OneDrive, SharePoint, Teams, or other online file storage repository 

• Any work or material not specifically identified in this document is not included in this Agreement  

Additional Requirements and Conditions 
• HBS and Customer will both ensure that adequate resources, for which each respective party is responsible, are 

available when needed throughout the duration of this engagement. The prompt completion of this engagement 

will depend on the availability of the necessary Customer personnel.  

• The prompt completion of this engagement will also depend on the availability and delivery of the product(s) 

associated with this SOW from other vendors. 

• Any potential dependencies discovered prior to or during implementation will be communicated to Customer and 

HBS to determine impact to the timing, scope and pricing for the project, and the parties shall utilize the Change 

Order process, as necessary. 

• HBS assumes Exchange 2010 is at patch level SP3 at a minimum for migration to Office 365.  

• HBS limiting deployment for up to 5 users for Intune (one device per user), MFA, Defender for Office 365, and 

SSPRM.  

• O365 Discovery workshop will not be held until the prerequisite assessment steps are completed. A placeholder 
meeting notice will be set to reserve the time; however, in the event the customer has not granted access 

and/or provided the required information 48 hours before the meeting time, the meeting hold will be cancelled 

until such time as the pre-requisite steps have been completed.  

• If not already in place, Customer agrees to HBS’s recommended Azure AD Connect and Record Retention (for 

future eDiscovery) policy required for Microsoft Teams Rapid Implementation.  

o Azure Active Directory Connect (AADC): 

▪ Not strictly required, but strongly recommended for any organizations who already have an “on-

premises” Active Directory Domain (are not “cloud-only”). Not applicable for cloud-only 

organizations. Allows customer staff to use the same usernames and passwords both on-

premises (servers/workstations) and in O365 (Teams, etc.). 

191

Item 16.



STATEMENT OF WORK 
City of Cedar Falls, IA - Microsoft 365 Migration 

CONFIDENTIAL  10 

▪ Requires an identified server for installation. HBS recommends a dedicated Azure Cloud Services 

(ACS) “utility” server for AADC, and any (future) related utilities, e.g., Power BI On-Premises 

Data Gateway, and others. Recommendation is Windows Server 2019 with 2 vCPU, 8 GB RAM, 

and 80 GB disk space. Must be domain-joined, and on the internal network (not a DMZ, etc.). No 

other server roles are required but should be current with all Windows Updates. Not 

recommended but can be installed on an existing server (including a Domain Controller, if no 

other options) if needed to save the cost of a Windows Server license (if customer is not on 

VMware, etc. and/or does not have Windows Datacenter licensing).  

▪ This rapid implementation offering includes up to 2 hours of consulting for AADC needs. The 

customer will ideally have an available server prepared prior to implementation. HBS will 

require full remote access to the server, including access to an Active Directory account with 

Domain Admin and Enterprise Admin rights. Customer may also provide access over a remote 

support session, if remote control is granted, and customer remains available to enter 

credentials when required. Customer or customer’s IT representative is encouraged to 

participate in the configuration session regardless of answering any questions around the AD / 

OU structure, etc. 

  

Working Conditions and Access 

The items listed below shall apply to the extent applicable: 

• Customer will provide a Single Point of Contact with decision making ability to interface with HBS. This person is 
responsible for signing off on Scope of Work and Change Order documents throughout the project.  

• Customer will provide Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) when required by project personnel and/or project activities. 
If delays in the project timeline are a result of delayed access to SME personnel or any other Customer delays, 
Customer may be subject to additional charges. 

• Customer will provide HBS with access, including all passwords and logins, to required existing network or system 
assets listed in the scope. 

• Customer will provide HBS with proper access and workspace areas at Customer locations that includes internet, 
physical and remote access to in scope infrastructure or systems. 

• Customer will allow the HBS engineer to connect their computer to Customer network in order to perform their 
duties. HBS will allow Customer to examine said notebook for current anti-virus software, if needed. 

• Customer will allow HBS unescorted access to computer rooms, equipment closets and the general facility. If 
unescorted access is not available, the Customer shall assign access levels appropriately and coordinate escorts.  

• Customer will provide adequate access and credentials required for the assessment of all components or systems 

listed in the scope.  

• Customer will provide remote access prior to, and throughout, the project if required.  

• Customer will have working Internet access available where the work will be performed.  

• Customer is responsible for resolving problems outside the SOW that are beyond the control of HBS. These shall 

include but not be limited to software/firmware bugs, vendor engineering support cases, hardware failures, 

telecommunication circuits, server issues, desktop issues, the acts, or omissions of any third party, or any other 

occurrence not caused by HBS. HBS can assist with these out-of-scope issues through the Change Order process 

or on a time and materials basis.  

192

Item 16.



STATEMENT OF WORK 
City of Cedar Falls, IA - Microsoft 365 Migration 

CONFIDENTIAL  11 

Testing, Notification and Change Control 

• Customer will provide advanced notification of any network outages or changes during the implementation 
period. 

• Customer will assist with the creation of and perform user acceptance testing and post -migration end-point 
validations.  

• HBS and Customer will provide 48-hour notification of any schedule changes. 

• Customer will assist with the design, testing, and validation of the project deliverables. 
• Customer and HBS agree that work shall progress when Customer staff is not available to participate.  

Deliverables 
The following are the deliverables HBS will provide to Customer (herein referred to as “Deliverables”) for this Project: 

Any change to the Deliverables listed below will require a Change Order.  

# Deliverable 

Foundation and Security Implementation 

1 Active Directory Review 

2 Azure GCC Tenant Configuration 

3 SSO Enabled 

4 MFA Configuration (up to 5 users) and Training 

5 Conditional Access Configuration with One Policies Deployed 

6 SSPRM Configuration (up to 5 users) and Training 

7 AIP Configuration with One Policy Deployed 

8 Intune Configuration (up to 5 users) and Training 

9 Defender for Office 365 

Productivity 

10 Virtual Workshops - Discovery / Governance / Mitigation Risks / Roadmap Review 

11 Define Scope of Work for the O365 and Champion Program Implementation 

12 Configure Exchange Online Migration from Exchange 2010 on premises and migrate users  

13 Teams Configuration for Chat, Online Meetings, Screen Sharing 

14 Teams Configuration for up to 3 Teams 

 

  

193

Item 16.



STATEMENT OF WORK 
City of Cedar Falls, IA - Microsoft 365 Migration 

CONFIDENTIAL  12 

Estimated Hours 
This is an estimate of hours and, by its nature, is a “best guess,” based on industry standards and best practices, HBS’ 

experience, and Customer’s needs as communicated thus far. HBS used input from its most experienced team members 

to generate this estimate. The pricing is set forth on the attached Quote.  

#  Task Est Effort (hrs.) 

Phase 0 – Project Management 35 hours 

0.a Project Management / Program Management / Change Management 35 

Phase 1 – AD / Tenant Reviews, Exchange Migration Discovery 10 hours 

1.a Foundation – Active Directory Review 8 

1.b Foundation – Azure Tenant Configuration / Azure AD Connect 2  
Phase 2 – Exchange Online and Base Security Setup 84 hours 

2.a Security – MFA Configuration (5 users) with Conditional Access & Training 6 

2.b Security - Defender for Office 365 Configuration / Anti Phishing Review 6 

2.c Productivity - Exchange Migration from Exchange 2010 on premises to GCC Tenant 72 

Phase 3 – Office 365 Productivity Workshop and Strategy 28 hours 

3.a Productivity – Office 365 Workshop 12 

3.b Productivity – SOW based on workshop outcome N/A 

3.c Productivity – Teams Rapid Implementation & 3 Teams Setup 16 

Phase 4 – Intune MDM / MAM and Advanced Security Setup 44 hours 

4.a Foundation - Intune Configuration, Training and Pilot (5 users) 38 

4.b SSPRM Configuration, Training & Pilot (5 users) 3 

4.c AIP Configuration & Pilot (1 policy) 3 

T Total Hours 201 hours 

Project Completion 
Project will be complete when all Deliverables have been provided to Customer.  

Customer will have seven (7) business days to review the Deliverables for the project. If HBS does not receive a written 

notice of rejection describing the basis for rejection within this period, the Deliverables will be considered accepted.  

After the completion of the project, support may be obtained by contacting the HBS Account Manager. Support will be 

billed at an agreed upon rate for services rendered.  

Change Management 
Additional products and services beyond the In-Scope deliverables listed above are considered out of scope and require a 

Change Order executed by the parties before any such work can be performed. Any additions, deletions, or modifications 

to the Agreement, regardless of change to project value, require a Change Order.  

194

Item 16.



STATEMENT OF WORK 
City of Cedar Falls, IA - Microsoft 365 Migration 

CONFIDENTIAL  13 

Terms 
Binding Agreement. This SOW describes the professional services and/or products, and results to be provided by HBS. 

Upon execution, this SOW shall be contractually binding on the parties. The HBS Standard Terms and Conditions are also 

made part of this Agreement. 

Order of Precedence. Any ambiguity or inconsistency between or among the statements of this SOW and the Standard 

Terms and Conditions shall be resolved by giving priority and precedence in the following order:  

• Statement of Work  

• Standard Terms and Conditions  

Work Hours. All professional services work will be completed during the normal business hours of 8:00 am – 5:00 pm 

Monday - Friday Central Time.  Any work occurring after 5:00 pm or before 8:00 am or on weekends is subject to a bill 

rate of 1.5 times the normal rate, unless the parties agree otherwise in writing.  

General. No other promises have been made related to this SOW except for those stated in this SOW. This SOW supersedes 

all other agreements or promises related to this project and SOW. HBS shall not be responsible for any delay caused by 

the Customer or its vendors or contractors, equipment or shipping delays, or any other occurrence not caused by HBS.    

Confidentiality. Each party may have access to confidential information concerning the methodologies, pricing, and 

business practices of the other. Neither party shall make any use of such information of the other party except in 

connection with the exercise of its rights and responsibilities under this SOW. 

195

Item 16.



M365 Migration Quote #281338 v1

Prepared For: Prepared By:

Cedar Falls, City of Des Moines Iowa Area Office

Julie Sorensen
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Keri McMahon
11259 NW Aurora Ave
Urbandale, IA 50322

P: (319) 268-5111 P: (515) 400-8296

E: julie.sorensen@cedarfalls.com E: kmcmahon@hbs.net

Date Issued:

07.07.2022

Expires:

08.03.2022

Monthly Recurring Services Recurring Qty Ext. Recurring

This quote reflects the start of a new 12 month subscription in which the pricing outlined is effective for the duration of the term. The 
subscription quantity cannot be reduced or cancelled after the first 7 calendar days after the order is placed.

Board of Commission Workers 

CSP-DIRECT-
297a175422eb

Exchange Online (Plan 1) for GCC $4.00 41 $164.00

CSP-DIRECT-
d8d951605d94

Azure Active Directory Premium P1 for Government $6.00 41 $246.00

Frontline Workers

CSP-DIRECT-
b9f131ffbf3d

Office 365 F3 GCC $4.00 138 $552.00

CSP-DIRECT-
d8d951605d94

Azure Active Directory Premium P1 for Government $6.00 138 $828.00

CSP-DIRECT-
55496d798261

Azure Information Protection Premium P1 for Government $2.00 138 $276.00

CSP-DIRECT-
fefd6c8a5ddc

Microsoft Intune for Government $6.60 138 $910.80

Information Workers

CSP-DIRECT-
d54f7a54ce8e

Office 365 G3 GCC $22.00 92 $2,024.00

CSP-DIRECT-
4ea40fc2afe2

Enterprise Mobility + Security G3 GCC $9.70 92 $892.40

Recurring Subtotal $5,893.20

Services Price Qty Ext. Price

HBS-FLEX-
SERVICES

HBS FLEX Services

Flexible Services block- Rates for services based on attached HBS FLEX Volume 
Service Schedule

$37,185.00 1 $37,185.00

Subtotal $37,185.00

Quote Summary Recurring One-Time

Monthly Recurring Services $5,893.20 $0.00

Services $0.00 $37,185.00

Total: $5,893.20 $37,185.00

This quote may not include applicable sales tax, shipping, handling and/or delivery charges. Final applicable sales tax, shipping, handling and/or delivery charges are calculated and applied at invoice. The above
prices are for hardware/software only, and do not include delivery, setup or installation by Heartland (“HBS”) unless otherwise noted. Installation by HBS is available at our regular hourly rates, or pursuant to a prepaid
HBSFlex Agreement. This configuration is presented for convenience only. HBS is not responsible for typographical or other errors/omissions regarding prices or other information. Prices and configurations are
subject to change without notice. HBS may modify or cancel this quote if the pricing is impacted by a tariff.  A 15% restocking fee will be charged on any returned part. Customer is responsible for all costs associated
with return of product and a $25.00 processing fee. No returns are accepted by HBS without prior written approval. This quote expressly limits acceptance to the terms of this quote, and HBS disclaims any additional
terms.  By providing your “E-Signature,” you acknowledge that your electronic signature is the legal equivalent of your manual signature, and you warrant that you have express authority to execute this agreement and

Page: 1 of 5Quote #281338 v1

196

Item 16.



legally bind your organization to this proposal and all attached documents. Any purchase that the customer makes from HBS is governed by HBS’ Standard Terms and Conditions (“ST&Cs”) located at
http://www.hbs.net/standard-terms-and-conditions, which are incorporated herein by reference. The ST&Cs are subject to change. When a new order is placed, the ST&Cs on the above-stated website at that time
shall apply. If customer has signed HBS’ ST&Cs version 2018.v2.0 or later, or the parties have executed a current master services agreement, the signed agreement shall supersede the version on the website.  Any
order(s) that exceeds the credit limit assigned by HBS shall require upfront payment from customer in an amount determined by HBS. HBS shall make this determination at the time of the order, unless customer has
previously submitted the required onboarding paperwork. In such event, HBS shall make this determination at the time of quoting.  QT.2021.v1.0

Acceptance

Des Moines Iowa Area Office Cedar Falls, City of

Keri McMahon

Signature / Name Signature / Name Initials

07/07/2022

Date Date

Page: 2 of 5Quote #281338 v1

197

Item 16.



HBSFLEX 2022 Service Schedule 2

SCHEDULE to the Service Agreement (“Agreement”) between Heartland Business Systems, a Wisconsin limited liability company, hereafter called (Heartland) 

and Cedar Falls, City of(Customer).    Heartland and Customer (hereafter called PARTIES) agree as follows:

1. The terms of this SCHEDULE shall govern in the event of a conflict between the terms of the Agreement and the terms of this SCHEDULE.
2. Pricing. Customer agrees to pay Heartland based upon the hourly rates described below.  Pricing does not include applicable sales tax which will be 

charged at time of invoicing.
3. Travel. Travel will be billed to customer at below rates based on one way travel from closest Heartland office.
4. Prepayment.  HBSFLEX Volume Service Pricing is available only for prepaid service blocks.   
5. Expiration.  HBSFLEX Agreements will expire 18 months from date of purchase.
6. Additions.  Should this quote be an addition or conversion of an existing agreement, Rate schedule below will apply to all funds.  

HOURLY SERVICES BILLING SCHEDULE
(time is billed in 15 minute increments)

Engineer Work Role Hourly Rate

Project Coordinator
Structured Cabling

$55
$85

AV Tech I
Break-Fix I
Cisco Collaboration I
ESRM Coordinator
Help-desk I
Infosec Coordinator I
Physical Security Engineer I
Point of Sale I

$115

AV Engineer 2
Cabling Project Manager 2
Cisco Collaboration 2
CRM 2
Enterprise Engineer 2
HBS Data Center Engineer 2
Imaging Technician 2
Mitel Collaboration 2
Network Operations Center 2
O365/SharePoint 2
Physical Security Engineer 2
SMB Engineer 2

$150

Apps Business Consulting 3
AV Engineer 3
Business Prod Consultant 3
Cisco Collaboration 3
Collaboration Project Manager 3
Custom Development 3
Enterprise Engineer 3
Imaging Technician 3
Infosec Consultant 3
Mitel Collaboration Engineer 3
Network Operations Center 3
O365/SharePoint 3 
Physical Security Engineer 3
Project Manager 3
Websites/Kentico 3

$185

BI/Data Analytics/SQL 4
Business Prod - Sr Consultant 4
Cisco Collaboration 4
Enterprise Technical Engineer 4
ERP/Dynamics GP 4
Project Manager 4

$205

Applications Architect 5
Business Prod - Custom Dev 5
Cisco Collaboration 5
Enterprise Principal Engineer 5
ERP/Dynamics GP 5
Infosec Consultant 5

$225

Enterprise Principal Engineer 6
Collaboration Architect 6

$275

Infosec Consultant 7 $275

On Call Pager $200

Page: 3 of 5Quote #281338 v1

198

Item 16.



After Hours Rate
- Before 8am or after 5pm CST
- Weekends & Company Recognized Holidays

1.5x Base Rate

Microsoft CSP Engagement Outline

Microsoft CSP Terms & Conditions  
SCHEDULE to the Service Agreement (“Agreement”) dated between Heartland Business Systems LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company (hereafter called 
"Heartland") and Customer. The terms of this SCHEDULE shall govern in the event of a conflict between the terms of the Agreement and the terms of this 
SCHEDULE.  
 
 
Heartland and Customer (hereafter called PARTIES) agree as follows: 

Microsoft Cloud Solution Provider (“CSP”) Software Licenses

 Term. The term of this SCHEDULE and Engagement shall begin on the subscription start date and remain in effect until the subscription end date. 
Microsoft cloud licensing outlined in this quote must remain under the management of Heartland until subscription end date. 

 Annual Cloud Subscription. Customer has the right to increase license quantities on an as-needed basis.  Seat adjustments that take place after 
license Created Date will be reflected on the invoice for the following month. Customer can decrease quantities up to 72 hours after new subscription 
start date for a prorated refund. Adjustments made after 72 hours are not eligible for a refund. As a condition of this agreement, customer agrees to allow 
Heartland to adjust licenses on an as needed based on customer email request without signed quote approval.  This provides for more nimble 
processing of licenses on an as needed based for the customer. License change requests should be through the HBS Microsoft Cloud Licensing 
Management Portal.  This agreement shall automatically renew for additional one (1) year terms, unless terminated as provided for in this agreement. 
 Either party may terminate this agreement by providing at least fourteen (14) calendar days’ written notice prior to the end of the current term. HBS shall 
have the right to adjust the pricing for this Agreement, effective on or about each anniversary date of this Agreement. In addition, HBS shall also have 
the right to adjust the pricing for this Agreement at any time that Microsoft adjusts its CSP pricing. 

 Monthly Cloud Subscription. Monthly subscriptions are subject to higher price, per the terms of Microsoft. Customer has the right to increase license 
quantities on an as-needed basis. Seat adjustments that take place after license Created Date will be reflected on the invoice for the following month. 
Customer can decrease quantities up to 72 hours after new subscription start date for a prorated refund. Adjustments made after 72 hours are not 
eligible for a refund. Monthly subscriptions are subject to higher price, per the terms of Microsoft. As a condition of this agreement, customer agrees to 
allow Heartland to adjust licenses on an as needed based on customer email request without signed quote approval.  This provides for more nimble 
processing of licenses on an as needed based for the customer. License change requests should be through the HBS Microsoft Cloud Licensing 
Management Portal. 

 HBS Cloud Licensing Management Portal. The Global Admin or Billing Admin of the customer’s tenant can leverage the HBS Cloud Licensing 
Management Portal at https://csp-portal.hbs.net to adjust quantities based on subscription term for applicable cloud licenses. HBS Engineers or HBS 
Consultants with Global Admin privileges can adjust on behalf of the customer.  As a condition of this agreement, customer agrees to allow Heartland to 
adjust licenses on an as needed based on customer email request without signed quote approval.  This provides for more nimble processing of licenses 
on an as needed based for the customer. 

 Pricing. Heartland will set customer’s pricing and payment terms for per order based on the terms set forth by Microsoft, and subject to change by 
Microsoft.

 Paused Subscriptions. Heartland shall have the right to immediately suspend any subscription in the event that a customer fails to pay any invoice by 
its due date. In the event of such suspension, data will only be accessible to admins; users will not be able to access Microsoft 365, files, or applications. 
Subscription billing will remain on. 

 Azure Services.   In the event that the customer elects to remove Heartland as the customer’s CSP Azure Plan administrator, the customer shall be 
required to pay Heartland a monthly fee of 15% of the amount that the customer is billed for Azure consumption during that month.  The customer shall 
continue to pay this fee until such time as the new CSP administrator is assigned for the customer.    Provided pricing for Azure services are based on 
estimated consumption and/or Reserve Instance pricing, both at Microsoft pricing to date. Final costs, which are determined by Microsoft and subject to 
change, will be invoiced by HBS monthly based on actual consumption and/or reserved pricing. Early termination of Reserved Instances are subject a 
12% cancellation fee plus the remaining balance your Reserved Instances up until original end date.

 

Microsoft Cloud Solution Provider (“CSP”) Support 

 Support Terms. It is understood that, as per Microsoft CSP Program Terms and Conditions, support services for cloud products licensed via Microsoft 
CSP Licensing will be provided by Heartland Business Systems directly. Support for break/fix of cloud products licenses through Microsoft CSP, is 
included with monthly license costs, if the root caused is determined to be caused by Microsoft. Should Microsoft technical assistance be required, 
Heartland will open a support case on customer's behalf.  Support for implementation, portal changes, user license creation, license quantity 
adjustments, setup changes, design engineering, education, security changes, roadmap upgrades, application customizations, issues caused by 
customer misconfiguration or incompatibility with 3rd party hardware or software, or any other non-Microsoft-caused issue are not included and will be 
billed separately by Heartland. Such support will be billed at the applicable hourly rate based HBS Standard Time and Materials Rate or per HBS FLEX 
agreement if one is on file. Under CSP, customer does not have access directly to Microsoft Technical Support.  By signing this agreement customer 

Page: 4 of 5Quote #281338 v1

199

Item 16.



agrees to pay any hourly support charges incurred.  
 Eligible Support Contacts: As part of the onboarding process, Customer is required to assign no more than three contacts eligible to leverage the 

Heartland CSP Help Desk.  It is recommended that such contacts be knowledgeable in the Customer’s email hosting/anti-virus software, print server, 
remote desktop services, operating system, local or domain admin credentials, if applicable. 

 Eligibility: 1) Active license subscription, with Delegated Admin, for cloud CSP products currently licensed with HBS. 2) Completion of CSP Help Desk 
Onboarding. 3) Correct ticket routing using the above Contact Info.

 Scenario of Support Services:  Heartland obtains the right to escalate tickets to the next Tier as well as deem a ticket to be out-of-scope of free 
services as their discretion.

 

Sample Scenario  Coverage 

Reactive services in response to Microsoft-caused errors on cloud products via Microsoft 
CSP, including but not limited to stop/blue screen errors, bugs, patches, updates incompatibility 

Included 

End-user, setup, or customization-caused error No 

General application administration services including but not limited to username/password reset, 
user management

No

Application enhancement services including, but not limited to, training, capability & security 
discussion, general consultation

No

Product is not cloud-based or is licensed any way except Microsoft CSP including but not limited to 
Web Direct, Volume (Open Value or Open Business), Enterprise Agreement or On-Prem CSP 

No

 
Page Break

 
Microsoft Customer Agreement 
The customer shall also be bound by the Microsoft Customer Agreement located at https://www.microsoft.com/licensing/docs/customeragreement, which is 
incorporated herein by reference. Microsoft may update these terms from time to time. 

Page: 5 of 5Quote #281338 v1

200

Item 16.

https://www.microsoft.com/licensing/docs/customeragreement


DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

Information Systems Division 
 

 TO: Mayor Rob Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

 DATE: July 11, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Door Access Control 

 

With the addition of the Public Safety Building in 2019 and now the remodel of City Hall we have found the current 
technology in Access Controls is changing enough that an upgrade to our current Access control system is warranted 
to enable newer technology.   
 
We began looking into different systems when we built the Public Safety building and felt an Avigilon System would 
be the best fit for our needs.  The library also implemented a new Avigilon system with their doors in 2020 so we felt 
to maintain consistency and enable future growth we would request for bids of upgrading our current door access to 
an Avigilon system.  We sent an RFP out on May 20 and sent it to Iowa retailers listed on the Avigilon systems 
website.  The RFP was a large project asking for replacement of door access controls at all of the city locations 
including gates.  We received one bid back.   

 
 

Vendor Total Implementation Cose   

Inteconnex $138,232.94 

  

Inteconnex, our current vendor, for the library door system and security cameras was the only firm that returned the 
bid.    This project was budgeted in fiscal year 2022 and continuing in fiscal year 2023 for a total of $120,000.  
Because, the bid came in over budget I did request a meeting with the City Hall contractor and electrician to discuss 
the needs in City Hall.  Inteconnex suggested City Hall was would be the easiest to cut costs because they weren’t 
familiar with the new construction area.  Unfortunately, we didn’t find any areas to cut costs.  The additional $18,000 
will be supplemented by moving back the Work Order system Implementation by one year.   
 
They have signed our standard goods and services agreement, however, the insurance certificate they provided 
didn’t include the needed information.  I feel this is an oversite because they have provided insurance certificates for 
the College Hill work and are a current supplier for most of our camera projects.  This will be provided before work 
begins.  
 
I’ve included the Quote provided in the RFP as the Exhibit B and the timeline they presented in the RFP as Exhibit A.  
Please contact me with any questions at (319)268-5111. 
 
 
Julie Sorensen 
Manager of Information Systems 
 
 
Attachments: 
Inteconnex Goods and Service Contract 
Inteconnex  Exhibit A - Approach of Implementation 
Inteconnex Exhibit B - Quote 
 

201

Item 17.



202

Item 17.



203

Item 17.



204

Item 17.



205

Item 17.



206

Item 17.



207

Item 17.



208

Item 17.



209

Item 17.



7Section D

Inteconnex engineering and sales have reviewed the RFP, met with Cedar Falls representatives, completed site 
walks, and prepared designs based on the information provided. 

 
“Pre-Construction” Project meeting. The pre-construction meeting will be the forum for collaboration  
between city representatives and Inteconnex staff on the entire project scope with associated milestone and 

Any adjustments in counts and type of hardware will be made with required change orders. Following the 

Installation will begin immediately upon receipt of equipment from the manufacturer. The estimated system 
completion is 90 days from installation start date, based off of the scope of work described and proposed  
by Inteconnex.

For system implementation, Inteconnex assigns a senior technical lead that will act as a project manager 
to lead the implementation team and work closely with Cedar Falls representatives. Inteconnex sales 
and engineering will continue to be involved with both the installation team and the customer to answer 

as necessary. 

Once the systems are installed, commissioned, and accepted by the customer, Inteconnex provides ongoing 
support, both remotely and on-site as necessary. Service level agreements are customized based on the 
level of service required by the customer. Service issues may be reported through an online service portal or 
contacting the Inteconnex operations manager via voice, text, or email.

Inteconnex understands the importance of cost effectiveness and total cost of ownership. We have 
implemented a unique system to maximize value, reduce overall cost of ownership and enable predictable 
budgeting for system expansion and maintenance. 

Approach of Implementation
SSECCTION D

CEDAR FALL S - DOOR ACCESS CONTROL S YSTEM

210

Item 17.



1 of 6

211

Item 17.



2 of 6

212

Item 17.



3 of 6

213

Item 17.



4 of 6

214

Item 17.



5 of 6

215

Item 17.



6 of 6

216

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: June 21, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Agreement with Amperage Marketing for FY23 Digital Advertising 
 
  
Attached please find a contract to work with Amperage Marketing to promote  
Cedar Falls via digital advertising. 
 
We intend to spend at least $14,000, and possibly up to $10,000 more if grants and 
budget allows, throughout FY23 to promote the city via Facebook, Instagram, YouTube 
and Google Display Advertising. In FY22 we received eight proposals for this project 
and Amperage was selected due to the quality of their work. The results from FY22 
exceeded expectations, leading to our interest in continuing to work with them 
throughout FY23. 
 
Following the Small Contract Decision Matrix a lower level of insurance is required since 
it is a service contract, the contract is less than $25,000, and the vendor will not be 
working on site.  
 
Staff recommends approval. 
Best regards.  
 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

217

Item 18.



218

Item 18.



219

Item 18.



220

Item 18.



221

Item 18.



222

Item 18.



223

Item 18.



224

Item 18.



225

Item 18.



» AMPERAGEmarketing.com

MEDIA

Nick Harvey
Account Manager
nharvey@
AMPERAGEmarketing.com 
6711 Chancellor Dr.
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
319-553-7303
AMPERAGEmarketing.com 

Prepared for 
Cedar Falls Tourism & Visitors Bureau

Issued 
April 2022

RECOMMENDATIONS_

226

Item 18.

mailto:nharvey@AMPERAGEmarketing.com
mailto:nharvey@AMPERAGEmarketing.com


» AMPERAGEmarketing.com

3

FLIGHT STRATEGY_
Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Bike Trails

Holiday 
Hoopla

Girls Getaway

Family 
Activities

227

Item 18.



» AMPERAGEmarketing.com

20

This mix of Digital will provide reach and frequency of your message 
which will drive people to your website to explore what Cedar Falls 
has to offer travelers.

Approved by ____________________________  Date _____________

Platform Investment

Google Display & Remarketing $  5,250.00

YouTube Video $  3,750.00

Facebook & Instagram $  3,500.00

Digital Ad Suite $  1,500.00

Total Investment $ 14,000.00

Cedar Falls Tourism and Visitors Center
Media Plan Summary - FY23 Digital Campaign

» Metrics are estimated based on current data available at time of media recommendation and may vary when campaign is executed
» Digital platforms are monitored and optimized throughout the campaign and in-depth reporting will be provided to client

Additional Funds/Grants (If available) Investment

Additional Digital Ad Placement $ 10,000.00

Total Investment $ 10,000.00

228

Item 18.



 

Exhibit C 
 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY23 Digital Advertising 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number _______ 
 

  08-24-2020 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this 
document shall be defined as any person or entity that will be performing work for 
the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be with 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is 
attached in Attachment 1. 
 
3.  Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Attachment 1.  Such Certificate 
shall include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Attachment 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Attachment 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly authorized to transact business at the 
location of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment under this 
contract.    
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 
4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 

229

Item 18.



 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY23 Digital Advertising  

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 
 

 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this contract.   
 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to 
terminate this contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at contractor’s 
expense. 
 
7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits, or greater if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Attachment 1: 
 

 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form, 
except for errors and omissions coverage, if required, which shall be 
written on a claims made form. All deviations or exclusions from the 
standard ISO commercial general liability form CG 001 shall be clearly 
identified and shall be subject to review and approval of the City.  

 
 Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 

following substantial completion of the services called for in this contract to 
cover liability arising from the products-completed operations hazard and 
liability assumed under an insured contract.    

 
 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to the form  

in Attachment 1. 
 

 Additional Insured Requirement – See Attachment 1. 
The City of Cedar Falls, and its elected and appointed officials, all its 
employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities 
and their board members, employees and volunteers shall be named as 
an additional insured on General Liability Policies for all classes of 
contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 

Contractors – Completed Operations” 
 

230

Item 18.



 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY23 Digital Advertising  

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 
 

9.        Errors and Omissions:  If the Contractor’s scope of services includes 
design work or other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain 
insurance coverage for errors, omissions and other negligent acts or omissions 
(except for intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services 
performed by Contractor.  Contractor shall maintain continuous errors and 
omissions coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of this 
contract, and continuing for a period of no less than two (2) years from the date 
of completion of all work completed or services performed under this contract, 
and acceptance of same by the City.  The limit of liability under such coverage 
shall not be less than $1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate.    
 
10. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 
11. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set forth in this contract, City does 
not represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor’s liability under this contract.  The City retains the right at any time to 
require liability insurance greater or lesser than that otherwise specified in this 
Exhibit and Attachment 1.   If greater or lesser liability insurance limits are 
required, the same shall be stated on the attached General Terms and 
Conditions document.  
 
12. Performance and Payment Bonds: The City shall have the right to require 
the Contractor to furnish performance and payment bonds for the full amount of 
the Contract price.  The Contractor shall furnish, by a surety and in a form 
satisfactory to the City, such bonds to the City, prior to the start of Contractor’s 
work, covering the performance of the Contractor and the payment of all 
obligations arising hereunder.  The nature and extent of any such required 
bond(s) shall be included in the request for bids or proposals.  The Contractor, 
upon receipt of the bonds and invoice from the surety, shall pay for the cost of 
said bonds. Additional bond premium costs due to modifications to this contract, 
shall be included in the modification amount submitted by Contractor, and paid 
by Contractor.  
 
13. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the 
Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of 
subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or 
any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s 
employees. This provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with 
respect to loss or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out 

231

Item 18.



 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY23 Digital Advertising  

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 
 

of the work performed under this contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance 
shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that such release shall not 
adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of the Contractor to 
recover thereunder. 
 
 
 
 
Completion Checklist 
 

 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Designated Construction Project(s) General Aggregate Limit CG 25 03 03 97 

(2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

232

Item 18.



 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY23 Digital Advertising  

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  

 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000                            
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
 
 

 
   

233

Item 18.



 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY23 Digital Advertising  

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and 
their board members, employees, and volunteers, are included as Additional 
Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and 
completed operations CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 

This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 

1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly 
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of 
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so 
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance 
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from 
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage 
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and 
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of 
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has 
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall 
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

234

Item 18.



 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY23 Digital Advertising  

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 
 

CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 
 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached.  Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage 
and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 
 
 
 

235

Item 18.



 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY23 Digital Advertising  

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 
 

 

236

Item 18.



 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY23 Digital Advertising  

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 
 

 

237

Item 18.



 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY23 Digital Advertising  

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 
 

238

Item 18.



 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY23 Digital Advertising  

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 
 

 

239

Item 18.



 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY23 Digital Advertising  

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 
 

 

240

Item 18.



 

AMPERAGE Marketing FY23 Digital Advertising  

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. _______ 
 

 

241

Item 18.



The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$

$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSD
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

OTHER:

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

6/10/2022

PDCM Insurance
P.O. Box 2597
Waterloo IA 50704

Lynette Sugden
319-234-8888 319-234-7702

lsugden@pdcm.com

Chubb Group of Ins Co
AMPELLC-01

Amperage LLC
6711 Chancellor Dr
Cedar Falls IA 50613

1914049580

A X 1,000,000
X 1,000,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

Y 36015823 4/1/2022 4/1/2023

2,000,000

A 1,000,000
X

XX

Y 73583656 4/1/2022 4/1/2023

A X X 5,000,00079818662

5,000,000

4/1/2022 4/1/2023

A Y 71750756 4/1/2022 4/1/2023 X X
500,000

500,000

500,000
A Errors & Omissions 82402658 4/1/2022 4/1/2023 Errors & Omissions 1,000,000

When required in a written contract, Waiver of subrogation is provided under the General Liability and Auto Policy, in favor of City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including
all its elected and appointed officials, all its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, employees and
volunteers. Carrier will endeavor to provide 30 day notice of cancellation. Waiver of subrogation is provided in favor of City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all
its elected and appointed officials, all its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, employees and
volunteers, under the workers compensation policy.

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls IA 50613

242

Item 18.



243

Item 18.



244

Item 18.



245

Item 18.



246

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

  

 
 
 
 
 TO: The Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 
 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: July 1, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Red House Studios (224 West Seerley Boulevard) 

 
Please find attached a lease agreement for use of 224 West Seerley Boulevard as artists’ studio 
space, for a recent UNI Alumni, in conjunction with the Hearst Center’s Visiting Artist Program. 
The lease provides for use of the studio from July 1, 2022 with expiration date of June 30, 2023. 
 
The Red House Studio has space for four artists. This lease is for the UNI Alumni artist selected 
by the Art & Culture Board. One open studio will be leased to another local artist to be 
determined in the next month. Agreements for the other two spaces were recently renewed. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns. 
 
CC: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 

247

Item 19.



248

Item 19.



249

Item 19.



250

Item 19.



251

Item 19.



252

Item 19.



253

Item 19.



254

Item 19.



255

Item 19.



256

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

 

  

  

 

 
 
   
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

 DATE: July 8, 2022 

 SUBJECT: CARES Act Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG-CV2) 
Service Agency Contracts- Operation Threshold  

 
 
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  The State notified 
the City in mid-May that a portion of the State’s CDBG funds were anticipated to be 
proportionally allocated to Entitlement Communities through the Iowa Economic 
Development Authority (IEDA).  City Council approved the contract on their January 19, 
2021 meeting, including an outline of how much of the funding would be distributed.    
 
At the City Council meeting on April 18, 2022, City Council amended the State Award of 
CARES Act Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG-CV2) and allocated 
additional funds to a service agency as a sub-grantee to continue mortgage/rent 
assistance.  Operation Threshold has been offering rent/mortgage assistance with funds 
from CDBG-CV3 and is willing to continue to offer rent/mortgage assistance to Cedar 
Falls’ residences.   
 
Attached is the Operation Threshold Subrecipient agreement ($19,800.00) to offer 
rent/mortgage assistance to households to prevent, prepare for, or respond to COVID-
19 pandemic. 
  
Staff recommends approving the contract with Operation Threshold.  The City Attorney 
has reviewed the contract and State-required attachments. 
 
Please contact staff with any questions.  Thank you.  
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      

257

Item 20.



258

Item 20.



259

Item 20.



260

Item 20.



261

Item 20.



262

Item 20.



263

Item 20.



264

Item 20.



265

Item 20.



266

Item 20.



267

Item 20.



268

Item 20.



 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
2200 Technology Parkway  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
          MEMORANDUM 

 

  Water Reclamation Division 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council Members  
 
FROM: Mike Nyman, Manager, Water Reclamation Division 
 
DATE: July 7, 2022 
  
 RE: Polymer Pump Purchase 
 
 

 
The Water Reclamation Division of Public Works has a polymer system integrated into our 
biosolids handling operations. The polymer pump system is in need of replacement and has 
been planned for in the Capital Improvements Program. These units provide polymer to large 
presses to dewater solids prior to land application. The purchase of these units, in the amount of 
$75,000, was added to the CIP for FY23. Due to the highly specialized nature of the biosolids 
units very few manufacturers can supply these that can be integrated with our belt filter presses. 
Just two quotes were able to be received. This is the price per unit and the system requires two 
be installed. 
 
 
The following quotes from two manufacturers were received: 
 
BDP Model SBM2400-P10……………………………... $27,150.00 per pump 
 
Gurney – Velodyne Model VPM-10P-2400…………... $29,090.00 per pump 
 
 
I am requesting the approval of the purchase of the BDP Model SBM2400. Two units will need 
to be purchased for a total of approximately $55,000 including on-site service costs. There will 
be additional costs with this project to fully integrate these with our system. This will include 
such items as water line replacement. These costs are expected to be less than $10,000, 
bringing the total cost below to approximately $65,000.  
 
.  
If you have any questions about these items, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 
CC: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 

269

Item 21.



Estimate
Date

7/7/2022

Estimate #

22214

Bill To

Water Reclamation Division
501 E 4th Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Chris.Robinson@cedarfalls.com

Ship To

Water Reclamation Division
501 E 4th Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Attn: Chris Robinson, 319-404-4867

P.O. No. Terms

NET 30

Project

B1258A

Ship Date

Phone #

518-695-6851

Fax #

518-695-5417

E-mail

melissa@bdpindustries.com

Total

PO BOX 118
354 RTE 29
GREENWICH, NY  12834

Item Description Qty Cost Total
2110834 BDP MODEL SBM2400-P10-AA POLYMER MAKE DOWN

UNIT
1 24,500.00 24,500.00

Travel BDP Travel - One Tech - Round Trip 1 1,650.00 1,650.00
Labor BDP Labor - Price Per Day - Service Tech 1 1,000.00 1,000.00

0.00% 0.00

Estimate does not include freight, installation or any/all  taxes unless otherwise stated. Estimate is in
US dollars.   7% Convenience Fee for Credit Card orders. Pricing valid for 30 days.

$27,150.00

270

Item 21.



 
 

Project: Cedar Falls Polymer System Page 1 of 8 Date: 10/7/2020  
Proposal # BM20-2842 
 

VeloDyne - 543 S. Pierce Ave., Louisville, CO 80027 (P) 303.530.3298 www.velodynesystems.com 
 

 
 

Proposal 
 
 
Date of Proposal:  October 7, 2020 

 
Proposal #: BM20-2842 
 
Proposal For: City of Cedar Falls Water Reclamation Division 
 
Project: Cedar Falls Polymer System Trial / Replacement 
 
Equipment: VeloBlend Liquid Polymer Activation System 
 
 
Represented By: 
Chris Johnson 
Gurney & Associates 
Cell: (531) 200-3511 
chrisj@bgagurney.com 
 
 
VeloDyne Contact Information: 
 
Sales Manager: Brett McQuade 
Phone: (303) 530-3298 (241)  
Direct: (971) 757-7201 
bmcquade@velodynesystems.com 
 
Application Engineer: Spencer Bradnan 
Phone: (303) 530-3298 (218)  
sbradnan@velodynesystems.com 
  

4428 South 108th Street
Omaha, NE 68137

REPRESENTED BY

(402) 551-7995
(402) 553-5879 Fax
www.bgagurney.com

271

Item 21.

http://www.velodynesystems.com/
mailto:bmcquade@velodynesystems.com


 
 

Project: Cedar Falls Polymer System Page 2 of 8 Date: 10/7/2020  
Proposal # BM20-2842 
 

VeloDyne - 543 S. Pierce Ave., Louisville, CO 80027 (P) 303.530.3298 www.velodynesystems.com 
 

 
 

PROPOSED SCOPE OF SUPPLY 

Bid Type: Per customer’s request.  
 
VeloDyne is pleased to offer the following proposal for the liquid polymer blending equipment, including options and 
accessories as indicated below. 
 

QTY. 
 
1 
 

 

DESCRIPTION 
 
VeloBlend Model VM-10P-2400-Rp-1-A-2 Liquid Polymer Blending System 
 
Polymer Flow Range: 0.5 to 10.0 GPH  
Dilution Water Flow: 4 to 40 GPM 
 

  
 Each unit shall include the following unless otherwise indicated: 

 
1 Polymer Mixing Chamber:  

A. Series: VeloBlend VM  
B. Type: Staged Hydro-Mechanical  
C. Mixer Motor: ½ HP, 90 VDC, 1750 RPM, wash-down duty  
D. Mixer Shaft Seal: Mechanical with seal flushing assembly 
E. VeloCheckTM Neat Polymer Check Valve with Quick Release Pin  
F. Construction: 

1. Body: Stainless steel 
2. Impeller: Stainless steel 
3. Mechanical Seal: Ceramic, Carbon, Stainless steel, Viton  
4. Cover: Clear polycarbonate with stainless steel reinforced flange & discharge 

G. Pressure Rating: 100 psi 
H. Pressure Relief Valve: Brass  

  
1 Neat Polymer Metering Pump Assembly: 

A. PVC FNPT union style polymer inlet 
B. Type: Progressive Cavity type 
C. Motor: ½ HP, 1750 RPM, 90 VDC, Wash-down duty motor with gear reducer 
D. Loss of polymer flow sensor 
E. Metering pump calibration assembly with isolation valves 
F. Plumbing: SCH. 80 PVC 

  
1 Dilution Water Inlet Assembly shall be provided, including the following: 

A. Stainless steel FNPT water inlet connection 
B. Dilution water ON/OFF solenoid valve  
C. Control Valve: Linear Actuator (automatic control) 
D. Primary dilution water flow meter type: Paddle meter 
E. 0-160 psi inlet water pressure gauge (stainless steel, liquid filled) 
F. Plumbing – SCH. 80 PVC 

  
1 Solution Discharge Assembly: 

A. Stainless steel FNPT solution discharge connection 
B. 0-160 psi solution discharge pressure gauge (stainless steel, liquid filled) 
C. Plumbing – SCH. 80 PVC 

  

272

Item 21.

http://www.velodynesystems.com/


Project: Cedar Falls Polymer System Page 3 of 8 Date: 10/7/2020 
Proposal # BM20-2842 

VeloDyne - 543 S. Pierce Ave., Louisville, CO 80027 (P) 303.530.3298 www.velodynesystems.com

1 Control Panel: 
A. Enclosure: NEMA 4X (FRP)
B. Power:

1. Required: 120 VAC, 60 Hz., 1 Ph
2. Disconnect: rotary style

C. Controller: VeloDyne
D. Operator Interface: 6” Color TFT
E. Motor controllers:

1. Mixing Chamber
2. Neat polymer metering pump

F. Miscellaneous:
1. Control circuit protection
2. Control relays
3. Power supplies
4. Grounding blocks
5. Numbers terminal blocks
6. Wire labels, shrink-tube type
7. Cabling

G. Description:
1. The control system shall be designed to precisely control dilution water flow in

proportion to polymer flow (polymer master) based on an operator input of
desired solution concentration.  The controller shall have two (2) modes of
operation:

a. Manual Mode:  Operator sets pump rate and water rate manually by
increase and decrease push buttons on controller face.

b. Proportional Auto Mode:  Operator sets desired solution concentration.
Metering pump follows 4-20mA pump pacing input signal. Water rate
is controlled to maintained desired solution concentration (i.e. for in-
line applications where process flow fluctuates).

H. Operator Interface Functions:
1. System ON/OFF
2. Mode (change mode, select mode):

a. Manual Mode
b. Proportional Auto Mode

3. Set % Solution (proportional modes only)
4. Set Poly Rate (manual mode only)
5. Set Water Rate (manual and remote auto modes)
6. Polymer Pump Calibrated Value Input

I. Operator Interface Display:
1. Pump Rate
2. Water Rate
3. Solution Concentration
4. Status / Alarm Indicators:

a. Low Water Flow Alarm
b. Low Polymer Flow Alarm

5. Mode Select
6. Calibration Mode

J. Inputs (signals by others):
1. Remote Start / Stop (discrete dry contact)
2. Pacing Signal Based on Process Flow (4-20mA)

K. Outputs:
1. System Running (discrete dry contact)
2. Remote Mode (discrete dry contact)
3. Common Alarm (discrete dry contact)
4. Polymer Pump Rate (4-20mA)

L. Special Functions / Features:
1. Proportional control of water to polymer flow (ratio control) as outlined above
2. Programmable auto flush – keeps water control valve open for programmable

amount of time when unit is shut-off.
3. Polymer pump rate input for calibration.

273

Item 21.

http://www.velodynesystems.com/


Project: Cedar Falls Polymer System Page 4 of 8 Date: 10/7/2020 
Proposal # BM20-2842 

VeloDyne - 543 S. Pierce Ave., Louisville, CO 80027 (P) 303.530.3298 www.velodynesystems.com

1 System Skid: 
A. Frame: 304 stainless steel, open frame design for access to all components
B. Fasteners: 304 SS
C. Designed for bolt-down

1 Accessories (quantities shown are total for project – provided loose for field installation): 
A. (1) Spare progressive cavity pump stator
B. (1) Spare VeloCheck polymer check valve

274

Item 21.

http://www.velodynesystems.com/


Project: Cedar Falls Polymer System Page 5 of 8 Date: 10/7/2020 
Proposal # BM20-2842 

VeloDyne - 543 S. Pierce Ave., Louisville, CO 80027 (P) 303.530.3298 www.velodynesystems.com

1 Engineering & Documentation: 
A. Submittals for approval (electronic version in PDF & hard copies if requested)

1. Detailed scope of supply
2. Mechanical drawings (solids models in shaded isometric and wire orthogonal

views)
3. Mechanical component data sheets annotated for specific models, features, etc.
4. Pump performance curves
5. Electrical schematics with interconnecting layout
6. Process & Instrumentation Drawings
7. Process description
8. Electrical component data sheets annotated for specific models, features, etc.

B. O&M Manuals for approval (electronic version in PDF & hard copies if requested)

1 Start-Up / Field Services: 
A. Factory Start-Up & Field Services:

1. Number of Trips: 1
2. Number of Days (total on site): 1

Note: a minimum of four (4) weeks’ notice required for domestic orders prior to factory services being 
scheduled 

Clarifications: 

1. This proposal shall become part of the final purchase order documents.
2. Any equipment or appurtenances not specifically listed in the scope of supply shall be provided by others.
3. VeloDyne has proposed its standard equipment as detailed above, modified only to the extent to meet the intent

of the project requirements.
4. Where there are contradictions between project specifications and drawings or omissions, VeloDyne is providing

our best interpretation of the intent of the design as detailed in our scope of supply.
5. Unless otherwise indicated above, standard submittals and O&M manuals are included herein.
6. This proposal is based on equipment delivery within one year from the date of this proposal.
7. Unless otherwise indicated above, the following are not included in this proposal: Installation. Chemicals.

Interconnecting wiring, conduit, piping and valves.  Anchor bolts. Field Painting. Taxes. Tariffs. Duties. Bonds.

Commercial Terms Summary (see complete terms & conditions attached): 

1. Price Valid For 90 Days
2. Payment Terms: Net 30
3. Freight: (municipal) FOB factory, full freight allowed
4. *Submittals: 4-6 weeks after acceptance of order
5. *Shipment: 4-6 weeks after acceptance of order and customer’s written approval and release for production

* Note: lead times are estimates based on the current engineering and production work load at the time of bid.  Actual lead times may vary 
based on the workloads at the time of order and release for production – consult factory at time for order and release for production to confirm 
lead times.

Total Price Including Field Services & Freight: $29,090.00 

Unit can be provided on a 30-day trial basis. Trial to be dependent on VeloDyne’s system yielding a performance 
increase over your existing polymer system and maintaining a high level of customer satisfaction.  
To initiate the trial, we require a PO be issued for the system total.  VeloDyne will not invoice against your PO until the 
trial has concluded and you decide to keep the unit.   If you decide to return the system, then only freight charges to 
and from your site will be assessed. 

275

Item 21.

http://www.velodynesystems.com/


 
 

Project: Cedar Falls Polymer System Page 6 of 8 Date: 10/7/2020  
Proposal # BM20-2842 
 

VeloDyne - 543 S. Pierce Ave., Louisville, CO 80027 (P) 303.530.3298 www.velodynesystems.com 
 

VELODYNE STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS OF SALE 
 
All orders placed with Velocity Dynamics, LLC. d/b/a VeloDyne (the “Company” or “Seller”), if accepted, shall be accepted subject to VeloDyne 
Standard Terms and Conditions of Sale (“Terms and Conditions”) as set forth below and incorporated by reference into the Purchase Contract: 
 

1. CONTRACT; OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE. These Terms and 
Conditions, together with the product descriptions, prices and other 
terms appearing on the face hereof or in a separate document submitted 
to you, (collectively, “our Quotation”), as such may result in a final 
Purchase Contract between us (all such documents collectively referred 
to as the “Contract”), shall constitute the only terms and conditions of 
our offer.  If our Quotation is submitted in response to an offer made by 
you, whether your offer is in the form of a request for proposal or 
otherwise, our Quotation is expressly conditioned on your acceptance 
of these Terms and Conditions, which are incorporated into any offer, 
acceptance, response, acknowledgment, invoice, amendment and/or 
any other document issued by you or the Company in connection with 
your Order (the “Contract” or “Contract Documents”), and any reference 
thereto shall include these Terms and Conditions. No waiver, alteration, 
or modification of these Terms and Conditions shall be valid unless 
expressly agreed to in writing by the Company. In any event, we object 
to all additional or conflicting terms and conditions that may appear in 
your order or other form of acceptance you may submit to us in response 
to our Quotation.  The Company shall supply to Purchaser the 
equipment and parts (the “Products”) in accordance with the design, 
manufacturing and performance specifications set forth in the 
Company’s Quote and incorporated in the Purchase Contract (including 
these Terms and Conditions). No representation, promise or warranty of 
any kind has been made by us except as set forth in the Contract, which 
conclusively supersedes all prior writings, representations and 
negotiations with respect thereto.  The Company has no obligation to 
furnish other equipment, materials or services that may be shown in any 
plans and/or specifications except for those goods actually ordered by 
you for a project to which the goods ordered herein pertain. 
2. PRICES. Unless otherwise noted in the Contract, prices are net Ex-
Works our facility and firm for 30 days. Prices do not include: freight; 
permitting, licensing and/or export fees; labor charges; storage fees; or 
taxes. If you require the Company’s assistance for installation or set-up, 
we will invoice you at standard rates (please contact us for current 
pricing). Regarding taxes as set forth below, you will either (i) pay to the 
appropriate authority all applicable taxes and other government charges 
upon the production, sale, shipment or use of the goods and provide us 
with proof of payment; or (ii) provide us with a tax exemption certificate 
from the appropriate taxing authorities.  You agree to provide us with 
written proof of payment of taxes (or exemption therefrom) within ninety 
(90) calendar days of your receipt of the goods.  Time is of the essence. 
3. CREDIT AND PAYMENT. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract, 
payment terms are net 30 days from the date of our invoice(s). Any 
payment outstanding beyond sixty (60) calendar days from the date of 
any Company invoice shall be subject to a late payment charge on the 
overdue balance in the amount of 1.5% per month calculated on the 
outstanding payment amount (or such lesser amount as is the maximum 
rate of interest allowed by law). Purchaser shall be responsible for all 
reasonable costs (including attorney’s fees) incurred by the Company 
while collecting any delinquent balance. For international shipments, 
payment terms are cash only (unless otherwise approved in writing by 
us). The Company may decline to deliver except for cash, or stop goods 
in transit, should we develop any reasonable doubt as to Purchaser’s 
financial responsibility.  Pro-rata payments shall become due with partial 
shipments.  If Purchaser is responsible for any delay in shipment: (a) the 
Company may treat the date of completion of goods as the date of 
shipment for purposes of invoice and payment, (b) completed goods 
shall be held at Purchaser’s cost and risk; and (c) Purchaser shall be 
responsible for reasonable storage and insurance expenses, with 
storage fees accruing at a rate of two percent (2%) of the Purchase Price 
per month or $500 per month, whichever is greater, beginning on the 
first day of the first calendar month following the date the equipment was 
scheduled to ship. If retainages are accepted by the Company, the 
retainage shall be based on an agreed upon percentage of the total 

invoice amount.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing, (a) retainage will 
not be held for more than 180 calendar days from the date of shipment 
and (b) no retainage will be imposed for approval of shop drawings, 
O&M manuals or any other documentation.   
4. DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE OF PRODUCTS; TRANSFER OF 
TITLE.  
(A) Products to be Used in the United States.  Seller will deliver 
Products manufactured and to be used by Purchaser in the United 
States Ex-Works at our facility (“Shipping Point”) Incoterms 2010, or in 
such other manner as may be mutually agreed to by us and set forth in 
separate Shipping Terms under the Contract.  On all shipments marked 
“Ex-Works (or EXW) Shipping Point,” the Company shall make the 
Products available to Purchaser at the Company’s facility, which shall 
constitute delivery, and Purchaser shall bear all costs and risks of 
moving the Products from our facility to Purchaser’s destination. Any 
claim for loss or damages in transit must be entered with the freight 
carrier and prosecuted by you. 
(B) Products to be Used Outside of the United States.  Seller will 
deliver all Products to be used by Purchaser outside of the United States 
“FAS (Free Alongside Ship) Named Port of Shipment” (“Shipping Point”) 
Incoterms 2010, which means the Company will deliver the Products to 
the designated port, origin point or designated freight forwarder, with 
Purchaser bearing all costs and risk of loss or damage from the origin 
point to Purchaser’s destination point outside of the United States. 
Purchaser shall be responsible for payment of all sales and use taxes, 
or to recover such taxes through appropriate procedures and 
documentation under applicable law.  
(C) Shipping. Goods will be boxed or crated as Seller may deem proper 
for protection against normal handling, and extra charge will be made 
for preservation, waterproofing or similar added protection of goods. 
Routing and manner of shipment will be at Seller’s discretion, and may 
be insured at Purchaser’s expense, value to be stated at order price. 
(D) Delivery, Shipment & Installation Dates. Delivery, shipment and 
installation dates are estimates only, not guarantees, and unless 
otherwise specified, are calculated from the date of Seller’s receipt of 
complete technical data and approved drawings as such may be 
necessary to fulfill the Contract. In estimating such dates, no allowance 
has been made, nor shall we be liable directly or indirectly, for delays of 
third-party vendors, carriers or delays from labor difficulties, shortages, 
strikes or stoppages of any sort, fires, accidents, failure or delay in 
obtaining materials or manufacturing facilities, acts of government 
affecting us directly or indirectly, bad weather, or any cause beyond our 
control or causes designated as Acts of God or forced by any court of 
law, and the estimated delivery date shall be extended accordingly 
without penalty to the Company.  We will not be liable for any damages 
or penalties whatsoever, whether direct, indirect, special or 
consequential, liquidated or otherwise, resulting from our failure to 
perform or delay in performing. Overtime and other expenses incurred 
to hasten delivery at Purchaser’s request shall be added to the quoted 
prices and charged to and paid for by Purchaser. Shipment of goods 
ready for delivery can be deferred beyond the date for delivery on with 
Seller’s written consent.   
(E) Delivery Terms.  Seller’s obligation to deliver the goods shall be 
fulfilled when we have delivered the same in good condition to a carrier 
at the designated Shipping Point. Unless otherwise specified in the 
Contract, Purchaser shall be charged with and pay for the costs of all 
transportation, freight, insurance, loading, packaging and handling 
charges, taxes, duties, fees, storage, and all other charges applicable to 
the goods. Purchaser shall not be responsible for any taxes based on 
Seller’s income.  
(F) Title / Security.  Title to the goods shall be retained by Seller as a 
vendor’s lien until such goods are paid for in full by the Purchaser, even 
though risk of loss shall be borne by Purchaser as set forth in 
paragraphs 4(A) and (B) respectively. Purchaser herby grants to Seller, 

276

Item 21.

http://www.velodynesystems.com/


 
 

Project: Cedar Falls Polymer System Page 7 of 8 Date: 10/7/2020  
Proposal # BM20-2842 
 

VeloDyne - 543 S. Pierce Ave., Louisville, CO 80027 (P) 303.530.3298 www.velodynesystems.com 
 

and Seller hereby reserves, a purchase money security interest in and 
to the goods sold to Purchaser, together with all proceeds thereof, to 
secure Purchaser’s payment and performance. Purchaser agrees upon 
Seller’s request to do all acts and execute all documents reasonably 
necessary to assist Purchaser’s perfection and maintenance of any such 
security title and right of possession including, but not limited to, 
executing and filing documents with the appropriate governmental 
agency.  
(G) Cancellation and Returned Equipment. Orders may be canceled 
or amended only with our written consent, and must be returned within 
30 days of Seller’s written authorization at Purchaser’s cost.  If 
Purchaser returns the goods in the manner required under the previous 
sentence, and if the returned goods are (i) in substantially the same 
condition that existed on the date the Seller delivered the Products to 
you, undamaged; and (ii) not more than 12 months after the original 
Invoice date; the returned goods will, subject to the applicable handling 
charge, be accepted by the Seller for return.  Used or discontinued 
goods or parts or equipment specially manufactured will not be accepted 
for credit unless specifically agreed to by the Seller in our sole discretion. 
Purchaser’s sole remedy for returns will be a credit for the purchase 
price less any handling charges.  Returned goods are subject to a 
minimum of 20% restocking and handling charge.  Returns found to be 
free of material and workmanship defects will be held for 30 days and if 
Purchaser does not provide the Seller with repair or return instructions, 
then we will scrap or resell the goods. Purchaser will be charged for 
placing returned goods in saleable condition, any sales expenses then 
incurred by us, plus a restocking charge and any out-going and in-
coming transportation costs which the Company pays. 
(H) Acceptance by Purchaser. Purchaser shall conduct any incoming 
inspection tests on delivered Products within 10 days of delivery, and if 
delivery is made in multiple shipments, then Purchaser shall conduct 
incoming inspections of Products within 10 days of receipt of each 
delivery.  In the event of a shortage, damage or discrepancy in any 
shipment, Purchaser shall promptly give notice to Seller in writing (at 
such address designated by Seller for such purpose) but in no event 
later than 30 days of the subject delivery, detailing the exact nature of 
the shortage, damage or discrepancy and provide such supporting 
documentation as Seller shall deem necessary and appropriate (i.e., 
photos, insurance reports, etc.).  If such evidence indicates, in Seller’s 
reasonable judgment, that such shortage, damage or discrepancy 
existed at the time of delivery of the goods to the carrier, Seller will 
promptly deliver additional or substitute goods to Purchaser; provided, 
however, that Seller may, in its sole and absolute discretion, require 
Purchaser to return all damaged goods to the Company prior to delivery 
of substitute goods. If Purchaser shall fail to timely give Seller such 
written notice, the goods shall be deemed to conform to the 
requirements of the Contract, and Purchaser shall be deemed to have 
accepted the goods and shall pay for the goods in accordance therewith. 
(I) Purchaser’s Specifications.  Purchaser shall be solely responsible 
for ensuring that all specifications, drawings, information, advice, 
recommendations or requests provided to the Company by Purchaser 
or any of its agents are accurate and suitable for Purchaser’s purposes. 
The Company’s examination or consideration of any such specifications, 
drawings, information, advice, recommendations or requests shall not 
result in any liability on the part of the Company. 
5. TERMINATION. The Company shall have the right to cancel for 
default hereunder all or any part of Purchaser’s Order. This right of 
cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies that 
the Company may have in law or equity. 
6.  TAXES & IMPORT- EXPORT CHARGES.   
(A) Purchaser’s Responsibility for Taxes, Reports and Withholding.  
Seller shall be responsible for reporting and paying all state and federal 
income taxes associated with sales of equipment and products to 
Purchaser under this Contract.  However, Purchaser shall be 
responsible for all liabilities or claims for taxes that any taxing authority 
having jurisdiction over this Contract may assess or levy relating to the 
Products or this Contract.  Purchaser shall comply with all applicable tax 
requirements, file all registrations (including all Transaction and Sales 
Tax registrations) and reports, and take all actions necessary to make 

its tax payments (or secure exemptions from or reductions in payments 
of same). Within 90 days from the date of any payment by Purchaser 
under Seller’s Invoice, Purchaser shall provide Seller with tax receipts 
(or other proof of payment or written evidence of tax exemption) for all 
taxes to be paid by Purchaser under this Contract. 
(B) Import and Export Charges.  Purchaser shall be solely responsible 
for all import and export charges, licenses, permits ad any other lawfully 
payable charge related to the import or export of Products under this 
Contract. 
(C) Export Controls & Related Regulations.  Purchaser represents 
and warrants that it is not designated on, or associated with, any party 
designated on any of the U.S. government restricted parties lists, 
including without limitation, the U.S. Commerce Department Bureau of 
Industry and Security (“BIS”) Denied Persons List; Entity List or 
Unverified List; the U.S. Treasury Department Office of Foreign Assets 
Control (“OFAC”) Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons 
List; or the U.S. State Department Directorate of Defense Trade Controls 
(“DDTC”) Debarred Parties List.  Purchaser shall comply with all 
applicable U.S. economic sanctions and export control laws and 
regulations, including without limitation, the regulations administered by 
the OFAC, the Export Administration Regulations administered by BIS, 
and the International Traffic in Arms Regulations administered by DDTC. 
Seller may terminate this Contract and discontinue any ongoing supply 
to or business with Purchaser immediately, without notice and without 
liability, upon Seller becoming aware that Purchaser is named on any 
restricted party list. 
7.  WARRANTY; LIMITED REMEDIES. 
(A) Seller Warranties. Seller shall provide the standard warranties 
provided in the form Warranty Agreement (a copy of which is attached 
and incorporated by reference into our Contract). 
(B) Assignment.  Seller assigns to Purchaser all warranties given by 
manufacturers and vendors of Seller as such relate to the Products 
(equipment or components).  These warranties are not exclusive. 
(C) Limitation on Damages. Other than as set forth in Paragraph 9 
(Purchaser Indemnification) and any breaches of Paragraph 11 below 
(Confidentiality), each party’s cumulative liability for damages to the 
other party for any cause whatsoever, and regardless of the form of 
action, whether in contract or in tort, including but not limited to, 
negligence, shall be limited to the total Contract price of the goods sold 
hereunder, plus or minus, as applicable, the amounts of all unpaid 
accounts payable and receivable between the parties.  In no event shall 
Seller’s liability exceed the limits of the Company’s insurance coverage. 
8.  SOLE REMEDY. The sole and exclusive remedy for breach of any 
non-warranty obligation of the Company and the sole remedy for the 
Company’s liability of any kind (including negligence) with respect to the 
goods and services provided to Purchaser shall be to use all 
commercially reasonable efforts to promptly cure such breach.  
Purchaser must prosecute any claim for a cause of action arising 
hereunder with one year from the date on which the facts that gave rise 
to the cause of action first occurred subject to the terms set forth in 
Section 14 (Governing Law and Resolution of Disputes). 
9. INDEMNIFICATION. Purchaser shall hold harmless, indemnify and 
defend the Company (at the Company’s request) for any and all 
damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including the costs of any 
dispute resolution, including but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and any 
other costs and expenses), fines, or losses in connection with any 
threatened or actual claims, actions, demands, investigations, suits, 
including but not limited to, claims or suits by third parties, arising out of 
any of the following: (a) Purchaser’s negligent or willful acts, or those of 
its employees and/or agents, (b) such goods being repaired or altered 
by persons other than Seller (unless expressly authorized in writing by 
the Seller), (c) any claim of patent infringement arising out of the 
manufacture by Seller of goods created in accordance with a design or 
specifications furnished to Seller by Purchaser, (d) in the event that 
Purchaser modifies, or combines with any non-Seller goods, any of the 
goods purchased from Seller, and such modification or combination 
results in the actual or alleged infringement of any intellectual property 
rights of any third party, (e) from goods produced by Seller according to 
Purchaser’s specifications, (f) any violations of export control laws by 

277

Item 21.

http://www.velodynesystems.com/


 
 

Project: Cedar Falls Polymer System Page 8 of 8 Date: 10/7/2020  
Proposal # BM20-2842 
 

VeloDyne - 543 S. Pierce Ave., Louisville, CO 80027 (P) 303.530.3298 www.velodynesystems.com 
 

Purchaser, (g) any violations of state or federal tax laws by Purchaser, 
or (h) Purchaser’s breach of any provisions of these Terms and 
Conditions. 
10.  SELLER’S INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INDEMNIFICATION. 
Seller will defend, indemnify and hold harmless Purchaser from and 
against any and all loss, damage, cost or expense arising as a result of 
any claim that the goods sold hereunder infringe any third party U.S. 
patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret or intellectual property right. 
Otherwise, Seller will not be liable for any claim of infringement.  If you 
notify us promptly of any such claim of infringement and, if we so 
request, authorize us to defend or settle any suit or controversy involving 
such claim, we will indemnify you against the reasonable expenses of 
any such suit and will satisfy any judgment or settlement in which we 
acquiesce, but only to an amount not exceeding the price paid for the 
allegedly infringing goods.  If an injunction is issued against the further 
use of allegedly infringing goods, the Company shall have the option of 
procuring for you the right to use the goods, or replacing them with non-
infringing goods, or modifying them so that they become non-infringing 
or of removing them and refunding the purchase price.  The foregoing 
states the Company’s entire and exclusive liability with respect to a claim 
of infringement, and we will not be liable for any damages whatsoever 
suffered by reason of any infringement claimed, except as provided 
herein.   
11.CONFIDENTIALITY.“Confidential Information” means any of the 
Company’s business information, specifications and all related writings, 
drawings, designs, software applications and similar works or any other 
information disclosed by the Company that are disclosed as 
“Confidential” or proprietary. All Confidential Information shall be the 
exclusive property of the Company and we retain all right, title and 
interest in and to the same. Purchaser agrees to use Confidential 
Information for the exclusive purpose of performance under the Contract 
and not to disclose or provide any Confidential Information to any third 
party and to take all necessary measures to prevent any such disclosure 
by its employees, agents, contractors or consultants. Upon request of 
the Company or completion of the Contract, Purchaser shall return all 
Confidential Information to the Company and provide certification of 
such return. 
12. TOOLING; SPECIAL JIGS, FIXTURES & PATTERNS. Charges 
made for tools, jigs, fixtures, patterns and equipment made or acquired 
by the Company in connection with your Order and utilized in 
manufacturing will be considered the exclusive property of the 
Company, without credit to Purchaser.  
13. INSPECTION, RECORDS, AUDITS & PROPRIETARY DATA. 
Inspection of goods in our facility by Purchaser and/or its representative 
will be permitted, provided that (a) Purchaser gives reasonable written 
notice of its desire to inspect the goods, and (b) the inspection does not 
unduly interfere with the Company’s production work flow. Neither 
Purchaser nor any of Purchaser’s representatives shall have any right 
to examine or audit the Company’s cost accounts, books or records of 
any kind, or be entitled to, or have control over, any engineering or 
production prints, drawings or technical data which the Company, in our 

sole discretion, may consider in whole or in part to be proprietary to our 
business. 
14. GOVERNING LAW & DISPUTE RESOLUTION. 
(A) Governing Law.  The Contract and these Terms and Conditions are 
governed by and interpreted under the laws of the State of Colorado, 
without regard to its choice of law rules unless the matters in dispute 
come within the scope of Article 2 of the Uniform Commercial Code 
(UCC-Sales) prepared under the joint sponsorship of The American Law 
Institute and the National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform 
State Laws, in which event the dispute shall be governed by and 
interpreted under the referenced Code in effect on the date of this 
Contract.   
(B) Dispute Resolution.  Except for any action where the sole relief 
sought is an injunction, any controversy or claim arising out of or relating 
to the Contract and these Terms and Conditions, or the making, 
performance or interpretation hereof, and the dispute cannot be settled 
by direct negotiations, either Party may initiate mediation.  If the parties 
fail to settle the dispute within 30 days of notice of mediation, either party 
may initiate binding arbitration under this paragraph. The place of 
arbitration shall be in the Boulder-Denver Metro-Area of Colorado, and 
shall be conducted by one arbitrator in accordance with the Commercial 
Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. Judgment 
upon any binding arbitration award may be entered in any court having 
jurisdiction thereof. 
15.  GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
(A) Prior Agreements.  This Contract comprises the complete and 
exclusive agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter 
of this Contract, and supersedes all oral and written communications, 
negotiations, representations or agreements made or entered into 
before the Effective Date. 
(B) Amendments.  No amendment to this Contract is effective unless 
made in writing and signed by authorized representatives of Purchaser 
and Seller.  Specifications, drawings, price lists and documents of a 
technical nature prepared by Seller and submitted to Purchaser to 
describe the equipment and parts being purchased hereunder 
automatically become part of this Contract. 
(C) Survival.  All provisions set forth herein regarding warranty, 
confidential information, indemnification, liability and limits thereon, and 
any other provisions that survive on their terms including all provisions 
relating to tax, import / export, inspection, dispute resolution and 
governing laws, and all causes of action which arose prior to completion 
or termination of this Contract shall survive indefinitely until, by their 
respective terms, they are no longer operative. 
(D) Conflicts.  If a conflict exists between these Terms and Conditions 
and any other writings connected with this Contract, these Terms and 
Conditions shall prevail with respect to such conflict.  In the event that 
any provisions of these Terms and Conditions is held to be illegal, invalid 
or unenforceable under the present or future law, rule or regulation, such 
provision shall be deemed stricken from these Terms and Conditions, 
but such illegality, invalidity or unenforceability shall not invalidate any 
of the other provisions of these Terms and Conditions.  
  

 

278

Item 21.

http://www.velodynesystems.com/


VELOBLEND
Advanced Liquid Polymer Activation Technologies

The result of over 30 years pursuing optimum 
polymer performance and system reliability.

While the rest of the polymer equipment industry  

was engaged in a mechanical versus non-mechanical 

system debate, VeloDyne developed the next generation  

of advanced polymer activation technologies, a hybrid  

of the two approaches.

AS IT TURNS OUT,  
IT IS POSSIBLE  
TO PATENT “AND”

A company driven to deliver the very best Polymer Blending, Chemical Feed, 

and Bulk Solids Handling Systems, fueled by constantly asking, “What If?”

279

Item 21.



VELOBLEND
Advanced Liquid Polymer Activation Technologies

OPTIMIZING LIQUID POLYMER PERFORMANCE

There have been numerous technologies introduced over the last thirty years designed to activate liquid polymer. The advanced hybrid 

VeloBlend™ technology has proven to more efficiently induce ultra-high, non-damaging mixing energy, delivering the highest polymer 

performance over any other technology in the industry.

The VeloBlend is simply the best polymer activation 

technology ever developed. 

    —polymer consultant with over 30 years of industry experience

NEAT “AS-SUPPLIED” POLYMER

Neat polymer, as supplied, is primarily 

comprised of coiled-up polymer, oil, 

water, and inverting surfactant.

UNACTIVATED POLYMER MOLECULE— 
CAPABLE OF WITHSTANDING HIGH MIXING ENERGY

In its “neat” (as-supplied) state, the 

polymer is coiled up like a spring and 

is capable of withstanding ultra-high 

mixing energy without damage to its 

molecular structure.

DAMAGED POLYMER—CAUSED BY EXCESSIVE SHEAR

Once the polymer uncoils, 

the elongated polymer is now 

susceptible to damage caused 

by excessive shear. The result 

is increased polymer usage, 

increased polymer cost and  

reduced process performance.

PARTIALLY UNCOILED POLYMER-INSUFFICIENT MIXING ENERGY

If polymer is exposed to  

insufficient mixing energy,  

the polymer fails to fully  

activate with the same  

negative results in polymer  

cost and process  

performance as is seen  

with damaged polymer.

FULLY ACTIVATED, UNDAMAGED POLYMER— 
DELIVERING OPTIMAL PERFORMANCE

When neat, coiled-up polymer is properly exposed to ultra-high 

mixing energy, the oil is effectively “scrubbed” from the polymer, 

allowing it to become highly activated without damage.

The VeloBlend’s hybrid technology more  

effectively induces ultra-high, non-damaging  

mixing energy over the system’s full flow range 

than any other technology on the market.

2

280

Item 21.



We started by perfecting hydro-dynamic, non-mechanical mixing energy. 

Born from thirty years of experience, the VeloBlend VH series optimizes 

the use of non-mechanical mixing energy, exceeding the performance 

and reliability over existing technologies.

We then eliminated the biggest drawback to non-mechanical 

blending—its reliance on water pressure. The VeloBlend™ hybrid 

polymer activation technology combines the reliability of hydro- 

dynamic, non-mechanical mixing energy with controllable, variable 

speed hydro-mechanical mixing energy. This process allows for 

precise control of mixing conditions, allowing optimal performance 

of any polymer available.

EXCLUSIVE HYBRID ACTIVATION TECHNOLOGY

U.S. Patent No. 7,267,477

POLYMER INLET

WATER CONTROL VALVE
(Auto Actuation Optional)

SOLUTION OUTLET

WATER INLET

Quick Access, Reliable,
Neat Polymer Check Valve

Integral Seal Flush

STAGE 1
Non-Mechanical
Mixing Energy
High Energy > 30 psid

STAGE 2
Non-Mechanical 
Mixing Energy Zone 
(independent of  
water pressure)

STAGE 3
Exclusive Variable 
Speed Hydro-
Mechanical Impeller

3

281

Item 21.



VELOBLEND
Advanced Liquid Polymer Activation Technologies

SERIES 2400
• Skid Configuration #1
• Progressive Cavity Pump
• Range: from 0.2 up to 50 GPM Solution
• Control Levels D & E

SERIES 12000
• Skid Configuration #3
• Progressive Cavity Pump
• Range: from 10 up to 200 GPM Solution
• Control Levels D thru RpSB

SERIES 36000
• Skid Configuration #4
• Progressive Cavity Pump
• Range: from 40 up to 600 GPM Solution
• Control Levels D thru Rw

1. ACTIVATION CHAMBER
 VeloBlend Advanced Liquid Polymer 

Activation Technology delivers 
unsurpassed performance and 
reliability.

2. DILUTION WATER SYSTEM
 Up to 600 GPM to meet your  

applica tion requirements.

3. NEMA 4X CONTROLS
 Five standard control systems  

are available to meet your specific  
control requirements.

4. NEAT POLYMER PUMP
 Progressive cavity pumps standard.  

Other pump types optional.

5. RUGGED STAINLESS STEEL SKID
 Available in 304 or 316 stainless  

steel. Open design for ease of 
maintenance. Designed to provide  
ideal pump suction conditions.

1

2

3

5
4

SERIES 6000
• Skid Configuration #2
• Progressive Cavity Pump
• Range: from 0.2 up to 100 GPM Solution
• Control Levels D thru RpSB

THE VERSATILE VELOBLEND SYSTEM

4

282

Item 21.

sbradnan
Rectangle



BASE MODEL: SKID SIZE BASED ON CONTROL LEVEL (SEE CHART BELOW)

VELOBLEND BASE MODEL POLYMER GPH* WATER GPH** D E Rw Rp RpSB

VM-0.5P-120 0.025 – 0.5 12 – 120

1 2

VM-2P-300 0.1 – 2 30 – 300

VM-3P-600 0.15 – 3 60 – 600

VM-5P-1200 0.25 -5 120 – 1200

VM-10P-1800 0.5 – 10 180 – 1800

VM-10P-2400 0.5 – 10 240 – 2400

VM-30P-6000 1.5 – 30 600 – 6000 2

VM-60P-12000 3.0 – 60 1200 – 12000 3

VM-180P-36000 18 – 180 3600 – 36000 4

*LOWER CAPACITIES AVAILABLE—CONSULT FACTORY    **ALTERNATE PUMP/WATER RATE COMBINATIONS AVAILABLE—CONSULT FACTORY   *** CAPACITIES SUBJECT TO CHANGE

BASE MODEL CONTROL LEVEL PLC/HMI OPTION POWER SKID SIZE

Model # Example: VM-10P-1200 RpSB 3D A 2

Build Your VeloBlend:

CONTROL LEVELS

CONTROL LEVEL: DISCRETE PLC

STANDARD CONTROL OPTIONS D E Rw Rp RpSB

LOCAL & REMOTE START/STOP DISCRETE INPUT • • • • •
4-20mA PUMP PACING ANALOG INPUT • • • • •
4-20mA SOLIDS DENSITY ANALOG INPUT •
SYSTEM RUNNING DISCRETE INPUT • • • • •
SYSTEM IN REMOTE DISCRETE INPUT • • • • •
PUMP RATE ANALOG OUTPUT • • • •
SOLUTION RATE ANALOG OUTPUT • •
COMMON ALARM DISCRETE INPUT • • • • •
MANUAL WATER RATIO CONTROL

SEE PLC/HMI 
OPTIONS BELOW

•
AUTO WATER RATIO CONTROL • •
SMARTBLEND™ RATIO CONTROL •
ETHERNET COMMUNICATION • •

OTHER CONTROL OPTIONS AVAILABLE—CONSULT FACTORY

COLOR TOUCHSCREEN HMI OPTIONS

C-MORE ALLEN BRADLEY MAGELIS

PLC/HMI OPTION:  8”  10”  7”  10”  12”  7”  10”

PLC OPTIONS A B C D E F G

VELODYNE CONTROLLER 1 INTEGRAL 6” COLOR TFT TOUCHSCREEN

ALLEN BRADLEY MICROLOGIX 2 • • • • •
ALLEN BRADLEY COMPACTLOGIX 3 • • • • •
MODICON MOMENTUM 4 • • • •

OTHER PLC/HMI OPTIONS AVAILABLE—CONSULT FACTORY

SKID SIZE:

WIDTH DEPTH HEIGHT

1 CONFIGURATION 1  34”  24”  42”

2 CONFIGURATION 2  34”  30”  72”

3 CONFIGURATION 3  48”  36”  72”

4 CONFIGURATION 4  ? ? ?

STANDARD CONTRUCTION 304SS, AVAILABLE IN 316SS

POWER OPTION:

A 120V / 1PH / 60Hz*

B 240V / 1PH / 60Hz

C 240V / 3PH / 60Hz

D 480V / 3PH / 60Hz

E 600V / 3PH / 50Hz

*NOT AVAILABLE FOR 200 GPM WATER AND ABOVE

5

283

Item 21.

sbradnan
Rectangle

sbradnan
Rectangle

sbradnan
Rectangle

sbradnan
Rectangle

sbradnan
Rectangle



 4.0 

 68.0 

 4.0 

 52.0 

DRAIN

 14.7 

 7.1 

DRAIN

 2X 46.0 

 2X 34.5  36.0 

 48.0 

 12.7 

 7.1  5.6 

 14.7 

 56.00 

 40.00  3X 38.00 

 6X .63 THRU 

 2X 54.00 

 30.01 

 51.3 

 11.00 

 17.50 

 6.26 

 13.13  10.92 

 35.20 

 17.50 

 70.0 

 56.1 

 12.4 

DRAIN

4.0 5.1

13.0
12.4

3.0

13.0

DRAIN

DRAIN

30.0

34.0

2X 28.5

2X 32.54X .547 THRU

 31.5 

 9.4 

 42.2 

DRAIN

THERMAL FLOW
SENSOR DRAIN

 5.1 

 7.0 

 11.6 

 3.0 

 7.0 

 3.0 

DRAIN

DRAIN

 24.0 

 34.0 

 2X 22.5 

 2X 32.5  4X  .55 THRU 

VELOBLEND
Advanced Liquid Polymer Activation Technologies

VELOBLEND SYSTEM DIMENSIONS

Dimensional Drawing of Skid #1

Dimensional Drawing of Skid #2

Dimensional Drawing of Skid #3

Dimensional Drawing of Skid #4

Note: drawings are for reference use only. Dimensions and designs are subject to change.6

284

Item 21.



VELOBLEND HEAVY INDUSTRIAL

The VeloBlend industrial series is designed for the rigors of the pulp & paper, oil & gas, mining, and other demanding industries  

and applications.

POLYMER PROCESSING PLANTS

VELOBLEND INDUSTRIAL
SERIES FEATURES:

• Ratio control of polymer and water

• VeloBlend Stainless Mixing Chamber

• All stainless steel welded plumbing

• Magnetic flow meter for water flow

• Coriolis mass flow meter for neat polymer

•  Skid mounted neat polymer strainer  

(simplex or duplex available)

• Heavy Ddty stainless steel skid

7

285

Item 21.



VELOBLEND
Advanced Liquid Polymer Activation Technologies

VeloDyneSystems.com            508A

 
© 2018 Velocity Dynamics, LLC. All rights reserved. Results may vary under different operating conditions.  
Specifications, terms and pricing are subject to change. Please consult your local sales representative for details. 
VeloDyne.1014.0918

Phone: 303-530-3298    
E-Mail: Sales@VeloDyneSystems.com                

VELODYNE – THREE DECADES OF EXPERIENCE 

For over thirty years our team has been dedicated to excellence. Through knowledge gained from thousands of installations 

worldwide, VeloDyne unites proven technologies with unsurpassed experience. Contact us to learn how our products and 

services can help optimize your treatment process.

MORE PROVEN SOLUTIONS FROM VELODYNE 

Manual Bag Systems

Bulk-Bag Systems

Dry Polymer Activation

Containerized Systems

Liquid Chemical Metering & Feed Systems

Lime Slakers

Auger Feeders & Conveyors 

Silo Systems

286

Item 21.



NEMA 4X
CONTROL PANEL

DILUTION WATER
FLOW METER

STAINLESS STEEL
WATER INLET

DILUTION WATER
ON/OFF VALVEDRAIN

STAINLESS STEEL
SOLUTION DISCHARGE

NEAT POLYMER
LOW FLOW SWITCH

SOLUTION DISCHARGE
PRESSURE GAUGE

DILUTION WATER
PRESSURE GAUGE

DRAIN

NEAT
POLYMER

INLET
1" FNPT

LINEAR ACTUATED
AUTOMATIC FLOW
CONTROL VALVE

VELOCHECK
NEAT POLYMER
CHECK VALVE

PRESSURE RELIEF
VALVE

DRAIN

DRAIN

NEAT POLYMER
PROGRESSIVE CAVITY
METERING PUMP

METERING PUMP
DRIP PAN WITH
SORBENT PAD

STAGED HYDRO-MECHANICAL
MIXING CHAMBER

CALIBRATION
COLUMN

NOTES - 

1) APPROXIMATE DRY WEIGHT  300 LBS

2) FOLLOW O&M PROCEDURES FOR DRAINING PRIOR TO STORAGE OR SHIPMENT

3) FRAME MATERIAL IS 304 SS AND HARDWARE IS 18-8 SS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

NOTE: DRAWINGS ARE FOR GENERAL LAYOUT USE ONLY.
SEE PROPOSAL FOR DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED SCOPE OF SUPPLY.

WATER FLOW MAX CONNECTION SIZE

1200 GPH 1" FNPT

2400 GPH 1.5" FNPT

D

C

B

A
A

B

C

D

SCALE 

SIZE DWG.  NO.

B
SHEET       OF   

VELOBLEND SALES DRAWING,

DO  NOT  SCALE  DRAWING

12345678

8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1
THE  INFORMATION  CONTAINED  IN  THIS  DRAWING  IS  THE  SOLE  PROPERTY  OF
VELOCITY DYNAMICS, LLC. ANY REPRODUCTION IN PART OR WHOLE WITHOUT THE
WRITTEN PERMISSION OF VELOCITY DYNAMICS, LLC IS PROHIBITED.

1:10 1 2

SERIES 2400, Rp CONTROLS

A
REV.

VM-P-2400-Rp-1-A-2
287

Item 21.



 70.0 

 56.0 

 12.4 

4.0 5.1

13.0 12.4

4.0

13.0

30.0

34.0

2X 28.5

2X 32.54X .55

 40 

NOTE: DRAWINGS ARE FOR GENERAL LAYOUT USE ONLY.
SEE PROPOSAL FOR DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED SCOPE OF SUPPLY.

D

C

B

A
A

B

C

D

SCALE 

SIZE DWG.  NO.

B
SHEET       OF   

VELOBLEND SALES DRAWING,

DO  NOT  SCALE  DRAWING

12345678

8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1
THE  INFORMATION  CONTAINED  IN  THIS  DRAWING  IS  THE  SOLE  PROPERTY  OF
VELOCITY DYNAMICS, LLC. ANY REPRODUCTION IN PART OR WHOLE WITHOUT THE
WRITTEN PERMISSION OF VELOCITY DYNAMICS, LLC IS PROHIBITED.

1:15 2 2

SERIES 2400, Rp CONTROLS

A
REV.

VM-P-2400-Rp-1-A-2
288

Item 21.



SheetChecked 1970-600008/12/15 SS
4/17/15

08/24/15 JM1/10/17
AJS

Date ByRevision Description

11/21/14
01/11/17 Drawing

Number

Sales
Order

Project Name

Standard VeloBlend Ratio
The information contained in this drawing is the sole property of
Velocity Dynamics, LLC. Any reproduction in part or in whole without
written permission of Velocity Dynamics, LLC is prohibited.

of 1

CHANGED DISCONNECT
Rev

UPDATE IN EPLAN
UPDATE STANDARD

Rev E
VM-P-Rp-1-A

Modified
Created

Date By

08/12/15 SS

08/24/15 JM
AJS

AJS
JM
JM

01/11/17

ByVelocity Dynamics, LLC
543 S Pierce Ave, Louisville, CO 80027
303-530-3298 www.polymersolution.com

PID

VELOBLEND LIQUID POLYMER SYSTEM
E
D
C

REMOTE
FIELD

DILUTION WATER
SUPPLY INLET

NEAT POLYMER
SUPPLY INLET

SOLUTION OUTPUT
TO PROCESS

HS

DISCONNECT

YI
WT

POWER ON

M

PI

PI

FT

PLC

TOUCH
SCREEN

LCP

AI

PUMP
SPEED

S

FSL

NEAT
POLYMER
ACTIVATION
CHAMBER

VELO-CHECK
VALVE

DIL'N FLOW
ADJUSTING

VALVE
ZV

M

DO

START
/STOP

AO

PROCESS
FLOW

PACING

DI

REMOTE
MODE

DI

SYSTEM
RUNNING

DI

COMMON
ALARM

120VAC

289

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: July 11, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Snyder & Associates   
  Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement Project 
  Supplemental Agreement No. 2 
  City Project No. SA-002-3182 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the Professional Services 
Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the Oak 
Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement Project. The enclosed Supplemental Agreement 
provides for services required to complete administration and design for the 
replacement of the sanitary sewer with a lift station and force main as a supplemental to 
the original Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement Professional Services Agreement 
previously approved by Council on February 18th, 2019. The cost of this agreement is 
$33,500 and paid for out of the Sewer Rental Fund.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department requests your consideration 
and approval of this Supplemental Agreement No. 2 with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 
the lift station design and administration scope of services. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 

290

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls  

220 Clay Street  

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   

www.cedarfalls.com  
 

Engineering Division  

Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 2 
 

Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number SA-002-3182 
 

   
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa (CLIENT), and Snyder & Associates, Inc. (CONSULTANT), of Cedar Rapids, Iowa, 
dated February 18, 2019, for the professional engineering services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to amend the previous agreement(s) to 
include Scope of Services and Compensation for additional items required,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services 
Agreement as follows:  
 

I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

This scope of engineering design outlines the services required to complete 
administration and design for the replacement of the sanitary sewer with a lift station 
and force main that is to cross the ravine located towards the rear of the parcels 
between Oak Park Boulevard and Minnetonka Drive. Major project components 
include lift station and force main design, existing aerial crossing demolition, project 
permitting, slope stabilization, and site restoration. One bid package will be 
developed for this project.  

  
The CONSULTANT will provide Engineering Services including design as required 
for the PROJECT. The CONSULTANT’S services shall include project 
administration, including coordination of project team activity, utility coordination, 
permit applications, updates to previously conducted topographic survey, detailed 
design, preparation of construction documents, and assistance during the bidding 
period. The CONSULTANT shall complete the design to generally conform to the 
2022 Iowa Statewide Urban Design and Specifications (SUDAS) and the City of 
Cedar Falls Supplement Specifications.  

 
A. DESIGN ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 
The CONSULTANT will provide the basic services as follows. 

 

291

Item 22.



Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SA-002-3182 

 

1. Survey Services - The CONSULTANT previously conducted a topographical 
survey of this area in March of 2019, which included a 50’ width along the 
existing aerial crossing from Oak Park Boulevard to Minnetonka drive. While 
existing surface topography may not have significantly changed, the 
CONSULTANT shall administer additional survey services to review any 
changed conditions and to update utility locations.  
 

2. Facility Plan – The CONSULTANT shall prepare a Facility Plan document to 
meet the permitting requirements of the DNR. This report will establish the 
service area and lift station design conditions such that the DNR can provide 
concurrence for the project prior to the initiation of design. This will result in a 
deliverable that shall be submitted to the DNR, along with addressing of 
comments as required to reach DNR approvals.  

 
3. Electrical Engineering Services – The CONSULTANT shall retain the services 

of a SUBCONSULTANT for electrical design and specification elements as 
needed for the proposed lift station. 

 
4. Preliminary Design – The CONSULTANT shall develop preliminary design 

plans for the project letting. Upon completion, the design plans should be 
approximately 50% complete and include a preliminary lift station, force main, 
electrical design, demolition plans, slope stabilization, and site restoration 
design. The deliverables for the preliminary design shall include an electronic 
50% plan set, cover sheet with the designer and reviewer initials, and an 
Engineer’s opinion of probable cost.  

 
5. Utility Coordination – The CONSULTANT shall identify potential construction 

conflicts with franchise and City utilities. Coordination for the potential 
relocation of conflicting utilities shall be completed. Identification of conflicts 
that could impact the project schedule or significantly impact the construction 
cost should be reported to the CLIENT if and/or when identified.  

 
6. Final Design – Following the review and general approval of the preliminary 

plans by the CLIENT, the CONSULTANT shall proceed with the development 
of Final Plans for the project. Upon completion, the design plans will be 
approximately 95% complete and shall include: the incorporation of 
preliminary design review comments, an updated opinion of probable 
construction costs, and a draft project manual. Construction permit 
applications shall also be submitted for review and approval for submittal to 
the Iowa Department of Natural Resources (DNR).   

 
7. Letting Services - The CONSULTANT shall incorporate Final Design review 

comments, prepare and submit the following for filing with the City Clerk; print-
ready project manual, print-ready plan set certified by a licensed engineer in 
the state of Iowa and completed permit applications for submittal to the Iowa 
DNR. Additionally, the CONSULTANT shall assist the CLIENT during the bid 
period in answering questions regarding design intent and prepare addendum 
for distribution by the Consultant. Furthermore, a recommendation to award 
shall be provided.  

 

292

Item 22.



Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SA-002-3182 

 

B. CONTINGENCY 
 
1. If at any time during the work the CONSULTANT determines that its actual 

costs will exceed the estimated actual costs, thus necessitating the use of a 
contingency amount, it will promptly so notify the CLIENT’S Project Manager 
in writing and describe what costs are causing the overage and the reason. 
The CONSULTANT shall not exceed the estimated actual costs without prior 
written approval from the CLIENT’S Water Reclamation Facility Manager.  
 

2. Items that may cause the need to utilize the CONTINGENCY include but are 
not necessarily limited to the following: Design standard changes, 
unanticipated field conditions (e.g. unknown utility conflicts), and other 
miscellaneous changes in scope.  

 
C. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

 

1. The CLIENT may request Additional Services from the CONSULTANT not 
included in the Scope of Services as outlined. Additional Services may 
include, but are not necessarily limited to, additional geotechnical services, 
a Phase I Archaeological and Cultural Resources Survey, 
yard/lawn/pavement restoration following geotechnical fieldwork, 
repair/replacement of utilities that are incorrectly marked or not made known 
to the CONSULTANT prior to fieldwork, environmental site assessment or 
remediation, embankment stabilization, attending public meetings, 
permanent acquisition exhibits (e.g. permanent easements), acquisition 
services, providing testing services, construction services; expanding the 
scope of the project or the work to be completed; requesting the development 
of various documents; extending the time to complete a project through no 
fault of the CONSULTANT; or requesting additional work items that increase 
the Engineering Services and corresponding costs.  

 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 

A. DESIGN ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

1. Compensation for the Design Engineering Services by the CONSULTANT 
shall be based on the then-current hourly rates and fixed expenses at an 
estimated maximum fee of $33,500. Contingency, as defined in Section II.B, 
may be utilized as defined up to a maximum amount of $2,000.  

 

B. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 

1. Additional Services by the CONSULTANT may be required for the project as 
listed in Section II.C. If additional services beyond the scope items listed 
above are necessary, the CONSULTANT shall be entitled to negotiate a 
supplemental agreement to provide for the actual services performed. These 
services will be based on the then-current hourly rates and fixed expenses 
and the CLIENT will be billed for actual direct hours spent. The CLIENT shall 
authorize services prior to the CONSULTANT initiating any Additional 

293

Item 22.



Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SA-002-3182 

 

Services.  
 

III.  ASSIGNABILITY 
 

1. The CONSULTANT shall not assign any interest in this AGREEMENT and 
shall not transfer any interest in the same without the prior written consent 
of the CLIENT. Subconsultants designated as part of this AGREEMENT 
shall be deemed to be approved when this AGREEMENT is executed. 

 

A. Subconsultants are proposed as follows: 
 
Terracon Consultants, Inc. 
Design Engineers, P.C. 
 

IV.  In all other aspects, the obligations of the CLIENT and CONSULTANT shall remain 
as specified in the Professional Services Agreement dated February 18, 2019.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and 
year written below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT. 
 
By:  By:  
 
 
Printed Name:  Printed Name:   Lindsay Beaman               
 
 
Title:  Title:        Business Unit Leader                       
 
 
Date: Date:___July 8, 2022     _   
      

 

294

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: July 11, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction (6th St. to University) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Property Acquisitions & Temporary Easements 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct Main Street from 6th Street to 
University Avenue from a 4 lane roadway to a 3 lane roadway. Included in the project 
will be the intersections at Seerley Boulevard, 18th Street, 12th Street, and potentially 6th 
Street which will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to improve the overall traffic 
safety and flow in all directions of travel. The project will also include improvements to 
the water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other miscellaneous 
roadway items. The project will require the acquisition of temporary easements from 
one-hundred twenty-nine (129) properties to complete construction. The owners of the 
following twenty three (23) properties have accepted our offer: 
 

Parcel # Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

42 Klein Storage L.L.C. 1922 Main Street Temporary Easement 

64 Michael G Crall & Lauren K. Nelson 1516 Main Street Temporary Easement 

65 Michael G Crall & Lauren K. Nelson 1504 Main Street Temporary Easement 

74 David E. & Terri J. Vorland 1416 Main Street Temporary Easement 

93 Johnpaul Collins 1116 Main Street Temporary Easement 

94 Montell G. & Diane M. McFarlane 1112 Main Street Temporary Easement 

106 Wernimont, LLC 1010, 1012, 1014 Main 
Street 

Temporary Easement 

104 Charlotte I. & Louis R. Smith 1022 Main Street Temporary Easement 

131 Peter J. & Kim Wilcox 716 Main Street Temporary Easement 

139 First National Bank of Cedar Falls, 
n/k/a First Bank 

602 Main Street Temporary Easement 

150 Farmers State Bank 515 Main Street Temporary Easement 

170 James A. & Teresa G. Shymansky 
and Michael B. & Molly T. 
Shymansky 

815 Main Street Temporary Easement 

185 Kevin J. & Jessica A. Christman 1003 Main Street Temporary Easement 

187 First Evangelical Free Church, f/k/a 
Calvary Baptist Church of Christ 

1015 Main Street Temporary Easement 

295

Item 23.



193 CV Properties, LLC 1103 Main Street Temporary Easement 

194 Callum Hill Properties, LLC 1109 Main Street Temporary Easement 

222 Jay J. Courtney 1403 Main Street Temporary Easement 

223 Main Properties, L.L.C. 1407, 1409, & 1411 Main 
Street 

Temporary Easement 

224 Douglas A. Renell S. Richter 1415 Main Street Temporary Easement 

245 Lindsey A. Kotz n/k/a Lindsey A. 
Phillips, & Marshall F. Phillips 

1615 Main Street Temporary Easement 

246 MB Rentals II, L.L.C. 1621 Main Street Temporary Easement 

253 Mary C. Fisher 1711 Main Street Temporary Easement 

271 Dolly’s Rentals, L.L.C. 2003 Main Street Temporary Easement 

 
Attached is a strip map of the entire project where these properties can by identified by 
parcel number. 
 
The City will use a combination of General Obligation and Street Construction Funds for 
the design and right of way portion of this project. The City entered into a Professional 
Services Agreement with Foth Infrastructure and Environmental, LLC, of Cedar Rapids, 
Iowa on July 19, 2021 for property acquisition and design services. Funds for this 
project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY22 - FY27 
under item number 118. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary 
closing documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City 
Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving the acquisitions and 
authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the Main Street Reconstruction 
Project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

296

Item 23.



p
w

:/
/f

o
th

-p
w

.b
e
n

tl
e
y

.c
o

m
:f

o
th

-p
w

-0
1

/D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/C

li
e
n

ts
/C

e
d

a
r 

F
a
ll

s
 I

A
 C

/M
a
in

 S
tr

e
e
t 

R
e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

/C
A

D
/D

is
p

la
y

s
/A

lt
e
rn

a
ti

v
e
s
/S

tr
ip

M
a
p

_
U

lt
im

a
te

_
P

U
B

5
/2

3
/2

0
2

2

11
14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24 27

28

29

30

31

33

32

40

39

38

37

36

41

44

42 43

45

46

47

50

51

52

53

54 55
56

57

58

59

62

63 64 65

66

67

68

71

72

73

74 75

76 79

80

81

82

83

84

87

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

102

103

104

105

106
107

108

109

110

111 114

115

116

117

120

121

122

123

124

125

126 129

130 131 132 133

134

135

138 139
142

150

151

154

155

156
157158

159

162

163

166

167

168

169
170

171

174

175

176177178179

180183

184

185

186

187

188

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

202

203

204

205

206

207

208
211

212213214

215

216

217

218

221

222223224225

226

227

230

231

232233

234

235

236

237240

241

242

244245

246

243

247
250

251

252

253

254

255

256

259

261

260

262
263

264

265
266

267
270

271

272

273

274

275

278

280

281

282

283

279

284

288

287

289

290

291

292

293

294295

296

298

300

299

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c)
 2

02
2 

Tra
ns

oft
 S

olu
tio

ns
, I

nc
. A

ll 
rig

hts
 re

se
rve

d.

FEET

0 100

 WASHINGTON ST

Cedar Falls, Iowa
Main Street Reconstruction

STATE ST

W
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

W
 2

2
N

D
 S

T

 S
E
E

R
L
E

Y
 B

L
V

D

 E
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

E
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

 W
 1

7
T

H
 S

T

W
 1

8
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

W
 7

T
H

 S
T

 E
 7

T
H

 S
T

 W
 9

T
H

 S
T

W
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 6

T
H

 S
T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 6

T
H

 S
T

W
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 9

T
H

 S
T

E
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

 E
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

2604 MAIN ST

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC
110 E SEERLEY BLVD

HARDING ENTERPRISES L C 2310 MAIN ST

LINCOLN SAVINGS BANK

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

201 E 22ND ST

201 PROPERTIES LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

2120 MAIN ST

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

107 E 21ST ST

105 E 21ST ST

WEVERINK, MICHELE L

115 E 21ST ST

TRAETOW, MARY A

2018 MAIN ST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

106 E 21ST ST

104 E 21ST ST

MAI, JASON J

114 E 21ST ST

SULLIVAN,DIANE M TRUST

SULLIVAN,DANIEL E TRUST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

ANGOVE,VICKI TRUST

ANGOVE,GREGORY TRUST

111 E 20TH ST

SCHWAN, EMILY

MASON, THOMAS

115 E 20TH ST

ROBERTS, DONALD

1934 MAIN ST

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

T & R RENTALS LLC

106 E 20TH ST

MANLEY, LYNN A

114 E 20TH ST

DAGIT, DEBORAH K

DAGIT, SCOTT K

1932 MAIN ST

1930 MAIN ST

T & R RENTALS LLC

1820 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

1922 MAIN ST

KLEIN STORAGE LLC

1904 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

103 E 18TH ST

PROPERTIES L C

GRACIE MAE 

113 E 18TH ST

111 E 18TH ST

109 E 18TH ST

107 E 18TH ST

HESSE,C AND L LLC

123 E 18TH ST

ROUNDABOUT CENTER LLC

CVVC PROPERTIES L L C

120 E 18TH ST

118 E 18TH ST

TRP PROPERTIES L L C

1718 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1702 MAIN ST

PERMANENT PLANNING INC

1624 MAIN ST

CREW, JUDY L

1616 MAIN ST

RENTALS LLC

CHRISTOPHERSON 1612 MAIN ST

BIENFANG, MARY K

1604 MAIN ST

HAND, MARCEY J

HAND, CHRISTOPHE M

115 E 16TH ST

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

120 E 16TH ST

MONAGHAN, BRIAN P

MONAGHAN, BRIDGETTE R

1524 MAIN ST

ROLFES, LANA

ROLFES, DENNIS

1516 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL G

1504 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL

115 E 15TH ST

GREDER, GRANT

KEW, BRANDON C

119 E 15TH ST

STRICKLAND, JANE M

121 E 15TH ST

PEVERILL, TAMARA K

PEVERILL, KENNETH W

116 E 15TH ST

GEMINI PROPERTIES L L C

110 E 15TH ST

KRAAYENBRINK, MARLA R

KRAAYENBRINK, RANDY L

1422 MAIN ST

PRIEBE, JOSHUA

PRIEBE, DANIELLE

1416 MAIN ST

VORLAND, DAVID E

1404 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

1403 STATE ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

114 E 14TH ST

PAULI, JACOB

PAULI, NIKOLE

1322 MAIN ST

MALBEC PROPERTIES LLC

1316 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1310 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1303 STATE ST

PAGEL, LA DONNA K

PAGEL, LARRY E

110 E 13TH ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1121 STATE ST

KUEHL, JEANETTE M

1124 MAIN ST

MARTINEZ, SHEREE

MARTINEZ, MICHAEL R
1120 MAIN ST

LILLY, JAMES A

LILLY, JOSEPHINE A

1116 MAIN ST

COLLINS, JOHNPAUL

1112 MAIN ST

MC FARLANE, DIANE M

MC FARLANE, MONTELL G

1108 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

1104 MAIN ST

TENTINGER, PETER

111 E 11TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

115 E 11TH ST

GERKEN, SUSAN K

GERKEN, ROBERT D

1103 STATE ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1021 STATE ST

SOUTER, JASMINE M

GASSMAN, MICHAEL

112 E 11TH ST

MC CARTY RENTALS LLC

1022 MAIN ST

SMITH, CHARLOTTE I

1018 MAIN ST

AIRJB LLC

1014 MAIN ST

1012 MAIN ST

1010 MAIN ST

WERNIMONT LLC 1006 MAIN ST

SMIGELSKI, JUSTIN P

1004 MAIN ST

WELSH INVESTMENTS LLC

109 E 10TH ST

HERNANDEZ, THERESA M

GRIFFIN, ELAINE C

117 E 10TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

1003 STATE ST

JOHNSON, CHARLES T

JOHNSON, MELINDA C
921 STATE ST

JRICE, MIMI

114 E 10TH ST

MELICK, KENT

MELICK, JEAN

902 MAIN ST

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

124 E 9TH ST

KNAPP, WENDY S

114 E 9TH ST

RUSSELL, NATASHA K

RUSSELL, JAMES C

824 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

816 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

802 MAIN ST

800 MAIN ST

ST PATRICKS CHU, RCH

113 E 8TH ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

803 STATE ST

801 STATE ST

KEL MAR LC

721 STATE ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

720 MAIN ST

DEV PROPERTIES LLC

716 MAIN ST

WILCOX, PETER J

712 MAIN ST

710 MAIN ST

708 MAIN ST

706 MAIN ST

BAUCH, CHRISTINA B

BAUCH, JAMES C

702 MAIN ST

702 MAIN LLC

115 E 7TH ST

PROPERTIES LLC

RANDYS RENTAL 

703 STATE ST

123 E 7TH ST

RETH, ADAM

622 MAIN ST

KNUTSON, MARK L

KNUTSON, THERESA B
602 MAIN ST

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF

528 MAIN ST

524 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

515 MAIN ST

FARMERS STATE BANK

516 WASHINGTON ST

CHEVROLET CO INC

RASMUSSON 

HI YIELD LLC

116 W 6TH ST

RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC

601 MAIN ST

CASEYS MARKETING COMPANY

613 MAIN ST

NELSON FUNERAL HOME INCHI YIELD LLC

123 W 7TH ST

HI YIELD LLC

123 W 8TH ST

705 MAIN ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

115 W 8TH ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

804 WASHINGTON ST

KEISER, CAROLINE

KEISER, DOUGLAS B

801 MAIN ST

SCHMITT, THERESA D

SCHMITT, KASEY J

805 MAIN ST

CNC INVESTMENTS L L C

811 MAIN ST

M J KNOX LLC
815 MAIN ST

JUANITA LLC

822 WASHINGTON ST

BECKER, AMY L

BECKER, BRIAN C

904 WASHINGTON ST

HARTON, HELEN C

116 W 9TH ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

RICKARD, TWYLA J

903 MAIN ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

909 MAIN ST

HOVENGA, MICHELLE

HOVENGA, REGGIE S

915 MAIN ST

CHASE, SCOTT A

921 MAIN ST

SHUMAKER, CHARLES A

SHUMAKER, AMANDA L

920 WASHINGTON ST

NEWTON, MARK R

122 W 10TH ST

PITZENBERGER, MARY

112 W 10TH ST

STICKFORT, SUSAN G

STICKFORT, THOMAS E

1003 MAIN ST

CHRISTMAN, JESSICA A

CHRISTMAN, KEVIN J

1009 MAIN ST

WILSON CLASBY, NIKKI J

CLASBY, DANIEL B

1015 MAIN ST

CALVARY BAPTIST, CHURCH OF C

1022 WASHINGTON ST

BUTLER, BETTY J

BUTLER, MICHAEL J

120 W 11TH ST

RUSSELL, MEGHAN D

RUSSELL, BEN J

118 W 11TH ST

COLSCH, JOSHUA

COLSCH, JENNIFER

COLSCH, JONATHAN

1103 MAIN ST

1103 MAIN CO OP INC

1109 MAIN ST

MERSHON RENTALS LLC

1115 MAIN ST

CUNNINGHAM, MICHAEL E

1117 MAIN ST

ANDERSON, JOYCE E1123 MAIN ST

1125 MAIN ST

K3D LLC

109 W 12TH ST

K3D LLC

1124 WASHINGTON ST

BEARDSLEY, BRYAN L

1204 WASHINGTON ST

RASMUSSON, DONALD R

114 W 12TH ST

RASMUSSON,JACK R FAMILY TRUST

RASMUSSON,PATRICIA M

1203 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, VALERIE K

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

1209 MAIN ST

TIGERHAWK RENTALS LLC

1217 MAIN ST

MOSSMAN, OLIVIA

MOSSMAN, JONATHAN

1221 MAIN ST

MEINDERS, KOREY J

MEINDERS, CLAYTON

1220 WASHINGTON ST

WINTERHOF, KIM A

WINTERHOF, GARY L

1304 WASHINGTON ST

LEEPER, JENNIFER R

LEEPER, BRADLY D

1303 MAIN ST

ASCHERL, NANCY L

1309 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1315 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1321 MAIN ST

PONTIOUS, BIANCA

111 W 14TH ST

PURDY, KENT N

115 W 14TH ST

SCHLICHER, MARY A

1322 WASHINGTON ST

PHILLIPS, ANDREA L

1404 WASHINGTON ST

FUCHS, MIKAYLA

FUCHS, BENJAMIN

1403 MAIN ST

COURTNEY, JAY J

1411 MAIN ST

1409 MAIN ST

1407 MAIN ST

MAIN PROPERTIES LLC

1415 MAIN ST

RICHTER, RENELL S

RICHTER, DOUGLAS A

1421 MAIN ST

WEBB, KAREN J

WEBB, DALE S

115 W 15TH ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1422 WASHINGTON ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1504 WASHINGTON ST

NORTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE CO

1503 MAIN ST

STINER, EMILY M

STINER, DAVID HENRY

1509 MAIN ST

KOTZ, SUE A
1515 MAIN ST

MORAN, AIDAN

1523 MAIN ST

BLOOMQUIST, KARIN

BLOOMQUIST, MITCHEL

115 W 16TH ST

GILGEN, JAMES D

117 W 16TH ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1520 WASHINGTON ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1604 WASHINGTON ST

PROPERTIES L L C

OTTER CREEK

114 W 16TH ST

SWAYNE, JENNIFER

110 W 16TH ST

EVERSON, JULIE

1609 MAIN ST

BUNDY, STEVEN J

1615 MAIN ST

KOTZ, LINDSEY A1621 MAIN ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1603 MAIN ST

MAKA PROPERTIES LLC

1622 WASHINGTON ST

FAUSER, JANE A

FAUSER, RICHARD D

1702 WASHINGTON ST

HOUG, DUSTIN W

1703 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1709 MAIN ST

MORD, SHARON J

MORD, JAN K

1711 MAIN ST

FISHER, MARY C

1715 MAIN ST

FREED RENTALS L L C

1721 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1722 WASHINGTON ST

DT RENTALS LLC

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1907 MAIN ST

SLINKER, GEORGIA M

SLINKER, DARYL R

1901 MAIN ST

VETTER, LEANN M

VETTER, THOMAS J

1915 MAIN ST

KELLY R & J FAM TRUST

1925 MAIN ST

REISETTER, JENNIFER A

REISETTER, MATTHEW T

1929 MAIN ST

CLAYTON, JENNIFER

CLAYTON, JEREMY

1931 MAIN ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L

1935 MAIN ST

BUDKE, PATRICIA L

BUDKE, KENNETH A

115 W 20TH ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L
2004 WASHINGTON ST

HOEL, TERRY D

2003 MAIN ST

DOLLYS RENTALS LLC

2009 MAIN ST

NUSS, JAMES B

2017 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

2021 MAIN ST

CBJ HOLDINGS LLC

2022 WASHINGTON ST

KERR, KATHLEEN A

110 W 21ST ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2109 MAIN ST

REFSHAUGE, BONITA M

2115 MAIN ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2121 MAIN ST

HICKS, BONNIE K

HAHN, JERRY W

2125 MAIN ST

PURDY, KENT N

2103 MAIN ST

THOMPSON, SANDRA L

117 W 22ND ST

ANDERA, JORDAN D

2203 MAIN ST

JACOBSON, DONALD L

2204 WASHINGTON ST

THOMPSON, JOANNA L

2205 MAIN ST

COULTHARD, VERLA F

COULTHARD, ALVIN E2215 MAIN ST

2217 MAIN ST

SCHWAKE, MARY L

SCHWAKE, JEFFREY A

2221 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2301 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2303 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

2309 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2323 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2322 WASHINGTON ST

PARTNERSHIP

IVERSON AND REIGHARD

204 SEERLEY BLVD

Z PROPERTIES LLC

7404 UNIVERSITY AVE

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC

STATE OF IOWA

297

Item 23.

AndreasenL
Line



298

Item 23.



299

Item 23.



300

Item 23.



301

Item 23.



302

Item 23.



303

Item 23.



304

Item 23.



305

Item 23.



306

Item 23.



307

Item 23.



308

Item 23.



309

Item 23.



310

Item 23.



311

Item 23.



312

Item 23.



313

Item 23.



314

Item 23.



315

Item 23.



316

Item 23.



317

Item 23.



318

Item 23.



319

Item 23.



320

Item 23.



321

Item 23.



322

Item 23.



323

Item 23.



324

Item 23.



325

Item 23.



326

Item 23.



327

Item 23.



328

Item 23.



329

Item 23.



330

Item 23.



331

Item 23.



332

Item 23.



333

Item 23.



334

Item 23.



335

Item 23.



336

Item 23.



337

Item 23.



338

Item 23.



339

Item 23.



340

Item 23.



341

Item 23.



342

Item 23.



343

Item 23.



344

Item 23.



345

Item 23.



346

Item 23.



347

Item 23.



348

Item 23.



349

Item 23.



350

Item 23.



351

Item 23.



352

Item 23.



353

Item 23.



354

Item 23.



355

Item 23.



356

Item 23.



357

Item 23.



358

Item 23.



359

Item 23.



360

Item 23.



361

Item 23.



362

Item 23.



363

Item 23.



364

Item 23.



365

Item 23.



366

Item 23.



367

Item 23.



368

Item 23.



369

Item 23.



370

Item 23.



371

Item 23.



372

Item 23.



373

Item 23.



374

Item 23.



375

Item 23.



376

Item 23.



377

Item 23.



378

Item 23.



379

Item 23.



380

Item 23.



381

Item 23.



382

Item 23.



383

Item 23.



384

Item 23.



385

Item 23.



386

Item 23.



387

Item 23.



388

Item 23.



389

Item 23.



390

Item 23.



391

Item 23.



392

Item 23.



393

Item 23.



394

Item 23.



395

Item 23.



396

Item 23.



397

Item 23.



398

Item 23.



399

Item 23.



400

Item 23.



401

Item 23.



402

Item 23.



403

Item 23.



404

Item 23.



405

Item 23.



406

Item 23.



407

Item 23.



408

Item 23.



409

Item 23.



410

Item 23.



411

Item 23.



412

Item 23.



413

Item 23.



414

Item 23.



415

Item 23.



416

Item 23.



417

Item 23.



418

Item 23.



419

Item 23.



420

Item 23.



421

Item 23.



422

Item 23.



423

Item 23.



424

Item 23.



425

Item 23.



426

Item 23.



427

Item 23.



428

Item 23.



429

Item 23.



430

Item 23.



431

Item 23.



432

Item 23.



433

Item 23.



434

Item 23.



435

Item 23.



436

Item 23.



437

Item 23.



438

Item 23.



439

Item 23.



440

Item 23.



441

Item 23.



442

Item 23.



443

Item 23.



444

Item 23.



445

Item 23.



446

Item 23.



447

Item 23.



448

Item 23.



449

Item 23.



450

Item 23.



451

Item 23.



452

Item 23.



453

Item 23.



454

Item 23.



455

Item 23.



456

Item 23.



457

Item 23.



458

Item 23.



459

Item 23.



460

Item 23.



461

Item 23.



462

Item 23.



463

Item 23.



464

Item 23.



465

Item 23.



466

Item 23.



467

Item 23.



468

Item 23.



469

Item 23.



470

Item 23.



471

Item 23.



472

Item 23.



473

Item 23.



474

Item 23.



475

Item 23.



476

Item 23.



477

Item 23.



478

Item 23.



479

Item 23.



480

Item 23.



481

Item 23.



482

Item 23.



483

Item 23.



484

Item 23.



485

Item 23.



486

Item 23.



487

Item 23.



488

Item 23.



489

Item 23.



490

Item 23.



491

Item 23.



492

Item 23.



493

Item 23.



494

Item 23.



495

Item 23.



496

Item 23.



497

Item 23.



498

Item 23.



499

Item 23.



500

Item 23.



501

Item 23.



502

Item 23.



503

Item 23.



504

Item 23.



505

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: July 11, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 5 
  City Project Number: SW-000-3293 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project. 
 

We recommend setting Monday, August 1, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
the public hearing on this project, and Friday, August 19, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. as the date 
and time for receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be 
published by Friday, July 22, 2022. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for 
distribution to contractors on Friday, July 22nd, 2022, allowing for three (3) weeks of 
review before contract letting. 
 

This project involves the repair of deficient sidewalk adjacent to various property 
owners. The project will repair the deficient sidewalk for the adjacent property owner 
and assess the cost of repair to the property owner. Once the repair has been 
completed, the Engineering Division will submit a bill to the City Clerk. The City Clerk 
will then send notice to the adjacent property owner. The adjacent property owner will 
have 30 days to pay the bill without interest or penalty. If the adjacent property owner 
fails to pay the bill in 30 days, the cost of repair will be applied to the property owners’ 
property taxes and spread over 5 years with interest.  
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $40,591.00.  
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2022 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

506

Item 24.



ITEM ITEM UNIT TOTAL

NO. CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. $100.00 17.25 1,725.00$           

2 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. $40.00 217.1 8,684.00$           

3 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.Y. $80.00 209.90 16,792.00$         

4 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.Y. $150.00 7.20 1,080.00$           

5 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. $10,000.00 1.0 10,000.00$         

6 9010-108-B-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. $2.50 924.0 2,310.00$           

$40,591.00

BID TABULATION

2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NO. SW - 000 - 3293

Base Bid 

TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

507

Item 24.



1 

 

 

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS 

FOR 

2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT 

PROJECT 
 

Project SW-000-3293 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION 

 
 

 
I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me or 
under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly licensed 
professional engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 
____________________________  Date: 7/8/2022 
David Wicke, P.E.      Iowa License No. 25684 
My license renewal date is December  31, 2022 
 
Pages or sheets covered by this seal: 1 thru 25. 

 

 

 

508

Item 24.



2 

 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

    Page Number 
 

TITLE SHEET  1 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 to 3 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 4 

 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 5 to 6 
 

DIVISION 1 – Instruction to Bidders 
 

01 Definition and Terms 7 
 02 Qualification of the Bidder 7 to 8 

03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 8 
04 Taxes  8 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security 8 to 9 
Form of Proposal 10 to 11 
Bid Bond  12 
Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 13 
Bidder Status Form                                                                                      14  
Worksheet: Authorization to Transact Business                                          15 
Form of Contract 16 to 17 
Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond 18 to 21 

 

DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 
 

01 Award of Contract 22 
02 Availability of Site 22 
03 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes 22 
04 Borrow and Waste Sites 23 
05 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 23 
06 Contract Time 23 
07 Work Progress and Schedule 23 
08 Weekly record of Working Days 23 
09 Liquidated Damages 24 
10 Progress Payments 24 
11 Pollution Prevention Plan                                                               24 to 25 
12 Method of Measurement 26 
13 Basis of Payment 27 

509

Item 24.



3 

 
 
 

DIVISION 3 – Standard Specifications 

 
The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the 2022 Edition of the “URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC  IMPROVEMENTS MANUAL” 
(SUDAS) as the City’s Standard Specification. 
 
This Standard Specification is amended by the “City of Cedar Falls’ 
Supplemental Specifications to the 2022 Edition of the URBAN STANDARD 
SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS MANUAL” 

 

Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at: 
www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards   

 

DIVISION 4 – Supplemental Plans and Specifications 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS - BID ITEMS 28 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

510

Item 24.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards


4 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, 

FORM OF CONTRACT, AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR THE  

2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT IN THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 
 

TO ALL TAXPAYERS OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND OTHER PERSONS 
INTERESTED: 
 

Public notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

will conduct a Public Hearing on Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimated 

total Cost for the construction of the 2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT in said 

City at 7:00 p.m. on the 1
st
 day of August, 2022, said meeting to be held in the Community 

Center 528 Main Street, Cedar Falls, IA. 

Said Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract and estimated total cost are now on file 

in the office of the City Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and may be inspected by 

any persons interested. 

Any person interested may appear at said meeting of the City Council for the 

purpose of making objections to said Plans, Specifications, Contract, or the estimated cost 

of making said improvement. 

This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.         

   City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
 
    By: _______________________________ 
          Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
 
     City Clerk 
 

511

Item 24.



5 

 
 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT  

IN THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

Time and Place for Filing Sealed Proposals: Sealed proposals will be accepted electronically on the 
Quest CDN website before 2:00 p.m. on the 19th day of August, 2022. 
 
Time and Place Sealed Proposals will be Opened and Considered: Sealed proposals will be 
publically opened online at 2:00 p.m. on the 19th day of August, 2022, at questcdn.com, for 
consideration by the City of Cedar Falls City Council at its meeting at 7:00 p.m. on the 6th day of 
September, 2022 or at such later time and place as may be fixed. The City of Cedar Falls reserves 
the right to reject any and all proposals including without limitation, nonconforming, nonresponsive, 
unbalanced, or conditional bids. 
  
Time for Commencement and Completion of Work: The work under the proposed contract shall 
commence within ten (10) calendar days after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and 
shall be performed regularly and diligently throughout the duration of the project. All work shall be 
completed within thirty (30) working days. Working days will be accumulated concurrently from the 
date of the Notice to Proceed. 
 
Bid Security: Each Form of Proposal shall be accompanied in a separate envelope by a proposal 
guaranty as defined in Division 1 Section 05.  
 
Contract Documents: Plans, specifications, and proposal forms have been approved by the City 
Council and are now on file for public examination in the office of the City Clerk. Electronic contract 
documents will become available Wednesday, July 20th, 2022 at no cost by clicking on the “Bid 

Opportunities” link at www.cedarfalls.com and choosing the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment project 
from the list. Project information, Engineer’s cost opinion, and plan holder information is also 
available at no cost at this website. Downloads require the user to register for a free membership at 
www.QuestCDN.com.  
 

Contact Brett Armstrong for any questions via phone: (319) 268-5161, fax: (319) 268-5197, or 

email: brett.armstrong@cedarfalls.com. QuestCDN reference number 8256557. 
 
If any prospective bidder is in doubt as to the true meaning of any parts of the contract documents, 
the bidder may request an interpretation from the Engineer, in writing, either through mail, fax or 
email. Questions received less than five (5) days prior to the date for opening bids may not be 
answered. 
 
Contact individuals shall be as follows: 
Brett Armstrong                                                                    
Cedar Falls Engineering Department                               
220 Clay Street                                                                 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

brett.armstrong@cedarfalls.com                                                       
Brett.Armstrong@cedarfalls.com 

512

Item 24.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/
http://www.questcdn.com/
mailto:brett.armstrong@cedarfalls.com
mailto:brett.armstrong@cedarfalls.com


6 

Any interpretation of the contract documents will be made in writing and only by an addendum duly 
mailed or delivered to each prospective bidder who received, or in the future requests, contracts 
documents from Jurisdiction. Only questions answered by Addenda will be binding. Oral and other 
interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 
Addenda may be issued to clarify, correct, or change the contract documents as deemed advisable 
by Jurisdiction or the Engineer 
 

Preference for Iowa Products and Labor:  By virtue of statutory authority, a preference will be given 

to products and provisions grown and coal produced within the State of Iowa. 
 
In accordance with Iowa statutes, a resident bidder shall be allowed a preference as against a 
nonresident bidder from a state or foreign country if that state or foreign country gives or requires 
any preference to bidders from that state or foreign country, including but not limited to any 
preference to bidders, the imposition of any type of labor force preference, or any other form of 
preferential treatment to bidders or laborers from that state or foreign country. The preference 
allowed shall be equal to the preference given or required by the state or foreign country in which 
the nonresident bidder is a resident. In the instance of a resident labor force preference, a 
nonresident bidder shall apply the same resident labor force preference to a public improvement in 
this state as would be required in the construction of a public improvement by the state or foreign 
country in which the nonresident bidder is a resident. 
 
Failure to submit a fully completed Bidder Status Form with the bid may result in the bid being 
deemed nonresponsive and rejected. 
 

Sales Tax: Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 

Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment in the performance of this project. 
Products utilized in the construction of this project shall be exempt from tax as provided by Iowa 
Code Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 
 
Project Description: This work shall consist of the construction of Portland Cement Concrete 
(PCC) sidewalk according to the plans and these specifications. 

 

Published upon order of the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
      BY: __________________________ 
       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 

                                         City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

DIVISION 1 – Instruction to Bidders 

 

513

Item 24.



7 

The work comprising the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project shall be constructed in 
accordance with the 2022  Edition of the SUDAS and as further modified be the City of Cedar 
Falls’ Supplemental Specifications and the special provision included in the contract 
documents. The terms used in the contract revision of the documents are defined in said 
Standard Specifications. 
Before submitting your bid, please review the requirements of “Division One, General 
Provisions and Covenants”, in particular the sections regarding proposal requirements, 
bonding, contract execution, and insurance requirements.  Please be certain that all 
documents have been completed properly; as failure to complete and sign all documents and 
to comply with the requirements listed below can cause your bid not to be read. 
 

01 Definition and Terms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1010 – 1.03: 
 
Code of Iowa: The latest edition of the Code of Iowa 
 
Engineer: The City Engineer of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized representative. 
 
Owner: The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa acting through its City Council. 
 
Project: 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project 

Project No. SW-000-3293 
 

02 Qualification of the Bidder 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.01: 
 
To demonstrate bidder’s qualifications to perform the work, within five days of the Owners 
request, bidder shall submit written evidence such as may be called for below: 
 
The address and description of the bidder’s place of business; The number of years 
engaged in the contracting business under the present firm name, and the name of the 
state where incorporated; A list of the property and equipment available to the bidder to 
evaluate if the bidder can complete the work in accordance with the bidding documents; A 
financial statement of the bidder showing that the bidder has the financial resources to 
meet all obligations incidental to the work; The bidder’s performance record giving the 
description, location, and telephone number of similar projects constructed in a satisfactory 
manner by the bidder; A list of projects presently under contract, the approximate contract 
amount and the percent of completion of each; A list of contracts which resulted in 
lawsuits; A list of contracts defaulted; A statement of the bidder indicating whether or not 
the bidder has ever filed bankruptcy while performing work of a like nature or magnitude;  A 
list of officers of the firm who, while in the employ of the firm or the employ of previous 
firms, were associated with contracts which resulted in lawsuits, contracts defaulted or filed 
for bankruptcy; The technical experience of personnel guaranteed to be employed in 

514

Item 24.



8 

responsible charge of the work stating whether the personnel have or have not performed 
satisfactorily on other contracts of like nature and magnitude or comparable difficulty at 
similar rate of progress; Such additional information as will assist the Owner in determining 
whether the bidder is adequately prepared to fulfill the contract. Owner’s decision as to 
qualifications of the bidder will be final. 
 
The Owner hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract 
entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be 
afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color or national origin in consideration for an 
award. 
 

03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.02: 
 
Plans, specifications and proposal forms may be obtained from the office of the City 
Engineer .Plans specifications and proposal forms have been approved by the City Council 
and are now on file for public examination in the office of the City Clerk. 
 
 

04 Taxes 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.08: 
 
Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 
Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment in the performance of 
this project. Products utilized in the construction of this project shall be exempt from tax as 
provided by Code of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 
 
 

05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.12: 
 
The bid security must be in the minimum amount of 10% of the total bid amount including 
all add alternates (do not deduct the amount of deduct alternates).  Bid security shall be 
in the form of a cashier’s check, a certified check, or a bank money order drawn on a 
FDIC insured bank in Iowa or drawn on a FDIC insured bank chartered under the laws of 
the United States; or a certified share draft drawn on a credit union in Iowa or chartered 
under the laws of the United States; or a bid bond executed by a corporation authorized 
to contract as a surety in Iowa or satisfactory to the Jurisdiction.  The bid bond must be 
submitted on the enclosed Bid Bond form, as no other bid bond forms are acceptable.  All 
signatures on the bid bond must be original signatures in ink; facsimile (fax) of any 
signature on the bid bond is not acceptable.  Bid security other than said bid bond shall 

515

Item 24.



9 

be made payable to City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls”. 
 
“Miscellaneous Bank checks”, as well as “Money Orders” and “Traveler’s Checks” issued by 
persons, firms or corporations licensed under Code of Iowa Chapter 533B are not acceptable 
bid security. 
 
The bid shall be submitted on the Form of Proposal included herewith or on a computer 
printed proposal. All entries on this proposal shall be filled in ink, typed or computer printed. 
The bidder shall not alter the quantity, unit price, or the extension that has been provided 
for items that have been predetermined by the contracting authority. 
 
If the proposal is computer generated, the bidder shall submit a form titled as “Form of 
Proposal,” followed by: the project name, project number, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and 
the bidder's name. The form shall then include the item numbers, item descriptions, and 
units and their quantities. The bidder shall specify a unit price in figures of dollars and 
cents for all pay items, the extensions for the respective unit prices and quantities in figures 
in a column provided for the purpose, and the total amount of the proposal obtained by 
adding the amounts of the several items. The form shall then conclude with the bidder's 
name, that of its representative and the representative's signature. 
 
The computer generated proposal then is to be attached to the Form of Proposal included 
herewith, which has the following entries completed: bid security sum and form, the name 
of the bidder and its official address, and the bidder's representative's name, signature and 
title. Also the total bid shall be completed with the entry of "see attached." 
 
The proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope separate from the bid security and 
non-collusion Affidavit. The envelope shall bear the return address of the bidder and shall 
be addressed as follows: 
 

To: City Clerk 
City of Cedar Falls 
City Hall 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 
Proposal for: 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project 

Project No. SW-000-3293 
 

516

Item 24.



10 

FORM OF PROPOSAL 

2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT 

PROJECT NO. SW-000-3293 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
To the Mayor and City Council 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies that _________________________ have personally and 

carefully examined the specifications, general conditions, and form of contract annexed 

hereto.  Having made such examination, the undersigned hereby proposes to construct the 

improvements for the 2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT in accordance with the 

plans and specifications on file in the office of the City Clerk, the published Notice to 

Bidders and the Form of Contract, herewith, complying with all the laws of the State of 

Iowa, and the Rules, Regulations and Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, and to the 

satisfaction of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including the guaranteeing 

of this Project for a period of two (2) years from the date of final acceptance thereof at the 

following prices, to-wit: 

 

 

ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY 

1 OFF SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. 17.25 

2 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 217.1 

3 SIDEWALK P.C.C. 4 IN. CLASS “C”   S.Y. 209.9 

4 SIDEWALK P.C.C. 6 IN. CLASS “C”   S.Y. 7.2 

5 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1.0 

6 
SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR 
HYDRAULIC SEEDING 

S.F. 924.0 

517

Item 24.



11 

Bidders may not independently bid on selective items of work. In this project, all items constitute 
one indivisible work that will be let to one bidder. Bids shall be submitted for all of the items. The 
successful bidder will be determined by evaluating the Total Bid shown above. Failure to submit a 
bid on any item shall be just cause for disqualification of the entire proposal. Unit bids must be filled 
in ink, typed or computer generated, or the bid will be rejected. The Owner reserves the right to 
delete any part or all of any item. 
 

The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, including without limitation, nonconforming, 
nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. The Owner further reserves the right to reject the 
bid of any bidder whom it finds, after reasonable inquiry and evaluation, to be non-responsible. The 
Owner may also reject the bid of any bidder if the Owner believes that it would not be in the best 
interest of the project to make an award to that bidder. The Owner also reserves the right to waive 
all informalities not involving price time or changes in the work 
 

If written notice of approval of award is mailed, telegraphed or delivered to the undersigned within 
thirty (30) calendar days after the opening thereof, or any time thereafter before this bid is 
withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver an agreement in the prescribed form and 
furnish the required bond within ten (10) calendar days after the Contract is presented to him for 
signature, and start work within ten (10) calendar days after "Notice to Proceed" is issued. 
 

Bid Security in the sum of _________________________________ in the form of 
__________________________________, is submitted herewith in accordance with the 
Instructions to Bidders. 
 

The bidder is prepared to submit a financial and experience statement upon request. 
 

The bidder has received the following Addendum or Addenda: 
 

Addendum No.  ______________     Date _____________ 
  ______________ _____________ 
 

The bidder has filled in all blanks on this Proposal. 
 

Note: The Penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.A., Section 1001. 
Name of bidder 
________________________________  _____________________________ 

   By 
________________________________  _____________________________  
Official Address   Title  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

518

Item 24.



12 

BID BOND 
 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, ___________________________________________ 
__________________________, as Principal, and ___________________________________________ 
as Surety are held and firmly bound unto the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as Obligee, hereinafter called "OBLIGEE," In the 
penal sum of______________________________________ Dollars ($______________) lawful money of the United 
States, for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, and 
successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. Whereas the Principal has submitted the accompanying bid 
dated the _______ day of_______________________, 20_____, for ______________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, 
 
(a) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate, 
 
(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form specified and shall 

furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons performing labor 
or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the agreement created by 
the acceptance of said Bid, 

 
Then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood and 
agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of this 
obligation as herein stated. 
 
By virtue of statutory authority, the full amount of this bid bond shall be forfeited to the Obligee in liquidation of damages 
sustained in the event that the Principal fails to execute the contract and provide the bond as provided in the 
specifications or by law. 
 
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in 
no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the Obligee may accept such Bid or execute such 
contract; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety, have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them as 
are corporations, have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their proper 
officers this ______ day of ____________________, A.D., 20_____. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Principal 

 
 
_______________________________________ By_______________________________ (Title) 
Witness 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Surety 

 
_______________________________________ By____________________________________ 
Witness                                  Attorney-in-fact 

                
 
 
 
 
 
 

519

Item 24.



13 

  NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER           

 PROJECT NO. SW-000-3293 
 
STATE OF _______________________  

                           ss 
COUNTY OF _____________________ 
 
 
__________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that: 
 
(1)  We are _______________________________________________________ of ______________           
 (owner, partner, officer, representative, or agent) 
 
_____________________________, the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid: 
 
(2)  We are fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached bid and of all pertinent circumstances 
respecting such bid: 
 
(3)   Such bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid: 
 
(4)  Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or parties in 
interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other 
Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in connection with the Contract for which the attached bid has been 
submitted or to refrain from bidding in connection with such Contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by 
agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the 
attached bid or of any other Bidder, or, to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price of any other Bidder, or to 
secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, or any person interested in the proposed Contract; and 
 
(5)   The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by a collusion, conspiracy, 
connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives, owners, employees or 
parties in interest, including this affiant. 
 
 
 
   __________________________________________ 

Signed       
 __________________________________________ 

    Title 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
 
this _______ day of ________________, 20_____ 
 
________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________ 
Title 
 
My Commission expires ______________________. 

 

 

520

Item 24.



14 

 

 

521

Item 24.



15 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

522

Item 24.



16 

FORM OF CONTRACT 

 
This Contract entered into in quadruplicate at Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ____ day of _________, 

2022, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the Owner, and_____________ 

of ___________________, hereinafter called the Contractor. 

WITNESSETH: 

The Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials and equipment and construct 

the public improvement consisting of:  2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT, Project No. SW-

000-3293 all in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, ordered to be constructed by the City Council of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by Resolution duly passed on the 18
th
 day of July, 2022 and shown and described 

in the Plans and Specifications therefore now on file with the City Clerk of said City. 

Said improvement shall be constructed strictly in accordance with said Plans and Specifications. 

The following parts of the Plans and Specifications for said Project No. SW-000-3293 attached 

hereto shall be made a part of this contract as fully as though set out herein verbatim: 

a. Resolution of Necessity 
b. Resolution ordering construction of the improvement 
c. Plans 
d. Notice of Public Hearing on Plans and Specifications 
e. Notice to Bidders 
f. Instructions to Bidders 
g. Supplemental Conditions 
h. General Conditions 
i. Project Specifications 
j. Form of Proposal 
k. Performance Bond 
l. Maintenance Bond 
m. Form of Contract 
n. Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 
o. Bidder Statues Form and Worksheet 
 

On completion of the said improvement, the Owner agrees to pay to the Contractor the prices set out in 

the Form of Proposal of the Contractor, said payment to be made in the manner stated in the published 

Notice to Bidders. 

523

Item 24.



17 

In Witness whereof, this Contract has been executed in quadruplicate on the date first herein written.

  

 
 __________________________ 
 Contractor 

 
 
    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
    By____________________________ 

    Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
 City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

524

Item 24.



18 

Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond 
 

SURETY BOND NO.    
 
 

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 

That we,  ,  as  Principal  (hereinafter  the  “Contractor”  or “Principal” and 

   as Surety are held and firmly bound unto 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, as Obligee (hereinafter referred to as “the Owner”), and to all persons who  

may  be  injured  by  any  breach  of  any  of  the  conditions  of  this  Bond  in  the  penal  sum  of 
 

($  ), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum, well and truly to 
be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, legal representatives and assigns, jointly or severally, firmly by these 

presents. 

 

The conditions of the above obligations are such that whereas said Contractor entered into a contract with the 

Owner,  bearing date the  day of  , 2022, hereinafter the “Contract”) wherein said 

Contractor undertakes and agrees to construct the following described improvements: 

 

2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project 

Sidewalk / Pavement / Seeding 

Project SW-000-3293 
 

and to faithfully perform all the terms and requirements of said Contract within the time therein specified, in a 

good and workmanlike manner, and in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 

It is expressly understood and agreed by the Contractor and Surety in this bond that the following provisions are a 

part of this Bond and are binding upon said Contractor and Surety, to-wit: 
 

1. PERFORMANCE: The Contractor shall well and faithfully observe, perform, fulfill, and abide by each 

and every covenant, condition, and part of said Contract and Contract Documents, by reference made a 

part hereof, for the above referenced improvements, and shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner 

from all outlay and expense incurred by the Owner by reason of the Contractor’s default or failure to 

perform as required. The Contractor shall also be responsible for the default or failure to perform as 

required under the Contract and Contract Documents by all its subcontractors, suppliers, agents, or 

employees furnishing materials or providing labor in the performance of the Contract. 
 

2. PAYMENT: The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agreed to pay all just claims submitted 

by persons, firms, subcontractors, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the 

performance of the Contract on account of which this Bond is given, including but not limited to claims 

for all amounts due for labor, materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, repairs on machinery, equipment, and 

tools, consumed or used by the Contractor or any subcontractor, wherein the same are not satisfied out of 

the portion of the contract price the Owner is required to retain until completion of the improvement, but 

the Contractor and Surety shall not be liable to said persons, firms, or corporations unless the claims of 

said claimants against said portion of the contract price  shall have been established as provided by law. 

The Contractor and Surety hereby bind themselves to the obligations and conditions set forth in Chapter 

573 of the Iowa Code, which by this reference is made a part hereof as though fully set out herein. 
 

3. MAINTENANCE: The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agree, at their own expense: 

525

Item 24.



19 

A. To remedy any and all defects that may develop in or result from work to be performed 

under the Contract within the period of      2       year  (s) from the date of acceptance  of the 

work under the Contract, by reason of defects in workmanship or materials used in 

construction of said work; 

 

B. To keep all work in continuous good repair; and 

 

C. To pay the Owner’s reasonable costs of monitoring and inspection to assure that any defects 

are remedied, and to repay the Owner all outlay and expense incurred as a result of 

Contractor’s and Surety’s failure to remedy any defect as required by this section. 

 

Contractor’s and Surety’s agreement herein made extends to defects in workmanship or 

materials not discovered or known to the Owner at the time such work was accepted. 
 

4. GENERAL: Every Surety on this Bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract  to the contrary 

notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 

 

A. To consent without notice to any extension of time to the Contractor in which to perform the 

Contract; 

 

B. To consent without notice to any change in the Contract or Contract Documents, which 

thereby increases the total contract price and the penal sum of this bond, provided that all 

such changes do not, in the aggregate, involve an increase of more than 20% of the total 

contract price, and that this bond shall then be released as to such excess increase; and 

 

C. To consent without notice that this Bond shall remain in full force and effect until the 

Contract is completed, whether  completed within the specified contract period, within  an 

extension thereof, or within a period of time after the contract period has elapsed and the 

liquidated damage penalty is being charged against the Contractor. 

 

The Contractor and every Surety on the bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 

notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 
 

D. That no provision of this Bond or of any other contract shall be valid  that limits to less 

than five years after the acceptance of the work under the Contract the right to sue on this 

Bond. 
 

E. That as used herein, the phrase “all outlay and expense” is not to be limited in any way, but 

shall include the actual and reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Owner including 

interest, benefits, and overhead where applicable.  Accordingly,  “all outlay and expense” 

would include but not be limited to all contract or employee expense, all equipment usage or 

rental, materials, testing, outside experts, attorneys fees (including overhead expenses of the 

Owner’s staff attorneys), and all costs and expenses of litigation as they are incurred by the 

Owner. It is intended the Contractor  and Surety will defend and indemnify the Owner on all 

claims made against the Owner on account of Contractor’s failure to perform as required in 

the Contract and Contract Documents, that all agreements and promises set forth in the 

Contract and Contract Documents, in approved change orders, and in this Bond will be 

fulfilled, and that the Owner will be fully indemnified so that it will be put into the position 

it would have been in had the Contract been performed in the first instance as required. 

526

Item 24.



20 

In the event the Owner incurs any “outlay and expense” in defending itself against any claim 

as to which the Contractor or Surety should have provided the defense, or in the enforcement 

of the promises given by the Contractor in the Contract, Contract Documents, or approved 

change orders, or in the enforcement of the promises given by the Contractor and Surety in 

this Bond, the Contractor and Surety agree that they will make the Owner whole for all such 

outlay and expense, provided that the Surety’s obligation under this bond shall not exceed 

125% of the penal sum of this bond. 

 
In the event that any actions or proceedings are initiated regarding this Bond, the parties agree that the venue 

thereof shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk County, State of Iowa. If legal action is required by 

the Owner to enforce the provisions of this Bond or to collect the monetary obligation incurring to the benefit of 

the Owner, the Contractor and the Surety agree, jointly, and severally, to pay the Owner all outlay and expense 

incurred therefor by the Owner. All rights, powers, and remedies of the Owner hereunder shall be cumulative and 

not alternative and shall be in addition to all rights, powers, and remedies given to the Owner, by law. The 

Owner may proceed against surety for any amount guaranteed hereunder whether action is brought against the 

Contractor or whether Contractor is joined in any such action(s) or not. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if said Principal shall faithfully perform all the 

promises of the Principal, as set forth and provided in the Contract, in the Contract Documents, and in this Bond, 

then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

When a work, term, or phrase is used in this Bond, it shall be interpreted or construed first as defined in this 

Bond, the Contract, or the Contract Documents; second, if not defined in the Bond, Contract, or Contract 

Documents, it shall be interpreted or construed as defined in applicable provisions of the Iowa Code; third,  if not 

defined in the Iowa Code, it shall be interpreted or construed according to its generally accepted meaning in the 

construction industry; and fourth, if it has no generally accepted meaning in the construction industry, it shall be 

interpreted or construed according to its common or customary usage. 

 

Failure to specify or particularize shall not exclude terms or provisions not mentioned and shall not limit 

liability hereunder. The Contract and Contract Documents are hereby made a part of this Bond. 

527

Item 24.



21 

Project No. SW-000-3293 
 

Witness our hands, in triplicate, this  day of  , 2022. 
 

Surety Countersigned By: PRINCIPAL: 
 

 
Signature of Agent Contractor 

 

 
By:    

Signature 

 
Printed Name of Agent Title 

 

 

Company Name 

SURETY: 

 

 
  

Company Address Surety Company 
 

By:    
 

City, State, Zip Code Signature Attorney-in-Fact Officer 

 
 

 
Company Telephone Number Printed Name of Attorney-in-Fact Officer 

 
 

 
Company Name 

 

 
 

FORM APPROVED BY: 

Company Address 

 
 

City, State, Zip Code 

 
Attorney for Owner Company Telephone Number 

 

 

NOTE: 
 

1. All signatures on this performance, payment, and maintenance bond must be original 

signatures in ink; copies, facsimile, or electronic signatures will not be accepted. 

2. This bond must be sealed with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 

3. The Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond must be valid on its 

face and sealed with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 

4. The name and signature of the Surety’s Attorney-in-Fact/Officer entered on this bond 

must be exactly as listed on the Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this 

bond. 

 
 
 
 

528

Item 24.



22 

DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 

 
 
Special Provisions are intended to amend or supplement the General Provisions and 
Covenants of the SUDAS Standard Specifications. All sections that are not amended or 
supplemented remain in full force and effect. 
 

01 Award of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1030 – 1.03: 
 
The lowest responsive bidder shall be required to furnish a performance, payment and 
maintenance bond in the sum equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the total bid. The 
maintenance bond shall guarantee the maintenance of the improvements for a period of two 
(2) years from and after its completion and acceptance by the City of Cedar Falls. 
 

02 Availability of Site 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.04: 
 
During construction of this project, the Contractor shall be required to coordinate their 
operations with those of other Contractors working within the same area of the following 
project: 
 

1) Public Works garbage collection operations 
2) Street Reconstruction/Restoration - 2022 
3) Cedar Falls Util. Co. electrical, communications, gas & water main projects 
 

 

03 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.10: 
 
The Contractor shall notify the Engineer at least 48 hours prior to the need for survey stakes. 
The Contractor shall be responsible for preserving survey stakes and marks and if any survey 
stakes or marks are destroyed or disturbed by the Contractor, Contractor shall be charged for 
the cost of replacing them. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

529

Item 24.



23 

 

04 Borrow and Waste Sites 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1070 – 2.13: 
 
It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to provide waste areas or disposal sites for excess 
material which is not desirable to be incorporated in the work involved on this project 
(excavation or broken concrete). No payment for overhaul will be allowed for material hauled 
to these sites. The Engineer shall review all disposal sites. Overhaul will not be measured or 
paid for but will be considered incidental to pavement removal or roadway excavation on this 
project. 
 

05 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.01: 
 
The Contractor's own organization shall perform work amounting to not less than fifty percent 
(50%) of the total contract cost unless otherwise specified. Item designated as a specialty 
item may be performed by subcontract, and the cost of any such specialty item as performed 
by subcontract may be deducted from the total cost before computing the amount of work 
required by the Contractor's organization. 
 

06 Contract Time 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.02: 
 
The work on the Contract shall commence ten calendar days after the date set forth in the 
written notice to proceed and shall be completed within thirty (30) working days of notice to 
proceed. 
 

07 Work Progress and Schedule 

 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.03: 

 
The progress of the work shall be such that at the expiration of one-fourth of the working 
days, one-eighth of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of one-half of the working 
days, three-eights of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of three-fourths of the 
working days, the work shall be three-fourths completed, and the whole work shall be 
completed at the expiration of the working days. 
 

08 Weekly Record of Working Days 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.06: 
 
Work shall not begin before 7:00 a.m. and shall stop at sunset.  

530

Item 24.



24 

 

09 Liquidated Damages 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.12: 
 
Liquidated damages in the amount of one hundred dollars ($300.00) per working day will be 
assessed for each working day that the work remains uncompleted after the expiration of the 
contract time. 
 

10 Progress Payments 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1090 – 1.01: 
 
Pay estimates will be submitted to the City Council for approval on the first (1

st
) and third (3

rd
) 

Mondays of each month. 
 
Payment to the Contractor will be made in cash from such cash funds of said City as may be 
legally used for said purposes, including the proceeds of the Local Option Tax and General 
Obligation Bonds. Any other combination of funds may be used at the discretion of the City 
Council. 
 
Before final payment is made, the Contractor shall furnish vouchers showing that all 
subcontractors and all persons furnishing labor and materials have been fully paid for such 
materials and labor and that the City may retain the last month's payment for a period of 
ninety (90) calendar days following such completion and approval, unless satisfied that 
material, men and laborers have been paid. 
 

11 Pollution Prevention Plan 

 
1. Project Description 
 
This project shall consist of the installation of concrete sidewalks. This project 
encompasses Sixty Two (62) various locations within the city.   

 
2. Erosion and Sediment Controls 
 
All contractors and subcontractors operating on the site shall take efforts to prevent 
contamination of storm water runoff, groundwater, and soils by hazardous material and / or 
pollutants caused by their operations or encountered in their work. All waste materials and 
supplies must be removed from the sites. If construction equipment maintenance or repair is 
performed on any site, provisions must be made to capture and remove any lubricants or 
other fluids. 
 
 
 

531

Item 24.



25 

The Contractor shall notify the Owner immediately upon finding a hazardous material 
contamination either existing at the site or caused by construction activities. 
 
The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall be responsible to the Owner to: 
 

1. Execute Contractor’s part of the pollution prevention plan as described. 
 

2. Conduct all work activities to not damage an existing erosion control measure or 
stabilizing vegetation.  If damages occur, the Contractor shall make repairs with 
no additional cost to the Owner. 
 

 3. Coordinate with the Owner for installation of additional erosion control 
measures that may be needed during construction. 

 
3. Certification Statement  
 
 

N.P.D.E.S. CERTIFICATION 

PROJECT NO. SW – 000 - 3293 
 
The contractor certifies under penalty of law that they understand the terms and conditions of 
the general National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit that authorizes 
the storm water discharges associated with industrial activity from the construction site as part 
of this certification. Further, by signing and entering into contract for this work, the contractor 
understands that they are becoming a co-permittee, along with the owner(s) and other 
contractors and subcontractors, to the Iowa Department of Natural Resources NPDES 
General Permit No. 2 for “Storm Water Discharge Associated with Industrial Activity for 
Construction Activities” at the identified site. As co-permittee, the contractor understands that 
they and their company are legally required under the Clean Water Act and the Code of Iowa, 
to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of the Storm Pollution Prevention Plan 
developed under this NPDES permit and the terms of this NPDES permit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

532

Item 24.



26 

12 Method of Measurement 
 
The Engineer shall measure the items of work that have been acceptably constructed as 
specified in the contract documents for the 2022 SIDEWALK  ASSESSEMENT PROJECT   in 
accordance with the 2022 edition of the Urban Standard Specifications for Public 
Improvements and as further modified by the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental 
Specifications, except as amended or supplemented as follows: 
 
 

Item No. 6 – Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching for Hydraulic Seeding  
 

The area of Seeding, Fertilizing and Mulching will be computed in square feet from surface 
measurements of length and width. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

533

Item 24.



27 

13 Basis of Payment 

 
Payment for the items listed in the Method of Measurement shall be determined by multiplying 
the item quantity (as determined in the Method of Measurement) by the unit price as bid on 
the proposal form in accordance with the 2022 Edition of the “URBAN STANDARD 
SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS MANUAL” (SUDAS) as amended by the 
City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications to the 2022 Edition of the URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS MANUAL, except as 
amended or supplemented as follows: 
 
 

Item No. 6 – Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching for Hydraulic Seeding  
 

The area of Seeding, Fertilizing and Mulching will be computed in square feet from surface 
measurements of length and width. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

534

Item 24.



28 

DIVISION 4 - Supplemental Plans and Specifications 
All work shall be constructed as specified in the Contract documents for the 2022 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project in accordance with the 2022 Edition of the “URBAN STANDARD 
SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS MANUAL” (SUDAS) as amended by the 
City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications to the 2022 Edition of the URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS MANUAL, except as 
amended or supplemented as follows: 
 
 
 

Item No. 5 – Temporary Traffic Control 
 

Temporary Traffic control shall be measured on a lump sum basis as per I.D.O.T. 
Specification Section 2528.12A1. 
 

535

Item 24.



2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT

BLACK HAWK COUNTY

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

7/11/202
2

536

Item 24.



537

Item 24.



538

Item 24.



“ ”

“ ”

539

Item 24.



540

Item 24.



541

Item 24.



542

Item 24.



543

Item 24.



544

Item 24.



545

Item 24.



546

Item 24.



547

Item 24.



548

Item 24.



549

Item 24.



550

Item 24.



551

Item 24.



552

Item 24.



553

Item 24.



554

Item 24.



555

Item 24.



556

Item 25.



557

Item 25.



558

Item 25.



559

Item 25.



560

Item 25.



561

Item 25.



562

Item 25.



563

Item 25.



564

Item 25.



565

Item 25.



566

Item 25.



567

Item 25.



568

Item 25.



569

Item 25.



570

Item 25.



571

Item 25.



572

Item 25.



573

Item 25.



574

Item 25.



575

Item 25.



576

Item 25.



577

Item 25.



578

Item 25.



579

Item 25.



580

Item 25.



581

Item 25.



582

Item 25.



583

Item 25.



584

Item 25.



585

Item 25.



586

Item 25.



587

Item 25.



588

Item 25.



589

Item 25.



590

Item 25.



591

Item 25.



592

Item 25.



593

Item 25.



594

Item 25.



595

Item 25.



596

Item 25.



597

Item 25.



598

Item 25.



599

Item 25.



600

Item 25.



601

Item 25.



602

Item 25.



603

Item 25.



604

Item 25.



605

Item 25.



606

Item 25.



607

Item 25.



608

Item 25.



609

Item 25.



610

Item 25.



611

Item 25.



612

Item 25.



613

Item 25.



614

Item 25.



615

Item 25.



616

Item 25.



617

Item 25.



618

Item 25.



619

Item 25.



620

Item 25.



621

Item 25.



622

Item 25.



623

Item 25.



624

Item 25.



625

Item 25.



626

Item 25.



627

Item 25.



628

Item 25.



629

Item 25.



630

Item 25.



631

Item 25.



632

Item 25.



633

Item 25.



634

Item 25.



635

Item 25.



636

Item 25.



637

Item 25.



638

Item 25.



639

Item 25.



640

Item 25.



641

Item 25.



642

Item 25.



643

Item 25.



644

Item 25.



645

Item 25.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of July 5, 2022
	220705MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation-Gastroparesis
	2022-08_Gastroparesis_Month

	Item 3.	Receive and file Bond Bids
	1-bond sale bids council.mem
	2-Rating Action - Moodys-assigns-Aaa-to-Cedar-Falls-IA-Series-2022-GOs - 06Jul22
	3-Cedar Falls (185) - Sale-Award 2022 GO CLN (02072494x7F7E1)

	Item 5.	PH Cont-CDBG and HOME Consortium Annual Action Plan FY23 (FFY22)
	1. Council memo for PH 7-18-22
	2. Council memo for PH 7-5-22correct
	3 Final FFY 2019-2023 Consolidated Plan (5-7-19)
	4. FFY 2019 Annual Action Plan with CARES Act Amendment 3 (Final)
	5. LMI 2011-15
	6. FutLandUse11x17_from web

	Item 6.	PH-Status of Funded Activities for State Award of CARES Act Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG-CV2)
	1 PH CC memo re SOFA

	Item 7.	PH-Rezoning 2209 N Union Rd
	1. CC Staff Report for 2209 N. Union Road Rezoning 7-18-2022
	2. Location Map
	3. Rezoning Plat 5-9-22
	4. Ord-Rezoning-2209 N. Union Road

	Item 8.	PH-Zoning-site plan review CD-DT
	1. Memo.CC. ph.PZ role.CD-DT.7.8.22
	2. Ord CD-DT TA22-003 PZ role.revised
	3. draft language site plan review.7.8.22
	4. decision.matrix FM 4.6.21

	Item 9.	Ord. 3013-Parking on South Lawn Rd.
	1. Memo - Parking Prohibited on S. Lawn Road Ordinance
	2. South Lawn
	3 -Ord 3013-Pkng South Lawn Road
	4. Redlined Sec._23_374

	Item 10.	Board Recommendations
	2022-07-11_CCSSB_Appointments
	Hale App
	Hosler App

	Item 11.	Board Resignation
	Corkery Resignation

	Item 12.	Certified Lists - Civil Service
	Certified Lists

	Item 13.	Liquor Beer 7-18-22
	Liquor Beer 7-18-22

	Item 14.	FY23 Employee Climate Survey Agreement
	FY23 Employee Climate Survey Agreement - Memo to Council
	1556_Agreement_Ryken_CCF_CCF Employee Climate Survey-partially executed_07-11-22

	Item 15.	FY23 ICRC Cooperative Agreement
	FY23 ICRC COOP Agreement - Memo to Council
	FY23 ICRC COOP Agreement

	Item 16.	Microsoft 365 Migration Agreement
	Council Memo - M365 Migration
	Cedar Falls_HBS_Master Service Agreement (7.8.2022)
	HBS - Statement of Work

	Item 17.	Door Access Control System
	Council Memo - Door Access Control Upgrade
	Inteconnex Contract Signed
	Exhibit A Contract
	Exhibit B Quote

	Item 18.	Amperage Marketing FY23 Tourism Advertising Contract
	1. Memo to Mayor and Council 06-21-2022 Amperage contract
	2. Goods and Services Contract-Amperage Marketing
	3. Exhibit A
	4. Exhibit B - Insurance Requirements - Amperage
	5. Insurance_Amperage

	Item 19.	Red House Studios Lease Agreement
	1. Red House StudiosLeaseMemo_07182022
	2. KamiLilly_FY23LeaseAgreement

	Item 20.	CDBG-CV2 Subrecipient Agreement-Operation Threshold
	1. CC OT CARES CV2 memo
	2. OT signed 

	Item 21.	Polymer Mixing Pump Purchase
	1 - WRF memo Polymer Pumps
	2 - Est_22214_from_BDP_INDUSTRIES_INC._36532
	3 - VeloDyne Proposal Package BM20-2842 (BGA)

	Item 22.	SA No. 2 - Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement Project
	1. Memo - Oak Park PSA No. 2 Snyder
	2. PSA_2022-07-08_SuppAgr2_LiftStation

	Item 23.	ROW Acquisitions - Main Street Reconstruction Project
	1. ROW Memo - Main Street Reconstruction
	2. Main Street Strip Map (2022-0523)
	3. ROW Files

	Item 24.	Set PH - 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project
	1. Memo PSE - 2022 Sidewalk Assessment
	4. Engineer's Estimate - 2022 Asessment
	3. 2022 ASSESSMENT SPEC SIGNED
	2. Final Plans - 2022 Assessment SIGNED

	Item 25.	Allow Bills & Claims - July 18, 2022
	1 Daily Invoices 071822
	2 Council Invoices 071822

	Bottom

